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INDEX TO PETITIONERS’ APPENDIX

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Complaint (filed 12/17/2013) Vol. 1, 1-17
Declaration of Salvatore Morabito in Support of Snowshoe | Vol. 1, 18-21
Capital’s Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction (filed 05/12/2014)
Defendant Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss | Vol. 1, 22-30
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2)
(filed 05/12/2014)
JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, and Berry Hinckley Industries | Vol. 1, 3143
Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed 05/29/2014)
Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss
Exhibit Document Description
1 Affidavit of John P. Desmond (filed 05/29/2014) | Vol. 1, 4448
2 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust | Vol. 1, 49-88
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated
09/30/2010)
3 Unanimous Written Consent of the Directors and | Vol. 1, 89-92
Shareholders of CWC (dated 09/28/2010)
4 Unanimous Written Consent of the Board of | Vol. 1, 93-102
Directors and Sole Shareholder of Superpumper
(dated 09/28/2010)
5 Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 1, 103—107
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc.
(dated 09/28/2010)
6 Articles of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 1, 108-110
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc.
(dated 09/29/2010)
7 2009 Federal Income Tax Return for P. Morabito | Vol. 1, 111-153
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (cont.)

8 May 21, 2014 printout from New York Secretary | Vol. 1, 154-156
of State

9 May 9, 2008 Letter from Garrett Gordon to John | Vol. 1, 157-158
Desmond

10 Shareholder Interest Purchase Agreement (dated | Vol. 1, 159-164
09/30/2010)

11 Relevant portions of the January 22, 2010 | Vol. 1, 165-176
Deposition of Edward Bayuk

13 Relevant portions of the January 11, 2010 | Vol. 1, 177-180
Deposition of Salvatore Morabito

14 October 1, 2010 Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed Vol. 1, 181-187

15 Order admitting Dennis Vacco (filed 02/16/2011) | Vol. 1, 188—190

JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, and Berry Hinckley Industries, Errata
to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed 05/30/2014)

Vol. 2, 191-194

Exhibit to Errata to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss

Exhibit

Document Description

12

Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed for APN: 040-620-
09, dated November 10, 2005

Vol. 2, 195-198

Answer to Complaint of P. Morabito, individually and as
trustee of the Arcadia Living Trust (filed 06/02/2014)

Vol. 2, 199-208

Defendant, Snowshow Petroleum, Inc.’s Reply in Support
of Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 06/06/2014)

Vol. 2, 209-216
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit to Reply in Support of Motion to Dismiss
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP
12(b)(2)

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Salvatore Morabito in Support of
Snowshow Petroleum, Inc.’s Reply in Support of
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of
Personal Jurisdiction (filed 06/06/2014)

Vol. 2,217-219

Defendant, Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2)
(filed 06/19/2014)

Vol. 2, 220-231

Exhibit to Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of
Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2)

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Salvatore Morabito in Support of
Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss for Lack
of Personal Jurisdiction (filed 06/19/2014)

Vol. 2,232-234

JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst, and Berry Hinckley Industries,
Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (filed 07/07/2014)

Vol. 2, 235-247

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss

Exhibit Document Description

1 Affidavit of Brian R. Irvine (filed 07/07/2014)

Vol. 2, 248252

2 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust

Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated
09/30/2010)

Vol. 2, 253-292

3 BHI Electronic Funds Transfers, January 1, 2006
to December 31, 2006

Vol. 2, 293-294
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (cont.)

4 Legal and accounting fees paid by BHI on behalf | Vol. 2, 295-328
of Superpumper; JH78636-JH78639; JH78653-
JH78662; JH78703-JH78719

5 Unanimous Written Consent of the Directors and | Vol. 2, 329-332
Shareholders of CWC (dated 09/28/2010)

6 Unanimous Written Consent of the Board of | Vol. 2, 333-336
Directors and Sole Shareholders of Superpumper
(dated 09/28/2010)

7 Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 2, 337-341
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc.
(dated 09/28/2010)

8 Articles of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 2, 342-344
Corporation with and into Superpumper, Inc.
(dated 09/29/2010)

9 2009 Federal Income Tax Return for P. Morabito | Vol. 2, 345-388

10 Relevant portions of the January 22, 2010 | Vol. 2, 389-400
Deposition of Edward Bayuk

11 Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed for APN: 040-620- | Vol. 2, 401-404
09, dated November 10, 2005

12 Relevant portions of the January 11, 2010 | Vol. 2, 405-408
Deposition of Salvatore Morabito

13 Printout of Arizona Corporation Commission | Vol. 2, 409414

corporate listing for Superpumper, Inc.

Defendant, Superpumper, Inc.’s Reply in Support of
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 07/15/2014)

Vol. 3, 415421

Order Denying Motion to Dismiss as to Snowshoe
Petroleum, Inc.’s (filed 07/17/2014)

Vol. 3, 422431
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Motion to Dismiss as to
Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s (filed 07/17/2014)

Vol. 3, 432435

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying Motion to
Dismiss as to Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Motion to Dismiss as to Snowshoe
Petroleum, Inc.’s

Vol. 3, 436446

Order Denying Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2)
(filed 07/22/2014)

Vol. 3, 447-457

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Superpumper, Inc.’s
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 07/22/2014)

Vol. 3, 458461

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying
Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to Dismiss Complaint

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion to
Dismiss Complaint for Lack of Personal
Jurisdiction NRCP 12(b)(2) (filed 07/22/2014)

Vol. 3, 462473

Answer to Complaint of Superpumper, Inc., and Snowshoe
Petroleum, Inc. (filed 07/28/2014)

Vol. 3, 474483

Answer to Complaint of Defendants, Edward Bayuk,
individually and as trustee of the Edward William Bayuk
Living Trust, and Salvatore Morabito (filed 09/29/2014)

Vol. 3, 484-494

Notice of Bankruptcy of Consolidated Nevada Corporation
and P. Morabito (filed 2/11/2015)

Vol. 3, 495-498
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Supplemental Notice of Bankruptcy of Consolidated
Nevada Corporation and P. Morabito (filed 02/17/2015)

Vol. 3, 499-502

Exhibits to Supplemental Notice of Bankruptcy of
Consolidated Nevada Corporation and P. Morabito

Exhibit Document Description
1 Involuntary Petition; Case No. BK-N-13-51236 | Vol. 3, 503-534
(filed 06/20/2013)
2 Involuntary Petition; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 | Vol. 3, 535-566
(06/20/2013)

3 Order for Relief Under Chapter 7; Case No. BK-
N-13-51236 (filed 12/17/2014)

Vol. 3, 567-570

4 Order for Relief Under Chapter 7; Case No. BK-
N-13-51237 (filed 12/17/2014)

Vol. 3, 571-574

Stipulation and Order to File Amended Complaint (filed
05/15/2015)

Vol. 4, 575-579

Exhibit to Stipulation and Order to File Amended
Complaint

Exhibit Document Description

1 First Amended Complaint

Vol. 4, 580-593

William A. Leonard, Trustee for the Bankruptcy Estate of
P. Morabito, First Amended Complaint (filed 05/15/2015)

Vol. 4, 594-607

Stipulation and Order to Substitute a Party Pursuant to
NRCP 17(a) (filed 05/15/2015)

Vol. 4, 608-611

Substitution of Counsel (filed 05/26/2015)

Vol. 4, 612-615

Defendants’ Answer to First Amended Complaint (filed
06/02/2015)

Vol. 4, 616623
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Amended Stipulation and Order to Substitute a Party
Pursuant to NRCP 17(a) (filed 06/16/2015)

Vol. 4, 624-627

Motion to Partially Quash, or, in the Alternative, for a
Protective Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking
Discovery Protected by the Attorney-Client Privilege (filed
03/10/2016)

Vol. 4, 628635

Exhibits to Motion to Partially Quash, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee
from Seeking Discovery Protected by the Attorney-
Client Privilege

Exhibit Document Description

1 March 9, 2016 Letter from Lippes

Vol. 4, 636638

2 Affidavit of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., (dated
03/10/2016)

Vol. 4, 639-641

3 Notice of Issuance of Subpoena to Dennis
Vacco (dated 01/29/2015)

Vol. 4, 642-656

4 March 10, 2016 email chain

Vol. 4, 657-659

Minutes of February 24, 2016 Pre-trial Conference (filed
03/17/2016)

Vol. 4, 660-661

Transcript of February 24, 2016 Pre-trial Conference

Vol. 4, 662725

Plaintiff’s (Leonard) Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to
Partially Quash, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order
Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery Protected by
the Attorney-Client Privilege (filed 03/25/2016)

Vol. 5, 726-746

Exhibits to Opposition to Motion to Partially Quash or,
in the Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding
Trustee from Seeking Discovery Protected by the
Attorney-Client Privilege

Page 7 of 67




DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz in Support | Vol. 5, 747-750
of Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendants’ Motion
to Partially Quash (filed 03/25/2016)

2 Application for Commission to take Deposition | Vol. 5, 751-759
of Dennis Vacco (filed 09/17/2015)

3 Commission to take Deposition of Dennis Vol. 5, 760-763
Vacco (filed 09/21/2015)

4 Subpoena/Subpoena Duces Tecum to Dennis Vol. 5, 764-776
Vacco (09/29/2015)

5 Notice of Issuance of Subpoena to Dennis Vol. 5, 777-791
Vacco (dated 09/29/2015)

6 Dennis C. Vacco and Lippes Mathias Wexler Vol. 5, 792-801
Friedman LLP, Response to Subpoena (dated
10/15/2015)

7 Condensed Transcript of October 21, 2015 Vol. 5, 802-851
Deposition of Dennis Vacco

8 Transcript of the Bankruptcy Court’s December | Vol. 5, 852-897
22,2015, oral ruling; Case No. BK-N-13-51237

9 Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to | Vol. 5, 898-903
Deposition Questions; Case No. BK-N-13-
51237 (filed 02/03/2016)

10 Notice of Continued Deposition of Dennis Vol. 5, 904-907
Vacco (filed 02/18/2016)

11 Debtor’s Objection to Proposed Order Granting | Vol. 5, 908-925

Motion to Compel Responses to Deposition
Questions; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 (filed
01/22/2016)
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Reply in Support of Motion to Modify Subpoena, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee from
Seeking Discovery Protected by the Attorney-Client
Privilege (filed 04/06/2016)

Vol. 6, 926-932

Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of Documents
(filed 04/08/2016)

Vol. 6, 933-944

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of
Documents

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz in Support | Vol. 6, 945-948
of Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel (filed
04/08/2016)

2 Bill of Sale — 1254 Mary Fleming Circle (dated | Vol. 6, 949-953
10/01/2010)

3 Bill of Sale — 371 El Camino Del Mar (dated Vol. 6, 954-958
10/01/2010)

4 Bill of Sale — 370 Los Olivos (dated Vol. 6, 959-963
10/01/2010)

5 Personal financial statement of P. Morabito as Vol. 6, 964-965

of May 5, 2009

6 Plaintiff’s First Set of Requests for Production
of Documents to Edward Bayuk (dated
08/14/2015)

Vol. 6, 966977

7 Edward Bayuk’s Responses to Plaintiff’s First

Set of Requests for Production (dated
09/23/2014)

Vol. 6, 978-987

8 Plaintiff’s First Set of Requests for Production
of Documents to Edward Bayuk, as trustee of
the Edward William Bayuk Living Trust (dated
08/14/2015)

Vol. 6, 988997
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of

Documents (cont.)

9

Edward Bayuk, as trustee of the Edward
William Bayuk Living Trust’s Responses to
Plaintiff’s First Set of Requests for Production
(dated 09/23/2014)

Vol.

6, 998—-1007

10

Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for

Production of Documents to Edward Bayuk
(dated 01/29/2016)

Vol.

6, 1008-1015

11

Edward Bayuk’s Responses to Plaintiff’s
Second Set of Requests for Production (dated
03/08/2016)

Vol.

6, 1016-1020

12

Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for
Production of Documents to Edward Bayuk, as
trustee of the Edward William Bayuk Living
Trust (dated 01/29/2016)

Vol.

6, 1021-1028

13

Edward Bayuk, as trustee of the Edward
William Bayuk Living Trust’s Responses to
Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for
Production (dated 03/08/2016)

Vol.

6, 1029-1033

14

Correspondences between Teresa M. Pilatowicz,
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq. (dated
03/25/2016)

Vol.

6, 1034-1037

Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of

Documents (filed 04/25/2016)

Vol.

7, 1038-1044

Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel

Production of Documents (filed 05/09/2016)

Vol.

7, 1045-1057

Exhibits to Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to

Compel Production of Documents

Page 10 of 67




DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit

Document Description

1

Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq., in
Support of Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s
Motion to Compel (filed 05/09/2016)

Vol.

7, 1058-1060

Amended Findings, of Fact and Conclusion of
Law in Support of Order Granting Motion for
Summary Judgment; Case No. BK-N-13-51237
(filed 12/22/2014)

Vol.

7,1061-1070

Order Compelling Deposition of P. Morabito
dated March 13, 2014, in Consolidated Nevada
Corp., et al v. JH. et al.; Case No. CV07-02764
(filed 03/13/2014)

Vol.

7, 1071-1074

Emergency Motion Under NRCP 27(e); Petition
for Writ of Prohibition, P. Morabito v. The
Second Judicial District Court of the State of
Nevada in and for the County of Washoe; Case
No. 65319 (filed 04/01/2014)

Vol.

7,1075-1104

Order Denying Petition for Writ of Prohibition;
Case No. 65319 (filed 04/18/2014)

Vol.

7, 1105-1108

Order Granting Summary Judgment; Case No.
BK-N-13-51237 (filed 12/17/2014)

Vol.

7, 1109-1112

Recommendation for Order RE: Defendants’ Motion to
Partially Quash, filed on March 10, 2016 (filed 06/13/2016)

Vol.

7,1113-1124

Confirming Recommendation Order from June 13, 2016

(filed 07/06/2016)

Vol.

7, 1125-1126

Recommendation for Order RE: Plaintiff’s Motion to
Compel Production of Documents, filed on April 8, 2016

(filed 09/01/2016)

Vol.

7,1127-1133
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Confirming Recommendation Order from September 1, | Vol. 7, 1134-1135
2016 (filed 09/16/2016)
Plaintiff’s Application for Order to Show Cause Why | Vol. 8, 11361145
Defendant, Edward Bayuk Should Not Be Held in
Contempt of Court Order (filed 11/21/2016)
Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Application for Order to Show
Cause Why Defendant, Edward Bayuk Should Not Be
Held in Contempt of Court Order
Exhibit | Document Description
1 Order to Show Cause Why Defendant, Edward | Vol. 8, 1146-1148
Bayuk Should Not Be Held in Contempt of
Court Order (filed 11/21/2016)
2 Confirming Recommendation Order from Vol. 8, 1149-1151
September 1, 2016 (filed 09/16/2016)
3 Recommendation for Order RE: Plaintiff’s Vol. 8, 1152-1159
Motion to Compel Production of Documents,
filed on April 8, 2016 (filed 09/01/2016)
4 Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Production of Vol. 8, 1160-1265
Documents (filed 04/08/2016)
5 Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel Vol. 8, 12661273
Production of Documents (filed 04/25/2016)
6 Reply in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Vol. 8, 1274-1342
Compel Production of Documents (filed
05/09/2016)
7 Correspondences between Teresa M. Pilatowicz, | Vol. 8, 1343—-1346
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq. (dated
09/22/2016)
8 Edward Bayuk’s Supplemental Responses to Vol. 8, 1347-1352

Plaintiff’s Second Set of Requests for
Production (dated 10/25/2016)
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for Order to Show
Cause Why Defendant Should Not Be Held in Contempt of
Court Order (filed 12/19/2016

Vol. 9, 1353-1363

Exhibits to Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for
Order to Show Cause Why Defendant Should Not Be
Held in Contempt of Court Order

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Edward Bayuk in Support of
Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for Order to
Show Cause (filed 12/19/2016)

Vol. 9, 1364-1367

2 Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., in Support
of Opposition to Plaintiff’s Application for Order
to Show Cause (filed 12/19/2016)

Vol. 9, 1368-1370

3 Redacted copy of the September 6, 2016,
correspondence of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq.

Vol. 9, 1371-1372

Order to Show Cause Why Defendant, Edward Bayuk
Should Not Be Held in Contempt of Court Order (filed
12/23/2016)

Vol. 9, 1373-1375

Response: (1) to Opposition to Application for Order to
Show Cause Why Defendant Should Not Be Held in
Contempt of Court Order and (2) in Support of Order to
Show Cause (filed 12/30/2016)

Vol. 9, 1376-1387

Minutes of January 19, 2017 Deposition of Edward Bayuk
in RE: insurance policies (filed 01/19/2017)

Vol. 9, 1388

Minutes of January 19, 2017 hearing on Order to Show
Cause (filed 01/30/2017)

Vol. 9, 1389

Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a
Protective Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking
Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP (filed 07/18/2017)

Vol. 9, 1390-1404
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee
from Seeking Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP
Exhibit Document Description
1 Correspondence between Teresa M. Pilatowicz, | Vol. 9, 1405-1406
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq., dated March 8,
2016
2 Correspondence between Teresa M. Pilatowicz, | Vol. 9, 14071414
Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq., dated March 8,
2016, with attached redlined discovery extension
stipulation
3 Jan. 3 — Jan. 4, 2017, email chain from Teresa M. | Vol. 9, 1415-1416
Pilatowicz, Esq., and Frank Gilmore, Esq.
4 Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore, Esq., in Support | Vol. 9, 1417-1420
of Motion to Quash (filed 07/18/2017)
5 January 24, 2017 email from Teresa M. | Vol. 9, 1421-1422
Pilatowicz, Esq.,
6 Jones Vargas letter to HR and P. Morabito, dated | Vol. 9, 1423—-1425
August 16, 2010
7 Excerpted Transcript of July 26, 2011 Deposition | Vol. 9, 14261431
of Sujata Yalamanchili, Esq.
8 Letter dated June 17, 2011, from Hodgson Russ | Vol. 9, 14321434
(“HR”) to John Desmond and Brian Irvine on
Morabito related issues
9 August 9, 2013, transmitted letter to HR Vol. 9, 1435-1436
10 Excerpted Transcript of July 23, 2014 Deposition | Vol. 9, 1437-1441
of P. Morabito
11 Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP, April 3, | Vol. 9, 1442—-1444

2015 letter
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Motion to Quash Subpoena (cont.)

12 Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman LLP, October
20, 2010 letter RE: Balance forward as of bill
dated 09/19/2010 and 09/16/2010

Vol. 9, 1445-1454

13 Excerpted Transcript of June 25, 2015 Deposition
of 341 Meeting of Creditors

Vol. 9, 1455-1460

(1) Opposition to Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee from
Seeking Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP; and
(2) Countermotion for Sanctions and to Compel Resetting
of 30(b)(3) Deposition of Hodgson Russ LLP (filed
07/24/2017)

Vol. 10, 1461-1485

Exhibits to (1) Opposition to Motion to Quash
Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order
Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery from
Hodgson Russ LLP; and (2) Countermotion for
Sanctions and to Compel Resetting of 30(b)(3)
Deposition of Hodgson Russ LLP

Exhibit Document Description

A Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq., in
Support of (1) Opposition to Motion to Quash
Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective
Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking
Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP (filed
07/24/2017)

Vol. 10, 14861494

A-1 Defendants’ NRCP Disclosure of Witnesses and
Documents (dated 12/01/2014)

Vol. 10, 1495-1598

A-2 | Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to
Deposition Questions; Case No. BK-N-13-51237
(filed 02/03/2016)

Vol. 10, 1599-1604
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to (1) Opposition to Motion to Quash
Subpoena; and (2) Countermotion for Sanctions (cont.)

A-3 | Recommendation for Order RE: Defendants’| Vol. 10, 1605-1617
Motion to Partially Quash, filed on March 10,
2016 (filed 06/13/2016)

A-4 | Confirming Recommendation Order from | Vol. 10, 16181620
September 1, 2016 (filed 09/16/2016)

A-5 | Subpoena — Civil (dated 01/03/2017) Vol. 10, 1621-1634

A-6 | Notice of Deposition of Person Most| Vol. 10, 1635-1639
Knowledgeable of Hodgson Russ LLP (filed
01/03/2017)

A-7 | January 25, 2017 Letter to Hodgson Russ LLP Vol. 10, 1640-1649

A-8 | Stipulation Regarding Continued Discovery | Vol. 10, 1650-1659
Dates (Sixth Request) (filed 01/30/2017)

A-9 | Stipulation Regarding Continued Discovery | Vol. 10, 1660—1669
Dates (Seventh Request) (filed 05/25/2017)

A-10 | Defendants’ Sixteenth Supplement to NRCP | Vol. 10, 1670-1682
Disclosure of Witnesses and Documents (dated
05/03/2017)

A-11 | Rough Draft Transcript of Garry M. Graber, | Vol. 10, 1683—-1719
Dated July 12, 2017 (Job Number 394849)

A-12 | Sept. 15-Sept. 23, 2010 emails by and between | Vol. 10, 1720-1723

Hodgson Russ LLP and Other Parties

Reply in Support of Motion to Quash Subpoena, or, in the
Alternative, for a Protective Order Precluding Trustee from

Seeking Discovery from Hodgson Russ LLP,

and

Opposition to Motion for Sanctions (filed 08/03/2017)

Vol.

11, 17241734
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Reply in Support of Countermotion for Sanctions and to
Compel Resetting of 30(b)(6) Deposition of Hodgson Russ
LLP (filed 08/09/2017)

Vol. 11, 1735-1740

Minutes of August 10, 2017 hearing on Motion to Quash
Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective Order
Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery from Hodgson
Russ LLP, and Opposition to Motion for Sanctions (filed
08/11/2017)

Vol. 11, 1741-1742

Recommendation for Order RE: Defendants’ Motion to
Quash Subpoena, or, in the Alternative, for a Protective
Order Precluding Trustee from Seeking Discovery from
Hodgson Russ LLP, filed on July 18, 2017 (filed
08/17/2017)

Vol. 11, 1743-1753

Motion for Partial Summary Judgment (filed 08/17/2017)

Vol. 11, 1754-1796

Statement of Undisputed Facts in Support of Motion for
Partial Summary Judgment (filed 08/17/2017)

Vol. 11, 1797-1825

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts in Support of
Motion for Partial Summary Judgment

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Timothy P. Herbst in Support of
Separate Statement of Undisputed Facts in
Support of Motion for Partial Summary Judgment

Vol. 12, 1826-1829

2 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and
Judgment in Consolidated Nevada Corp., et al v.
JH. et al., Case No. CV07-02764 (filed
10/12/2010)

Vol. 12, 1830-1846

3 Judgment in Consolidated Nevada Corp., et al v.
JH. et al; Case No. CV07-02764 (filed
08/23/2011)

Vol. 12, 1847-1849
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

4 Excerpted Transcript of July 12, 2017 Deposition | Vol. 12, 1850-1852
of Garry M. Graber

5 September 15, 2015 email from Yalamanchili RE: | Vol. 12, 1853—-1854
Follow Up Thoughts

6 September 23, 2010 email between Garry M. | Vol. 12, 1855-1857
Graber and P. Morabito

7 September 20, 2010 email between Yalamanchili | Vol. 12, 1858-1861
and Eileen Crotty RE: Morabito Wire

8 September 20, 2010 email between Yalamanchili | Vol. 12, 1862—1863
and Garry M. Graber RE: All Mortgage Balances
as 0 9/20/2010

9 September 20, 2010 email from Garry M. Graber | Vol. 12, 1864-1867
RE: Call

10 September 20, 2010 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 12, 1868—1870
Dennis and Yalamanchili RE: Attorney client
privileged communication

11 September 20, 2010 email string RE: Attorney | Vol. 12, 1871-1875
client privileged communication

12 Appraisal of Real Property: 370 Los Olivos, | Vol. 12, 1876-1903
Laguna Beach, CA, as of Sept. 24, 2010

13 Excerpted Transcript of March 21, 2016 | Vol. 12, 1904-1919
Deposition of P. Morabito

14 P. Morabito Redacted Investment and Bank | Vol. 12, 1920-1922
Report from Sept. 1 to Sept. 30, 2010

15 Excerpted Transcript of June 25, 2015 Deposition | Vol. 12, 1923-1927
of 341 Meeting of Creditors

16 Excerpted Transcript of December 5, 2015 | Vol. 12, 1928-1952

Deposition of P. Morabito
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

17

Purchase and Sale Agreement between Arcadia
Trust and Bayuk Trust entered effective as of
Sept. 27,2010

Vol.

12, 1953-1961

18

First Amendment to Purchase and Sale
Agreement between Arcadia Trust and Bayuk
Trust entered effective as of Sept. 28, 2010

Vol.

12, 1962-1964

19

Appraisal Report providing market value estimate
of real property located at 8355 Panorama Drive,
Reno, NV as of Dec. 7, 2011

Vol.

12, 1965-1995

20

An Appraisal of a vacant .977+ Acre Parcel of
Industrial Land Located at 49 Clayton Place West
of the Pyramid Highway (State Route 445)
Sparks, Washoe County, Nevada and a single-
family residence located at 8355 Panorama Drive
Reno, Washoe County, Nevada 89511 as of
October 1, 2010 a retrospective date

Vol.

13, 1996-2073

21

APN: 040-620-09 Declaration of Value (dated
12/31/2012)

Vol.

14,2074-2075

22

Sellers Closing Statement for real property
located at 8355 Panorama Drive, Reno, NV 89511

Vol.

14,2076-2077

23

Bill of Sale for real property located at 8355
Panorama Drive, Reno, NV 89511

Vol.

14, 2078-2082

24

Operating Agreement of Baruk Properties LLC

Vol.

14,2083-2093

25

Edward Bayuk, as trustee of the Edward William
Bayuk Living Trust’s Answer to Plaintiff’s First
Set of Interrogatories (dated 09/14/2014)

Vol.

14,2094-2104

26

Summary Appraisal Report of real property
located at 1461 Glenneyre Street, Laguna Beach,
CA 92651, as of Sept. 25, 2010

Vol.

14,2105-2155
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

27

Appraisal of Real Property as of Sept. 23, 2010:
1254 Mary Fleming Circle, Palm Springs, CA
92262

Vol. 15, 21562185

28

Appraisal of Real Property as of Sept. 23, 2010:
1254 Mary Fleming Circle, Palm Springs, CA
92262

Vol. 15, 21862216

29

Membership Interest Transfer Agreement
between Arcadia Trust and Bayuk Trust entered
effective as of Oct. 1, 2010

Vol. 15, 2217-2224

30

PROMISSORY NOTE [Edward William Bayuk
Living Trust (“Borrower”) promises to pay
Arcadia Living Trust (“Lender”) the principal
sum of $1,617,050.00, plus applicable interest]
(dated 10/01/2010)

Vol. 15, 2225-2228

31

Certificate of Merger dated Oct. 4, 2010

Vol. 15, 2229-2230

32

Articles of Merger Document No. 20100746864-
78 (recorded date 10/04/2010)

Vol. 15, 2231-2241

33

Excerpted Transcript of September 28, 2015
Deposition of Edward William Bayuk

Vol. 15, 2242-2256

34

Grant Deed for real property 1254 Mary Fleming
Circle, Palm Springs, CA 92262; APN: 507-520-
015 (recorded 11/04/2010)

Vol. 15, 22572258

35

General Conveyance made as of Oct. 31, 2010
between Woodland Heights Limited (“Vendor”)
and Arcadia Living Trust (“Purchaser”)

Vol. 15, 2259-2265

36

Appraisal of Real Property as of Sept. 24, 2010:
371 El Camino Del Mar, Laguna Beach, CA
92651

Vol. 15, 22662292
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

37 Excerpted Transcript of December 6, 2016 | Vol. 15, 2293-2295
Deposition of P. Morabito

38 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 15, 22962297

39 Ledger of Edward Bayuk to P. Morabito Vol. 15, 2298-2300

40 Loan Calculator: Payment Amount (Standard | Vol. 15,2301-2304
Loan Amortization)

41 Payment Schedule of Edward Bayuk Note in | Vol. 15, 2305-2308
Favor of P. Morabito

42 November 10, 2011 email from Vacco RE: Baruk | Vol. 15, 2309-2312
Properties, LLC/P. Morabito/Bank of America,
N.A.

43 May 23, 2012 email from Vacco to Steve Peek | Vol. 15, 2313-2319
RE: Formal Settlement Proposal to resolve the
Morabito matter

44 Excerpted Transcript of March 12, 2015 | Vol. 15,2320-2326
Deposition of 341 Meeting of Creditors

45 Shareholder Interest Purchase Agreement | Vol. 15, 2327-2332
between P. Morabito and Snowshoe Petroleum,
Inc. (dated 09/30/2010)

46 P. Morabito Statement of Assets & Liabilities as | Vol. 15, 2333-2334
of May 5, 2009

47 March 10, 2010 email from Naz Afshar, CPA to | Vol. 15, 2335-2337
Darren Takemoto, CPA RE: Current Personal
Financial Statement

48 March 10, 2010 email from P. Morabito to Jon | Vol. 15, 2338-2339

RE: ExxonMobil CIM for Florida and associated
maps
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

49

March 20, 2010 email from P. Morabito to Vacco
RE: proceed with placing binding bid on June
22nd with ExxonMobil

Vol. 15, 2340-2341

50

P. Morabito Statement of Assets & Liabilities as
of May 30, 2010

Vol. 15, 23422343

51

June 28, 2010 email from P. Morabito to George
R. Garner RE: ExxonMobil Chicago Market
Business Plan Review

Vol. 15, 2344-2345

52

Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western Corp.
with and into Superpumper, Inc. (dated
09/28/2010)

Vol. 15, 23462364

53

Page intentionally left blank

Vol. 15, 2365-2366

54

BBVA Compass Proposed Request on behalf of
Superpumper, Inc. (dated 12/15/2010)

Vol. 15, 2367-2397

55

Business Valuation Agreement between Matrix
Capital Markets Group, Inc. and Superpumper,
Inc. (dated 09/30/2010)

Vol. 15, 2398-2434

56

Expert report of James L. McGovern, CPA/CFF,
CVA (dated 01/25/2016)

Vol. 16, 2435-2509

57

June 18, 2014 email from Sam Morabito to
Michael Vanek RE: SPI Analysis

Vol. 17,2510-2511

58

Declaration of P. Morabito in Support of
Opposition to Motion of JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst,
and Berry-Hinckley Industries for Order
Prohibiting Debtor from Using, Acquiring, or
Disposing of or Transferring Assets Pursuant to
11 US.C. §§ 105 and 303(f) Pending
Appointment of Trustee; Case No. BK-N-13-
51237 (filed 07/01/2013)

Vol. 17, 25122516
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

59

State of California Secretary of State Limited
Liability Company — Snowshoe Properties, LLC;
File No. 201027310002 (filed 09/29/2010)

Vol. 17, 25172518

60

PROMISSORY NOTE [Snowshoe Petroleum
(“Maker”) promises to pay P. Morabito
(“Holder) the principal sum of $1,462,213.00]
(dated 11/01/2010)

Vol. 17, 2519-2529

61

PROMISSORY NOTE [Superpumper, Inc.
(“Maker”) promises to pay Compass Bank (the
“Bank” and/or “Holder”) the principal sum of
$3,000,000.00] (dated 08/13/2010)

Vol. 17, 2530-2538

62

Excerpted Transcript of October 21, 2015
Deposition of Salvatore R. Morabito

Vol. 17, 2539-2541

63

Page intentionally left blank

Vol. 17, 25422543

64

Edward Bayuk’s Answers to Plaintiff’s First Set
of Interrogatories (dated 09/14/2014)

Vol. 17, 25442557

65

October 12, 2012 email from Stan Bernstein to P.
Morabito RE: 2011 return

Vol. 17, 2558-2559

66

Page intentionally left blank

Vol. 17, 2560-2561

67

Excerpted Transcript of October 20, 2015
Deposition of Dennis C. Vacco

Vol. 17, 2562-2564

68

Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s letter of intent to set
out the framework of the contemplated
transaction between: Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.;
David Dwelle, LP; Eclipse Investments, LP;
Speedy Investments; and TAD  Limited
Partnership (dated 04/21/2011)

Vol. 17, 25652572
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

69 Excerpted Transcript of July 10, 2017 Deposition | Vol. 17, 2573-2579
of Dennis C. Vacco

70 April 15, 2011 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 17, 2580-2582
Christian Lovelace; Gregory Ivancic; Vacco RE:
$65 million loan offer from Cerberus

71 Email from Vacco to P. Morabito RE: $2 million | Vol. 17, 2583-2584
second mortgage on the Reno house

72 Email from Vacco to P. Morabito RE: Tim Haves | Vol. 17, 2585-2586

73 Settlement ~ Agreement, Loan  Agreement | Vol. 17, 2587-2595
Modification & Release dated as of Sept. 7, 2012,
entered into by Bank of America and P. Morabito

74 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 25962597

75 February 10, 2012 email from Vacco to Paul | Vol. 17, 2598-2602
Wells and Timothy Haves RE: 1461 Glenneyre
Street, Laguna Beach — Sale

76 May 8, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 17, 2603-2604
RE: Proceed with the corporate set-up with Ray,
Edward and P. Morabito

77 September 4, 2012 email from Vacco to Edward | Vol. 17, 2605-2606
Bayuk RE: Second Deed of Trust documents

78 September 18, 2012 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 17, 2607-2611
Edward Bayuk RE: Deed of Trust

79 October 3, 2012 email from Vacco to P. Morabito | Vol. 17, 2612-2614
RE: Term Sheet on both real estate deal and
option

80 March 14, 2013 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 17, 2615-2616
RE: BHI Hinckley

81 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17,2617-2618
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Statement of Undisputed Facts (cont.)

82 November 11, 2011 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 17,2619-2620
Morabito RE: Trevor’s commitment to sign

83 November 28, 2011 email string RE: Wiring | Vol. 17, 2621-2623
$560,000 to Lippes Mathias

84 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 2624-2625

85 Page intentionally left blank Vol. 17, 26262627

86 Order for Relief Under Chapter 7; Case No. BK- | Vol. 17, 2628-2634
N-13-51236 (filed 12/22/2014)

87 Report of Undisputed Election (11 U.S.C § 702); | Vol. 17, 2635-2637
Case No. BK-N-13-51237 (filed 01/23/2015)

88 Amended Stipulation and Order to Substitute a | Vol. 17, 2638-2642
Party to NRCP 17(a) (filed 06/11/2015)

89 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, | Vol. 17, 2643—-2648
entered into as of Oct. 6, 2010 between P.
Morabito and Edward Bayuk

90 Complaint; Case No. BK-N-13-51237 (filed | Vol. 17, 2649-2686
10/15/2015)

91 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust | Vol. 17, 2687-2726

Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated
09/30/2010)

Objection to Recommendation for Order filed August 17,
2017 (filed 08/28/2017)

Vol.

18, 2727-2734

Exhibit to Objection to Recommendation for Order

Exhibit

Document Description

1

Plaintiff’s counsel’s Jan. 24, 2017, email
memorializing the discovery dispute agreement

Vol.

18,2735-2736
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Opposition to Objection to Recommendation for Order filed
August 17, 2017 (filed 09/05/2017)

Vol. 18, 2737-2748

Exhibit to Opposition to Objection to Recommendation
for Order

Exhibit Document Description

A Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq., in
Support of Opposition to Objection to
Recommendation for Order (filed 09/05/2017)

Vol. 18, 2749-2752

Reply to Opposition to Objection to Recommendation for
Order filed August 17, 2017 (dated 09/15/2017)

Vol. 18, 27532758

Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (filed 09/22/2017)

Vol. 18, 27592774

Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed Facts in
Support of Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment (filed 09/22/2017)

Vol. 18, 2775-2790

Exhibits to Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed
Facts in Support of Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for
Partial Summary Judgment

Exhibit Document Description

1 Judgment in Consolidated Nevada Corp., et al v.
JH. et al; Case No. CV07-02764 (filed
08/23/2011)

Vol. 18, 27912793

2 Excerpted Transcript of October 20, 2015
Deposition of Dennis C. Vacco

Vol. 18, 27942810

3 Order Denying Motion to Dismiss Involuntary
Chapter 7 Petition and Suspending Proceedings
Pursuant to 11 U.S.C §305(a)(1); Case No. BK-
N-13-51237 (filed 12/17/2013)

Vol. 18, 2811-2814
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed
Facts (cont.)

4 Excerpted Transcript of March 21, 2016 | Vol. 18, 2815-2826
Deposition of P. Morabito

5 Excerpted Transcript of September 28, 2015 | Vol. 18, 2827-2857
Deposition of Edward William Bayuk

6 Appraisal Vol. 18, 2858-2859

7 Budget Summary as of Jan. 7, 2016 Vol. 18, 2860-2862

8 Excerpted Transcript of March 24, 2016 | Vol. 18, 28632871
Deposition of Dennis Banks

9 Excerpted Transcript of March 22, 2016 | Vol. 18, 2872-2879
Deposition of Michael Sewitz

10 Excerpted Transcript of April 27, 2011 | Vol. 18, 28802883
Deposition of Darryl Noble

11 Copies of cancelled checks from Edward Bayuk | Vol. 18, 2884-2892
made payable to P. Morabito

12 CBRE Appraisal of 14th Street Card Lock | Vol. 18, 2893-2906
Facility (dated 02/26/2010)

13 Bank of America wire transfer from P. Morabito | Vol. 18, 2907-2908
to Salvatore Morabito in the amount of
$146,127.00; and a wire transfer from P.
Morabito to Lippes for $25.00 (date 10/01/2010)

14 Excerpted Transcript of October 21, 2015]| Vol. 18, 2909-2918
Deposition of Christian Mark Lovelace

15 June 18, 2014 email from Sam Morabito to | Vol. 18, 2919-2920
Michael Vanek RE: Analysis of the Superpumper
transaction in 2010

16 Excerpted Transcript of October 21, 2015 | Vol. 18,2921-2929

Deposition of Salvatore R. Morabito
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed
Facts (cont.)

17

PROMISSORY NOTE [Snowshoe Petroleum
(“Maker”) promises to pay P. Morabito
(“Holder”) the principal sum of $1,462,213.00]
(dated 11/01/2010)

Vol.

18,2930-2932

18

TERM NOTE [P. Morabito (“Borrower”)
promises to pay Consolidated Western Corp.
(“Lender”) the principal sum of $939,000.00, plus
interest] (dated 09/01/2010)

Vol.

18,2933-2934

19

SUCCESSOR PROMISSORY NOTE
[Snowshoe Petroleum (“Maker”) promises to pay
P. Morabito (“Holder”) the principal sum of
$492,937.30, plus interest] (dated 02/01/2011)

Vol.

18, 2935-2937

20

Edward Bayuk’s wire transfer to Lippes in the
amount of $517,547.20 (dated 09/29/2010)

Vol.

18, 2938-2940

21

Salvatore Morabito Bank of Montreal September
2011 Wire Transfer

Vol.

18, 2941-2942

22

Declaration of Salvatore Morabito (dated
09/21/2017)

Vol.

18, 2943-2944

23

Edward Bayuk bank wire transfer to
Superpumper, Inc., in the amount of $659,000.00
(dated 09/30/2010)

Vol.

18, 29452947

24

Edward Bayuk checking account statements
between 2010 and 2011 funding the company
with transfers totaling $500,000

Vol.

18,2948-2953

25

Salvatore Morabito’s wire transfer statement
between 2010 and 2011, funding the company
with $750,000

Vol.

18, 2954-2957

26

Payment Schedule of Edward Bayuk Note in
Favor of P. Morabito

Vol.

18,2958-2961
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Defendants’ Separate Statement of Disputed
Facts (cont.)

27 September 15, 2010 email from Vacco to
Yalamanchili and P. Morabito RE: Follow Up
Thoughts

Vol. 18, 2962-2964

Reply in Support of Motion for Partial Summary Judgment
(dated 10/10/2017)

Vol. 19, 2965-2973

Order Regarding Discovery Commissioner’s
Recommendation for Order dated August 17, 2017 (filed
12/07/2017)

Vol. 19, 2974-2981

Order Denying Motion for Partial Summary Judgment
(filed 12/11/2017)

Vol. 19, 29822997

Defendants’ Motions in Limine (filed 09/12/2018)

Vol. 19, 2998-3006

Exhibits to Defendants’ Motions in Limine

Exhibit Document Description

1 Plaintiff’s Second Supplement to Amended
Disclosures Pursuant to NRCP 16.1(A)(1) (dated
04/28/2016)

Vol. 19,3007-3016

2 Excerpted Transcript of March 25, 2016
Deposition of William A. Leonard

Vol. 19, 3017-3023

3 Plaintiff, Jerry Herbst’s Responses to Defendant
Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s Set of Interrogatories
(dated 02/11/2015); and Plaintiff, Jerry Herbst’s
Responses to Defendant, Salvatore Morabito’s
Set of Interrogatories (dated 02/12/2015)

Vol. 19, 3024-3044

Motion in Limine to Exclude Testimony of Jan Friederich
(filed 09/20/2018)

Vol. 19, 3045-3056
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Motion in Limine to Exclude Testimony of
Jan Friederich

Exhibit Document Description
1 Defendants’ Rebuttal Expert Witness Disclosure | Vol. 19, 3057-3071
(dated 02/29/2016)
2 Condensed Transcript of March 29, 2016 | Vol. 19, 3072-3086

Deposition of Jan Friederich

Opposition to Defendants” Motions in Limine (filed
09/28/2018)

Vol. 19, 3087-3102

Exhibits to Opposition to Defendants’ Motions in

Limine
Exhibit Document Description
A Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz, Esq. in| Vol. 19,3103-3107
Support of Opposition to Defendants’ Motions in
Limine (filed 09/28/2018)
A-1 | Plaintiff’s February 19, 2016, Amended | Vol. 19,3108-3115
Disclosures Pursuant to NRCP 16.1(A)(1)
A-2 | Plaintiff’s January 26, 2016, Expert Witnesses | Vol. 19, 3116-3122
Disclosures (without exhibits)
A-3 | Defendants’ January 26, 2016, and February 29, | Vol. 19, 3123-3131
2016, Expert Witness Disclosures (without
exhibits)
A-4 | Plaintiff’s August 17, 2017, Motion for Partial | Vol. 19, 3132-3175
Summary Judgment (without exhibits)
A-5 | Plaintiff’s August 17, 2017, Statement of | Vol. 19,3176-3205

Undisputed Facts in Support of his Motion for
Partial Summary Judgment (without exhibits)

Defendants’ Reply in Support of Motions in Limine (filed
10/08/2018)

Vol. 20, 3206-3217

Page 30 of 67




DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit to Defendants’ Reply in Support of Motions in
Limine

Exhibit Document Description

1 Chapter 7 Trustee, William A. Leonard’s
Responses to Defendants’ First Set of
Interrogatories (dated 05/28/2015)

Vol. 20, 3218-3236

Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motions in Limine to
Exclude the Testimony of Jan Friederich (filed 10/08/2018)

Vol. 20, 3237-3250

Exhibits to Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s
Motions in Limine to Exclude the Testimony of Jan
Friederich

Exhibit Document Description

1 Excerpt of Matrix Report (dated 10/13/2010)

Vol. 20, 3251-3255

2 Defendants’ Rebuttal Expert Witness Disclosure
(dated 02/29/2016)

Vol. 20, 3256-3270

3 November 9, 2009 email from P. Morabito to
Daniel Fletcher; Jim Benbrook; Don Whitehead;
Sam Morabito, etc. RE: Jan Friederich entered
consulting agreement with Superpumper

Vol. 20, 3271-3272

4 Excerpted Transcript of March 29, 2016
Deposition of Jan Friederich

Vol. 20, 3273-3296

Defendants’ Objections to Plaintiff’s Pretrial Disclosures
(filed 10/12/2018)

Vol. 20, 3297-3299

Objections to Defendants’ Pretrial Disclosures (filed
10/12/2018)

Vol. 20, 3300-3303

Reply to Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion in
Limine to Exclude the Testimony of Jan Friederich (filed
10/12/2018)

Vol. 20, 33043311
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Minutes of September 11, 2018, Pre-trial Conference (filed
10/19/2018)

Vol. 20, 3312

Stipulated Facts (filed 10/29/2018)

Vol. 20, 3313-3321

Defendants’ Points and Authorities RE: Objection to
Admission of Documents in Conjunction with the

Depositions of P. Morabito and Dennis Vacco (filed
10/30/2018)

Vol. 20, 3322-3325

Plaintiff’s Points and Authorities Regarding Authenticity
and Hearsay Issues (filed 10/31/2018)

Vol. 20, 3326-3334

Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (filed 02/28/2019)

Vol. 21, 3335-3413

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List

Exhibit Document Description

1 Certified copy of the Transcript of September 13,
2010 Judge’s Ruling; Case No. CV07-02764

Vol. 21, 34143438

2 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and | Vol. 21, 3439-3454
Judgment; Case No. CV07-02764 (filed
10/12/2010)

3 Judgment; Case No. CV07-0767 (filed | Vol. 21, 3455-3456
08/23/2011)

4 Confession of Judgment; Case No. CV07-02764 | Vol. 21, 34573481
(filed 06/18/2013)

5 November 30, 2011 Settlement Agreement and
Mutual Release

Vol. 22, 3482-3613

6 March 1, 2013 Forbearance Agreement

Vol. 22, 3614-3622
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

8

Order Denying Motion to Dismiss Involuntary
Chapter 7 Petition and Suspending Proceedings,
Case 13-51237. ECF No. 94, (filed 12/17/2013)

Vol.

22,3623-3625

19

Report of Undisputed Election— Appointment of
Trustee, Case No. 13-51237, ECF No. 220

Vol.

22,3626-3627

20

Stipulation and Order to Substitute a Party
Pursuant to NRCP 17(a), Case No. CV13-02663,
May 15, 2015

Vol.

22,3628-3632

21

Non-Dischargeable Judgment Regarding
Plaintiff’s First and Second Causes of Action,
Case No. 15-05019-GWZ, ECF No. 123, April
30,2018

Vol.

22,3633-3634

22

Memorandum & Decision; Case No. 15-05019-
GWZ, ECF No. 124, April 30, 2018

Vol.

22,3635-3654

23

Amended Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law
in Support of Judgment Regarding Plaintiff’s
First and Second Causes of Action; Case 15-
05019-GWZ, ECF No. 122, April 30, 2018

Vol.

22,3655-3679

25

September 15, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to
Vacco and P. Morabito RE: Follow Up Thoughts

Vol.

22, 3680-3681

26

September 18, 2010 email from P. Morabito to
Vacco

Vol.

22, 3682-3683

27

September 20, 2010 email from Vacco to P.
Morabito RE: Spirit

Vol.

22,3684-3684

28

September 20, 2010 email between Yalamanchili
and Crotty RE: Morabito -Wire

Vol.

22,3685-3687

29

September 20, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to
Graber RE: Attorney Client Privileged
Communication

Vol.

22,3688-3689
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

30

September 21, 2010 email from P. Morabito to
Vacco and Cross RE: Attorney Client Privileged
Communication

Vol.

22,3690-3692

31

September 23, 2010 email chain between Graber
and P. Morabito RE: Change of Primary
Residence from Reno to Laguna Beach

Vol.

22,3693-3694

32

September 23, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to
Graber RE: Change of Primary Residence from
Reno to Laguna Beach

Vol.

22,3695-3696

33

September 24, 2010 email from P. Morabito to
Vacco RE: Superpumper, Inc.

Vol.

22,3697-3697

34

September 26, 2010 email from Vacco to P.
Morabito RE: Judgment for a fixed debt

Vol.

22,3698-3698

35

September 27, 2010 email from P. Morabito to
Vacco RE: First Amendment to Residential Lease
executed 9/27/2010

Vol.

22,3699-3701

36

November 7, 2012 emails between Vacco, P.
Morabito, C. Lovelace RE: Attorney Client
Privileged Communication

Vol.

22,3702-3703

37

Morabito BMO Bank Statement — September
2010

Vol.

22,3704-3710

38

Lippes Mathias Trust Ledger History

Vol.

23,3711-3716

39

Fifth Amendment & Restatement of the Trust
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust dated
September 30, 2010

Vol.

23, 3717-3755

42

P. Morabito Statement of Assets & Liabilities as
of May 5, 2009

Vol.

23, 37563756

Page 34 of 67




DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)
43 March 10, 2010 email chain between Afshar and | Vol. 23, 3757-3758
Takemoto RE: Current Personal Financial
Statement
44 Salazar Net Worth Report (dated 03/15/2011) Vol. 23, 3759-3772
45 Purchase and Sale Agreement Vol. 23, 3773-3780
46 First Amendment to Purchase and Sale | Vol. 23, 3781-3782
Agreement
47 Panorama — Estimated Settlement Statement Vol. 23, 3783-3792
48 El Camino — Final Settlement Statement Vol. 23, 3793-3793
49 Los Olivos — Final Settlement Statement Vol. 23, 3794-3794
50 Deed for Transfer of Panorama Property Vol. 23, 3795-3804
51 Deed for Transfer for Los Olivos Vol. 23, 3805-3806
52 Deed for Transfer of El Camino Vol. 23, 3807-3808
53 Kimmel Appraisal Report for Panorama and | Vol. 23, 3809-3886
Clayton
54 Bill of Sale — Panorama Vol. 23, 3887-3890
55 Bill of Sale — Mary Fleming Vol. 23, 3891-3894
56 Bill of Sale — E1 Camino Vol. 23, 3895-3898
57 Bill of Sale — Los Olivos Vol. 23, 3899-3902
58 Declaration of Value and Transfer Deed of 8355 | Vol. 23, 3903-3904
Panorama (recorded 12/31/2012)
60 Baruk Properties Operating Agreement Vol. 23, 3905-3914
61 Baruk Membership Transfer Agreement Vol. 24, 3915-3921
62 Promissory Note for $1,617,050 (dated | Vol. 24, 3922-3924

10/01/2010)
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

63 Baruk Properties/Snowshoe Properties, | Vol. 24, 3925-3926
Certificate of Merger (filed 10/04/2010)

64 Baruk Properties/Snowshoe Properties, Articles | Vol. 24, 3927-3937
of Merger

65 Grant Deed from Snowshoe to Bayuk Living | Vol. 24, 3938-3939
Trust; Doc No. 2010-0531071 (recorded
11/04/2010)

66 Grant Deed — 1461 Glenneyre; Doc No. | Vol. 24, 3940-3941
2010000511045 (recorded 10/08/2010)

67 Grant Deed — 570 Glenneyre; Doc No. | Vol. 24, 3942-3944
2010000508587 (recorded 10/08/2010)

68 Attorney File re: Conveyance between Woodland | Vol. 24, 3945-3980
Heights and Arcadia Living Trust

69 October 24, 2011 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 24, 3981-3982
Vacco RE: Attorney Client Privileged
Communication

70 November 10, 2011 email chain between Vacco | Vol. 24, 3983-3985
and P. Morabito RE: Baruk Properties, LLC/Paul
Morabito/Bank of America, N.A.

71 Bayuk First Ledger Vol. 24, 39863987

72 Amortization Schedule Vol. 24, 3988-3990

73 Bayuk Second Ledger Vol. 24, 3991-3993

74 Opposition to Motion for Summary Judgment and | Vol. 24, 39944053
Declaration of Edward Bayuk; Case No. 13-
51237, ECF No. 146 (filed 10/03/2014)

75 March 30, 2012 email from Vacco to Bayuk RE: | Vol. 24, 4054-4055

Letter to BOA
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)
76 March 10, 2010 email chain between P. Morabito | Vol. 24, 40564056
and jon@aim13.com RE: Strictly Confidential
77 May 20, 2010 email chain between P. Morabito, | Vol. 24, 4057-4057
Vacco and Michael Pace RE: Proceed with
placing a Binding Bid on June 22nd with
ExxonMobil
78 Morabito Personal Financial Statement May 2010 | Vol. 24, 4058—4059
79 June 28, 2010 email from P. Morabito to George | Vol. 24, 4060—-4066
Garner RE: ExxonMobil Chicago Market
Business Plan Review
80 Shareholder Interest Purchase Agreement Vol. 24, 4067-4071
81 Plan of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 24, 4072—4075
Corporation with and Into Superpumper, Inc.
82 Articles of Merger of Consolidated Western | Vol. 24, 40764077
Corporation with and Into Superpumper, Inc.
83 Unanimous Written Consent of the Board of | Vol. 24, 40784080
Directors and Sole Shareholder of Superpumper,
Inc.
84 Unanimous Written Consent of the Directors and | Vol. 24, 4081-4083
Shareholders  of  Consolidated ~ Western
Corporation
85 Arizona Corporation Commission Letter dated | Vol. 24, 4084—4091
October 21, 2010
86 Nevada Articles of Merger Vol. 24, 4092—-4098
87 New York Creation of Snowshoe Vol. 24, 40994103
88 April 26, 2012 email from Vacco to Afshar RE: | Vol. 24, 41044106
Ownership Structure of SPI
90 September 30, 2010 Matrix Retention Agreement | Vol. 24, 41074110

Page 37 of 67



mailto:jon@aim13.com

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

91 McGovern Expert Report Vol. 25,4111-4189

92 Appendix B to McGovern Report — Source 4 — | Vol. 25, 41904191
Budgets

103 | Superpumper Note in the amount of| Vol. 25,4192-4193
$1,462,213.00 (dated 11/01/2010)

104 | Superpumper Successor Note in the amount of | Vol. 25, 4194-4195
$492,937.30 (dated 02/01/2011)

105 | Superpumper Successor Note in the amount of | Vol. 25, 41964197
$939,000 (dated 02/01/2011)

106 | Superpumper Stock Power transfers to S.| Vol.25,4198-4199
Morabito and Bayuk (dated 01/01/2011)

107 | Declaration of P. Morabito in Support of| Vol.25,4200—4203
Opposition to Motion of JH, Inc., Jerry Herbst,
and Berry- Hinckley Industries for Order
Prohibiting Debtor from Using, Acquiring or
Transferring Assets Pursuantto 11 U.S.C. §§ 105
and 303(f) Pending Appointment of Trustee, Case
13-51237, ECF No. 22 (filed 07/01/2013)

108 | October 12, 2012 email between P. Morabito and | Vol. 25, 42044204
Bernstein RE: 2011 Return

109 | Compass Term Loan (dated 12/21/2016) Vol. 25, 4205-4213

110 | P. Morabito — Term Note in the amount of | Vol. 25, 42144214
$939,000.000 (dated 09/01/2010)

111 | Loan Agreement between Compass Bank and | Vol. 25, 4215-4244
Superpumper (dated 12/21/2016)

112 | Consent Agreement (dated 12/28/2010) Vol. 25, 4245-4249

113 | Superpumper Financial Statement (dated | Vol. 25, 42504263

12/31/2007)
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

114 | Superpumper Financial Statement (dated | Vol. 25, 42644276
12/31/2009)

115 | Notes Receivable Interest Income Calculation | Vol. 25, 4277-4278
(dated 12/31/2009)

116 | Superpumper Inc. Audit Conclusions Memo | Vol. 25, 4279-4284
(dated 12/31/2010)

117 | Superpumper 2010 YTD Income Statement and | Vol. 25, 42854299
Balance Sheets

118 | March 12, 2010 Management Letter Vol. 25, 43004302

119 | Superpumper Unaudited August 2010 Balance | Vol. 25, 43034307
Sheet

120 | Superpumper Financial Statements (dated | Vol. 25, 43084322
12/31/2010)

121 Notes Receivable Balance as of September 30, | Vol. 26, 4323
2010

122 | Salvatore Morabito Term Note $2,563,542.00 as | Vol. 26, 4324-4325
of December 31, 2010

123 | Edward Bayuk Term Note $2,580,500.00 as of | Vol. 26, 43264327
December 31, 2010

125 | April 21, 2011 Management letter Vol. 26, 4328-4330

126 | Bayuk and S. Morabito Statements of Assets & | Vol. 26, 4331-4332
Liabilities as of February 1, 2011

127 | January 6, 2012 email from Bayuk to Lovelace | Vol. 26, 4333-4335
RE: Letter of Credit

128 | January 6, 2012 email from Vacco to Bernstein | Vol. 26, 43364338

129 | January 7, 2012 email from Bernstein to Lovelace | Vol. 26, 43394343

130 | March 18, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 26, 43444344

Page 39 of 67




DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)
131 | April 21, 2011 Proposed Acquisition of Nella Oil | Vol. 26, 43454351
132 | April 15, 2011 email chain between P. Morabito | Vol. 26, 4352
and Vacco
133 | April 5, 2011 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 26, 4353
134 | April 16, 2012 email from Vacco to Morabito Vol. 26, 4354-4359
135 | August 7, 2011 email exchange between Vacco | Vol. 26, 4360
and P. Morabito
136 | August 2011 Lovelace letter to Timothy Halves | Vol. 26, 4361-4365
137 | August 24,2011 email from Vacco to P. Morabito | Vol. 26, 4366
RE: Tim Haves
138 | November 11, 2011 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 26, 4367
Morabito RE: Getting Trevor’s commitment to
sign
139 | November 16, 2011 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 26, 4368
Vacco RE: Vacco’s litigation letter
140 | November 28, 2011 email chain between Vacco, | Vol. 26, 4369-4370
S. Morabito, and P. Morabito RE: $560,000 wire
to Lippes Mathias
141 | December 7, 2011 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 26,4371
Morabito RE: Moreno
142 | February 10, 2012 email chain between P. | Vol. 26,4372-4375
Morabito Wells, and Vacco RE: 1461 Glenneyre
Street - Sale
143 | April 20, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Bayuk | Vol. 26, 4376
RE: BofA
144 | April 24, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 26, 43774378

RE: SPI Loan Detail
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

145 | September 4, 2012 email chain between Vacco | Vol. 26, 43794418
and Bayuk RE: Second Deed of Trust documents

147 | September 4, 2012 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 26, 44194422
Vacco RE: Wire

148 | September 4, 2012 email from Bayuk to Vacco | Vol. 26, 4423-4426
RE: Wire

149 | December 6, 2012 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 26,4427-4428
Morabito RE: BOA and the path of money

150 | September 18, 2012 email chain between P. | Vol. 26, 44294432
Morabito and Bayuk

151 October 3, 2012 email chain between Vacco and | Vol. 26, 44334434
P. Morabito RE: Snowshoe Properties, LLC

152 | September 3, 2012 email from P. Morabito to | Vol. 26, 4435
Vacco RE: Wire

153 | March 14, 2013 email chain between P. Morabito | Vol. 26, 4436
and Vacco RE: BHI Hinckley

154 | Paul Morabito 2009 Tax Return Vol. 26, 4437-4463

155 | Superpumper Form 8879-S tax year ended | Vol. 26, 44644484
December 31, 2010

156 | 2010 U.S. S Corporation Tax Return for | Vol.27,4485-4556
Consolidated Western Corporation

157 | Snowshoe form 8879-S for year ended December | Vol. 27, 4557-4577
31,2010

158 | Snowshoe Form 1120S 2011 Amended Tax | Vol. 27, 4578-4655
Return

159 | September 14, 2012 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 27, 46564657

Morabito
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LOCATION

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

160 | October 1, 2012 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 27, 4658
RE: Monday work for Dennis and Christian
161 | December 18, 2012 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 27,4659
Morabito RE: Attorney Client Privileged
Communication
162 | April 24, 2013 email from P. Morabito to Vacco | Vol. 27, 4660
RE: BHI Trust
163 | Membership Interest Purchases, Agreement — | Vol. 27, 4661-4665
Watch My Block (dated 10/06/2010)
164 | Watch My Block organizational documents Vol. 27, 4666—4669
174 | October 15, 2015 Certificate of Service of copy of | Vol. 27, 4670
Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman’s Response to
Subpoena
175 | Order Granting Motion to Compel Responses to | Vol. 27, 4671-4675
Deposition Questions ECF No. 502; Case No. 13-
51237-gwz (filed 02/03/2016)
179 | Gursey Schneider LLP Subpoena Vol. 28, 4676-4697
180 | Summary Appraisal of 570 Glenneyre Vol. 28, 4698-4728
181 | Appraisal of 1461 Glenneyre Street Vol. 28, 4729-4777
182 | Appraisal of 370 Los Olivos Vol. 28, 4778-4804
183 | Appraisal of 371 El Camino Del Mar Vol. 28, 4805-4830
184 | Appraisal of 1254 Mary Fleming Circle Vol. 28, 4831-4859
185 | Mortgage — Panorama Vol. 28, 4860-4860
186 | Mortgage — El Camino Vol. 28, 4861
187 | Mortgage — Los Olivos Vol. 28, 4862
188 | Mortgage — Glenneyre Vol. 28, 4863
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)
189 | Mortgage — Mary Fleming Vol. 28, 4864
190 | Settlement Statement — 371 El Camino Del Mar | Vol. 28, 4865
191 Settlement Statement — 370 Los Olivos Vol. 28, 4866
192 | 2010 Declaration of Value of 8355 Panorama Dr | Vol. 28, 4867—4868
193 | Mortgage — 8355 Panorama Drive Vol. 28, 4869-4870
194 | Compass — Certificate of Custodian of Records | Vol. 28, 4871-4871
(dated 12/21/2016)
196 |June 6, 2014 Declaration of Sam Morabito — | Vol. 28, 4872-4874
Exhibit 1 to Snowshoe Reply in Support of
Motion to Dismiss Complaint for Lack of
Personal Jurisdiction — filed in Case No. CV13-
02663
197 | June 19, 2014 Declaration of Sam Morabito — | Vol. 28, 4875-4877
Exhibit 1 to Superpumper Motion to Dismiss
Complaint for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction —
filed in Case No. CV13-02663
198 | September 22, 2017 Declaration of Sam Morabito | Vol. 28, 48784879
— Exhibit 22 to Defendants’ SSOF in Support of
Opposition to Plaintiff's MSJ — filed in Case No.
CV13-02663
222 | Kimmel — January 21, 2016, Comment on Alves | Vol. 28, 48804883
Appraisal
223 September 20, 2010 email from Yalamanchili to | Vol. 28, 4884
Morabito
224 | March 24, 2011 email from Naz Afshar RE: | Vol. 28, 48854886
telephone call regarding CWC
225 | Bank of America Records for Edward Bayuk | Vol. 28, 4887-4897

(dated 09/05/2012)
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LOCATION

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

226

June 11, 2007 Wholesale Marketer Agreement

Vol.

29, 48984921

227

May 25, 2006 Wholesale Marketer Facility
Development Incentive Program Agreement

Vol.

29, 4922-4928

228

June 2007 Master Lease Agreement — Spirit SPE
Portfolio and Superpumper, Inc.

Vol.

29, 49294983

229

Superpumper Inc 2008 Financial Statement
(dated 12/31/2008)

Vol.

29, 4984-4996

230

November 9, 2009 email from P. Morabito to
Bernstein, Yalaman RE: Jan Friederich — entered
into Consulting Agreement

Vol.

29, 4997

231

September 30, 2010, Letter from Compass to
Superpumper, Morabito, CWC RE: reducing face
amount of the revolving note

Vol.

29, 4998-5001

232

October 15, 2010, letter from Quarles & Brady to
Vacco RE: Revolving Loan Documents and Term
Loan Documents between Superpumper and
Compass Bank

Vol.

29, 5002-5006

233

BMO Account Tracker Banking Report October
1 to October 31, 2010

Vol.

29, 5007-5013

235

August 31, 2010 Superpumper Inc., Valuation of
100 percent of the common equity in
Superpumper, Inc on a controlling marketable
basis

Vol.

29, 5014-5059

236

June 18, 2014 email from S. Morabito to Vanek
(WF) RE: Analysis of Superpumper Acquisition
in 2010

Vol.

29, 5060-5061

241

Superpumper March 2010 YTD Income
Statement

Vol.

29, 5062-5076
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LOCATION

Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

244 | Assignment Agreement for $939,000 Morabito | Vol. 29, 5077-5079
Note

247 | July 1, 2011 Third Amendment to Forbearance | Vol. 29, 5080-5088
Agreement Superpumper and Compass Bank

248 | Superpumper Cash Contributions January 2010 | Vol. 29, 5089-5096
thru September 2015 — Bayuk and S. Morabito

252 | October 15, 2010 Letter from Quarles & Brady to | Vol. 29, 5097-5099
Vacco RE: Revolving Loan documents and Term
Loan documents between Superpumper Prop. and
Compass Bank

254 | Bank of America — S. Morabito SP Properties | Vol. 29, 5100
Sale, SP Purchase Balance

255 | Superpumper Prop. Final Closing Statement for | Vol. 29, 5101
920 Mountain City Hwy, Elko, NV

256 | September 30, 2010 Raffles Insurance Limited | Vol. 29, 5102
Member Summary

257 | Equalization Spreadsheet Vol. 30, 5103

258 | November 9, 2005 Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed; | Vol. 30, 5104-5105
Doc #3306300 for Property Washoe County

260 | January 7, 2016 Budget Summary — Panorama | Vol. 30, 5106-5107
Drive

261 | Mary 22, 2006 Compilation of Quotes and | Vol. 30, 5108-5116
Invoices Quote of Valley Drapery

262 | Photos of 8355 Panorama Home Vol. 30, 5117-5151

263 | Water Rights Deed (Document #4190152) | Vol. 30,5152-5155

between P. Morabito, E. Bayuk, Grantors, RCA
Trust One Grantee (recorded 12/31/2012)
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

265 | October 1, 2010 Bank of America Wire Transfer | Vol. 30, 5156
—Bayuk — Morabito $60,117

266 | October 1, 2010 Check #2354 from Bayuk to P. | Vol. 30, 5157-5158
Morabito for $29,383 for 8355 Panorama funding

268 | October 1, 2010 Check #2356 from Bayuk to P. | Vol. 30, 5159-5160
Morabito for $12,763 for 370 Los Olivos Funding

269 | October 1, 2010 Check #2357 from Bayuk to P. | Vol. 30, 5161-5162
Morabito for $31,284 for 371 E1 Camino Del Mar
Funding

270 | Bayuk Payment Ledger Support Documents | Vol. 31, 5163-5352
Checks and Bank Statements

271 | Bayuk Superpumper Contributions Vol. 31, 5353-5358

272 | May 14, 2012 email string between P. Morabito, | Vol. 31, 5359-5363
Vacco, Bayuk, and S. Bernstein RE: Info for
Laguna purchase

276 | September 21, 2010 Appraisal of 8355 Panorama | Vol. 32, 53645400
Drive Reno, NV by Alves Appraisal

277 | Assessor’s Map/Home Caparisons for 8355 | Vol. 32, 5401-5437
Panorama Drive, Reno, NV

278 | December 3, 2007 Case Docket for CV07-02764 | Vol. 32, 5438-5564

280 |May 25, 2011 Stipulation Regarding the | Vol. 33, 5565-5570
Imposition of Punitive Damages; Case No. CV07-
02764 (filed 05/25/2011)

281 | Work File for September 24, 2010 Appraisal of | Vol. 33, 5571-5628
8355 Panorama Drive, Reno, NV

283 | January 25, 2016 Expert Witness Report Leonard | Vol. 33, 5629-5652

v. Superpumper Snowshoe
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)

284 | February 29, 2016 Defendants’ Rebuttal Expert | Vol. 33, 5653-5666
Witness Disclosure

294 | October 5, 2010 Lippes, Mathias Wexler | Vol. 33, 5667-5680
Friedman, LLP, Invoices to P. Morabito

295 | P. Morabito 2010 Tax Return (dated 10/16/2011) | Vol. 33, 5681-5739

296 | December 31, 2010 Superpumper Inc. Note to | Vol. 33, 5740-5743
Financial Statements

297 | December 31, 2010 Superpumper Consultations | Vol. 33, 5744

300 | September 20, 2010 email chain between | Vol. 33, 5745-5748
Yalmanchili and Graber RE: Attorney Client
Privileged Communication

301 | September 15, 2010 email from Vacco to P.| Vol. 33, 5749-5752
Morabito RE: Tomorrow

303 | Bankruptcy Court District of Nevada Claims | Vol. 33, 5753-5755
Register Case No. 13-51237

304 | April 14, 2018 email from Allen to Krausz RE: | Vol. 33, 57565757
Superpumper

305 | Subpoena in a Case Under the Bankruptcy Code | Vol. 33, 57585768
to Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust issued in
Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ

306 | August 30, 2018 letter to Mark Weisenmiller, | Vol. 34, 5769
Esq., from Frank Gilmore, Esq.,

307 | Order Granting Motion to Compel Compliance | Vol. 34, 5770-5772
with the Subpoena to Robison, Sharp, Sullivan &
Brust filed in Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ

308 | Response of Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust’s | Vol. 34, 5773-5797

to Subpoena filed in Case No. BK-N-13-51237-
GWZ
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Exhibits to Clerk’s Trial Exhibit List (cont.)
309 | Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore in support of | Vol. 34, 5798-5801

Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust’s Opposition to
Motion for Order Holding Robison in Contempt
filed in Case No. BK-N-13-51237-GWZ

Minutes of October 29, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 1 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 35, 58026041

Transcript of October 29, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 1

Vol. 35, 6042—-6045

Minutes of October 30, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 2 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 36, 6046—6283

Transcript of October 30, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 2

Vol. 36, 6284—6286

Minutes of October 31, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 3 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 37, 6287-6548

Transcript of October 31, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 3

Vol. 37, 6549—-6552

Minutes of November 1, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 4 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 38, 6553-6814

Transcript of November 1, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 4

Vol. 38, 6815-6817

Minutes of November 2, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 5 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 39, 6818-7007

Transcript of November 2, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 5

Vol. 39, 70087011

Minutes of November 5, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 6 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol. 40, 70127167

Transcript of November 5, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 6

Vol. 40, 7168-7169
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Minutes of November 6, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 7 (filed | Vol. 41, 7170-7269
11/08/2018)
Transcript of November 6, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 7 Vol. 41, 7270-7272
Vol. 42, 7273-7474

Minutes of November 7, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 8 (filed
11/08/2018)

Vol.

43,7475-7476

Transcript of November 7, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 8

Vol.

43,7477-7615

Minutes of November 26, 2018, Non-Jury Trial, Day 9
(filed 11/26/2018)

Vol.

44,7616

Transcript of November 26, 2018, Non-Jury Trial — Closing
Arguments, Day 9

Vol.
Vol.

44,7617-7666
45,7667-7893

Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence (filed 01/30/2019)

Vol.

46, 7894-7908

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq. in
Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen

Vol.

46, 7909-7913

I-A | September 21, 2017 Declaration of Salvatore | Vol. 46, 7914-7916
Morabito

1-B | Defendants’ Proposed Findings of Fact, | Vol. 46, 7917-7957
Conclusions of Law, and Judgment (Nov. 26,
2018)

1-C | Judgment on the First and Second Causes of | Vol. 46, 7958—7962

Action; Case No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D.
Nev.), ECF No. 123 (April 30, 2018)
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Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence
(cont.)
I-D | Amended Findings of Fact and Conclusions of | Vol. 46, 7963—7994
Law in Support of Judgment Regarding Plaintiffs’
First and Second Causes of Action; Case No. 15-
05019-GWZ (Bankr. D. Nev.), ECF No. 126
(April 30, 2018)
1-E | Motion to Compel Compliance with the | Vol. 46, 7995-8035
Subpoena to Robison Sharp Sullivan Brust; Case
No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D. Nev.), ECF No.
191 (Sept. 10, 2018)
I-F | Order Granting Motion to Compel Compliance | Vol. 46, 80368039
with the Subpoena to Robison Sharp Sullivan
Brust; Case No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D.
Nev.), ECF No. 229 (Jan. 3, 2019)
1-G | Response of Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust[] | Vol. 46, 8040-8067
To Subpoena (including RSSB 000001 -
RSSB 000031) (Jan. 18, 2019)
1-H | Excerpts of Deposition Transcript of Sam | Vol. 46, 8068—8076
Morabito as PMK of Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.
(Oct. 1, 2015)
Errata to: Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence (filed | Vol. 47, 8077-8080
01/30/2019)
Exhibit to Errata to: Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen
Evidence
Exhibit Document Description

1

Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence

Vol. 47, 8081-8096
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Ex Parte Motion for Order Shortening Time on Plaintiff’s

Motion to Reopen Evidence and for Expedited Hearing
(filed 01/31/2019)

Vol. 47, 8097-8102

Order Shortening Time on Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen
Evidence and for Expedited Hearing (filed 02/04/2019)

Vol. 47, 8103—8105

Supplement to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Evidence (filed
02/04/2019)

Vol. 47, 8106-8110

Exhibits to Supplement to Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen
Evidence

Exhibit Document Description

1 Supplemental Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm,
Esq. in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen
Evidence (filed 02/04/2019)

Vol. 47, 8111-8113

I-1 | Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore in Support of
Robison, Sharp Sullivan & Brust’s Opposition to
Motion for Order Holding Robison in Contempt;
Case No. 15-05019-GWZ (Bankr. D. Nev.), ECF
No. 259 (Jan. 30, 2019)

Vol. 47, 8114-8128

Defendants” Response to Motion to Reopen Evidence
(02/06/2019)

Vol. 47, 8129-8135

Plaintiff’s Reply to Defendants’ Response to Motion to
Reopen Evidence (filed 02/07/2019)

Vol. 47, 81368143

Minutes of February 7, 2019 hearing on Motion to Reopen
Evidence (filed 02/28/2019)

Vol. 47, 8144

Rough Draft Transcript of February 8, 2019 hearing on
Motion to Reopen Evidence

Vol. 47, 8145-8158
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[Plaintiff’s Proposed] Findings of Fact, Conclusions of
Law, and Judgment (filed 03/06/2019)

Vol.

47, 8159-8224

[Defendants’ Proposed Amended] Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and Judgment (filed 03/08/2019)

Vol.

47, 8225-8268

Minutes of February 26, 2019 hearing on Motion to
Continue ongoing Non-Jury Trial (Telephonic) (filed
03/11/2019)

Vol.

47, 8269

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Judgment (filed
03/29/2019)

Vol.

48, 8270-8333

Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law,
and Judgment (filed 03/29/2019)

Vol.

48, 8334-8340

Memorandum of Costs and Disbursements (filed
04/11/2019)

Vol.

48, 8341-8347

Exhibit to Memorandum of Costs and Disbursements

Exhibit Document Description

1 Ledger of Costs

Vol.

48, 8348-8370

Application for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRCP 68 (filed 04/12/2019)

Vol.

48, 8371-8384

Exhibits to Application for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRCP 68

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz In Support of
Plaintiff’s Application for Attorney’s Fees and
Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed 04/12/2019)

Vol.

48, 8385-8390

2 Plaintiff’s Offer of Judgment to Defendants
(dated 05/31/2016)

Vol.

48, 8391-8397
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

3 Defendant’s Rejection of Offer of Judgment by
Plaintiff (dated 06/15/2016)

Vol.

48, 8398-8399

4 Log of time entries from June 1, 2016 to March | Vol. 48, 8400-8456
28,2019
5 Plaintiff’s Memorandum of Costs and | Vol. 48, 8457-8487

Disbursements (filed 04/11/2019)

Motion to Retax Costs (filed 04/15/2019)

Vol.

49, 8488—-8495

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Retax Costs (filed
04/17/2019)

Vol.

49, 84968507

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Retax
Costs

Exhibit Document Description
1 Declaration of Teresa M. Pilatowicz In Support of | Vol. 49, 85088510
Opposition to Motion to Retax Costs (filed
04/17/2019)
2 Summary of Photocopy Charges Vol. 49, 8511-8523
3 James L. McGovern Curriculum Vitae Vol. 49, 8524-8530
4 McGovern & Greene LLP Invoices Vol. 49, 8531-8552
5 Buss-Shelger Associates Invoices Vol. 49, 8553—-8555

Reply in Support of Motion to Retax Costs (filed
04/22/2019)

Vol.

49, 85568562

Opposition to Application for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed 04/25/2019)

Vol.

49, 85638578

Exhibit to Opposition to Application for Attorneys’ Fees
and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68
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LOCATION

Exhibit Document Description

1 Plaintiff’s Bill Dispute Ledger

Vol. 49, 8579-8637

Defendants, Salvatore Morabito, Snowshoe Petroleum,
Inc., and Superpumper, Inc.’s Motion for New Trial and/or
to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant to NRCP 52, 59, and
60 (filed 04/25/2019)

Vol. 49, 8638-8657

Defendant, Edward Bayuk’s Motion for New Trial and/or
to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant to NRCP 52, 59, and
60 (filed 04/26/2019)

Vol. 50, 8658-8676

Exhibits to Edward Bayuk’s Motion for New Trial
and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant to NRCP
52,59, and 60

Exhibit Document Description

1 February 27, 2019 email with attachments

Vol. 50, 8677-8768

2 Declaration of Frank C. Gilmore in Support of
Edward Bayuk’s Motion for New Trial (filed
04/26/2019)

Vol. 50, 8769-8771

February 27, 2019 email from Marcy Trabert

Vol. 50, 87728775

4 February 27, 2019 email from Frank Gilmore to
eturner@Gtg.legal RE: Friday Trial

Vol. 50, 87768777

Plaintiff’s Reply in Support of Application of Attorneys’
Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed 04/30/2019)

Vol. 50, 8778-8790

Exhibit to Plaintiff’s Reply in Support of Application of
Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68

Exhibit Document Description

1 Case No. BK-13-51237-GWZ, ECF Nos. 280,
282, and 321

Vol. 50, 8791-8835
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendants’ Motions for New
Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed 05/07/2019)

Vol. 51, 8836—8858

Defendants, Salvatore Morabito, Snowshoe Petroleum,
Inc., and Superpumper, Inc.’s Reply in Support of Motion
for New Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment Pursuant
to NRCP 52, 59, and 60 (filed 05/14/2019)

Vol. 51, 88598864

Declaration of Edward Bayuk Claiming Exemption from
Execution (filed 06/28/2019)

Vol. 51, 8865—-8870

Exhibits to Declaration of Edward Bayuk Claiming
Exemption from Execution

Exhibit Document Description

1 Copy of June 22, 2019 Notice of Execution and
two Write of Executions

Vol. 51, 8871-8896

2 Declaration of James Arthur Gibbons Regarding
his Attestation, Witness and Certification on
November 12, 2005 of the Spendthrift Trust
Amendment to the Edward William Bayuk Living
Trust (dated 06/25/2019)

Vol. 51, 8897-8942

Notice of Claim of Exemption from Execution (filed
06/28/2019)

Vol. 51, 8943-8949

Edward Bayuk’s Declaration of Salvatore Morabito
Claiming Exemption from Execution (filed 07/02/2019)

Vol. 51, 8950-8954

Exhibits to Declaration of Salvatore Morabito Claiming
Exemption from Execution

Exhibit Document Description
1 Las Vegas June 22, 2019 letter Vol. 51, 8955-8956
2 Writs of execution and the notice of execution Vol. 51, 8957-8970
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Minutes of June 24, 2019 telephonic hearing on Decision on
Submitted Motions (filed 07/02/2019)

Vol.

51, 8971-8972

Salvatore Morabito’s Notice of Claim of Exemption from
Execution (filed 07/02/2019)

Vol.

51, 8973-8976

Edward Bayuk’s Third Party Claim to Property Levied
Upon NRS 31.070 (filed 07/03/2019)

Vol.

51, 8977-8982

Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application for an Award of
Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRCP 68 (filed
07/10/2019)

Vol.

51, 8983-8985

Order Granting in part and Denying in part Motion to Retax
Costs (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol.

51, 8986—8988

Plaintiff’s Objection to (1) Claim of Exemption from
Execution and (2) Third Party Claim to Property Levied
Upon, and Request for Hearing Pursuant to NRS 21.112 and
31.070(5) (filed 07/11/2019)

Vol.

52, 8989-9003

Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Objection to (1) Claim of
Exemption from Execution and (2) Third Party Claim
to Property Levied Upon, and Request for Hearing
Pursuant to NRS 21.112 and 31.070(5)

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq.

Vol.

52, 9004-9007

2 11/30/2011 Tolling Agreement — Edward Bayuk

Vol.

52, 9008-9023

11/30/2011 Tolling Agreement — Edward William
Bayuk Living Trust

Vol.

52, 9024-9035

4 Excerpts of 9/28/2015 Deposition of Edward
Bayuk

Vol.

52, 90369041
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Objection (cont.)
5 Edward Bayuk, as Trustee of the Edward William | Vol. 52, 9042-9051
Bayuk Living Trust’s Responses to Plaintiff’s
First Set of Requests for Production, served
9/24/2015
6 8/26/2009 Grant Deed (Los Olivos) Vol. 52, 9052-9056
7 8/17/2018 Grant Deed (El Camino) Vol. 52, 9057-9062
8 Trial Ex. 4 (Confession of Judgment) Vol. 52, 9063-9088
9 Trial Ex. 45 (Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated | Vol. 52, 9089-9097
9/28/2010)
10 Trial Ex. 46 (First Amendment to Purchase and | Vol. 52, 9098-9100
Sale Agreement, dated 9/29/2010)
11 Trial Ex. 51 (Los Olivos Grant Deed recorded | Vol. 52,9101-9103
10/8/2010)
12 Trial Ex. 52 (El Camino Grant Deed recorded | Vol. 52, 9104-9106
10/8/2010)
13 Trial Ex. 61 (Membership Interest Transfer | Vol. 52,9107-9114
Agreement, dated 10/1/2010)
14 Trial Ex. 62 ($1,617,050.00 Promissory Note) Vol. 52,9115-9118
15 Trial Ex. 65 (Mary Fleming Grant Deed recorded | Vol. 52, 9119-9121

11/4/2010)

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Defendants’ Motions for
New Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed
07/16/2019)

Vol.

52,9122-9124
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying
Defendants’ Motions for New Trial and/or to Alter or
Amend Judgment

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Defendants’ Motions for New
Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed
07/10/2019)

Vol. 52, 9125-9127

Notice of Entry of Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application
for an Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRCP 68 (filed 07/16/2019)

Vol. 52,9128-9130

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Granting Plaintiff’s
Application for an Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRCP 68

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application for an
Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRCP 68 (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol. 52,9131-9134

Notice of Entry of Order Granting in Part and Denying in
Part Motion to Retax Costs (filed 07/16/2019)

Vol. 52,9135-9137

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Granting in Part and
Denying in Part Motion to Retax Costs

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part
Motion to Retax Costs (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol. 52, 91389141

Plaintiff’s Objection to Notice of Claim of Exemption from
Execution Filed by Salvatore Morabito and Request for
Hearing (filed 07/16/2019)

Vol. 52,9142-9146

Reply to Objection to Claim of Exemption and Third Party
Claim to Property Levied Upon (filed 07/17/2019)

Vol. 52, 9147-9162
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Reply to Objection to Claim of Exemption
and Third Party Claim to Property Levied Upon
Exhibit Document Description
1 March 3, 2011 Deposition Transcript of P. | Vol.52,9163-9174

Morabito

2 Mr. Bayuk’s September 23, 2014 responses to
Plaintiff’s first set of requests for production

Vol.

52,9175-9180

3 September 28, 2015 Deposition Transcript of
Edward Bayuk

Vol.

52,9181-9190

Reply to Plaintiff’s Objection to Notice of Claim of
Exemption from Execution (filed 07/18/2019)

Vol.

52,9191-9194

Declaration of Service of Till Tap, Notice of Attachment
and Levy Upon Property (filed 07/29/2019)

Vol.

52,9195

Notice of Submission of Disputed Order Denying Claim of
Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed 08/01/2019)

Vol.

52,9196-9199

Exhibits to Notice of Submission of Disputed Order
Denying Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim

Exhibit Document Description

1 Plaintiff’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of
Exemption and Third-Party Claim

Vol.

52, 9200-9204

2 Bayuk and the Bayuk Trust’s proposed Order
Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-Party
Claim

Vol.

52,9205-9210

3 July 30, 2019 email evidencing Bayuk, through
counsel Jeffrey Hartman, Esq., requesting until
noon on July 31, 2019 to provide comments.

Vol.

52,9211-9212
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Exhibits
(cont.)

to Notice of Submission of Disputed Order

4

July 31, 2019 email from Teresa M. Pilatowicz,
Esq. Bayuk failed to provide comments at noon
on July 31, 2019, instead waiting until 1:43 p.m.
to send a redline version with proposed changes
after multiple follow ups from Plaintiff’s counsel
on July 31, 2019

Vol.

52,9213-9219

A true and correct copy of the original Order and
Bayuk Changes

Vol.

52,9220-9224

A true and correct copy of the redline run by
Plaintiff accurately reflecting Bayuk’s proposed
changes

Vol.

52, 92259229

Email evidencing that after review of the
proposed revisions, Plaintiff advised Bayuk,
through counsel, that Plaintiff agree to certain
proposed revisions, but the majority of the
changes were unacceptable as they did not reflect
the Court’s findings or evidence before the Court.

Vol.

52,9230-9236

Objection to Plaintiff’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of
Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed 08/01/2019)

Vol.

53, 9237-9240

Exhibits

to Objection to Plaintiff’s Proposed Order

Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-Party Claim

Exhibit Document Description
1 Plaintiff’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of | Vol. 53, 9241-9245
Exemption and Third-Party Claim
2 Defendant’s comments on Findings of Fact Vol. 53, 9246-9247
3 Defendant’s Proposed Order Denying Claim of | Vol. 53, 9248-9252

Exemption and Third-Party Claim
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION

LOCATION

Minutes of July 22, 2019 hearing on Objection to Claim for
Exemption (filed 08/02/2019)

Vol. 53, 9253

Order Denying Claim of Exemption (filed 08/02/2019)

Vol. 53, 9254-9255

Bayuk’s Case Appeal Statement (filed 08/05/2019)

Vol. 53, 9256-9260

Bayuk’s Notice of Appeal (filed 08/05/2019)

Vol. 53, 9261-9263

Defendants, Superpumper, Inc., Edward Bayuk, Salvatore
Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s, Case Appeal
Statement (filed 08/05/2019)

Vol. 53, 9264-9269

Defendants, Superpumper, Inc., Edward Bayuk, Salvatore
Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum, Inc.’s, Notice of
Appeal (filed 08/05/2019)

Vol. 53, 9270-9273

Exhibits to Defendants, Superpumper, Inc., Edward
Bayuk, Salvatore Morabito; and Snowshoe Petroleum,
Inc.’s, Notice of Appeal

Exhibit Document Description

1 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and
Judgment (filed 03/29/2019)

Vol. 53, 92749338

2 Order Denying Defendants’ Motions for New
Trial and/or to Alter or Amend Judgment (filed
07/10/2019)

Vol. 53, 9339-9341

3 Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part
Motion to Retax Costs (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol. 53, 93429345

4 Order Granting Plaintiff’s Application for an
Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRCP 68 (filed 07/10/2019)

Vol. 53, 93469349
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LOCATION

Plaintiff’s Reply to Defendants’ Objection to Plaintiff’s
Proposed Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-
Party Claim

Vol. 53, 9350-9356

Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-Party Claim
(08/09/2019)

Vol. 53, 9357-9360

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of Exemption and
Third-Party Claim (filed 08/09/2019)

Vol. 53,9361-9364

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of
Exemption and Third-Party Claim

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third-
Party Claim (08/09/2019)

Vol. 53, 9365-9369

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of Exemption
(filed 08/12/2019)

Vol. 53, 93709373

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order Denying Claim of
Exemption

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Claim of Exemption (08/02/2019)

Vol. 53, 9374-9376

Motion to Make Amended or Additional Findings Under
NRCP 52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration (filed 08/19/2019)

Vol. 54, 9377-9401

Exhibits to Motion to Make Amended or Additional
Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, in the Alternative,
Motion for Reconsideration

Exhibit Document Description

1 Order Denying Claim of Exemption and Third
Party Claim (filed 08/09/19)

Vol. 54, 9402-9406

Page 62 of 67




DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION
Exhibits to Motion to Make Amended (cont.)

2 Spendthrift Trust Amendment to the Edward | Vol. 54, 9407-9447
William Bayuk Living Trust (dated 11/12/05)

3 Spendthrift Trust Agreement for the Arcadia | Vol. 54, 9448-9484
Living Trust (dated 10/14/05)

4 Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Trust | Vol. 54, 9485-9524
Agreement for the Arcadia Living Trust (dated
09/30/10)

5 P. Morabito's Supplement to NRCP 16.1 | Vol. 54, 9525-9529
Disclosures (dated 03/01/11)

6 Transcript of March 3, 2011 Deposition of P. | Vol. 55, 9530-9765
Morabito

7 Documents Conveying Real Property Vol. 56, 97669774

8 Transcript of July 22, 2019 Hearing Vol. 56, 9775-9835

9 Tolling Agreement JH and P. Morabito (partially | Vol. 56, 9836-9840
executed 11/30/11)

10 Tolling Agreement JH and Arcadia Living Trust | Vol. 56, 9841-9845
(partially executed 11/30/11)

11 Excerpted Pages 8-9 of Superpumper Judgment | Vol. 56, 98469848
(filed 03/29/19)

12 Petitioners' First Set of Interrogatories to Debtor | Vol. 56, 98499853
(dated 08/13/13)

13 Tolling Agreement JH and Edward Bayuk | Vol. 56, 9854-9858
(partially executed 11/30/11)

14 Tolling Agreement JH and Bayuk Trust (partially | Vol. 56, 9859-9863
executed 11/30/11)

15 Declaration of Mark E. Lehman, Esq. (dated | Vol. 56, 9864-9867

03/21/11)
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LOCATION

Exhibits to Motion to Make Amended (cont.)

16 Excerpted Transcript of October 20, 2015
Deposition of Dennis C. Vacco

Vol. 56, 98689871

17 Assignment and Assumption Agreement (dated
07/03/07)

Vol. 56, 98729887

18 Order Denying Morabito’s Claim of Exemption
(filed 08/02/19)

Vol. 56, 9888-9890

Errata to Motion to Make Amended or Additional Findings
Under NRCP 52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration (filed 08/20/2019)

Vol. 57, 9891-9893

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Make Amended or
Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, In the
Alternative, = Motion  for  Reconsideration, and
Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 7.085
(filed 08/30/2019)

Vol. 57, 9894-9910

Errata to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Make
Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, In
the Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration, and

Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 7.085
(filed 08/30/2019)

Vol. 57,9911-9914

Exhibits to Errata to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to
Make Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP
52(b), or, In the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration, and Countermotion for Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRS 7.085

Exhibit Document Description

1 Declaration of Gabrielle A. Hamm, Esq.

Vol. 57, 9915-9918

2 Plaintiff’s Amended NRCP 16.1 Disclosures
(February 19, 2016)

Vol. 57,9919-9926
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LOCATION

Exhibits to Errata (cont.)

3 Plaintiff’s Fourth Supplemental NRCP 16.1
Disclosures (November 15, 2016)

Vol. 57, 9927-9930

4 Plaintiff’s Fifth Supplemental NRCP 16.1
Disclosures (December 21, 2016)

Vol. 57,9931-9934

5 Plaintiff’s Sixth Supplemental NRCP 16.1
Disclosures (March 20, 2017)

Vol. 57, 9935-9938

Reply in Support of Motion to Make Amended or
Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, In the
Alternative, Motion  for  Reconsideration, and
Countermotion for Fees and Costs (filed 09/04/2019)

Vol. 57, 99399951

Exhibits to Reply in Support of Motion to Make
Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b),
or, In the Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration, and
Countermotion for Fees and Costs

Exhibit Document Description

19 Notice of Submission of Disputed Order Denying
Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed
08/01/19)

Vol. 57, 9952-9993

20 Notice of Submission of Disputed Order Denying | Vol. 57,
Claim of Exemption and Third Party Claim (filed | 9994-10010
08/01/19)

Order Denying Defendants’ Motion to Make Amended or | Vol. 57,

Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b), or, in the
Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration and Denying

Plaintiff's Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 7.085 (filed 11/08/2019)

10011-10019

Bayuk’s Case Appeal Statement (filed 12/06/2019)

Vol. 57,
10020-10026
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LOCATION

Bayuk’s Notice of Appeal (filed 12/06/2019)

Vol. 57,
10027-10030

Exhibits to Bayuk’s Notice of Appeal

Exhibit Document Description
1 Order Denying [Morabito’s] Claim of Exemption | Vol. 57,
(filed 08/02/19) 10031-10033
2 Order Denying [Bayuk’s] Claim of Exemption | Vol. 57,
and Third Party Claim (filed 08/09/19) 10034-10038
3 Order Denying Defendants’ Motion to Make | Vol. 57,

Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP
52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration and Denying  Plaintiff’s

Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 7.085 (filed 11/08/19)

10039-10048

Notice of Entry of Order Denying Defendants' Motion to
Make Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP 52(b),
or, in the Alternative, Motion for Reconsideration and
Denying Plaintiff's Countermotion for Fees and Costs
Pursuant to NRS 7.085 (filed 12/23/2019)

Vol. 57,
10049-10052

Exhibit to Notice of Entry of Order

Exhibit

Document Description

A

Order Denying Defendants’ Motion to Make
Amended or Additional Findings Under NRCP
52(b), or, in the Alternative, Motion for
Reconsideration and Denying  Plaintiff’s

Countermotion for Fees and Costs Pursuant to
NRS 7.085 (filed 11/08/19)

Vol. 57,
10053-10062
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District Court Docket Case No. CV13-02663

Vol. 57,
10063—-10111

Notice of Claim of Exemption and Third-Party Claim to
Property Levied Upon, Case No. CV13-02663 (filed
08/25/2020)

Vol. 58,
10112-10121

Exhibits to Notice of Claim of Exemption and Third-
Party Claim to Property Levied Upon

Exhibit Document Description
1 Writ of Execution, Case No. CV13-02663 (filed | Vol. 58,
07/21/2020) 10123-10130
2 Superior Court of California, Orange County | Vol. 58,
Docket, Case No. 30-2019-01068591-CU-EN- | 10131-10139
CIC
3 Spendthrift Trust Amendment to the Edward | Vol. 58,

William Bayuk Living Trust (dated 11/12/2005)

10140-10190
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Wholesale No. 421733

WHOLESALE MARKETER AGREEMENT

THES AGREEVIENT iy effective Jung |1, 2007, ("Bifeclive Date™ hetween Skelt Ol Products US ("Selled™) whose
gddress s 62700 Morhborough Drive, Houston, TX 77067 and SUPERPUMPER INC (“Ruyer) whose address is §689 SAN
ALBERTO DRIVE, SCOTTSDALE, AZ #3258,

1. DEFINITIONS. As used in this Aprecment, the terms below have the following menanings, whether singular or
plurak;

(a) “Buginess Entity” ~ Any legal entity that is not an individual or -ole proprietorship, including, without
Himitatlon, & partnership, eorporation, limited lisbility company, limited lability partnesship, or associglion,

(1] “Buyer's Marketing Premises” — Buyer's premises, inchding, but not Emited e, Boyer's office and
storage, el distrlbutien factiitics that Buyer uses i connection with the Products,

o) "Buyar's Qutlets™ — Those retail outets, kncluding marinus and ruck stops, opaiated or supplied by Ruyer
and which Scller has authorized Buyer to disploy the ldeniifications in connection with the ressle of (he Products to constimers.

(d) “Identifications” « The rademarks, Irade dress, service marks, i d color schemes refating (o the Sheil
brand liceased to Buyar by Selfer inder the terms of this Agreginanl for use by Buyer nad Buyer’s Qutlets in connetion with the
maketing and sale of the Products.

(e} “Law™ ~ Any applicable statute, comstitation, ordinance, regulution, rule, administrative order, or other
vequirement of any federal, state, or locul govemement agency or anthority in effect at the. time ol execution, or during the t2rm, of this
Afreement

G “Plant” — The digtribeting ptant(s) from which Seller has authorized Buyer 1o necept delfveries of Products.

(2} “FMPA™ — The Petrolerm Marketing Practices Act as may be amemled from time 1o time {15 U.3.C. §280]
el seq.).

{h *Peoducts™ — The gasodine and diesc! fuel sold 1o Buyer by Scller for resale under the dentilications.
% PURCHASE AND SALE QF PRODUCTS.

(u) Subject 10 Articles 19 and 20, Scller shall sefl and deliver «o Buyer, and Buyer shall purchase and uvcept
Iremy Seiler, the minimum quantitics of Shell-branded gasoline identificd in Exhibit A-1 durin: cach month agd yenr during the term
ol this Agreemenl to be resold through Buyer's Guilets {"Gasoline Minimum Quustities”). Buyer acknowledges that the Gasoline
Minimum Quantities are ngcessary and redsonable for, among other rewsons, Sclier 1o plan its supply aperations andl, s such, am of
malerinl acd reasonable significance 1o the franchise relationship. Buyer also acknowledge-: lnl Seller has established minituin
volume kevels for Shell-branded gasoline {*Base Volinic*) tw be resold thraugh Buyer's Ouglcts for it customets in order to retain o
Wholesale Matkoler Agreenteni. Actordingly, in no ovent may Buyer's Gusoline Minimum Quanlities be less ihan the following
Base Volurne:

-1- Rev 2007/04/28 {(W201)
Wholesele Marketer Agrecoent

EXHIBIT {5
REPORTER _ ] 7
DEPONENT__ 4

DATE 31 [117

4898



June 11, 2007 to June 10, 2008 4,2 mitlion galions
Junie 11, 2008 to June 10, 2009 4.4 mitlion galons
June 11, 2000 ta Tune 10, 2010 4.6 willion gallons
Jung 11, 2010 to June 1,207} 4,4 mnillion galtons
June 11, 2001 to June 10, 2012 5.0 milkon gellons
Jung 11, 2012 (o June 10, 2013 5.2 milften galtang

If Buyer fuils fo purchase the Base Volume ahd resell the Base Volume (hrough Buyer's Qutlews, Seller may toke such action as Selier
deems appropriate, ineluding, withoul limitation, terminating os not renewing Lhis Agrecinent,

()] Sublect to Articles 19 and 20, Seller shall scll and deltver o Buyer, und Buyer shall purchase and secepl
trarm Seller, the minimum quantities of Shell-branded diesel identified in Exiibil A-2 cach yeor during the wrm of this Agreement
{*Diesel Minimum Quantities™), Buyer gcknowledges thal the Diesel Minkmunt Quanilties are necessary and reasenable Jor, smong
other reasems, Seller to plan Its supply operations and, as such, are of material and rewsonable significance to the Iranchise
relationship,

{c) Scltes may, bul will nol be obligated to, sell Buyer mote than the “Ciasoline Maximum Cuangitics™
identified in Exhibit A-1 and “Diesel Muximum Quanlitles” identified in Exhibit A-2. Seller 5 exercise of its right to do so will tol
obligate Seiler to continue (o sell Buyer such excess quuntitics.

(dy To the exient practicable, Buyer shall jake delivery of all Products o a ratable bayis.

(o) 1 Buyer fails 1o purchase and accepi (he Gasoline or Diesel Minimum Quantilies in uny 12-month period,
Seller may unifwerally downward adjust the Gasoling or Digsel Minimum/Maximum Quantitivs each succeeding 12-manth period by
the difference belween the annual Gasoline oy Diesel Minimum Guantites and the amonnt actuplly purchused for e 12-menth
perlod, Tn addition, Buyer may reques! that Seller downward adjust Buyer's Gusoline or Dicsc) Mininnn/Maximurm Quantities If the
need for the downward ndjustment is due o 2 resson beyond Buyer's reasonable conwrol. 1f Seller ugrees to such an adjustinent the
parties sha’l amend Bahibil A 1o refiect such adjustment. Llkewlse, if Buyes purchases more than the Gusoling or Diessl Minimutn
Quentities, Buyer may reques! thot Seller upward adjust Buyer's Gasoline or Dicss]l MinimumsMaximutn Quantities, I7 Seller agraos,
lhe Gasolire or Diesel Minimum/Maximum Quantilics in Exhibit A-1 or A-2 will be amended sccardingfy,

in I the ermy of this Agreement commences at any Lime ofter Yanuary | of any yeur, Buyer shall purchase angd
acoept the Gasoline and Diesel Minimum Quantities during the remaining moulhs of that 1:2-monih period, but Seller's sights and
remediea set forlh in Ariictes 2(a) and (¢} above will tot commence unti! thie neat full 12-montl. period.

[f14] IT Buyer terminaics this Agreement prlor 1o expiration of fis torm or it Seler terminates this Agrgowent for
catse in accordinee with the PMPA or applicable Law, Seller will be entitled to ali remed.es however urisiog including, withowl
lisnitation, all remedies avallable at law, in equlty, or under comiract Including, without limilation, this Ageeoment or any incentive
agreament Dedaining to Buyer's Oullats,

3 PRICES AND TERMS OF PAYMENT.
{a) Tie prices Buyer shall pay Seller for the Products are og follows:

() Uniess markel aren priving is in effoct as deseribed below, Buger shall pay Seller's marketer tenk
wagon prics in effact for the Plam at the time of Seller’s delivery o Buyer,

{2) IF Seller determings, In ils sole discretion, that market condilions warcunt the use of markes ares
pricing. upon notificaliot 1o Bwyer and for ax long as such market conditlons exist, Buyes shall puy Setler’'s marketer price in aftect for
Buyer's Outlets in the geographic market or rading area esiablished by Seller at the time of Scller’s delivery to Buycr. Buyer
represents and waants that the Products purchased at such prices will in fact be delivered only te Buyer's Outlets in the destgnated
market or tede aren. 1 Buyer delivers Products purchased ol such priccs to locations oulside the designated merkel or trade areu, (i}
Buyer shal: reimburse Selter for (e difference between (he price paid and Seller’s highest applicable marketer price in effect for the
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acen on fhe date of delivery by Seller to Buyer and (i} Seller may wke such aelion as Seller deems sppropriate, including, withowut
limliation, teeminating or pod renewing 1his Agreement.

(b} Buyer shall pay for the Products in nccordance with Seller’s paymen! terms in effect from lime lo time, any
of which may be slicred or revoked by Scller with notification 1o Buyer. Buyer shall inske ¢l pnyments In Seller without dedustion,
setaff, disepunl, allowanee, notice or dewnand, in United States doellacs via Sefler's electronie fund wansfer (“EFT™) system, unless
Selfor, in it4 sole discretion, roquires Buyer to pay via wire sransfer prior 10 he time of delivery of ok such ather lime end place or by
such other method as Seller may designate from tiime o hme, Buyer shall pravide any writien authorizations required for EFT
purpascs. I Seller requires Buyer to pay by a method oiher than EFT, Seller may agsoss 4 reusonable administration charge. Buyer
agrees (hat Tie amount of the transactions pavable 10 Buyer pursuant to Ariele 12(b) mny be vsed 1o pay the Product inveices
{including but not limited to, applicable lazes, fees, and interest) owed by Buyer to Seller sccording 10 the tertns and provisions of this
Agreement.

(c) Seller's cxiension of eredit fur the purchase of the Products, e terms under which uny sueh eredit will be
extended or maintained, and the amown of credlt exiended are subjact 10 the sole diseratton of Scller, any of which terms or pioun
may be altured or revoked with notification to Buyer. For the purposes of Seller’s cvaltulion of Buyer’s linancial condilion and
creditworthiness, upon Scller's request at any time and from time to time during the eem of his Agresinent, Buyer shall provide Seller
with tnlormalion and documents refaring to Buyer's Bnancinl condition il ereditworthiness. Il Seller elacts not te exlend Buyer
credil, or ¢leets 1o aler of revoke any extension of eredil (o Buyer, Scller may require Buyer 10 providy additional credil sssurances
including, but noi fimited to, advance cash payment, cash deposil, ictter of credly in a form sceeptable o Seller from a financial
institntion eecepiable to Selier or any other securily aceepralile to Seller.

() All overdue amounts owed o Seller will bear inlerest rom (he dale ruch have become averdue untl pakd ar
the rute of . 5% por wnum, or the witnum lawiul cate, whichever is less, IF Buyer fails 1o nmke timely payiment of any amount due
Seller, in nddition to atl other righls or remedies available 1o Sellar, Seller may tnke such action as Seller deems rensonnble under the
circumstunces. Withou| limiting the generafity of the foregoing, Seller may: {1} offset, net, or racovp amounts due Seller by Buyer for
Product invoices {including, but noi limiipd ta, appliceble tuxes, fees and interest) under this Agreement and any relaled ngreetnenty
against any amounts due Buyer by Seller under this Agreement und any relaled agreement: {23 defor further deliveries of the Products
natdl puyment of ol ovtstanding amounts is made, or (3) demand advance wire tranaler payment for further deliverics, Buyer shall
comply wil' Lhe terias of any reclamalion notice issued 1o Boyer by Seller under applicable Lav:,

4, TERM. The term of this Agrecment beging ot the Effective Dale and ¢nd. on May 31, 2012, sulject to Seller’s
right (o terminaic this Agreement in accordance with applicnbie Law. Upon expiration, this Agreemet will continue on a month-to-
munth bagis 0r no tonger than 6 monihs until the parties either sxecute 2 new agreement or Seller terminales or does not rencw thiy
Agreement in accordance wilh applicable Law,

5. PERMISSION TO USE THE IDENTTFICATIONS,

{®) Seller geants to Buyer permigsion to use Lhe Identifications only in commection with the resole of the
Products and so Jong as Buyer complies with the terms af this Agreement. Buyer acknowtedges that the Tdentilications are 2 valuable
und impereint property right and are essential w the goodwill and reputation of the Products. Buyer Jurther seknowledges Sclier's
Inlerest in tae Idenlificalions, and Buyer shall not claiin any right to v tille or intares! therelo,

{b) Buyer musi obiain Seller's pricr written authorization 1o use and divplay, or permit the use and display of,
the Identificaiions at any retall outlet, Those recall outlets approved for the Shell brand and otherwisc nuthorized by Seiler to dspliy
ths 1denlificaions are ldentified in Exhibit B, as may be amended from litne o Gmc as retail outlels me ndded and remuved from
Buyer*s Shell-branded network; provided, however, a forma! amendinent 1w Bxhibit B will nou be ncecssary and (his exhibit will be
deeincd 1 be amended autothatically by the additon or temoval of oullets from Boyer™s Shell-hrandedd network, Buyar acknowiedges
that Seller may, in its sole diseretion, approve or ol appreve any outlsl Buyer requesis Seller to brand under the Identificationg.

(c) Buyer shall follow, and cause the opcrators of Buyer's Qutlets io Mollow, afl rsles, regulntions, stuncards.
and gwidelings Seiler esiablishes from time ta thne rekating to the use and display of the Identifications.

{d) Buyer shall not use, and shall prohlbit the use by the operators of Duyer’s Qutlets ol the word "Shell™ us
pert of Buyer's or the operators’ Business Entity name. Buyer shall not use, and shall prohibit the operators of Buyer's Gutlets fram
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using, the Idertilications or (he word “Shell'” in Buye's or the oparaiors” trade style il the ust is Jikely 1 {1 crenie Ihe impressinn
that the business is cwned or operaied by Seller or {2) degoive or causo a lkelihood of conlugion to prospeetive customers,

(e} Any irangfer of a Buyar's Outlel to another Shell-branded wholesale requires Seller's prior authatization.

6, PRODUCT STEWARDSHIF AND QUALITY. Pursuant (o Seller’s permisslon gysnting Buyer vse of the
Identifcations, Buyer shall comply with, and cause the operatoss of Buyer's Qutels 1o comply with, the lollowing requireinents
relating to the mutkuiing, storage, and resule of the Products.

(&) Buyer shall not resell, nier may any operator of Buyer's Ouilets resell, gasoling to be resolé as Shell-
branded gasoline st Buyer's Outlels other than gusoline purchased by Buyer from Seller,

(1) The quality of the Products must be strictly molntained und ol adulierated, commingled, or bleided with
aty olher praducts or substances io any manner without Seller's prior written cansent,

()] AW Products nrust be clearly identified, corectly labeled, and resold under their proper Ideneificaiions aed
prades.

(i) If Buyer, or any operator of a Buyer's Cullet, purchascs, storos, distrlbutes, markets, or sellx gasoling of
diesel fugl purchased from any other supplier or unbranded gasoline or diesel Juel fiom Sctler, then adequale facilities must be
mainlained and correctly ldentified to keep those products segregated from ail of the Products and the fuel must be vorrectly idenlificd
in accordance with Seller’s standards.

(e} All signs and other adverlising dovices or malerials furnished by Sefler to Buyuer will remain Seller's
properly, n°ust be used solely in coituectéon with the resile of the Products, and must be returned te Scller immedisiely npon demind
ul Buyer's expense,

[1})] Ruyer shall obtain Seller’s prior written approval before using, or permitting the use of, any promolional
materials or pdvertising thay bear any of the Identifications.

T BRAND IDENTIFICATION AND MINIMUM STANDARDS. Buyer acknowledpes that the Identifications
repicsent to the motoring public the manufictute and sale of guakity Praducts. Buyer shall amdertake no action of any kind that may
harm or degrade the Idendfications.  Buyer further acknowledges that aniform standard: of quality and appearance mugl be
maintained al nll retail owslets displaylng the Identifications in otder to properly market and szl the Products, preserve and promote
the reputation of Seller, and achieve public neceptance of the Products. Accordingly, Buver shall comply with, and cause (he
gperators of Buyer's Outluts (o comply with, all standards of operation and appedrance established from time (o time by Selfer.
ineltxling, withow limitation, the following minimen obligations; provided, however, the meens aud the manner of performumee are
within the soic discretion of Buyer:

(a) Ruyer shafl camply with, ond eause the operators of Buyer's Outlets 1o comply with, Seller's Retail Visuad
Tdentily (“RVT"} Design Standards and Conversion guidelines or Sciler’s current image standirds pertaining (o the imuge of Buyar's
Outleis (“linage Guidelines"} as may be mmended by Sefler from time to (ime, 1 Seiler amends the Tmage Guidclings, Seller shall
provide Buvor written nolice. Buyer acknowledges rcceipt of, or has been Iformed on how b agcess, the lmuge Guidelines theough

the Internet,

(b} Buyer acknowledges receipt of, or hug been Informed on how to sceess thiough Seller's online website,
Seller's braad stancards pertnining to Seller's operations, uppearance, und cleantiness requirements ("Brand Siandards™ ss may he
wineaded by Scller from time (o time, Tf Sslier amends the Brand Stavdords, Saller shall provide Buyer nolive, At afl times durivg the
term of this Agreement, Buyer shall nwintain, and cause the operators of Buyer's Quiiets to malntain, Buyer's Qutlets in accordniee with
the Prand Stnducds.  If any Buyer's Outiet faila to meet the Brand Siandards, Seller muy revoke ils peinission 16 display the
Teleniificalions at thie Buyer’s Qutlet in accordance with Articls 24,

(a) The Products muat be diligently and efficlently merchandised and promoted at Buyer™s Outlets.
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i) The operations st Buyer's Oullets must be conducted in a professional, business-fike, ethical and morul
manner and the public must he provided with prompt, courtcons, and effictent service.

{e) Buyer shall prompily and courtecusly respond to any custoiner complaints (lnehikhing writles respanses
when appropeiale) nnd tnke i mmediate action w satisfactorily resolve each customer eomplaint,

N In order 1o operate Buyer's Quilels iv an organized end effich:nt manner, adcquate and competent
peisonnel who are able to converse in English with Seller, customers, government officialz. aud other persens, considering both he
votume and nalure of the business activity, must be mamtsined ot Buyer's Qutlets,

{g) The operators and employees al Buyer's Oullels shall wear newt, cican uniforms of a type and siyle
approved by Seller; provided, however, for uniforing with Buyer logos, such approval will not be wnreasonably wilthheid,

{h) All service work at Buyer's Onlleis thust be performed in a workmrnlike manncr utilizing only firsi-class
new malerinls and parts except when 1o customer specifically suthortzes robuilt or wsed materials o paris,

()] Buyer's Outlets must be kept in a clenn, satftary, and safe condition and all property aad equipment kepl in
good operating condition and repair. The dviveways, sidewalks, and other fandscaped areas must be kept in & neat aad orderly
appearatice frev from weeds, debris, soew, jee, and rubblsh,

L)) Buyer's Outlets may not be used for any fraudulent, unlawful, ofiensive, hazardous, unsightly. or other
objectionabie purpose, including, but nol limited 1w, the sale or display of nutenals wilh domninant themes of $ex, nudity, prutiem
inlcrest, or pormography, which are unacceptuble to Seller inn its reasonable chsceetion. Merchardise or paraphemalia, ingluding,
without limitation, iteins that may he used in conngetion with iltegal drugs, that is morally offersive or distasteful to the gencral public
ns determined by Seiler in its reasonible discretion may not be displayed or offered for sale at Buyer's Qutlets,

k) Buyer's Qullets must be kapl ceur of velicles, other mehile eqoipmunt, and obstructions that resurict traflic
Mow, endarger customer safety, or delract from appearnace. Buyer's Qutlets may nok be used to sall, leasc, ot slore molor vehicles,
Irailers, boats, or other mobile equipmant, without Seller's prior written consent,

()] Buyer's Quikeis must be operated in i Secure mannoer so that Critminal selivity is adequately deterred from
aceurring there and so that #lk persons al Buyer’s Quulets ave adequalely protecled from injuly, horm, or loss, Buyer has cowplele
conlrol over and the sole responsibility for security ar Boyer's Outlets.

B. SELLER'S MARKETING BIGHTS. Scller may, from tme to thine: a) add, change, or modify the geade,
Product brand name, delivery package, or ather distinciive designation of any Product; (b) changs or medify the formulations and
specilications of any Producl; and () upon 30 days® prior notice, discontinue al any lime the sale of any Product in which evenl the
parties will be relieved of nuy further oblipation with rospect to that Product.

% SALES AND MARKETING OBLIGATIONS.

(ay Buyér shall usc ity ressonable ¢fforts 10 develop and cetively promote the siles of Producty. Nothiog in this
Agreoment graels Buyer an exclusive terrilory to murket and resell the Praduets. Seller resrrves the tight 1o market and sel), annd
authorize others to markel and sell, the Products in any manner Seller chooses, incleding, wirhout fimitation, through its own refail
outlets or through designated wholesalers or other buyers,

{b} Subject to Articles 19 and 20, Buyer shall keep )i Buyer's Owlets suppiled on » limely basis with
suificient woluwnes agxl guantities of Produets to meel the needs and demands of all Buyer’s Quilets und their customers, Buyer shadl
maiitain, o cause W be raintained, 4 sufficient amount of all grudes of Sheil-branded gusoline and, i applicable, branded diesel fuel
al Buyer's Qullets.

{c) Buyer shall not sell, deliver, or otherwlse supply the Products to retuil vullets Seller has not nuthorized, in
wriling, Buyer to supply, Forther, Buyer shall not supply the Products 1o eny reseller who Buyer knows or has renson o know will
resed] the Praduets uader trademuarks or brand names other dhan those of Seller.
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14, TRAINING.

(&) Buyer shall allend and shall cause al) the eperators of Buyer's Ouslets to attend Selier approved training
courses and courses deemed appropriate by local management of Seller ns requested by Seller.  Sclier shall pay the costs for
instructers, traimiag raaierials, and the feillty. The raining will be conducied at a training freilily designated by Seiler.

{b) Upon Scller's roquest, Buyer shall provide proof of training for Buyur, Buyer's managers, and the operators
of Buyer’s Outleis. Buyer shall have available and wiilize tealning equipment, materinls, and programs macdle available by Seller from
time to time for traintag purposes,

{c) Buyer shall diswibote Seller’s communications relnting to training and Selier’s dratning muderinls within
90 days after receipt to Buyer's employees and the operators and employees of Buyer’s Ouleds

(d) Buyer may request that Scller npprove Buyet's tatning favilitios and courses.  If Seller apptoves such
facilities 1nd courses, the requirements set forth i Articles 10(a), g5 ke case moy be, will not b applicable.

I1. DELIVERIES,

{n) All Peoducts will be sold by Scller 1o Buyer F.O.B, ordgin (Seller’s Planl). Seller may, from time to time,
change (he ovigin pajnl to & different one by giving Buyer at least 15 days’ prior nolice o su:h shorter notice as may be jeasonable
under (he circdtmalances.

(LY Title and risk of loss passos to Huyer when the Products pass (rom Seller's delivery line into the recciving
connection of the irangpertatlon cquipment supplied by Buyer,

) Buyer shall provide or arronge delivery [or all Producis. Whether Buyer uses its own tiansporiation
cquipment 1o transport dhe Products, or engages & carrier lo do 30, Buyer or Buyer's earrier, as the case may be, shall comply with all
rutes and regulations at Seller's Plants, and shall exeente any Seller sgrecment, pertaining Lo sceess to Seller’s Plants. In addition,
Buver or the carrier, a5 the case may be, must provide evidence of Insusance (45 defined in Anticle 22) when requosted by Seller, T
Buyer, or Buyer’s carrier, doss not provide evidence of Insvrance upon requesl, Seller moy deny access to the Plant,

{d) Loading of wranspertation equipment provided by Buyer or for Buyer's sccount will be on a first-come,
firsi- served basis, AN dethurcage shall be for the aceount of Buyer except to the extent caused hy Seller’s feull,

[2. TRANSACTION CARDS.

(a) As long as Setler elects 1o accept specified eredit cards, credit identilications, debil cards, pre-paid cands,
slote-valued eurds, or other transactlon authorization cards (collectively “Transaction Cards®) bithe skide in which Buyer’'s Outlets are
located, Buyer sholl accepl, and cause the operalors of Buyec's Outlels to ncoepl, all Transuction Cerds identified in Selle®s
Transaction Card guwde (“Guide™) for the purchnse of autharlzed products and servlces. Buycr shall account for and process, and
couse the operptors of Buyer's Outlets to account for and process, all such Iransaciions in sirlel compliance with the 1arms ket forth in
the Guide, s muy he amended by Seller feam time do dme, IF Seller amends the Guide, Seifer shall provide Buyer with notive. Sclior
may asscss Bhyer a Transaction Card processing fec (which muy inclurde eny VSAT/glecommunication related charges) for providing
such services.

) Seller shall necept from Buyer afl (tansactions generatsd as a result of purchases made with nuiltorized
Trumsactivr. Cards and processed in accardance will the terms in the Guide. At Seller’s oplion, Seller shall pay the amomi ¢f the
transagtions to Buyer, after deductlng any processing fec in offect under Seller's then cunent Guide, by: (1) nelling, recouping. or
offseuting the umoont spainst Buyer's becounl with Scller; (2) a credit e Buyer's bank uccount by BFT; or (3} check 1o Bugyoer.

(c) For coch transaction not authorized, disputed by a customer, or otherwise subjeet 1o chirgeback under the
Guide, Seller inay either charge the amount io Buyer's account or require Buyer tw immedixtely refund to Selfer, including, wilhout
limsitation, rzfund by draft or BFT initinied by Seller, without any deduction for mry processing e, Seller may also charge nod eollect
{rom Buyer any fines or fees referenced In the Guide.
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«) in order (o provide efficient zervice to the motoring public, Buyer sapll comply with Sctier's soflware and
hardware siandards, established from time to time by Seller, relating to Elecwanic Polnt of Sale ("EPOS™) systems. including. bul not
limited to, Seller approved compatible hardware, cusiomer activated terminals, integrated and non-integrated EPOS syslems, and ather
requitemnca;s necessary to eleotronleally necept and process the Trunsackion Cards at all times during (he (s o this Agresment,
Buyer shall upgrade the EPOS system with any new release of e soflware within Y monthy afier notice frem Seller.

(e) Buyer shall cxecute any upplicable Se¢|ler ngreement relating 1o the use or nocess of the EPOS aystem. [
addition, if Seller loons or leases any imprinter, EPOS terminal, or other related cquipment o Ruyer in connection wilk aceeptance of
the Transaction Cords, Buyor sholk: (1) comply with the terms of the Guide; (2) execile any sppiienble Seller agreement reluting 1o (he
use of such equipment; and (3) reimburse Seller for any charges relating 1o the use of such equipment (whether third pacty or inlcrnnl}
incutred by Sellec.

{f Willioul iniling any rights or remedics available to Seblgr, if Buyer fails to comply. or nny operatoy of
Buyei’s Oullets fails 10 comply, with this arlicle o the Gulds, Seller may limit or 1erminate Buyer's or he opeior's right 10
participate in Seller's program for Transaction Cards; provided, however, IT the failure {5 techaical or immaterial, [n Selier's sole
discretion, Selier iay provide Buyer or the eperator of Buyer's Outlet, a3 the case may be, 30 duys to correct such fuilure.

{5} Yeller may terminnde its Trangaction Card program aw any time vpon nolice to Buyor,

13 INSPECTION AND AUDIT. Buyer prants, and shall cause the operators of Buyer's Cutlets o grant, Seller, iis
agents, and representatives the right (0 enter the Buyer's Marketing Premises and Buyer's Outlits a1 oH reasonable times lo jospect e
Facililtes, procedures, and materials being wsed in copneetion wilth the purchase and sule of Ik Froducts, 1o obtain samples of and
conduct lests pn Lthe Products, 1o inspect the books and records pertaining 1o the purchass and sale of the Prodicls, and to audit,
observe, und otherwisc verify Buyer's compllance with this Agresment.

14, 'TAXES. Buyer shall pay all fedeal, stale, and local exelse taxes, license fens, inspection foos, cavironmenlal fees,
and olher sinllar assessments or charges, now ar hereafier levied or assessed, by any povermmenial aulhority that Seller may be
required lo collect or pay oo lhe importntion, manufadlure, sale, purchase, rahsportation, siomge, resale, of use of the Products,
insofar as tae same is not cxpressly included in the price for the Products ("Taxes™. IF Buyer pays dircelly any such Tax vormally
temilied by Sciler, Boyer shall promptly pravide proof of puyment of such charges Furiher, Seller shall not collest, sng Buyer will not
be obligated to pay: (a) any steh Tax [or which Buyer fumishes Lo Seller a valid exeraplion cestificate or vulid fuel Heense; (b) charge
based on or measured by the et income or net worth of Sefler, or (<) any employmeni-relaied tzx, fee, or charge.

15, WARRANTY AND DISCLAIMER. Scller warrnnls that all Products sold to Buyer will mest Seller’s then
current specifications at the ime Litle to the Products transfers lo Buyoer as specified in Arficle 11, SELLER MAKES NO OTHER
WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND AS TO THE PRODUCTS SOLD TO BUYER, EITHER EXPRESS (R IMPLIED,
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE TMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE,

16. LIMITATION OF LIABILETY.

TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, BUYER’S $OLE AND HXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR ANY
CLAIM ARISING FROM OR IN CONNECTION WITH BREACH OF SELLER’S WARRANTY SPECIFIED IN ARTICLE
15 WHICH CLAIM WAS NOT CAUSED OR CONTRIBUTED BY ANY NEGLIGENCE OR FAULT OF BUYER
(“PRODIN:T DREFECT”), WHETHER THE CLAIM IS MADE BY BUYCR OR AN OPERATOR OV ANY BUYER'S
OUTLET, FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT OR WARRANTY, OR IS UNDER TORT, STRICT LIABILITY, STATUTE OR
OTHIRWISE, WILL BE; (1} AT SELLER'S OPTION, REPLACEMENT OF THE FAILED, DEFRCTIVE, OR
NONCONFORMING PRODUCTS OR REIMBURSEMENT OF THE PURCHASE PRICE THEREOF, ANI} (2)
REIMIURSEMENT OF THE REASONABLE COST OF REFAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF ANY MECHANICAL
EQUIPMENT OR PARTS THAT ARE DAMAGED DIRECTIY BY THE USE OF SUCH PRODUCTS. [N NO EVENT
WILL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES ARISING UNDER ARTICLE 15 WHETHER UNDER TORT,
CONTRALCT, SERICT LIABILITY, WARRANTY, STATUTE, QR OTHERWISE.

17. CLAIMS.
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(a} Selier witl not he Hable (o Buyer for any dolect in quality er shortage In quandity of the Products unless: (1)
Buyer gives Seller notice wilhin 4 business days after delivery for shoriages and within 4 business dnys after delivery for quaiiry
defecis {or 4 bosiness days aiter discovery i the defoet iy laten) and (2) Buyer provkies Sutler with a reasonable opportinity o
inspect, take samples, and test ihe Products that are the subject of 1he clalin,

{b) Except 08 set foeth in Article 21, claims relating 0 the Products or indebtedness, or as athcrwise specilied
i this Agreement, the porties will not be liable 1o ¢ach olher for any other clnim arising out of this Agrecment unless the cluimant
pravides ibe other party with written notice of the claim (setting forth fully the Facls on which tle alnim i3 basacy within i 80 days after
the date on which the clait arose.

18. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS,

(a) Buyer shall camply, andl cause the operatos of Buyer's Outlets to comply, with all Laws, licenses, and
permlis relating o its buginess and the receipt, handling, sworage, dispensing, packoging, tansportalion, ubeling, advertising, and sale
of the Products at Buyer’s Qutlets.

{b) Wilhot liilting the peverality of the foregoing, Buyer shall comply, md eouse the aperaiors of Buyer’s
Culiets 1o camply, with all Laws relating 1o motor tucl and luel additives s specified in Exhibil C, which Selier may amend Grom lime
1o time upon written notice 0 Buyar. Further, it Buysr o any operator of a Buyer’s Outlets owns or operalss any UST system (as
defincd in applicable Laws), Buger shull comply, and causc the operator to comply, with all applieable Taws governing UST sysiems,
lieluding bat not limited to Mnancial responsibillty requirements through mecharisms provide forin such Laws such as guarunices,
surety bonds, and Insurance.

19, EXCUSES FOR NON-PERFORMANCE. RBoth partics will be excassd from their obligations under this
Agreement for any ciroumsiance (except for financial obligations): {a) reasonsbly beyond the parties' contrel including, but nat
limled o flood, lce storm, snowstorm, earthguake, other acts of God: or (b) caused by fire or explosion: delay or loss of
transpotlation or delivery squipment; mechanical breakdown; sirikes o other laber tronble; pinnt shwidown; viols, terrorism, ucts of
war, o other civil disturbances; of voluntary or Involuntary compliance with any Law ax request of any governmental authority.

20, ALLOCATION, [T Seller, for uny reason, does not have sufficiont stpplics of the Produels to supply i
customers, then durlng any perind of short supply Seller may testrict deliveries of the Produris to Buyoer withaut Jiability and may
allocate Seller’s supply of the Producis among fts customers and classes of cuslomers which in Selier's judgment s fair and
reasonable under the clrcumstances. Aficr cessatlon of any periwd of short supply, Buyer and Seller shall prompily resume deliveries
and recelpts of the Products but shall not be ohligated to make up any deliveries or receipts no' made beenuge ol such period of short

sopply,
21, INDEMNITY,

(@) To the extent permitted by Law, Buyer shnll indemnify and defund Seller, Jis members, subsidierics,
affiliates and jolnl venture parmers, and their respective directors, officers, employees, and ayents ("Indomnified Pay™) against ol
claims, domunds, cases of sclion, sults, damagss, judgments, Tiens, penaliies, and expenses, including, without limbtation, attorueys’
fees and liigation costs, whether incurred lor an Indemnified Party's primary defense or for oiforcement of ils Indewini lication dghts
(eollectively, “Cliim™} Including, without Umitation, any Claim for harm, Injury or death o any persan, ar damage Lo properly or o
the environinent arising out of or in connection with any of te follewing matlers:

(1} Buyer's performance or nonperformsnee under this Agreement including, without limitation,
Buyer's possession, sale, (rangportation, scarage, handling, blending, snd use of the Products;
2 Any sclion or omission of Puyer or Duyer's employces, agenls, contractors, assigns, o third
parties; ang
(&3] Any event o oceurfence al o ivelving tho operation of any Buyer's Gullel.
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DUYER'S OBLIGATION TCQ INDEMNIFY AND DEFEND LXTENDS TO ANY CLAIM CAUSED BY THE
CONCURRENT OR CONTRIBUTORY NEGLIGENCE CR FAULYT OF AN INDEMNIFIED PARTY.

{b) Notwithstanding Buyer's obligations in Article 21{a), Buyer shal! indemuily ond defend the Indemniticd
Party agafnst all Claims arising sofaly at Plants owned or operated by Seller bot only 1o the cxunt of the negligenee of Buyer, Buyer's
emplayees, agents, or conbiuctors.

(c) Within a rensonable Uine aftcr any actuvrencs which may vesult 5n v Clalm, Buyer shall report the same Lo
Seller by telephons aud shull pramply thereafter contirm the same by witten notice, including ull cireumatances thercof known to
Buyer or le opermor of Buver's Outlet or (helr employees. PROMPILY AFTER RECEIVING NOTICE OF ANY SUCH
OCCURRENCE, AT RUYER'S EXPLNSE, BUYER SHALL INVESTIGATE SAIB QCCURRENCE AND RESPOND TO
AND DETEND ANY CLAIM ASSERTED AGAINST ANY INDEMNIFIED PARTY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION, ANY CLATM ALLEGING THE INDEMNIFIED PARTY’S ROLE NEGLIGENCE. The Indemnified Party
may participate it the defenye und setilement of any Claim or litigation with aworneys of the Indemnifisd Pauy’s scleclion withaut
selieving Buyer of uny obligntions under this urtiele; provided, hawever, the Indemnified Pacly will be responsible for its own
aoriey's fevs, Seller shull reimburse Buyer for 1he amount ol any judgment and reasonable defense costs puid by Buyer' which
tepresents Lhe Lotal liability found by final nonsppealable judgment to have heen caused by: (1} Ihe Indemnified Parly's sole
negligance; (2) Product Defect us defined in Article 16; or (3) the amount of liabillty aibutnbie to the negligance of Sefler, its
smployees, ngents of conlractors as specified in Artiele 21(b).

(d The logurance requirements of Anicle 22 do not limil or cestrict in uny way Buyer's obligations under (his
article.

(e Buyer's oitligations under this article survive termination or nonrene wal of ehis Agreement.

22 INSURANCE.

{a} Buyer shall maintain, at all limes under the lerm of this Agreemenl, the following insurance coverage
satislactory to Seller with lienits not less than tiose limils required below (the “Insurance™), 1¥ Buyer does not own or operiie Buyer's
Outlst, upon renewal, or when enfering inlo new agreentents with ils operators, Buyer shall require that (hese opetolors ramintain
ndecuale insaronce thal is consisteat with the fellowing cequiremenrs.

() Comemeecial Genersl Ligbility Tnsurance unnmended or Comprehensive Cencral Liability
Tnsurance with Broad Form COL endargement with limits of $2,000,000 each accurrence and $2,000,000 genernl aggregate for
Buyers owning, operatiag, or supplying up (o aud including $ Buyer's Outlets, Buyers owning, cporaling, or supplying & or more
Buver's Oullets shall amend their policy agpregue o $5,000,000. Limits In excess of $1.000,000 may be provided by Excess
Liahility or Umhbrella Liability coverage. As npplicable, Buysr shall maintain the following:

()] Liguer Lishility Tesurance (£ Buyer owns and ope raies the Buyer's Outlet und adeoholic
beverages are sold at (he location, ntilizing endorsement G 24 08, €1G 00 33, or an equivalent;

[¢th] Marine Terminal or Wharfingees Liabilily Dnsusange 1F Buyor owns and operates a
Buyer's Cuilel which is 1 marine facility, If Buyer supplies the marine facilily via watercralt the watererall exclusion must be deleled
or equivalent coverape purchased; and

(i) Garagekeepers Legul Liability if Buyer owns and operuies a Boyer’s Outlel with service
baya o ¢ur washes, with limils of not 1ass than 360,000 per accurrence.

V4] Business Automobile Linbility Insurance covering all vehicles used in the operations of the Buyer
with limits of Hability of $1,000,000 each aceident, such policy ta be endorsed with:
1] MCS-00 when hazardous mnterinl transportation jx involved:
{ii) Liability coverags for employees fest driving wustomens® mlemobiles if Buyer has
service biys; ang
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(i) Garagekeepers coveruge if Buyer has service bays o car washes.

i3 Workers' Compensation Insurange and Lonpsharemon®s' and Hadworworkers' Conpensaticon
Tiswance a5 vequired by Laws upplicable wo and covering Boyer's employges. Such Insurance: must include o waiver of subregation
in favor of Sielier where permissible by Luw,

4] Employers' Liability Insurance pioteciing Buyer agatnsl common Jaw liability, in the absence of
statutory liahility, for employee bodily injury arising out of the musler-servant relationship with a lunit o' $1,000.000 Each Accldent,
$1,000,000 Disease-Policy Limit; $1 000,000 Disease-Bach Employee. Snch Ingurance nust ivelude 2 walver of subrogation in lavor
ol Seller where permissible by Law.

{n Buyer shall assore that (fe Insurance poticics allow [or the scparalion of insureds and provida for writlen
notice of cancellatlon or matecial change, Notice of cancellation or change will not affect the Tnsurince until 30 days after written
notice is reccived by Seller. Any deduclible or relention of insoratle risks will be for the Buyer's acooint.

(e} - Buyet shall nssure that e Insurance required in this article and ovidenee of the Insumnee issued o Buyer
namcs Seller and i1y members, subsidinvies, allilistes and joint venture paciners, o the extent uf their torest, as additional insurcds,
withoul rogard 1o the allocation of Lability provisions contained in this Agreemenl, to the extenl of any cinim, Ioss or Linbility within
the scope of Ihe requiced Insurance. The pariics intend fiat, (o the extent of their interest, the status of Seller and ks members,
subsidiaries, offillales and joint venlure puriners oy ndditionat insureds will not be limited by the indemnity obllgations under this
Agreement or otherwise, Buyer shall sccure from its insurance companies and provide to Sellec, Tor all required Tosurance, am
additional ingured endarsement wilhout restrictions.

(d) At the lime of execulion of this Agreement and upon request duriag the term of this Agrecment, Boyer
shidt provide Seler with evidence of Insutance thal Buyer is in compliance with Seller’s Insurance requirements, Buyer's Influre w
provide cenificaes evidencing e Insurance requirerments or to purchase Inswrance coverage [ compliance wilh Ihis asticle will nol
retieve Buyar of its obligations in this article.

23 ASSIGNMENTS.

(n} Assignment by Buyer, This Agreement is personal o Buyer. Buyer muy not sell, tansler, assigh, or
encumber any of its interes! upder Whis Agreement, or assigh any claim against Seller arising directly or indicectly out of o in
gonnelien with this Agreement, in whole or in pari, whesher voluntarily, involuntarily, r by operathon of Law (collectively,
“Teansler”) without ifie prior writien consent of Seller, which consent wifl not be unrensonably withheld, Seller will hnve 30 days (or
any lesser period specified by Law) after receipt of Buyer’s request for Seller's consent and 0] gumlification ifarmalion regsonahty
required by Seller to provide Buyer with written notice of ilx decision to grant or wilbhold comsenl. Seller's consent 1o puy Transfer is
not » waiver of the provisions of this article as to amy fuwse transaction. Any Transfer by Buyer withioul Ssller’s prior wiltten consant
is void,

b) Sugcessor in Interest. Nolwithslanding the foreguing, il Buyer or the person cutrenily in “control” of the
ownership interest of Buyer (“vontol” being the nuthorily to dirset the operatians of Buyer and 1o have or exercise management
teeponsibili-y) dies o suffers severe physical o tenial dizability of at leass 3 wionihs which resders Buyer unable 1o perfurm all of its
obligntions under this Agreement, or it Buyer seeks to Transfer any of its interest io this Agreermen! For estate plioning pirposes,
Seller consents Lo the Transier of this Agreement, In whele of in pact, to a qualificd memher of e individuals immediate family. For
the purpases of his article g “qualified member™ includes the individual's spouse, adult child, pavent, brother and sister who is
neeeptudle 10 Seller under Sefler's current Tranafer guidetines.

() Teansfer Events. Withour limiting the foregoing, the Fallowing events constilule a Transtor:

n Subject 1o Article 23{h} above, il Buyer is an individugl asd Buyor dies and Buyer's interest in
this Agreement is transferred, whether by will or operation of Law:
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{2) Buyer becoues bunkrupt or insolvent, Buyer mikes an assinment for the beniefit of creditors, ara
proceeding is Instiluted under the Bankenptey Code, and, i il s an involuniary praceeding, Buyer or other nifected parly has not had 1
dismissed veithin 60 days;

(3) A writ of nllachnienl or execudion i levied o this Agreemuent aad is nol removed by Buyer within
30 days:

(4) A receiver is appointed with anhority to take over Buyer's intgrest in this Agreement nnd is not
removed w:Lhin &) days In any proceeding ot aclion o which Buyer is o parly;

{5) If Buyer is a parmership or & limited liability parinership, u withdrawal or any change of inierest
{voluniary, involmtary or by opesation of Law) of any partaer or the disselution of the parinenship: provided, however, a Transler of
interests between existing partnet is not a Traasfor requiring Sellac's consent:

(6} 1 Buyer is o limited fability company or a corporatton, any dissolution, merger, consolidation or
other rcorganization, ov other arrangement having similar cffect, or the Transfer by Buyer or any member or shareholder with o
contiol|ing interest or more of the voling shares af the canital stook of Buyer or of any lesser interest which cumulatively vests a
contralling inorest of such voling shares in the transleree; provided, however, il' Buyer Transfies mone than 25% of the inlerest in any
one yeae o mere than 49% of the Interest over the term of this Agraement, Buyer must oblain Seller’s consent in necordance with
Article 23(n); and

€] If Buyer s composcd of wore than one person, any change of interest (voluntary, involuniary or
by operation of Law) ol any such person.

) L | Pepdipe Sale. [ Buyer formizes a plan 10 scll, or reccives s proposal or wifer to purchase,
Buyer's busincss, Buyer's Marketing Premises, or any Buyer's Outlet, Buyer shall provide Scller ox its designee with the necessary
informalior. reluting to the propused purchase or sate te afford Seller un opportunily 1o negotiale an agreement with Buyer 1o purchase
the busincss or sssets, Upon reeeipt of the iotice, the parties shintl execute a mutually ueceptabie conlidentinlity agreement portaining
Lo the sale and Seller will have a maxismm of 30 days 10 make Buyer an offer to purchase; provided, however, Seller shutl make a
reasannble effort to respond to Buyer in less time, Buyer shall consider, bul will not be obligated ta ateept, any purchnge atfer made
by Seller.

{e) Assignment by Seller, Seller may trans(er its intorest, in whole or in part, in this Agreement,
24, DE-IDENTIFICATION OF BUYER'S OUTLETS.

(1} [f any uction is luken at aey Buyer's Oatlel thal is prohibited by this Agrecment, sy action is nol token ul u
Buyer's Gutlet that i# required or conlemplated by this Agreement, or the operalions ai a Buytr’s Gutlot sro olherwise not eondugted
in sceordance with this Agrecment, Scller inay revoke the permission Selicr granted o use the 1dentifications al that Buyer's Outled by
giving wililen notice (o Buyer. Withoul limiting the generality of the foregoing, if & Buyer's Cuutlet is abandoned. not eperated, is no
langer supglisd by Buyer, or i€:a sulficient amount of all grades of Shell-branded gaanline and, if applicuble, branded diese! fuel is not
maintained at o Buyer's Oullel for 7 consecutive days, ar such lesser period which under the facts and clroumstonees constilutes an
unreasonable period of lime, Boyer musk nolify Sefler, immediately de-identify the cutle, and then notify Scller of the de-
ientification,

1)) Promptly sfier recelving notics from Seller na specified in Artigle (e above, Buyer shull take, or shall
cuuse he operator of Buyer™s Outlet to take, ol steps necessary and uppropriale io cease the marketing mn sclling of Produots, and
otherwise using the Tdentifications, st the Buyer's Cutler. Without limiting she generality of the foregoing, at Buyer's expense, Buyer
shall, or shadl cause the operator of Buyer's Outled lo; (1) remove, und il requested by Seller, retur all signs or mierials hearlng any
of the Tdentifications mcluding, if applicable, the Lazy S canopy fascin, illuminated light bar, and the building portico unless Buyor
huy received prior approval lrom Seller to relocate the same Lo aaother Buyer's Cuollel; (2) minove and destroy, or permanently paint
over, all advertising displays, color schemes and olher materials and items bearing uny of Ihe Ideatificutions (whether used on buildingx,
ctuipment, tinks, rucks, antomabiles or stationsty); (3) retura any equipment loganed or lgased 1o Buyer for use M Buyer’s Qudlet to 2
ploce desipiated by Seller; and (4) il requested by Seller, return the primary Tdentification sign inc luding the poles and modules  u pluce
designated by Seller IF Seller provided any funds lowirds the purchase of such signage.
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{e) if & Buyer's Outlet is temporarily closed with Scller's prioe cofisent, Fuyer shall cover or vemove the
primary Identilications a1 the Buyer’s Outlet including, but not limited fo, the canopy, sireet, ad high rise siftns, and shall keep, or
cause the operator of the Buyer’s Outlet to keep, the Buyer's Qullet cleaned and maintained.

28, TERMINATION OR NONRENEWAL.

() Terinination by Seller, Subjeel to any limilations imposed by Law. Seller may terminite (his Agreement
for any of the [ollowing grounds,

(i Buyer's fallure to comply with mny provision of this Agreement, which provision s toth
reasemabte and of material slgnificance to the relationship under this Agreement;

(2) Buyer's fuilure to exect good faith efforts to carry out the provisions of this Agreement;

3 The otcurrence of an event which is relavant 10 the refationshlp under this Agresment aod 28 8
result of which tenmination of this Agreement is reasonable, including, withoul fimitation, the following events!

(i) Buyer's fraud or eriminal misconduct relevant so the oportion of Buyer's BYusinesy,
Buyer’s Marketing Premises, or Buyer's Outlets;

(i Buyer's declacation of bankruptey or judlelal determinutiun of inselvency of Buyer,

(liiy Buyer's continuing severe physicat ar mental disability I Buyer Is an individual, or if
Buyer is & Business Entity, the disability of any individua) who is currenly in “control” of the awicrship inlerest (“comtyol™ being the
autherity to dircct he operations of Buyer and Lo have or exercise management cespansibility) of at least 3 eonths that renders Buyer
unable to provide for the cantipued proper operatinn of Buyer's Markeling Premises ov Buyer's Qutlety,

iv) Loss of Sellee’s right 4o grani the right to use ihe ldentifications, which arc the subject of
the Fanchise; .

) Buyer's foiture Lo pay (o Seller in a limely manver when duc all suns 1o which Seller is
legally enthled:

(vi) Buyst*s failure to operate Buyer's Marketing Preinises for 7 consecodve days, or such
lcsser period which undey the facls and circumstances conslivates an nnreasonable perlod of o

{vii) Buycr's willful adulteration, mislabeling, or misbranding of motsr luels or other
tradecnark viclalions;

(viiiy  Buyer's knowing lailave (o ¢omply wilh the Laws relevani to the eperation of Buyer's
tisiness, Buyer's Macketing Premises, or Buyer’s Outlets;

(ix) Buyer's conviction of any felony involving meral rurpitude;

{x) Subjeet to Artiele 23(), Buyer's degih i1 Buyer s an individual, or if Buyer is a Business
Rolity, the death of any individoal who by cwrrently in “control” of the ownership interest of liuyer ("control” being the nuthorily 10
direct the oerations of Buyer and to haye or exoreise management responsibility); and

(xi) Buyet's failure lo comply with Buyer's obligalions reluting to Insurance set forth in
Arlicie 22,

{4) A detgrination is mude by Seller in good laith and in ihe normal gourse of business to withdraw
from marketing of motor fuel through retall oullets in the relevani geographic market araa in which Buyer’s Cutlels are located:
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)] Terminaiion by Seller for cunse of ury other branded Wholssuler Markeler Agreeament beiween
Buyer and Scllec; or

{6} Any ather ground For which wenvinmion is provided for in (ns Agreement ov is otherwise allowed
by the PMPA or vther applicuble Law.

(B Teminatlon After Execution. 1 after execution of this Agresment, but prior 1o the Elfective Dale, Seller has
grounds to lerninale o not renew any then existiog Wholesale Marketer Agreement berween the parties, or (o lerminule (his Agreement
us il 11 wece then in its texm, Seller niay terminate this Agreetnent, ns weil as any cxisting Wholesnle Markeler Agreciment, based on those

grounds,

() Mongenewal by Seller, Subject to any Hmitarions imposed by Law. Scller miuy nol tencw this Agreement
for any of the grounds spetified in Article 25{n) or any other ground for which nenrenewnl i~ provided for in this Agreement or bs
ollierwise a'Towed by the PMIPA or other applicable Lavw.

(4} Mutual Tenufoation. The parlics may terminale or nol rengw (his Agreement by mutnal written agreement
i the form and manmer permitted by the PMPA.

e} Acis Atiributable to Buyer. In determining whether a ground for terminmion or nonrgnowal cxdsts onder
this articie, the ects or omissions of Buyer's employces, agenls, and coutractors ore the ack: or omissions of Buyer, 1f Buyer is
comptised of more (han one perton, the acis or omissions of each such person ave the acis ov omissions of Buyer. IF Buyer is a
Business Bntty, in addition 1o those individurls mentioned ghave, the acis or omissions of each pariner, shareholder or member, as the
eage oy be, are the acts or pinfasions of Boyor,

146, RIGHTS AND BUTIES UPON TERMINATION OR NONRENEWAL.

{a) Upon termination or nonrenewal of this Agreement, Buyer shall imm:edialely cense, and cowke the operalors
of Buyer's Qutlets 1o immediately cease, marketing and selling the Producls and otherwise using the Identilicutions or wy muorks
confusingly similar therete, Without limiting the generulity of the foregoing, ot Buyers expense, Buyer sholl, or shal! cavse the
aperaiar of Buyee's Outlets w; (1} remove, and if requested by Seller return, al! sipns or materlals bearing sny af the Identifivedions
including, € applicable, the Lazy S canbpy fascia, fluminsied Gght bar, and fhe bullding porticos {2) remove wnd deshoy, o
permanently palnt over, all other advestising displays, color schemes and other matarinls and itcins bearing any of the Fdentilications
wheiler used on buildings, equipiment, tanks, trucks, mutomobiles or stationery}; (3) retuen any cquipment loaned or leased by Saller 1a
Buyer for use at Buyer's Outiels (o a plave designated ty Seller; and (4) if requested by Seller. retarn the primary Identification signs
including the poles aid modules to a place designated hy Selfer If Seller provided any funds townrds (he purchise of such sighuge.

(h) T Buyer fils for any reason (0 cesse marketitg and selling the Products or otherwise using any of the
Identifications immediately upon the effective date of terntination or nonrencwal, then Seller may enter Buyer's Murkeling Prerises
ane the Buver's Qutlets aperated by Boyer ko camry out Buyer's obligalions under Article 26{n), ul Buyce's expense. Buyer shall nol
interfere, and will not permit any of its coployces, agents or represeniatives to interfere, with Seller’s iights ender this acticle, Seller's
exercise of its right of entry will not constitute a trespass or odher Lort,

(c) If Buyer lails for afiy reasan to caose emy operdior of a Buyer's Cutlet supplied by Buyer 1o cewie
marketing and selling Products or otherwise using any of the Tdentficalions immediately upun the offective date of terminalion or
nonrencwal, then Seller may take ult necessary and approprintc action, in Buyer's name and at Buyer's expeiise, to canse tie operalor
ol that Buyer's Outlei to cense that activity,

{dy Setler will be entitled Lo injunctive und espuitalle relict for any viclation of this wiicle and Buyer shall pay
all costs und expenses, incheding, whhout limllation, reasonable attorneys' fees and ofher lognl costs Seller incrs, in enforcing this
article.

27, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR, Buyer is an independent contractor, +vd nathing in this Apreement may be
construed 05 reserving to Seller any righl w cxersise ny contred over, or o direct in my respect the conduct or management &f,
Buyer's business o operalons conducted pursuant to 1his Agreement, bul the gmite contresl and ditectlon of such business arud
operations ure and will remain in Buyer, subject only to Buyes*s performance of the ohligalions of Ihis Agresmenl. Neither Buyer noy
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aiy person performing any dutles or enguped in any work wt (he Buyer's Qutlets will be deemwd an employes or agenl of Seiler, and
niene of them is autherized 1o impose on Seller aay obligulions or linbility whaiseever,

28. BUSINESS ENTITY OR JOINT BUYER.

() If Buyer is comptised of mmote than oie persen, the obligations impesed under ihis Agreement are joint and
seyeral as 1o each person and all of the terms apply 1o ¢ach person with the same effect ag though Ihul persan were the sole Buycr.

{b) 17 Buyer is a Business Entity, all abligations and provisions of (his Agezemznt ol a persopal naturs apply as If
the Busines: Entily wese an individual and, insofar as is legally possible and reasonably practivable, W those individuals who have ov
cxercise manngemient responsbilily for the Business Extity, inctuding, without limilation. efficers. direclors or agents of corporations tel
periners of partgerahips. The Business Entity must munage its affairs with respeci to the personal ebligutions and provigions in a tnunner
50 4y to give full force and effeed ko the same,

29. ATTORNEY'S FEES, Except az provided undler Acticle 30, Seller or Buyer. us ihe cuse may he, will be entitled wr
tecover lvoun the other party rensonable atlomey®s fees and other legal cosls the prevailing party ineurs in order (o secure or protect (he
rights intiring 1o the preveiling party under this Agreement, or to enforee the terms Ihercef,

. ALTERNATIYE DISPUTE RESOLUTION.

[n} Auy atd all claims. countesclaime, demands, cauzes of action, disiules, conlrpversies and other pulicrs
arising out of or retating to this Agreement or (he elationship cstablished by this Agicement. any provision of this Agreemeny, the
ulleged breach of this Agreement, or in ony way relativg to the subject matier of Ihis Aprecinent involving the parties or their
respective representatives (*Clalm™, whether such Clalms are in conlracl, dorl, or otherwise, al law or in equily, whether provided by
slake or the common Jaw, for damages or uny other relief, if not capable of sesolution through ncgeliation by the partics, must be
submifled tn pon-binding medintion (“Mediation™ as deseribed below, Excepled from Med:ation is: (1) Selter’s determination 10
\eeminale or nonrenew this Agrecment and the franchise relationship therennder purauant to the PMPA; (2) Selled’s collection of
indebladness arising out of or reluting 1o this Agreement; and (3) any Clalm with @ monetary value of less than $20,000.00.

{b) The Mediatlon process will be conducted according 1o the following grocedure:

3] Selter und Buyer shall submil a notice of Claim {“Notlce™ 0 the other party and to the ofiice of
the CPR Imtitedo for Dispule Resolution (“CPR"), whose address is 366 Madison Avenne, New Yok, MY LO0LT7-3122, which sots

forth the dewaily of the Cleim.

{23 The Claim wwst be subrined 1o Medistion in accordance with: () (he then current CPR Rules for
Nen-Administered Mediation of Business Dispates; und {il) the provisions uf this Agreement,

(3 The: Mediation proceeding will be conducied on a confidenual basis.

{4) The Mediation will be conducted in the county in which Selfer's region office is located or In o
muiuatly agraed city, such agreement being made within 10 days ol the filing of the Notice.

(5) There wlll be one mediator, The CPR will Furnish a Panels List of 5 pulcivial medioors 1o the
parties wilhin 15 days of lhe Notice. Within [0 doys from receipt of the Panely List, each party shull designate up 1o 3 nlembers of the
Panels List in order of preferance and retum their selections (o the CPR, The CPR will have L0 days 10 notily the parties of an ugrecd
upon mediator based upon the selections fumished by the parties. If the parties are unable or (ail to ngree upon a mediator, the CFR
will sglect ane within 30 days from the fling ol the Natice. The mediator must not have any uctual ar perceived eonflict of interest
with any pazLy 1o the Agreenent, any affilinte or subsidiary of a party or their respeciive counsch.

(&) The mediator wlll order the parties te prompily exchange coples of alf exhibits and, if requested by
a parly, to produce other relevant documents, 1o answer up (o 20 interrogalories {which Lotal inciudes iy subpanis), and to respond 10
up 1o 10 resuests for admissions {which wifl be deemed admitied il not denicd within 30 days). Any additional discovery will onfy
ocenr by agreement of the parties o as ordercd by the inedintor upen a finding of yoed cause. All discovery must be completed 15
days prior to the commencement of the hearing procoss, IF any dispute ar disagreement arises with respoct to the discavery
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contemplated herein, the medlster will hear the nature of the disputo and make any rulings necded ta resalve it. The hearlag process
will be posiponed uztil all such disputes arc resolved, so that there will be o 15 day period between (he end aof discovery and the
commenceraent of the hearing process.

%] The mediator will schedule one or more hearings, ali of which will be conducted within 90 days
{rom the filing of the Matice.

©) Seller and Buyer will cach be responsible for their own personal expenses, tnd Seller and Buyer shall each
pay 50% of (he fees and costs for the engagement of the CPR and the mediator. [ advanes pityment or & deposit is required of uny
party prior to commencement of the Medialion, each party regresems aind warcants that it will timely pay and deposit this amounl.
The faiture to timely pay any amonnta requesied by the mediator or the CPR (whether i coramencement of the Mediation or
otherwise) will congtitote an immedinte and miterial cvent of defutlt of this Agreemenl. I Uhese amnounts are not timedy paid wilhin
10 business days following the defaulling party's recelpi of a wiitlen notice and demund ©© pay {issued by the mediator or 1the non-
defauling party with a ¢opy to the mediglor), the non-defaniting party muy scck to compel payment of such fecs and cosls by
inltindion ol & court proceeding.

{d) All statutes of limilations and delenses baged upon pssage of time applicable to any Cluim (including any
counterclaim or setoff) will be tatled while the Medintion is pending,

(e} In order to prevent irreparnble harm, 2 parly myy, nolwithstunding any other provision of this agreement,
seek temporary injunctive reliel from any courl of competent jurisdiction; provided that the party seeking such relief (if Mediation hay
nat alrencly been commenced) simultaneousty commences Mediation,

[O) The provisions of this artlele survive any expiration or leomination of thig Agreement.

() BY EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, EACH PARTY IS AGREEING TO HAVE ANY
APPLICARLE CLAIM SUBMITTED T¢ MEDIATION AS SET FORTH MERLIN, AND EACH PARTY
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES TO COMPLY WITH THIS REQUIREMENT PRIOR TG INITIATING LITIGATION
OR OTHER COURT FROCEEDING, IF ANY PARTY REFUSES TO SUBMIT TO THE MEDIATION PROCESS AFTER
AGREEING TQ THIS PROVISION, SUCH PARTY MAY BE COMPELLED TO SUBMIT TO THE MEDIATION
PROCESS. BUYER CERTIFIES THAT IT HAS READ AND UNDERSTANDS THE FOREGOING AND AGREES TO
SUBMIT ALL AFPLICARLE CLAIMS TO THE MEDIATION PROCESS.

1. NOTICES,

(a} Excepl s olherwise specified in this Agreement, all notices must bt in wriltag, addressed to the parlics 45
specificd below und in complionce with the PMPA und oilier applicuble Luw, Subject to any coyuirements ol Law, uny notice
tincluding price notifications) may be given to Buyer by personal servige or by electronic mail or W cither party by cerilfied muil.
regular maitl, facsimile, or overnight or local courier. Notice will ke decmed given when: (1) Jeposited in the U.8. Mail, postage or
charges pre-prid und directed Lo the parly For whom intended a the address in this Agreement o such other address as directed by the
party upan wrilten notice o the other i given by certilied mait or regular mall; (2) depasited with the dispuiching ngency, postage or
charges pre-paid and directed to the party for whom intended al the address in this Agrecment or such other nddreay as directed hy the
patty upon writien nalice to the other il given by overnight o local courier; (3) confirmation is roceived by he sending paaty if given
by facsimiiz: or (4) Seller is electronicully notificd by its cloctronic mail provider or progam of delivery to Buyer if given by
clectronic minil,

- 15 Ruy 2007/04/28 (W201)
Wholesale Barkeler Agrecment

4912




by All noitees must be addressed to the parties as follows:

I¥ 1o Buyer;
5dp'?§wmﬁﬂ W
FRIL. MoppEuT?
ool N Sefadake Bl B IS
Seeftsdule A2 ER7H~ 2710
Artng  Mirk  JeARANLLAS
FAX:  4fo 272 e
E-MAIL: _Fﬂ.-a,\,{t_@ ¢ Sy A v

IF ter Seller

Shell Oil Produeis US
12700 Northborough Drive
Hauslon, Texas 77067
Antns Peilail Admbniscation
PAX: 281-775-5060

<) ¥F Buyer iz a Business Enlily, Selier moy give notice to: (1) any officer ar dircctor of 4 corporation or
limied Lability company; (2) any partner of a partnership or Hmited liability partnership; or (32 any personal representutive, agenl, or

employae of any other Business Enlity.

(dy To enable Seller to send notices ang communications w Buyer by elecironic wnnil: (1) Buyer qwsd have
access to a computer that meels Seller’ s specilications i effect from lime (o (ime: (2) Buyer nest have necess w the internel; ond (3)
Buyer shall have ot a1 times during the tetm of (his Agreement an aclive E-mail address und Buyer shatl prompify advise Sciler of

such address and of any change thereto.
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az GENERAL PROVISIONS.

{a) This Agreement a5 of the Effective Dale hereof cancels and supersedes ll prior and contemporimeons
weprescntalions, inducements, agreements, commitments, und undertakings with respect to the subjeet matler of this Agreemenl.
e4cept those writlen agreements relating to any indemnification, retmburseiment, indettedness, ur dobt security ebiigations {inchuding,
but not limized to, any secuclly inteteal, securily agreement, puaranty, morlguge, deed of trust, promissory note, or UCC fifing).

(b} Hxoepl as expeessly provided under this Agreement, ofl amendiments and supplenents 10 this Apgreement
must be jo writing and slgned by both parties.

(c) Any wiiver of any provision of this Agreement must be in willing signed by the pudies. Either purly's
detay ov fallure to enfarce any provision of Ihis Agreament or any course of dealing or trare cusior or usage witl nol operate as u
waiver of compliance wilh thal provision or a waiver or estoppe] of the parly's right to etiforce uny olher provision of this Agreemenl.

@ The provisions of this Agreement swe severable. I any provision of this Agreement is, for any yeason,
invalid et unenforceable, the Teiining provisions of this Agreemenl ure valid and enforceable if the basic intent of the pardies is still
capable of being achieved.

(e} This Agrecment {5 binding upon and enforccable agninst tho pmiics' respeclive suceessors, peninited
assignees, lzgal representatives, exceulors, adminisirators, heivs, and legadees.

() Neither this Agreement nor sy subsequent agreemenl amending or supplementing (his Agrecment is
binding un!zss a duly nuthorized representative of the partles stgns the Agreement, amendment, or supplement.

(2) For the purpose of Articles 32(b), (&} and (1), sigratures and wellings in an electronic Toxm do nol conxtitie
or crente 4 writing signed by a party,

(h} Excepl 1o the extene that the PMPA requires the mandatory applicalion of the Law of atother jurisdiction,
this Agreenent is subject to and governed by the Law of the State of Texas, wilhow giving effeat w principles of canflicts of Liw thut
would resnlt n the application of the Laws of another jurisdiction.

(1) By entering inta this Agreement Buyer is not releasing or wuiving any right ss a condition of entering into
this Agreeragnt by the provisions of Scction 2805(( of the PMPA that: (1) Seller is prohibiled from reguiring Buyer to relonse or
waive; or {273 that Buyer cennot lawfully waive under state law.

Executed on the date shown: below.

SUPERPUMPER INC
HRuayer Shell Of) Praducts US
Setler
By: %4‘/ By:
14 _ Churles G. Whitlock
Title: Pt — Titler  Supervisor Conlracts & fycentives

Date: 6. %67 Daie: G)/} / !/ { D;? —
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riless atherwise indicated below, the spproximate monthly quanlitizs of the Products will be 172" oF the annual Gascline

Minimon: and Max i Quaditities.

EXHIBIT A-1

GASOLINE MINIMUR/MAXIMUM QUANTITIRS

Wholesale Mnrkeier Agreenent

YEAR |} Totnl annond Minimum: 13,125,000 allons
Totel annual Maximum:  24,413,0HK gulions
Monthly Quantitics {gallons)
Mouth/Year Minimum Maximum fMonh/Year ‘Minimutn Muximum
__Jamry ‘07 July ‘07 1,875,000 3,487,000
February 07 August *07 1375000 3,488,000
March, ‘07 Septemaber ‘7 1,875,001 3,487,000
Apxit ‘07 Qclober *07 1,575,000 3,488,000
viny 07 Navember *07 1,875,008 487,000
June 407 1,875,000 3,488,000 December ‘07 1,875,000 3,488,000
YEAR 2: Tolal pmual Minimom: 23,616,000 gallons
Telal annual Maximum: 43,932,000 gallons
Manthly Quaniiites (gallons)
Month/Year Minimwin Muxlmum Month/Year Minimum Maxlrvum
January ‘08 1,968,004 3,661,000 July 708 1,968,000 3,661,000
Februgry ‘08 1,968,000 3,661,000 August ‘08 1,968,000 3,661,000
March ‘08 1,968,004 3,661,000 Septeniber 08 1,968,(H4) 3,661,000
Aprill 08 1,%68,000 3,661,000 Qctoher ‘08 1,968,000 3,661,008
My 08 1,968,000 3,661,000 Novemher ‘08 1,958,000 3,661,000
June ‘08 1,968,008 3,661,000 December ‘08 1,968,000 3,661,000
- 18- Bey 200700428 (W201)
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EXHIBIT A-1

GASOLINE MINIMUMMAXIMUM QUANTITIES

(Continued)
YEAR 33 Total anaual Minimum: 24,804,000 gadlons
Tolaf anovat Magimum, 46,128,000 gallons
onthly Quantilies (gallons}

J__“M,@gllﬁﬁﬁ? - tinimum Meximum ) Month!‘i’ear Minimum Maximumn
Janirary ‘B9 2,067,000 3,844,000 Juiy 09 2,067,600 3,844,000
February ‘09 2,067,000 . 3,844,000 Angusl ‘09 2,067,000 3,844,000
Marveh '¢9 2,067,000 3,844,000 Septembor 0D 2,067,000 3,844,000
April W09 2,067,000 3,844,000 Orctober '09 2,067,000 _ 3,844,000
ay ‘99 2,067,000 3,844,000 Novernber 109 2,067,000 3,844,000
Jume '09 2,067,000 3,844,000 Drecember ‘09 2,067,040 3,844,000

YEAR 4t Toral ancrual Minimum: 26,040,000 gallons

Total smnugl Magimum: 48,444,000 gallons

Monihly Quantitics (galions)
Montl/Y ery hinimurm Moxinin Montly/Yenr Mininium Maxdrutn
Janvary ‘50 2,110,000 5,037,006 July *10 2,170,000 4,037,000
Febrpary ‘10 2,170,000 4,037,00¢ Auguat ‘11 2,170,008 4,037,000
March ‘16 2,170,100 4,037,610 " Seplember ‘10 2,170,000 4,037,400
April V10 2,170,000 4037000 Oetober 110 2,170,000 4,037,000
Muy 10 2,170,000 4,037,400 November ‘10 2,170,001 4,057,000
June "10 2,170,000 4,037,000 December ‘10 2,175,000 4,037,008
-19- Rev 2007/04/28 (W201)

Wholcsule Markeicr Aprecment

4916




EXHIBIT A-1

GASOLINE MINIMUM/MAXIMUM QUANTITIES

{Coniinued)
YEAR 35: Totnl anuwl Minimum; 27,348,000 gallons
Tolal anntusl Maximun: 50,856,000 patlons
Munthly Quantitics (gallons)
| Mantlytear Mindmuom Maximum Month/Year . Minimum Maximnmg
Januaey ‘11 | 2,270,000 4238000 July *Li — 2,279,000 4,238,000
Tebruary 11 2,270,004 4,238,010 Avguoel *11 2,279,600 4,238,000 |
Mareh <11 2,279,004 4,238,000 | _ Seplember ‘Il 2,279,000 4,238,000
April 1t 2,278,000 4,238,000 October ‘A1 — 2,579,000 4,238,000
May 11 2,278,000 4,238,000 Noyvembor *11 2,279,000 4,238,000
June 11 2,279,000 4,235,000 Recember f11 2,279,000 4,238,000
YEAR 6 Total annual Migtmum: 1,960,040 gullons
Total annual Maximum; 22,250,000 gallons
Maiuthly Quantirties (gallonsy
Monlh/¥ car Minismumn Maxiniuni Mont /Y ear Minimum Hipxdnunt
Jpnuary 1% 2,392,000 4,450,000 July '12
Fehruary ‘12 2000 4,450,000 August F12
March ‘12 292,000 4,450,000 Septomber ‘12
April ‘12 2,392,000 4,450,000 Oetaber “12
May ‘12 2,392,000 4,450,006 November F12 R
June 12 Decembey f12
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YEAR It

YEAR 2;

YEAR 3

YEAR

YEAR 5:

YRAR &

EXHIBIT A-2

DMESEL MINIMUMMAX TMUM QUANTITIES

Towal annual Mintsnum;
Total snnual Maximum:

Tatal annual Minimwm:
Total annual Maximum:

Tatal annual Minimum;
Tatal annusl Maximum:

Tatal ponual Mininum:
“Tolal annual Maglivum:

‘Tatal anhoal Minimum:
Tatal annual Maxima;

Tolal anmaal Minimurm:
Totat annual Maximum:

o

=

= o

=R

-2

gallons
gallons

gallons
gollons

gullony
gellons

galtons
gallons

gallons
pailons

gallons
paflons
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FXHIBIT B

BUYER'S QUTLETS

SAP Aceount No.  SAP Accownd No.
Ship Loz Sold Le: DUYER’S OUTLET ADDRESS
421709 421735 13240 N SCOTTSDALE RD
SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85254
421740 421733 15550 N THOMPSON PEAK PEWY
SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85240
42174 421733 15752 N FRAMK LLOYD WRIGHT BLVD
SCOTTSDALE, AZ #5260
471742 421733 21015 N CAYE CREEX RD
PHOENIX, AZ 85024
421743 421733 23609 N SCOTTSDALE RUAD
- SCOTTSDALE, AZ B5255
421744 421733 4740 EDYMAMITE BLVD
CAYE CREEK, AZ. £5331
421743 421733 4934 E SHEA BLVD
SCOTTSDALE, A7 B5254
42{ 144 421733 6324 E GREENWAY ROAI}
SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85254 .
421747 421733 704 E GREENWAY PKWY
PHOENIX, AZ R3022
421748 421733 Bad6 E FRANK LLOYD WRIGHT BLVD
SCOTTSDALE, A7 R5264
421749 421733 3900 E SHEA BLYD)

SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85260
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EXHIBIT C
REGULATION OF FUELS AND FUEL ADMTIVES

fuyer shali strictly comply, and cause the cperators of Buyei's Qutlets to strigily comply, with the regulations of the
Environmental Protectlon Agency ("EPA") promulgated as Part 0 - REGULATION OF TUELS AND FUEL ADDITIVES, of
Chapier 1, Title 40, Code of Federal Regolations {"C.FR."}, and with any applicable state regulations covering the Products, as
amended [rowm time 10 time {the "Regulallons™), including, but sot limited (o, these oblipntions set forth below, “Gusoling,” “Diesel
Fuel,” ond other termg used In lhig exhibii have Lthe same meanings as defined in the Regulations. With respect (o the Buyers’ Outlers,
Seller and Buyer agree as follows:

(a) Scller's Responsibilities, Seller may:

{1 Continuing for the pesiod as Seller, in Seller's sole judgment, deems sppropriate, ke periodic sanples
from the Produet dispenser(s) al Boyer's Outlets or from other buyers supplied from the same Plant and test such samples 10 determine
whether the Products ave in gompliance with the Regulations, Any such sampling and icsting will not relieve Buyer of uny obligativn
Tuyer has uader (he Agreetmenl or by 1.aw 10 sell, dispenss and olfer for sule oniy Products complying with the Regulations,

2 Glye prompl notice and details o Buyer (by telephone, followed by lormal noljce] if any test pecformed
undar (1} above, ot thiough other circumstances krown 1o Seller, indicules that the Product inventory al a4 Buyet's Outlel is not in
compliance with the Regulations, Seller shall coupernte with Buyer in nny farther action taken that is tiecessary (including pomp out)
to restore the availability of complying Products, The cosis of any such further uction, includiug Farther ssmpling und esting, will bo
ul Buyer's expense if the cavse ol contamination was within Buyer's control.

b Buyci's Responsibilitics.

{H No unleaded Shell-branded gasofine may be niixed with any gasoline containing leund anti-knock agents.
Unleaded Sheii-branded gasoline may not be sold as any unleaded Shell-branded gagoling that i+ mixed with lend enti-knock agenls.

{2} No leaded gasoline {i.c, gasoline comaining unlawiul amounts of tead or phaspliorusy will be intcoduced
into any mpdor vehicle which is labeled "UNLEADED GASOLINE ONLY™ or which is equipped with # gasvline tauk filler ivler
which is designed for the introduction of unleaded pasoline only,

{3} Gasoline may not be sold, ofiered for sale, supplied, dispensed, offered for supply, wansporied, or be
caused to be lransported, in which the Reid Vapar Pressine exceeds the legaily applicable stindeed or where Lhe oxygen conlent is
below Ihe legally applicable standard. Buyer shafl not sell, offer for sale, dispenss, sapply, offi for supply, or anspurt welormulaled
gosoline which s below the legally applicable standard vader dhe Law for the geographicat wea and time potiod in which sach
gusoding is inlended 10 bo dispensed to motor vehicles.

(4} Diesel fuel for uso in molor vehicles may not be sold, oflered Tor sale, supplicd, dispensed, offercd for
supply, runsported, or be coused Lo be (ransported, tatess the diesel fuel () cither bas a sulfur content, no greater than 15 parls per
million {ppm) or & sutiuc contenl of 500 ppim, o the extent allowed under federal and siate wwgulations, (5 has a celanc index of al
feast 40, or a maximum atomalic contem of 35 volume percent, (ili) is fres of visible evidence: of the yellow selvent 124, and {iv) 1s
free of visihle evidence of the dye solvent ved [64 unless it is used in g manner that is Lix-exempt as dedined undex seetion 4082 of the
Internal Revenue Code. 1f Buyer onby sells, offers for sale, supplies, dispenses, ur offers for supply diesel fuel with a sulfur content of
500 ppin, Buyer may downgrade {$ ppm sulfar content diesel fuel up lo 20% of the tatst diescl product gold during cach compliance
period 1o the extent allowed under federal and state regulation. In additlen, diesel fuel for use in motor vehicles may nat be sold,
offered for sale, supplied, dispensed, offercd for supply, eansported, or caused 1o be tinsporied for use in Texas aflecled coumties
deslgnated in 30 TAC § 114,319 unless the diesel Fuel meets thie following Fexas low emisslon diesel fue! (LED) slandards: (¥) either
hos & maximein sromatic hydrocarbon content of 10% by volume per gallon, or complies wilh the Designated Allernailve Liwdt
(DALY in 30 TAC § 114,313, and {ii} has a mintmum cetane ndex of 48; (jii) or in the allermmive, meets other approved complisnce
options identified in applicable Texas regulations for LED.
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(5 Gasollne tmay not be kold, offered for sale, suppiied, vfiered for supply, transpotied, or be ¢aused @ be
wansported, unless sueh gasoline is addilized in aceordance with the requirements of 40 C.RIL sectlon 80,161, as vy be nmended
Irpm limpe Lo time.

{6) Buyer shall use 10-micron particulue onty filters for alcohol-blendid (uels and use |0-micron particulate
onty ot 10-micron paricwlate and hydvosord type filters for won-alcobe! blended fuels, A water management provedure for
muinlaining lank water boltoms below 1% must be implemented for tanks storing elechol blended fucls. lu some states, Lank waley
hottorns must be maintained below @ 10 7, and it is the Buyer's vesponsibility 1o ensare complinmee with applicable state
Tegulalions for water management procedures for tnks.

[¥)] An oversight complimce program muyst be established and enforced 1o assurs thal Buyer and the operators
of Buyer's Outlcts, and their respective empleyees or agents, and third parties (focluding the employces, agenls or conlractors of

Buyer} will not cause, allow, or permit the gasoline or diesel 1o not be In compliance with the: Regulalions or becoms contaminutel

wiih any other gascling or diesel [el praduct ov Foreign substance, ot any time affer delivery by or for Seller tor Ruyer. The oversight
program must include periodlc sampling and testing of the Product invenlory; securing the manhole covers, Nl line cops and
dispensers to avoid suthorized entry or use; and supervising and instrueting those employecs snd ollicrs baving access (o the pasoline
or diesel fund sysien regarding proper procedures to prevent the Products from becoming nos-compliant with the Regulations and o
prevent contaminnatlon of the Products.

(%) Buyer shall glve prompr noties and details (o Solfer (by iclephone 1o Seller's Region affice) of (i} Ihe EPA’s
or stulc ngency's laklng a sample of any Product at any Buyer's Outlsl 1 test for compliance with the Regulations anel (i} the verbal
or wrilten mceipl of any lest resulls feam any such sampling,

) Buyer shall give prompt nutice and detaits lo Scller (by telephone to Scller's Region office, ollowead by
lormal natice) of any circumsiance or occurrence at & Buyer's Outler which rcasonably could cause the Products or dispensing
equipment to not be in compliance wilh the Regulations. Upon discovery of tiny sueh condition the Products may not be sokd,
dispensed, or offered for sle until Seller and Buyer can mutuatly determilng by sampling, {esting, or other mears whether the Product
is in compliance and, if found Lo be not in compliance, ke such further action 88 is necessary (including pump out) 10 r¢store the
avuilability of a complying Product. The sampling, testing, or further action will be a1 Buyer's expensc if the cause of conta mination
was withn the eontrol of Buyer or the operater of Buyor's Outlet,

(107 Buyer shall oblatn, properly aftix, and mafutain all Presfuci labels required by Law to be allixed of Buyes's
Ountlel, includiog gusuline and diesef fue! pump island und dispenser labels.

(113 Ifthe Laws relating to UST systems or (hose set forth In this exhibit are not camplied with by Buyer gv any
operator of i Buyer's Quilet, based upon evidonue suisfactory te Seller, Seller may, in addliton 10 ather rights or remedles avallable 1o
Scller, suspend deliveries of the alfecled Products 1o Buyer and enter Buyet's Quilet to take R-ich appropriate action, in Seller’s sole
judgment (including padiocking the pump dispensers), to avold any violaliou of this Agrement or the Regulations,

{12)  Duyer certifies thal Buyer has read, understonds, and is fully informed of the relevant Repulations
periaining (o the Produgls, and Buyer shall, and shall cause the operators of Buyer's Outlets (o, fully compiy with the provistons
thereol wheiher ar nol such other obligalions re referred 10 or restated in this Agreement.
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WHIOLESALE MARKETER
FACILITY DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE FPROGRAM AGREEMENT

RTL, Raze & ltebuitil, Superaite,
Rehub & Competitive Acgubltion

Propram Agreement No,: 330045-CC
BUYVER
Wholesaler {"Buyer") Name: SUPERPUMPER INC
Buyet’s Address; B89 E SAN ALBURTO DRIVE, SCOTTSDALE, AZ B3258

Sold To No,: 421773
BUYER'S OUTLET
Address: 704 E OREENWAY PEWY, PHOENIX, AZ §5022

Buyer*s Oullel Ship To No.: 421747

Type of Project: Competitive Conversion

TINS FACILITY DEVELOPMFENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM AGREEMENT ("Agreement”} is ente ed into as of the date of’
the Iast signalure to this Agrecment ("Effectve Daie"} between Buyer and Motive Enterprises LLC { "Selier*), The panties agrre s follows:

I. IMPROVEMENTS.
{n) Buyer, ot Buyer's solc expenss, shall make those impravements to Buyet®s Outlot speified in the Facility

Bevelopment Incentive Program Application {“hnprovemenls™) incorporated Into this Agreement by reference and flencified ns Exchibit A In
accordance with Seller's Brand Standards. Any devintion from the Brand Standards requires Seller's prior written approval,

(b Ruyer shall ohiain sl permls, npprovals, licenses, unll variances nocessury for the constraciion of the
lenprovermens and shall comply with all laws, ordinances, and regulations peraining thereto.

(<) Withiin 10 days alter completion of the Tmprovements, Puyer shall requeat Seller’s apyrosal of the Impravemenis
by conacting Buyer's sales consuitant, Upon Scller’s verification that the Improvements have been consiructed jr confonmancs with the

ScHer's Brand Stundurds, Selber shall noiily Buyer of Sclier’s approval thereof.

R FAILURE TO COMPLETE. If Buyer fhils 10-comphote the Improvenients within the tme perjod speciiied In Txhibit A,
this Agreement aulomatically terminates without nutice unless Seller has approved an extension [n writing.

3 INCENTIVES. Commencing (he montk following Seller's approval of the Improvements ("Incentive Commencemes
Date"}, Seller shalt comuncnce poying Buyer a monthly incentive paytnenl over the period of tinue specified in Exhibit B {*Reimbursemem
Period") based upon the Reporied Yolume (as defined below) multiplicd by the incentive rate specified in Exhibit B. Seller shal) pay this
montlily incentive provided Buyer ssiisfios the requirements under Arlicles 4 and 5,
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4. INCENTIVE PAYMENT REQUIREMENTS.

{a) Buyer's Oullet must remaln bramded Shell il be open for business for the resale of Shell branded gasoline
{“Producis™).

[10)] Buyer's Outhl must meet Seller's image and sppearznce guidelines as specified in the Wholesale Markeier
Agreement ("WMA"} and continue lo moet those guldelines.

(¢} Buyer shall purchase from Seiles the Minimum Guantitles of Froducts pecified In the WMA.
{d) Buyer and Seller must have a current (incxpired) WMA,

5. REPORTED VOLUME. Within 20 days aiter the ¢end of each month, Buyer shall repori lie volume of Producls
delivered 1o or sold a1 Buyer's Ohlet through the Seller’s Volume Entry system, or other system as designated by Seller (Reporied
Yolumc").

[ BRAND COMMITMENT - TERM. Buyer's Gutlet must remain branded Sheli for 168 full moniths from the Incentlve
Commeacemeit Date (*Brand Commivnent), The term of this Agreement expires when Buyer fulflils the Brand Commimment unless
turminated pursuant to the lemms of this Agroement.

KA TAXES AND TAX DISCLAIMER. Duyer thall pay all ineome ond other iax, [T any, assovisied with the ineenlives
paid hy Scller to Buyer under this Agreement. The execution of Agreement s not a represeniation by Seller that this tronsaction will be
charscterized ax » loan or otherwise. Each parly has the responsibility 1o consult with its awn tax advisors w determing the approprinte

characterization of chis trunsnction for mx purposes.
8. DEFAULT.

(o} i prlor o the expimtion of the Brand Commitment Buyes's Outlel it debranded, this Agrecment is terminated, of
o WMA |5 temaltnuted or not renewed “Defaull Event™), Buyer shall peimburss Seller, within 30 days of Seller's weittan notice, as follows:

() If there are 48 nicnths or more of the Brand Comniiment remaining a1 the time ofthe Defaslt Event,
Uren J06% of the incentives pald 10 Buyer.

{2) IT'thare are less thuy 48 months of the Brand Commitment remuining st te time of the Dofault Rvent,
tien a sum thal is equal 19 the pumber of full months rermaining in the Brand Commitment Grom the date of the Default Event to expiration
of the Brand Conunitmeal {“Defoult Months®) divided by the wisl number of months in the Brand Commitment, multiplied by the

incentives paid to Buyer.

Example: Incentives prid (o Buyer up to Defauft Event = $100,060
Brand Commitment = 16§ monihs o
Months from Incenilve Commencement Date to Default
Event ~ 144 months .
Remalning months from Defauli Event to ead of
Hrand Comm|ment = 24 monihs ]

Default amonunt 247168 months X $100,000 = 514,000 = Default Asnount
caleulniion:

(b) If Buyer falts to comply with the incentive payment requirements in Articles 4(b), 4(c), cr4{d) above, Seller will
cease paying Buyer the monthly incentive paymen commencing the month of Buyer's noncornpliance. Thereafter, if Buyer comes Inio
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campliance, the followlng moath Sclier will resume paylng Puyer the monthily incentive payment for the remainder of the Reimbursement
Period provided Buyer remaing in compliance with the requirements in Anicles d(b), 4(c}, and 4{d}.

() 11 Buyer fails to timely repon the vohene us requlred under Articke 5 above, Buyer witl not reccive the monthily
Incentive payment for the applicable month.

(d) 17 Seller inspects Buyer’s Quilel or books and n:cords as provided in Article § below sl reasonably detarmines
that the 1ales of ihe Products frem Buyer's Outlet do not reasonsbly approximate Buyer's Reporied Vohime plus luventories of Producis el
Buyer's Outiel, Buyer shall reimburse Seller, within 30 days of tho date of Selles’s notice, all of the [ncenitive monics pald to Buyer and
Seller may terminaie this Agreemen,

5 RECORDS AND RIGHT TO INSPECT. To lhe exiznt reasousbly nicossary 1o observe and verify Buyer's compliancs
with this Agreement, Buyer grants 1o Selier, or shall cause the operator of Buyer's Outlet Lo prant t Seller, pennission to enter and to
irapect Duyer's Outles, including the dispenscr melers, and to examine the books ahd rocords as they relate to the sale and purchase ofthe
Products at Buyer's Gutlet. Buyer, or the operstor of Buyer's Qutler, as the case may be, must keep theso reconds for the term of 1hix

Agreemend.

10, THANSFER OF FUNDS, Pursuant (o wuthorization geanied Seller under the Electronic Funds “Iransfer Agrecment
{“EFT") between Buyer and Stller, Seller may pay Puyer the monthly incentive payment, and niay colicct rom Huyer nay amouats dus

Saller under this Apreement, by EFT.

1. SETOFFE. 1f Buyer fails \o make 1imely payment of atiy amourst due Seller under this Agreement, thit WA, ar any other
ayreement bepween Buyer and Seiler, then, i addition to ol) other dghts or remedios evailablo, Seller may setoffor uquitably iccoup against
any amounl e due Buyer under this Agreement, the WA, or any other agreement between Buyer and Seller,

12, TERMINATION. This Agreement automalically terminnics withoul notice T the WMA is teaninited, not rencwed or
Boyer's Cutlet Is debranded. Buyer's reimbursemeat obligations under this Agreement survive termination of tos Agreement,

13.  ASSIGNMENT. Duycr mey not nssign lts righis or obfigations under this Agreement without Seller’s prior written
eonsent.

14. ENTIRETIES/MODIFICATION/WAIVER. Thia Agreement canccls and supersedes all prior aid comemporanious
representations, inducements, ngreements, commioments, and underiakings with respect tothe pubject rstter of ths Agreement, except tose
writien agreements relating o any Indemnification, relmbuorsement, ndebiedness, or debt security obligations (including, bul not limited 10,
any security interest, securily agreement, guaranty, motgage, deed of trusl, profalasory note, or LICC flltng). Any walver of any provision,
or modification, of this Agreemcrit musi bie in wiitlng signed by the paties. Eliber party's delay or failure Lo enforce noy pravision of this
Agreement of any course of deallng or trade custom or usage will not operate es 2 wajver of compliance with Uiat provision or 8 waiver or
ostoppel of the pasty's right w enforco any other provision of this Agrecment,

15. REMEDIES,  The remedies 3ct forth in this Agreetiient nre not exclosive but are cunsoletive and in addirion to all
other pights knd remedies provided by law or equity including those under the WMA.

1 ATTORNEYS® FEES.  Selier will be entitled ta recover from Buyer reasonable stlomeys® fees iond other legal costs
Selter incurs in order tu secure or protect the righta tnwring 1o Seiler under thls Agreement, or to enforce the terms theref.
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17 APPROVALS. Neither this Agreement nor any subsequent agreement smending or supplementing this Agroement is
blding unless a duly suiborized representative of Seller signs this Agresment, amendment, or suppleent,

Exccoted on the date shown below.,

SUPERPUMPER [NC

Huyer

By — R
Tile: ____________,_._Q_.___,_,_
Dale: ——

ol

Shell Oll Products US

Manager Contracts

LY Ty

Rev 2003/07/01 {F321)
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EXHIBIT A

FACILITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM APPLICATION
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EXHIBIT B
FACILITY DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM AGREEMENT
This Exhibit B is made & pan of the Facility Development Incentive Program Agreement & 330045-CC balween
SLUPERPUMIER INC (*Buyer”) and Sholi O3 Products US peneining to Duyer's Dutlet located m 704 1, GREENWAY PKWY,
PHOEMIX, AZ $5022,
Sold To Na.: 42i733
Buyer's Outlel Ship To No.: 420747
Location No.; 17053
Caiepury: Compoiitive Conversion
Actual Construction Cost: § N/A
Maximum Ineentive N/AS § N/A

incentive Ruete/Relmbursement Periud/Buyer's Cruthet Monthly Projected YVolume

Start Month | End Momb Tuel Type Rufe (S/gal} | Projecied
1 Volume |
AN Y 7 “MOGAS 0030 120,000
SUPERPUMPER INC
Buyer Shell I Producis US
Seller
Ly — e e BY e e et ¢
Allen Gimd1
Title: . Titte;  Manager Contracts

Daie: N Dale: __;/Z_-f/ﬁ_" e

Rev 2005 12/0) (FF325)
Exhibli B-- FDIP 2003
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MASTER LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS MASTER LEASE AGREEMENT (this “Lease™) is made as of day of
June, 2007 (the “Eifective Date™), by and between SPIRIT SPE PORTFOLIO 2007-3, LLC, a
Delawate limited Hability compeny (“Lessor”), whose address is 14631 N, Scottsdale Road,
Suite 200, Scoftsdale, Atizona 852342711, and SUPERPUMFPER, INC.,, an Arizona
corporation (“Lesgee™), whose addiess iz 6451 § Virginia Street, Suit 306, Reno, Nevada 89511.

In consideration of the mutnal covenants and agreements herein contained, Lessor and
Lessee bereby covenant and agree as follows:

1. Certain Defined Terms. Capilalizod tams not defined herein shall have the
meanings set forth in Exhibit A hereto.

2, Lease of Properties; Use. In consideration of the Rentals and other Monetary

. Ohligations to be paid by Lessea and of the other ierms, covenants and eonditions on Lessee’s

pait to be kept and performed, Lessor herehy Jeases to Lessee, and Lesses hereby takes and hires,
the Properties, subject to the Permitied Encurabrances, all Legel Requirements (including any
existing violation thereof), and the condition of the Properties as of the Effective Date; pravided,
however, that the recital of the Permitted Encumbtances herein shall not be construed as & revival
of any Peimitted Encumbrance which may have expited or been terminated. During the Lease
Term, the Properties shall be used solely for the operation of & Permitted Facility, and related
putposes such as ingress, egress and parking. Lessee shall at atl imes during the Leagse Tenm
occupy the Properties and shall diligenily opersto its business on the Properties.  Lessee shall
not, by itself or through any essignment, sublease or other type of transfer, convert any of the
Properties to an alternative vse dwing the Lease Term without Lessor’s Prior written consent.

3. Leage Term; Extension. The initial tetm of this Leaso (“Initial Tern™) shall
commence as of the Effective Date and shall expire st midnight on [December 31, 2024}
(“Bapiration Date™), nnless terminated sooner as provided in this Lease and as may be extended
as provided berein, The time period dwiing which this Lease shall actually be in effect, including
any Extension Tert, is referred to herein as the “Lease Term ™ Unless this Lease hag expired or
has been sooner terminated, or an Hvent of Default has occurred and is continuing at the time any

_extension option is exetolsed, and previded that all other agresments necessary to the continued

operation of Lossee’s business at each of the Properties are extended for a pericd of not less than
the applicable extension periods (including without limitation, all Dealer Apreements), Lesses
shall have the right aud option (each, an “Bxtension Option”) to extend the Initial Term for two
(2) additional successive periods of ten (10) years each (cach, an “Bxtepsion Term™), piusuant to
the terms and conditions of this Lease then in effect. Lessee may only exercise the Extension
Options by giving writien notice thereof to Lessor ofits election 1o do so firat, no later than one
Imndred fwenty (120} days prior to the Expiration Date and one hundred twenty (120} days prior
to the immediately preceding Extension Term, as the case ttay be I wnitten nofice of the
exercise of any Extenston Option is not received by Lessor by the applicable dates described
above, then this Lease shall terminate on the last day of the Initial Term o, if applicable, the [ast
day of the Extension Term then in effect. Upon the request of Lessor or Lessee, the parties
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hereto will, at the expense of Lessee, execute and exchange an instrument in recordable form |
sefting forth the extension of the Lease Torm in accordance with this Seetion 3.

4, Rental and Other Monetary Obligations,

A, Base Monthly Rental, Duting the Injtial T etmm, on or befors the first day of
each ealendar month, Lessee shall pay in advance the Bass Monthly Renttal; provided,
Aowever, if the Bffective Dats ia a date other than the first day of the month, Lessee shall
Pay to Lessor (or any other party designated by Lessor) on the Rffective Date the Basc
Monthly Rental prorated by multiplying the Base Mornthly Rental by a fiaction, the
numetator of which is the mmaber of days remelning in the month (including the
Effective Date} for which Rental is being paid, and the denominator of which is the tota]
mumber of days in such month, Duting the Extension Terms, if any, Lesseu shall pay the
Rental (inciuding the Rage Monthly Rental) in the manner set forth in fhis Secton 4.
Unless otherwise specifically stated o the contrary hetein, Lessee shall perform all its
obligations under this Lease at its sole cost and expense and shall pay all Rental and any
other Monetaty Obligation due hereunder when dne and payabie, without nctice or
demand.

B. Adjustments. On the first Adjustment Date and on each Adjustment Date
thereafier, the Base Annual Rental shall increase by an amount equal fo tho Rent
Adjustment The “Rent Adjustment” shall be sn ameount equal ko the lesser of {1) two
percent (2.0%) of the Base Annmal Renta! in effect immediatety prior to the applicable
Adjustment Date, or (2) the product of () the percentage change between the Price Index
(as defined below) for the month two months prior to the Effective Date or the Price
Index wsed for the immediately preceding Adjustment Date, as applicable, and the Price
Index for the month two months prior to the applicable Adjustment Date, and (i) the then
cutient Base Annval Rental. “Price Indox” shall meap the Consumer Prise Index which
is designeted for the applicable month of determination as the United States City Average
for All Utben Consumers, All Ttems, Not Seasonally Adjusted, with a base pariod
equaling 100 in 1982 - 1984, a5 published by the United States Department of Labor’s
Bureau of Labor Statistics or eny suecessor agency. Notwithstanding any provision
contained herein, in 0o event shall Base Anmual Rental be teduced as a result of the
application of the Rent Adjustment deseribed in this Section4B. In the event that the
Price Index ceases to be-published, s suceessor index as published by the same
Govemumental Authority which published the Price Index shall be suhstituted and any
necessary reasonable adjustments shall be mada by Lessor and Lesses in order to carry
omt the intemt of this Section. In the event there is no sncoessor index, Lessor shall
teasonably select an alternative price index that will constitute 2 reasoneble substmite for
the Prioe Index,

C. Additional Rental. Vesses shal pay and discharge, as additional sental

(“Additional Rental”), all sums of money required o be paid by Lessee under this Loase
which are not specifically referred to ag Rental. Lessee shall pay and dischmge any
Additional Rental when the same shall become dus, provided that amounts which are
billed to Lessor or any third party, but not to Lessee, shall be paid within thitty (30) days
after Lessor’s demand for payment thereof o1, if later, when the same are due. In no

481295574173 3

SpititSupemomper

& propertics is Bhoapix, AZ

63114021000 2

Superpumper 000617

4930



ovent shall Lesses be requited to pay to Lessor any item of Additjonal Rental that Lessee
is obligated 1o pay and has paid to any third parcy pursuant to any provision of this Lease.

D.  Payment of Renial and Other Monetary Obligations All Rentai and other
Monetary Obligations which Lessee is requited ¢ pay hereunder shall be the
unconditional obligation of Lessee and shall be payable in full when due without any
setoff, abatement, deferment, deduction or counterciaim whatsoever, except ag sst forth
herein. Upon execution of this Leass, Lessec shall deliver to Lessor a complete
Authorization Agreement - Pre-Arranged Payments to be provided by Lessor, together
with & voided check for account verification, establishing stangements whereby
payments of the Base Monthly Renfal, any Additional Rentsl, impound payments (if
any), sales tax on real property tax (if any), and any other Monetery Obligations are
transferred by Automated Cleming House Pebit initiated by Lessor from an account
established by Lessee at a United States bank or other financial institution 1o such
aceount 85 Lessor may designate. Any delinguent payment shall, in addition o any other
remedy of Lessor, incur a late charge of five percent (5%) (which late charge is intended
to compensate Lessor for the cost of handling and processing such delinquent payment
and should not be considered interest) and boar interest t the Default Rate, such interest
to bo computed from and incleding the date such payment wes due trough and including
the date of the payment; provided, Aowever, in no event shall Lessee be obligated to pay 2
sum of late chaige and interest higher than the maximum legal rate then in effect.

5. Representations and Warranties of Lessor. The representations and warranties
of Lessor contained in this Section are being made to induce Lessee to enter into this Lease and
Lesgec has relied and will continue to rely upon such representations and wananties, Lessor
tepresents and wasrants to Iessee as follows:

A.  Orgenization, Authority and Staius of Lessor. Lessor has been duly

organized and is validly existing and in good standing under the lswe of the State of

Pelaware. All necessay corporate action has been taken to authorize the exesttion,
delivery and performance by Lessor of this Lease and of the oftier documenis,
instroments and agreesments provided for herein. The petson who has executed this Lease
on behalf of Lessor is duly authorized to do so. .

. B Enforceabifity. This Lease conslitutes the legal, valid and binding
obligation of Lessor, enforceable against Lessor in accordance with its terms,

6. Representations and Warranties of Lessee The representations and wartanties
of Lessee contained in this Section are being made to induce Lessor to enter into this Lease and
Lessor has relied, and will contine to rely, upon such representations and wearanties. Lessse
represents and watrants to Lessor as follows;

A Organization, Authority and Status of Lessce. Lessee has been duly
argenized or formed, is validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the Stats
of Asizona. All necessary corporate action has been taken to authorize the execution,
delivery and peformance by Lesses of this Lease pnd of the other documents,
instiuments and agreements provided forherein. Lessee’s United States tax identification
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number is comectly set forth on the sigrature page of this Lease. The peison who has
sxecuted this Lease on behalf of Lesses is duly authorized to do so. The address of

- Lessee stated in Section 24 is the principal place of business and principal executive
office of Lessee, and Lessee will provide Lessor with written fiotice of any change of
location of its principal place of business or principel executive office, or any change in
its state of otganization, in sither case withia ten (10} days thereot.

B.  Enforceability This Lease constitntes the legal, valid and binding
obligation of Lessee, enforceable against Lessee in accozdance with its ferms,

C. Litigation. There are no suits, actions, proceedings or investipations
peading, or to its knowledge, threatened against or invelving Lessee or the Properties
befors any arbiitator or Goveinmenta! Authority which migh reasonably result in any
material adverse change in the contemplated business, condition, worth or aperations of
Lessee or the Propertics,

D Absence of Breaches or Defaulis. Lesses is not in defult under Bivy
docnment, instrument or agreement to which Lessee is a party or by which Lessee, the
Properties of any of Lessec’s property is subject o1 bound. The authotization, execution,
delivery and pexformance of this Lease and the documents, instruments and agreements
provided for herein. will not result in any breach of or defanlt under any document,
instrument or agreement to which Lesses is a party or by which Lessee, the Propertics or
any of Lesses’s property is subject or bound,

E. Licenses and Permis. Lessee Bas obtained all required licenses and
permits, bath governmenta! and private, to wse and operate the Propertles as a Permitied
Facility, including but not limited 0 i\ genetal business licenses, retail liguor sales
licenses, sales tax peamits, and petrolenn sales permits.

F. ° Fingreial Condifion, Information Provided to Lessor. The financial
statements, ali financial data and all other documents and informmation heretofore
delivered to Lessor by or with respect to Lessee, Guarantor and/or the Propettics in
connection with this Lease andfor relating to Lessee, Guarantor and/or the Properties are
free, cotrect and complete in all material respects, there have been 10 amendrments
thereto since the date such items were prepared or delivered to Lessor, and no change hag.
ocourrcd to any such finencial statements, financial data, documents and other
information not disclosed in writing to Lessor, which would 1esult in a Matetial Adverse
Effect

G, Compliance with OFAC. Lessee, snd to Lessee’s knawledge, each of
Lessee’s Entities is not currently identified on the OFAC List, and is not a Petson with |
whom = citizen of the United States is prohibited from engaging in transactions by any
trade embargo, economic sanction, or other prohibition of United States law, regulation,
or executive order of the President of the United States, Lessea has implemenied
proceduwes and will consistently apply those procedures throughout the Lease Teirn, to .
ensure the foregoing reprosentations and warranties remain true and correct duaring the
Lease Teim. !

4812-955742713
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H. Solvency. There is no contemplated, pending or threatened Insolvency
Event or similar proceedings, whether volontary or involmtary, affecting Lessee, or to
Lessee’s knowledge, its shareholders or Affiliates.

L Ownership  Lessce does not actvally or constructively own ten percent
(10%) or mote of the outstanding capitel stock of Lessor ot any Affiliate of Lessor and no
Affiliate of Lessee that achally or constructively owns ten percent (10%} or more of the
outstanding capital stock of Lessee or any A ffiliate of Lessee owns, ditectly or indirectly,
(D) ten percent (10%) or more of the total combined voting power of all clusses of voting
capital stock of Lessor, or (if) ten parcent {10%) or more of the fotal value of alf classes
of capita] stock of Lessor-

L Dealer Agreements. lLessee has entmed into ail necessary  Dealer

Agreements and suck Dealer Agreoments ere valid, binding and in full fores and effact,

- permit Lessea ta operate a Permitted Facility on fhe Properties and heve a tetm which will
not expire prior to the Leass Term.

1. Rentals To Be Not to Lessor. The Base Anrmal Rental paynble hereunder shall
be net o Lessor, go that this Lease shall yield to Lessor the Rentals specified dizing the Lease
Term, and all Costs and obligations of every kind end nabure whatsoever relating it the
Properties shall be performed and paid by Lesses.

8. Taxes and Assessments. Lessee shall pay, pricr o the earlier of delinquency or
the acorual of infetest on the unipaid balance, sl taxes and assessments of every type or nature
assessed against or imposed vpon the Properties or Lessee during the Lease Term, including
without limitation, all taxes or arsessments wpon the Propertles or any pert thereof and upon any
personal property, frade fixtwes and iraptovements located on the Properties, whether belonging
to Lessor or Lessee, or any tax or charge lovied in Jeu of such taxes and assessments; all taxes,
charges, license fees and or similar foes imposed by reason of the use of the Propertics by
Lessee; and all franchise, excise, transaction, privilege, license, sales, use and othor- taxes upon
the Rental or other Monetaty Obligations hercunder, the leaschold estate of ejther party or the
sctivities of cither party prrsuant to this T.ease.

Within thirty (30) days after each tax and assessment payment is required by this Section
to be paid, Lessee shall, upon prior written tequest of Lessor, provide Lessor with evidence
reasonably satisfactory to Lessot that such payment was made in a timely fashion  After prior
wiitten pofice to Lessor, Lessee, at its own expense, may contest or couse to be contested by
appropiiate legal proceeding, promptly initisted and conducted in good faith and with due
diligence, the amoumt or validity or application in whole or in pait of any taxes, provided that:
(1) no Event of Default has occurred and shall be continving hereunder beyond all notice or grace
petiods; (i) such procesding shall be permitted under and be cenducted in accordance with the
provisiong of any other inskument to which Lessee, Lassor or the Propetty is subject and shall
nat constitue a default therennder; Giv) neither the Propetty nor any pat thereof or inferest
therein will be in danger of being sold, fnfeited or Iost by reason of such proceedings,
tetminated, eancelled or lost; (v) Lessee shall have set aside adequate 1eserves (which Lessor
mazy at its option require fo be placed in escrow with Lessor or Lessor’s lender) for the payment
of such taxes, together with a1l interest and penalties; and (vi) Lessee shall have furnished such
481295574273 1
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secutity as may be required in the procesding, or as may be reasonably requested by Lessor to
insure the payment of any such taxes ot, fogether with all interest and penalties therson.

g Utilities Lessoe shall contract, iu its own name, for and pay when due ail charges
for the connection and usc of water, mms, electiicity, telephone, garbage collection, sewer nse and
other utitity services supplied to the Properties dwing the Lease Tam. Unless caused by the
negligence or misconduet of Lessor, its agents, employees or contractors, Lessor shall not be
responsible for any interruption of amy ulility service.

10.  Imsuramce. Thioughout the Lease Term, Lesses shall maintain, with 1espect to
cach of the Properties, at its sole expense, the following types and amounts of insurance, in
adddition to such other insurance as Lessor may teasonably require fiom time to time:

A, insuratice against logs or damage by fire and agaiust loss or damage by
other 1isks and hazards coversd by o standard extended covetaps ingurance policy
providing “special” form coverage including, but not l{mited to, fire, lightning, explosion,
windstorm o1 hail, smoke, airciaft or vehicles, riot or civie commotion, tetrorism,
vaodalism, malicious mischief, burglary, theft, sprinkler leskags, sinkhole collapse,
voleanie action, falling objects, weight of snow, ice or sleat or water damags, and fo the
extent required by Lessor or itg lender, earthquake of any other risks insured against by
persoss operating like properties in the locality of the Propesties. Such insurance shall be
in an amount not less than the lesser of (i) the then full replacement cost of each Property,
without deduction for physical depreciation, ot (ii} the outstanding principal balance
Lessor's financing secared by the Properties; but in any eveni an amount suffivient to
ensure that the insurer issuing sald policies would ot deem Lessee a co-insurer under
said policies. The poticies of insurance carried in accordance with this paragraph shall be
paid anuwally in advance, shall contain the “Replacement Cost Endorsement” with a
waiver of depreciation, and, if required by Lender, shall contain “Ordinance and Leaw™
coverage.

B.  Flood insuiance (meeting the current requirement of the Federal Insurance
Administration) if any patt of a Propesty is located in an area identified by the Fedetal
Emergency Management Agency as &n grea having special Food hazards and in which
Tlood insurance has been made available under the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1573
(and any successor act thereto) in an amount 2t least equal fo the lasser of (4) the
outstanding principal bafance Lessar’s financing secmed by the Properties; (B) the
maximum amount of coverage available 10 Lessee under the National Flood Ensurance
Progiam; or (C} the then full replacement cost of each Property, without deduction for
physical depreciation.

C. Genéral liskility insurance on an “occurrence besis™, in the amount of at
least $1,000,000.00 per oconrrence, $2,000,000.00 general aggregate spainst claims for
bodily injuey or property damage ocoutting on, in or aboul the Properties.

D.  Business Income and/or Rental Value insmance in ab amount equal to the
total anticipated Rental and other Monetary Obligations for a period of at least twalve
(12) months after the date of the fire or other casualty in question; which insurance shall
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be carved out of Lessee's business interruption coverags for a separate rental value
insurance peyable to Lessor, or if rental value fhsurence is included in Lessee's business
Interruption coverage, the insurer shall provide priosity payment to any rent obligations,
and such obligations shall be paid directly to Lessor, Such insurance is to follow form of
the real propety "all 1isk” covernge and is not to contain a co-insurance clause. The
amount of such insurance sheil be increased from time to time dwing the Lease Term as
and when Lessor requires, 1o teflect alt increases in Base Annual Rental, Additional
Rental and other Monetary Obligations. No exclusions shall be sllowed for any sisks
specifically enumerated in subsection (A) above.

E Boiler and Machinery Insurance if any steam boiler, air conditioning
equipment, high pressure piping, machinery and equipment pressure vessels or similar
appatatus now exists or is hereafter installed in the improvements on the Properties.

F. Workers’ compensation inswance in the statutotily mandated limits
covering all persons employed by Lesses on the Property in connection with any work
done on or about any Propeity for which_claims for death or bodily imjury could be
asserted against Lessor, Lessee o1 the Praperty,

G. Such other insurance s may from time to time s reasonsbly required by
Lessor or Lessor’s lender in order to protect their respective inferests.

H. Al policies of insuance (individuaily, a “Policy”, and collectively the
“Policies™) requived pursusnt to this Lease: (i) shall be issued by an insurer safisfactory to
Lessor or Lessor's lender, in their scle discrstion; (i) shall contain a moitgages non-
contribution cleuse satisfactory to Lessor or Lessoi’s lender, in their sole discretion,
naming Lessor or Lessor’s lender es the person to which all payments mede by such
insurance company shall be paid; (iii) shall be maintained throughout the Lease Term
without cost to Lendes; (iv) shall be assigned and delivered to Lossor or Lessor's lender;
(v) shall confain such provisions as Lessor or Lesser's lender deems TieCesSAly of
desirable to protect its interest including, without limitation, endorsements providing that
none of Lesses, Lessor, Lessor’s lender or any other party shall be a co-insuzer under satd
Palicies and that Lossor and Lessor’s lender shall receive at loust thirty (30) days prior
written natice of any modification, termination o1 cancellation of the applicable Policy;
end (vi) shall be satisfactory in. form and substance to Lessor end Lessor's Jender and
shall be approved by Lessor and Lessor's lender as to amounts, form, risk coverage,
deductibles, loss payees and insureds. Lessee shall pay the premiums for such Policies as
the same become due and payable. Not later than twenty-five (25) days prior to the
sxpiration date of each of the Policies, Lessee will deliver 1o Lassor satisfactory evidence
of the 1enewal of each explring Policy.

1 If insurence for earthquake or special hazards is obtained by Legses in ifs
sole discretion and without requitement of Lessor, then Lesses, when obfaining such
insurance coverage, shall mesf the insurance requitements hereof except as to matters ;
requiring Lessor’s funther approval, and such insurance coverage: (i) shall be within the i
meaning of a “Policy” or “Policies; and (ii) shall be for the benefit of Lessor and S
Lessor’s lender, and Lesses or Lessee’s lender shalk have all rights with Tespect to and be
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entitled to receive all proceeds in the same manner it would receive any insurance
proceeds in the event thet a Property is cla.mnged or destroyed by a casualty ot by any rigk
or loss insured against.

i 3 Any failure by Lessor to insist on full compliance with all of the ahove

insurance reguirements at closing does not constitute a waiver of Lessas's right 1o
subsequently require fall compliance with these requirements

A812-95574273 3
SolrtSupepmper

K. Al Policies shall;

()  Provide (1) for a waiver of subrogation by the insurer es to claims
against Lessor, ity employees and sgents, (2) that thie nsuer shall not deny a
oleim and that such insurance cannot be wreasonably cancelled, invalidated or
suspanded on sccount of the conduct of Lesses, its officers, directors, employees
ot agents, or anyone acting for Lesses or any subtenant ot other occupant of the
Properties, and (3} that any losses otherwise payable thereunder shall be payable
notwithstanding any act or omission of Lossor or Lessee which might, absent such
provision, resultin a forfeiture of all or a past of such insurance payment;

{H}  Be primary and provide that any “other insurance” clause in the
insurance policy shall exclude any policies of insurance maintained by Lessor and
the insurance policy shall not be brought into contribution with insurance
meintained by Lessor;

(iii) Contain dedvetibles not to exceed 525,000.00;

(iv) Provide that the inswer shall oot have the opticn to restore the
Properties if Lessor elects to teminate this Lease in accordance with the terms
hereof;

(1;*) Be in amounts sufficient at all imes to satisfy any coinsurance
requirements thereof;

(v}  Except for workers’ compensation insnrance 1eferred to in Seetion
10.F above, name Lessor and any Lessor Affiliate or Iender requested by Lessor,

- 88 an “additional insmred” with 1espect to general Hability inswence, and as a

“named insured” with 1espect to real property and “loss payes” with respect to all
real property and rent value insurence, as appropriate and as thelr interests ruay
appear;

(vii} Be evidenced by delivery to Lessor and ay lender designated by
Lessor of ar Acord Form 28 for property coverage (or any other form requested
by Lessory and an Acord Form 25 for lisbility, workers’ compensation and
umbrella coveragé (or any other forr requested hy Lessot); provided that in the
event that eithier such form is no longer available, such evidence of insurance shall
be in a form reasonubly satisfactory to Lessor end any lender designated by
Lessor; and

6 propstiist in Phocnix, AZ
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(viiij) It is expressly understood aud agreed that (I) if any insurance
required hereunder, or any part thereof, shall expire, be withdtawn, become void
by breach of any condition theieof by Lessee, or become void ot in jeopmdy by
reason of the fallure or impeitment of the capital of eny insurer, Lessea shall
itamediately obiain new or additional inswance reasonably satisfactory to Lessor
and any lender designated by Lessor; (II) the foregoing minimum Hmits of
insurance eoverege shall not Jimit the liability of Eessee for its acts or omissions
43 provided in this Lease; and (I} Lesses shall procure policies for all insurance
for periods of not less than one year and shall provide to Lessor and any servicer
or lender of Lessor certificates of inmmance or, upon Lessor’s 1equest, duplicate
otiginals of insuance policies evidencing that insurance satisfying the
requitements of this Lease is in effect at all times.

L. Legsea shall pay as they hecome due all premiums for the insurance
tequired by this Section [0. In the ovent that Lessee fails to comply with any of the
foregoing requirements of this Section 10 within ten (10) days of the giving of wrilten
notice by Lessor fo Lesses, Lessor shall be entitled to procure such insurance. Any sums
expended by Lessor in procusing such inswance shall be Additienal Rent and shall be
1epaid by Lessee, together with intersst thercon at the Defaylt Rate, fiom the time of
payrent by Lessor until fiilly paid by Lessee immediately upon written demand therefor
by Lassor. .

M. Anything in this Section 10 to the contrary notwithstanding, any insutance
which Lessee is required to oblain purseant to this Section 10 may be camied under a
“blanket” policy or policies covering other properties or liabilities of Lessee provided that
such “blanket” policy or policies othetwise comply with the provisions of this Section 10.

11, Tax and Insuranes Impouud. Upon the occurtence of a Reserve Evant and uatil
the ocowrence of a Reserve Reversal Event, in addition to any other remedies, Lessor may
require Lessee to pay to Lessor (i) an amount egual to the next one yea of taxes, assessiments
end/ot insurence premiums; and (if} Two Hundred and Thirty Thousand and 00/100 Prollars
($230,000.00) per year for the puyment of Il snd Leasing Commissions, Upon such
requirement, Lessor will estimate the amounts needed for such pmpeses and will natify Lessee
to pay the same to Lessor annualty in ooe firll psyment, as nearly as practicable, in addition to all
other Monstary Obligations due wnder this Lease, Should additional fonds be required sl any
{ime, Lessee ghall pay the sema to Lassor on demand, Tessee shall advise Legsor of all taxes and
insurance bills which are due and shall cooperate fulty with Lessar in assuring that the same ate
paild. Lessor may deposit all impounded funds in accounts insured by any federal or state agency
and mey commingle such funds with other funds and accounts of Lessor. Interast or other gaing
trom such funds, if ary, shall be the sole property of Lagsor. [n the event of any default by
Lessee, Lessor may apply all impounded fands against any sums due from Lessee to Lessot.
Lessor shall give to Lesses an annual sccounting showing ell eredits and debits to and from such
impounded fimds received from Lessee.  Lessor shall utilize s)l funds escrowed hereunder to
pay or canse to be paid all taxes, assessments, insutance premiums endfar TI and Leasing
Commissions, as applicable. The disbwsement of all fands escrowed pursuant to this Section
shall be subject to al} reasenable terms and conditions deemed necessary by Lessor or Lessor's
lesder and Lessee shall be responsible for the payment of all costs and expenses incurred by
481298574711 3
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Lessor in connection with any funds escrowed pursuant fo this Section and the disbursement
thereof, including, without limitetion, any foes and expenses charged by Lessor’s lender.

12.  Compliance With Laws, Restrictons, Covenants and Encumbrances.

A Compliance. Lessee’s vse and ocoupation of each of the Properties, and
the condition thereof, shall, af Lessee’s sole cost and expense, comply fully with all Legal
Requirements and all restrictions, covenants and encumbrences of record with respect to
the Properties, in either event, the failure with which to comply could have a Material
Adverse Effect. Upon Lessor’s wiitten request from time to time during the Lease Term,
Lessee shall certify in wiiting to Lessot that Lessee’s representations, warrantles and
abligations under Hection 6.G and this Section 12.A remain true and conect and have not
been breached. Lesses shall immediately notify Lessor in wiiting if any of the
representations, warranties or cavenants under Section 6.3 and this Section 12.A are no
longer true or have been breached o if Lessee has 4 reagonable basis ta believe that they
may no longer be fue or have hesn breached. In connection with such an event, Lessee
shall comply with all Legal Requircments and directives of Governmental Authorities
and, at Lessor’s request, provide to Lessor copies of all notices, repaits and ofher
communications exchanged with, ot raceived from, Govemmental Authorities relating to
such un event. Lessee shall also reimbwse Lessor for all Costs incurred by Lessor in
evaluating the effect of such an event on the Properties and this Lease, in obtaining any
neeessary license from Govermanental Authotiies 25 may be necessary for Lessor to
enfrce its rights under the Transaction Pocuments, and in complying with all Legal
Requiremenis applicable to Lessar as the result of the existence of such an event and for
any penabties or fines imposed vpon Lessor s a resalt thereof,

B.  dcis Resulting in Increased Imsurance Rates. Lessee will use its
commercially teasonable efforts fo provent any act or condition to exist on or about the
Properies which will materially increase any insurance rate thereon, except when such
acts are requited in the normal cowrse of its business and Lessee shall pay for such
INCTeass, '

C.  AD4. Without limiting the genemlity of the other provisions of this
Bection, Lesses agrees that it shall be responsible for complying in all respects with the
Amegicans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as such act may be smended from time to time,
and all regulations promulgated thereunder {collectively, the “ADA™), as it affects the
Propeities. Lessee agrees that it will defend, indemmify and hold harmless the
Indemnified Parties from and against any and 411 Logses caused by, ingurred or resuliing
from Lessee’s failuee to comply with its obligations under this Section.

D Enpf?onmem‘ai \

(1] Representations and Warranties. Lessee represents and wartants ;
to Lessor and Bnvironmenta] Insurer, which repressntations and wartantes shall ;

survive the execntion and delivery of this Lease, as follows: . 1
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(1) Excepd as disclosed in the Bnvironmental Reporis, the
Properties and Lesses are not in violation of or subject fo, any pending or,
to Lesses’s actual knowledge, threatened investigation or inquiry by any
Governental Authority or to auny remedial obligations under any
Environmental Laws that conld have a Material Adverse Effoct, nor has
Lessee roceived any written or otal netice or other comuminnication from
any Parson (including but not limited to a Govermmental Authosity) with
respect to any Property 1eiating to (I) Hazardous Materials, Regulated
Substauces or USTs, or Remediation thereof! (IT) poasible liahility of any
Person pursnant to any Eaviroomental Law; (ITD other environmental
conditions; or {f¥}eny actual or potential adminisirative or judicial
proceedings in connection with any of the foregoing that could have a
Material Adverse Effect. The foregoing representations and warranties
wotld continue to be tue and correct following disclosme lo the
applicable Governmental Authorities of all relevant facts, conditions and
circumstances, if'any, pertaining to the Properties. )

{2)  Bxoept as disclosed in the Environmental Repats, (I) all
uses and operations on or of the Properties, whether by Lessee or any
other Person, have besn in compliance with all Envitonmental Laws and
environmental permits jssued pursuant thersto; (T} there heve been no
Releases in, on, under or from any of the Properties, or from other
proporty migrating toward any of the Properties, except in Permitted
Amounts; (IIT) there ate no Hazardous Materials, Regulated Substances or
USTs in, on, or under any of the Properties, except in Permifted Amounts;
{TV) the Propeitics have been kept free and clear of all Jiens and other
encumbtances impossd pursuant to any Environmental Law (the
“Environmental Liens"); and (V) Lessee has not allowed any other tenant
or other user of the Propeties to do any act that materially increased the
dangers to haman health or the environmet, posed an unteasonable tisk
of harm to any Person (whether on or off any of the Properties), impaired
the value of any of the Propesties in any meterizl respest, is contrary to
any requirement set forth in the insurance policies maintained by Lessor
including without lmitation, the Envionmental Policy, constimted a
public or private nwisance, constituted waste, or vielated any covenant,
conditian, agteement oy sasement applicable to any of the Properties.

(i)  Covenants.

(1}  Lessce covenants to Lessor and Enviropmental Iﬁsum
during the Leass Term, subject to the limitations of subsection (2) helow,
as follows:

1] The Properties and Lessee shall not be (a}in

violaffon of any Remodiation iequired by any Governmental
Authority or {b) subject to any Reediation obligations under any

1
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Environmental Laws. TLesgsee shall not be in violation of any .
investigation or inquity by any Govemmmental Avthoity,

(I Al vuses end opeistions on ot of the Properiies,
whether by Lessee or any other Person, shall be in compliance with
all Bnvironmental Laws and permits issoed pursuant thereto.

(L)  There shall be no Releases in, on, under or from the
Propentize, excepi in Permitied Amounts. .

(IV} There shall be no Hazardous Matetials, Regulated
Substances, USTs in, on or uvnder the Propetiies, except in
Petmitted Amommts.

(V} Lessee shall keep the Properties or cause the
Properties to be kept free and clear of all Environmental Liens,
whether due to any act o7 omission of Lessee o1 any other Person,

(V) Lessee shall not do of allow amy othet tenant or
other user of the Properties o do any act that (a) materally
increases the dengers to human health or the envisonment,
{b) poses an unreagonable 1isk of harm to any Person (whether on
or off any of the Properiies), {c)has a Material Adverse Effect,
(d)is conftary to any material requitement set forth in the
insmance policles maintrined by Lesses, (&) constitures a public or
ptivate nuisance or constitutes waste, or (f) violates any covenant,
condition, agreement or easement applicable to the Properties,

(VI[) Lessee shall, at its sole cost and expenss, perform
any enviionmental site assessment or other investigaton of
envirommental conditions in connection with the Properties as may
be reasonably requested by Lesgor {Including but not limited to
sampling, testing and analysis of soil, water, ait, building materials
and other materials end substances whether solid, Hquid or gas), and
share with Lessor and Environmenial Tnsurer the repotts 2nd other
1esults thereof, and Lessor, Environmental Insurer snd the other
Indenimified Parties shall be entitled fo rely on such reports and other
results thereof-

(VIIF} Lessee shall, af its sole cost and expense, filly and
expeditiously cooperate in all activities pursnant to Section 2D,
inchuding but wot limited to providing all relevant information and
making knowledgeable persens avatlable for interviews.

(2}  Noiwithstanding any provision of this Lease fo the

conrary, an Event of Default shall not be deamed fo have occurred as a

rosult of the failure of Lessee to satisfy any one or more of the covenanis
481295574273 3 ' :
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set forth in subsections {1} through (V1) above provided that Lesses shall
be in compliance with the requirements of any Governments! Aunthority
with respect to the Remediation of any Release at the Properties,

{ifi)  Mofification Requirements. Lessee shall immedfately notify Lessor
and Enviromnental Insurer {n writing upon Lessee obtaining sctual knowledge of
(1) any Releases or Ihreatened Releases in, on, vnder or from any of the
Propeities other then in Permitted Amounts, or migraling towards any of the
Properties; (2) any non-compliunce with any Environmentsl Laws refated in any
way to any of the Properties; (3) any actual or potential Bnvironmental Lien:
(4) eny required or propoged Remediation of environmental conditions relating to
any of the Properties required by appliceble Govemmentel Authorities; and
(5) any written or oral notice or other communication which Lessee becomes
aware from any source whatsoever (including hurt not limited to a Governmental
Anthority) relating in any way to Hazardous Mateaials, Regulated Substances or
USTs, or Remediation thereof at or on any of the Properties, other than in
Permitted Amounts, possible Llisbility of any Peson relating to any of the
Properties prorsuant to any Environmnenial Law, other environments] conditions in
connection with any of the Propetties, ot any actual ar potentie] administrative o1
judicial proceedings in conaection with anything referred 1o in this Section,
Lessee shall, upon Lessor's or Bnvironmental Tngurer’s waitten reques, delfiver to
Lessor or Environmental Inswer 2 certificate sieting that Lessee is and has been in
fill compliance with all of the environmental 1epresentations, warranties and
covenants in this Lease.

(iv)  Remediation. Lesseo shall, at its solo cost and expense, and
without limiting any other provision of this Lease, effectuate any Remedistion
requited by any Govermmental Authority of any condition (inchuding, but not
limited to, a Release) in, on, under o1 from fthe Properties and take any other
reasoneble action deemed necessary by any Govemmental Authoity for
protection of human health or the environment. Should Lessee &il to undettake
such Remediation in accordance with the preceding sentence, Lessor, after written
notice to Lesses and Lesses’s failure o immediately undertake such Remediation,
shell be permiited to complete sucli Remediation, and all reasonable Costs
inenmred in connection therewith shall be paid by Lesses '

(v)  Indemnification. Lessee shall, at its sole cost and expensce, protect,
defend, indemnify, release and hold harmless each of the Indemnified Paities
from and against any and aif Losses, including, but not limited to, all Costs of
Remediation (whether or not performed voluntarily), atising out of or in any way
telating to any Environmental Laws, Hazardous Materials, Regulated Substasices,
UBTs, or other environmental maiters concerning the Propertics, REGARDLESS

OF WHETHER CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY THE NEGLIGENCE

OR STRICT LIABILITY OF ANY INDEMNIFIED PARTY, It i3 expressly
understood and egreed that Lessee’s obligations under this Section shall survive
the expiration or earliet termination of this Lease for any reason.
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(vi)  Right of Entry. Lossor and any other person or éntity designated
by Lessor, including but not limited to Environmentat Insurer, any receiver, any
mepresentative of 4 Governmental Authority, and any envisonmental consultant,
shall have the right, but not the obligation, to enter upon the Properties at all
reasonable fimes (including, without limitatior, in connection with the exercise of
any 1emedies set forth in this Lease) to assess any and all aspects of the
environmental condition of any Property and its use, including but not limited to
condueting any environmental assessment ot audit (the scope of which shall be
determined in Lessor’s sole and ahsolute discretion) and taking samples of soil,
groundwater or other water, air, or building materials, and conducting other
invasive testing. Lessee shall cooperats with and provide access to Lessor,
Environmental Tnsurer aud any other person ot entity designated by Lessor. Any
such asgessment or investigation shall be et Levsee*s sole cost and expense.

(vil) Imspections. At its sole cost and expense, Lessee shall have the

Properties inspected as may be required by any Environmentsl Law for seepage,
gpillage and other environmentsl concerns. Lessee shall maintain and monitor the
USTs in aocordance with all Bnvironmental Laws Lessee shall provide Lessor
with writlen certified results of all ingpections performed on the Propenties. All
coste and expenses associated with the inspection, prepatetion and cerfification of
results, as well sy those associated with any corrective action, shall be paid by
Lesses. All inspections and tests performed on the Properties shall be in
compliance with all Bnvironmental Laws,

(viti) ST Compliance. Lesses shall comply or cause the compliance
with all applicable fiederal, state and local regulations and requirements regarding
USTs, ineluding, without hmitation, any of such regulations or requirements
which impose (1) technical standards, including, without limitation, perfotniance,
leak prevention, leak detection, nofification teporting and recordkeeping,
(2)corrective action with regpect to confitmed and suspected Releases, and
(3) financial responsibility for the payment of cosls of comeective action and
compensation to thind parties for infuy and damage resulting from Releases
Lessee shall immediately notify Lessor, in writing, of (I} the presence on or under
the Propettios, or the escape, seepage, leakage, spillage, discharge, emission or
teleass from any USTs o, above or under the Properties , of any Hazardons
Materials or Regulated Substances, spparent of real and () any and all
enfocement, clean-up, remedial, removal or other governmental or repulatory
actions threatened, instituted or completed pursuant to any of the Environmental
Laws affecting the Properties. Upen any such Release, escape, secpage, leakage,
spillage, discharge, emission or releass fiom any USTs on, sbove or under the
Properties of any Hazardous. Materials or Regulated Substanced, Lassee shall
immediately remedy such shivafion in accotdatics with all Environmendal Laws
afid any request of Lessor. Should Lessee fail to remedy or cause the 1emedy of
such situation in accordance with all Environmental Laws, Lessor shall he
pormitted to take such actions in its sole discresion to remedy such situation and
any <osts atd expenses incutecd in connection therewith will be paid by Lessee.
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(ix}  Survivel, The obligations of Lessee and the tights and remedies of
Lessor under this Section 12D shall survive the termination, expiration and/or
release of this Leass.

(x}  Environmental Poficy. Throughowt the Lease Term, Lessee shall
maintain, with respect to each of the Properties, st its sole expenss, the
Environmental Policy. Lessar shall cooperate in obteining and renewing the
Environmental Policy

(5}  Reliance by Environmental Insurer. Lessee acknowledges and
sgrees that Environmenial Insuwier may rely on the representations, wananties and
covenants sef forth in Section 12D of this [ ease, fhat Environmental Insurer is an
intended third-patty beneficiary of such representations, warranties and consents and
that Environmental Insurer shall have all rights and remedies available at Jaw or in
equity as & result of a breach of such representations, wananties and covenants,
including tn the extent applicable, the 1ight of subrogation.

B. Bnewmbrances. Lessee shall comply with and perform all obligations of
Lessor undet all easernents, declarations, covenants, restitctions and other ifems of Tegord
now or hereafter encumbering the Propetties.

E Dealer Requiremenss. In addition to the requirements set forth in this
Leasc, Lessee, in its uge, occupancy and maintenance of the Properties shall comply with
al! requirements of the Dealer Agreements

13,  Condifion of Property; Maintenence. Lessee hereby accepts the Properties “AS
[8% and “WHERE I8" with no reptesentation or warranty of Lessor as 10 the condition thereof:
Lessee shatl, at its sole cost and expense, be responsible for {ay keeping all of the building,
structires and improvements erevted on sach of the Propertics in pood and substantiet order and
vepait, (b) repair or mconstuct dammage o1 deshuction to any building, skuctures or
improvements erected on the Propetties fiom acts of Ged or any other catastophes, and (c)
making all stzuctural, exterior and interior repaits and 1eplacements which T.essee may desire or
which otherwise may be requited to any building, structures or improvemenis erected on the
Properties.

14.  Waate; Alterations and Tmprovements. Lessee shall not commit actual oz
constroctive waste upon the Properties. During the Lease Term, Lesses shall not underteke any
alterations or improvements to the Properties individually costing more than Four Hundred
Theusand and 60/200 Dollars (5400,000.00) in each instance without the prior wiltten consent of
Lessor; provided, however, except fot elterations roquired pursuant to Section 121, Lessee may
not undetiake any alteration or improvement that would be suhject to any Environmenta) Laws
{whether during constiection or upen completion) without the prior writien consent of Lessor. 1f
Lesor’s consent is required hersunder and Lessor consents to the making of any such
alterations, the samic shall be made by Lesses at Lesses”s sole expense by a licensed contractor
and according to plans and specifications approved by Lessor and subject to such other
conditions as Lessor shall require. Any waik af any time commenced by Lessee on the
FProperties shall be prosecuted diligently to completion, shall be of good workmenship and

4EL2 955742733
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mateiials and shall comply fally with all the temms of this Lease Upon completion of any
alterations, Lessee shall promptly provide Lessor with (A) evidenice of full payment to ail
laborets and materialmen confributing to the alterations, (B) an architect’s cetificate certifying

- the alterations 1o have been completed in conformity with the plans and specifications, {C) a
certificate of occupancy (if the alterations ats of such a nature as would tequire the issuance of a
certificate of occupancy), and (D) any other documents ot informatien reasonably requeated by
Lessor. Upon the oceutrence of any addition to or elteration of the Propesties, Lessea shall post
a notics at the applicable Properties identifying Lesses as the responsible party for all work
relating to any such additions or alterations. Any eddition to or alferation of the Fropesties shall
be desmed a part of the Properties and belong to Lessot, and Lessee shall execute and deliver to
Lessor such instruments as Lessor may require to svidence the ownership by Lessor of such
addition or alteiation,

15, Indemnification. Lessce agrees (o use and ocoupy the Propetties et its own nigk
and hereby roleases Lessor and Lessor’s agents and employees from all ¢laims for any darnage o1
injury to the full extent permitted by law. Lessee agrees that Lessor shall nat he responsible or
liable to Lessee or Lessee’s employees, agents, customers ot invitees for bodily injury, persional
injury or property damage occasioned by the acts or omissions of any other lesses or such
lessee’s employces, agents, contractors, customers or invitees. Lesses agreas that any employee
or agent to whom the Properties or any part thereof shall be entrested by or on behalf of Lesses
shall be acting as Lessee’s agent with tespect ta the Properties or any pait thersaf, and neither
Lessor nor Lessor’s agents, employees or canttactors shall be liable for any loss of oz damage to
the Propurties or any part thereof. Lessee shall indemnify, protect, defend aud hold harmless
each of the Indemnified Parties from and against any and all Losses, REGARDLESS OF
WHETHER CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY THE NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT
LIABILITY OF ANY INDEMNIFIED PARTY, caused by, incurred ot resulting from Lessee's
use and occupancy of the Propestiss, whether relating to its original design or construction, latent
defects, alterstion, maintenance, use by Lessee or any Person thereon, supervision or otherwise,
any claim raised by any tensnt under the Assigned Leases, 1egardless of when such claim arose,
or fiom any brench of, default under, ot faiiure to perform, any term or provision of this Lease by
Lessee, its officers, employees, agents ot other Persons. It is expressly understood and agreed
that Lessee’s obligations under this Seotion shall survive the expiration ot estlier termination of
this Lease for any reason, Lesses hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the Indemnified
Parties harmleas from and against any and all costs, damages, expenses, claims and/or liabilities
(including reasonable attorneys™ fees) atising out of or in connection with the Agsi gned Leages,
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER CAUSED IN WHOLE OR. IN PART BY THE NEGLIGENCE
OR STRICT LIABILITY OF ANY INDEMNIFIED PARTY.

16, Quiet Enjoyment So long as Lessee shall pay the Rental and other Monelary
Obligations herein provided and shall keep and perform sl of the tetms, covenants and
conditions on ifs part hersin contained, Lessee shall have, subject and subordinate to Lessor’s
rights hercin, the right to the peacefirl and quiet oceupancy of the Properties.

17, Inspection. Lessor and its authotized representatives shall have the right, at all
reasonable times and wpon giving reasonable prior notice (except in the event of an EIETgency,
in which case o prior notice shall be required), to enter the Properties or any part thereof and

inspect the same, Following any such inspection, should Lessor determming that the Propetty hes
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not been maintained bs required herein, Lessor shall have the right to demand that Lessee
mmplete cotrective measures within e ninety (90) day period oftime Lesses hereby waives, fo
the maximum extent permitted by lsw, any olaim for damages for any injury or inconvenisnce to
or intesference with Lesses’s business, any Ioss of occupaney or quiet enjoyment of the
Properties and any other loss occasioned by such entry, but, subject to Section 37, excluding
damages arising as a result of the negligence or intentional misconduet of Lessor

18.  Condemnation and Casualiy.

A Notifieation. Lessee shall promptly give Lessor and any mortgapee (if
required by the torms of any applicable mortgage ar deed of trust and Lessee has received
notice thereaf) writlen notice of (i) any Condemnation of any of the Properties, (ii) the

‘commencement of any proceedings or negofiaions which might result in a
Condemnation of any of the Properties, and (iii) any Casvalty to any of the Propetties o
any part thereof. Such notice shall provide e general description of the nature rnd extent
of such Condemmation, proceedings, negotiations or Casualty, and shall include coples of
any docaments or nofices received in connection therewith, Thereafter, Lessee shall
promptly send Lessar copies of all notices, conespondence abd pleadings relating to any
such Condemnation, proceedings, negotiations or Casually

B. Partial Condenmnation or Casuclty. Bxcept as otherwise provided in
Section 18.C, in the event of 2 Condemuation which is not a Total Condemmation
(“Rantial Condespmation™), or a Cesualty which is not a Total Caswalty {2 “Partie}
Casualty”), all Net Awuards shall be paid to Lessor. In the event of a Partial
Condemnation or a Partial Casalty, Lessor shall have the option to teminate this Lease
with respect to the applicable Property affected by notifying Lessee in wiiting within
thirty (30} days afier Lessee gives Lessor notice of such Paitial Condemnation o1 Partial
Casuzity or that title hes vested in the condemning avthoiity, or fo continue this Lease in
affect, which election shall be evidenced by either a notice fiom Lessor to Lasses, or
Lessor’s faitare fo notify Lesses in wiiting that Lessor hag elected to terminate this Lease
with respect to such Property within snch thirty (30} day period. Lessee shall hava a
period of sixty {60) days aftet receipt of Lessor’s notice to terminate referenced above
during which to elect, despite such Lessor notice of terminaton, to continue this Lease
witl Tespect to such Property on the terms herein provided. If Lessee doea not lect to
continue this Lease with vespect to such Propetty o1 shall fail duing such sixty (60) day
period to notify Lessor of Lesses's intent to continve thiz Lease with respect to such
Property, then this Lease shall terminate with respect to such Propertfy as of the last day
of the month during which such sixty {60) day period expised. Tessee shall vacate and
sunender such Propeity by such termination date, in accordance with the provisions of
this Lease, and all obligations of either party herennder with respect to such Property
shall cease a5 of the date of tarmination, provided, however, Lessee™s obligations to the
Inderrmified Partics under any indemnification provisions of this Lease with respect to
such Property and Lessee's obligations to pay Rental and all other Monetary Obligations
(whether payable to Lessot or a thitd party) aceruing under this Lease with respect o
such Property prior to the date of teumination shall survive such termination). In such
event, Lessor may rutain all Net Awards related to the Partiel Condemnation or Parfial

4812.95574273 3
SpiritSupepumper

Gproperte: in Fhoenic, AZ

6311021000 17

Superpumper 000632

4945




Casnalty, and Lessee shall immediately pay Lessor an amount equal to the insvrance
deductible applicable to any Partial Casualty.

If Lessor elects not to terminate this Lease, or if Lessor elects to terminate this
Lesse with respect to such Property (as provided above) but Lessee elects to continue this
Leuse with respect to such Property, then this Lease shall continus in full force and effect
on the following terms: ail Rental and other Monetary ObHgasions due under this Lease
shall continue unabated, and Lesses shall promptly commence and diligently prosecute
restoration of such Property to the same condition, as nearly as practicable, as prior to
such Partizl Condemmation or Partial Casualty as approved hy Lassor, As the mestoration
of such Property progressed, upon the written request of Lessee {gccompenied by
evidence yeasonably satisfactory to Lessor that such amount has heen paid or is due and
payable and is properly part of such costs and that Lessee has complied with the ferms of
Section 14 in comnection with the restoration) and to the extent that Lessor’s lender
makes the Net Award available to Lessor, Lesser shall make available in insialiments an
amount up to but not exceeding the amount of amy Net Award 1eceived by Lessor with
respect to snch Partial Condemnation or Parfial Cagualty. Lesses shall be eniifled to keep
any portion of the Net Award which may be in excess of the cost of restoration, and
Lessse shall bear all additional Costs of such restoration in excess of the Net Award. In
the event that Lessor’s fender elects not to make the Net Award available for the
testoration of the Property, Lessee shall bave the right, within thirty (30) days afier notice
of Lessor’s lender clection to retnin the MNet Award, to tesminate this Leage a5 to fhe
applicable Property, which election shall be avidenced by a wiitten notice fiom Lessee to
Lessor within such thirty (30) day period, in which event this Lease shall terminats as to
the epplicable Property in accordance with his Asticle 18,

All disbursements of any pottton of amy Net Awards shall be subject to all
reasonable ferms and conditions deemed necessary by Lessor or Lessor’s lemder,
including: (i) Lessor’s receipt of satisfactory reguests for disbursements, paid bills and
lien waivers, architect certificates or other certificates, and certificates or endorsemenis
frotn title insurance companies; {if} Lessee’s deposit with Lassor of any additional funds
necessary to supplement the Net Award, 5o as to cover, in advance, the entire cost of the
Tiecessary repairs or replacements to the Propertios as established by the certificate of an
architect o1 engineer {eruployed by Lender at Borrower's expense); (ifi) such architect's or
engineer's detetmination that such repaits or replacements may be effected within a
petiod of six (6) months or less; (iv) Bortower's prompt and diligent completion of such
repaits or replacernents in accordance with plans and specifications submitted to and
approved by Lender; and (v} Lender’s inspection, at Botrower's cost and sxpense, of the
repairs or replacements to the Morigaged Property to verify that such repsirs or
replacements have besn completed in & govd and workmanlike manner and are otherwise
acceptable to Lender. Lender, whether in possession of the Premises or not, shall not
have any oblgation to advance or meke funds other than the Inswance Proceeds
evailable for the repair or replacement of the Mot tgaged Propetty.

C. Total Condemnation and Tetal Casualty. In the svent of a Condemmnation
of all or substantizily all of any of the Froperties or 2 Parfial Condemnation, in either
event that results in Lesses meking a good faith determination that the restoration and
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continued use of the romainder of any such Properties as a Permitted Facility would be
uneconomic {collectively, a “Total Condernation™), or a Casualty of all or subatantially
all of any of the Propeniies or a Paitial Casualty, in either event that resuits in Lesses
making & good faith determination that the restoration and continned use of any such
Property es a Peimitfed Facility would be uneconomic (collectively, & “Total Casnalty™),
then, in such event:

812955742711 3
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()  Awards. Lessor shalf be entitled to receive the entire Net Award in
connection iherewith without deduction for any estato vested in Lessce by this
Lease, and Lessee herchy expressly assigns to Lessor all of its right, title and
interest in and to every such Net Award and agrees that Lessee ghall not be
entitled 10 any Net Award ot other payment for the valus of Lessee’s leasehold
intetest in this Lease. Lesses shall be entitied to claim and receive any award or
payment fiom the condemning anthority expressly granted for the taking of the
Lessee Personalty, any inswance proceeds with respect to the Lasses Parsonalty,
the interruption, of its business and moving expenses, but only if such claim or
award does not adversely affect or interfere with the prosecution of Lessor’s claim
for the Total Condemnation or Total Casvalty or otkerwise reduce the amount
recoverable by Lessor for the Total Condemnation

(i)  Option To Terminate. Lessee shall have the right to terminate this
Lease with respect to the applicable Property by notice (the “Teimination
Nofice”) given to Lessor nef latet than thirty {30)days after the Total
Condemmnation or Total Casualty, as applicable. The Termination Notice ruast;
(1) specify a date on which this Lease shall terminizte, which date shall be the [ast
day of a calenden moneh cecurring not earlier than one hundred twenty (120) days
and not Jater than one handred £ifty (150) days after the delivery of such notice
(the “Ear]y Termination Date’™; (2) contain a certificats executed by an officer of
Lessee which (1) describes the Total Condemmation or Total Casualty, and
(TD represents and waants that either all of such Property has been taken,
damaged of destroyed, or that substantially all of such Propetty lies been taken,
damaged or destroyed, and Lessee hay determined in good faith that the
Testoration and contineed use of the remainder of such Propetty as a Permitted
Facility would be uneconomic; and (3) if' the Early Teemination Date shall oecur
prior fo the commencenent of any Bxtension Options which may be exercised

‘pursuant to Section 3, contaln an juevocable tejectsble wiitten offer (the

“Rejectable Offer”) of Lessee to purchase Lessos’s interest in such Propetty and
in the Net Award for such Total Condemmation ot Total Casuslty, as appliceble,
on the Farly Termination Date for & purchasc price (the “Loss Value™) equal to
the greater of the fait mearket valus of such Property as of the Berdy Tezmination
Date, o1 Lessot’s Total Investizent.

(iil)  Early Termination Date. If the Barly Tetenination Date shall oceur
prior to the commencement of any Extension Options which may be exercised
putsuant to Section 3, Lessor shall have sixty (60) days from the delivery of the
Termination Notice to deliver to Lessee wiitten notice of its election to either
aceept of rgfect any Refectahle Offer conmained in the Termination Notice.
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Lessor’s failure to deliver such notice within such time petiod shall be desmed to
constitute Lessor’s acceptance of the applicable Rejectable Offer.

(v}  Lessor Acceptance of Refectable Offer U Lessor accepts or 18
deemed fo have accepted the Rejectable Offer, then on the Barly Termination
Date er such other date as the parties may mytueally egree in writing, Lessor shall
sell and convey, and Lassee shall purchese for the applicable Loss Value, Lessor's
interest in the particular Property and the Net Award. Lessee’s obligations under
this Lease with respect to such Property shall not be terminated until the
applicable Losz Value and afl Restal and ather Monetary Obligations due and
payable under this Lease prior to the Early Tarmination Date, or suck other date
a3 the parfies may mirtually agree in writing, are paid in fall. Upon such payment,
(1) Lessor shall convey such Property to Lesses “as-is” by special wananty deed,
subject to all mattesrs of record, except for consensual liens, encumbrances ar
other interests granted by Legsos (other than those glanted by Lessor at the
request of Lessee), and without representetions other than those required by
applicable Lavwy; (2) the Base Annual Rental then in affect shall be reduced by an
amount equal to the product of (x) a fiaction, the mumerator of which is the
original purchage price alfocated o such Froperty by Lessor, and the denominator
of which is the original pirrchase price for all of the Properties, and (¥) the Base
Annurl Rental then in effect; and (3} all obligations of either party hereunder with
1espect to such Proparty shall cease as of the Barly Texmination Date; provided,
however, Lossee’s obligations fo the Indemnified Parties under any
indemnification provisions of this Lesse with respect to such Property and
Lessec's obligations to pay any Monetary Obligafions (whether payable to Lessor

ot a third party) accruing under this Lease with respect to such Property prior to -

tha Barly Tetmination Date shall swvive the termination of this Lease with
respect 1o such Propexty.

(¥}  Lessor Refection of Rejectable Offer. If Lessor rejects the
Rejectable Offer, or if the Baly Termination Date shall occur affer the
comimencement of any Exiension Options exercised pursuant to Section 3, then
{1) the Net Award shall be paid to and belong to Lessor; (2) on the Ealy
Termination Date, Lesses shall pay t6 Lessor all Rental and other Monetary
Obligations then due and payable under this Lease; (1) the Base Annual Rental
then in effect shall be reduced by an amount equal to the product of (x) a fiaction,
the numerator of which is the criginal purchase ptics allocated to such Property

by Lesgor, and the denominator of which is the originaf purchase price for alt of

the Properiies, and (y) the Base Annual Reatal then in effect; and {4)all
obligations of either party heronnder shell coase aa of the Early Termination Date
with respect to the applicable Propetty; provided, however, Lessee’s obligations
to the Indemnified Parties with tespect to such Property under any
indemnification provisions of fiis Ledse with respect to such Propedy and
Lessee's shligations to pay any sums (whether payable to Lessor or a third party)
aoerving under this Lease with respect to such Propetty prior fo the Barly
Termination Date shall survive the termination of this Lease,
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D.  Payment of Costs Lessee shall be solely responsible for the payment of
all Costs ineurted in connection with the conveyance of a Propesty to Lesses putsuant to
this Section 18, including, without limitation, to the extent applicable, the cost of tidle
insurance, suivsy charges, siamp laxes, mortgage taxes, tramsfer fees, sscrow and
recording fees, taxes imposed an Lessor as a result of such conveyanes, taxes imposed in
connection with the transfer of a Propetty to Lesses or the terminstion of this Lease with
respect fo 2 Property pursvant to the provisions of this SecHon 18, Lesses's attorneys’
fees, and the reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses of counsel to Lessor,

E.  Inswrance. Any Joss under any moperty dewage insimancs requived to be
maintained by Lessee shall be adjusied by Lessor. Any awad 1¢lating to a Total
Condemupation o a Partial Condemnation shall be adjusted by Lessor or, at Lessor’s
clection, Tessee. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provisions of this
Section 18 to the contrary, i at the time of any Condemnation o1 any Casualty or at any
time thereafter an Event of Befanlt shail have occutred and be continning, Lesscr is
hereby anthorized and empowered but shafl not be obligated, in the name and on behalf
of Lesses and otherwise, to file and prosecute Lesses's claim, if any, for a Net Awand on
account of such Condemmnation o such Casaalty and to collect such Net Award and apply
the same to the curing of such Event of Default and any other then existing Hyent of
Default vader this Lease and/or fo the payment of any amonnis owed by Lesses to Lessor
under this Lease, in sech crder, ptiority and proportions as Lessor in its discretion ghall
deem proper

F. Lessee Obligation in Event of Casualty. Duting afl perods of time
following a Casualty, Lesses shall take tsasonshle ateps to ensure thet each Property is
secure and docs not posc any risk of harm to sny adjoining property and Persons
(incleding owners or occupants of such adjoining property).

G. Mo Limitarions. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section 18
shall be constrved as limiting or othetwise advemely affecting the representations,
warranties, covenants and characterizations set forth in Lease,

19, Fair Market Value, With respect to the determination of fair market value for
any purpose under this Lease, if the parties are unable to agree upon the fair market value, then
en independent MAT appraiser shall prepare an appraisal of the fair market value of the Property,
including any additions or renovetions theteto. In detenmining the fair market vahie of such
Property, the appraiser shall utilize leased foe income approach (assuming all optien pericds are
exeroised) to velue, which shall constitute the fir market value of such Propesty

20 Defauli, Conditional Limt¢ations, Remedies and Measure of Damapes,

A.  Each of the following shall be an event of default by Lesses under this
Lease (each, an *Event of Default™):

©@) if amy representation or watranty of Lessee set forth in this Lease is
fulse in any respect, or if Lessee renders any fulse statement or account, that
resulls in a Material Adverse Effect; provided, howaver, if ary such breach of a

4812955142121
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representation or wairanty does not place any rights or propery of Lessor in
{mmediste jeopardy, as determined by Lessor in its reasonable discretion, then
guch. breach shall not constitnte an Bvent of Default hereunder, unless otherwise
expressly provided hexein, unless and until Lessor shall have given Lessee notice
thereof and a period of thitty (30) days shall have elapsed, during which period
Lessee may comect ot curé such breach, upon failwe of which an Bvent of
Defanlt shall be deemed to have ocomyed heteunder without further notice or
demand of eny kind being required. If such breach cennot teagonably be cured
within such thirty (30} dey peaiod, as determined by Lessor in its rezsonable
diseretion, end Lessee is diligently pursuing a cure of such breach, then Lesses
shall bave a reasonable period to cire such breach beyond such thitty (30) day
petiod, which shall in no event exceed ninely (90} days after receiving notice of
such breach from Lessor, unless othetwise mutvally agreed upon in writing. Tf
1.essee shall fail to cottect or cute snch breach within such ninety (90) day period
and said period is not extended by the parties, an Event of Default hall be
deemed to have occwred herennder without further notice or deinand of any kind

being required;

(i)  ifany Rental or other Monetaty Obligation dwe under this Lease iy
not paid within three {3) Business Days of notice it is past due;

(i}  if Lessee fails to pay, pricr to delinquency, any taxes, assessments
ot other charges the failure of which to pay will result in the imposition of a lian
against any of the Properties;

(iv)  ifthere {s an Insolveticy Event;
{v)  if Lesses vacates or abandons the Property;

(vi) if Lesaes fails to observe o1 perform any of the other covenants,
conditions or obligations of Lesses in this Lease; provided, hiowsver, if any such
failure does not involve the payment of any Monetary Obligation, does not place
any 1ights or property of Lessor in iinrnediste jeopardy, as determined by Lessor
in its reasonable diseretion, then such faflure shafl not constifute an Bvent of
Defanlt hereunder, unless otherwise expressly provided herein, vuless and unfil
Leszor shall have given Lesses notice thereof and a period of thitty (30) daya shall
have dlapsed, daring which perfod Lesses may correct or cure such failure, upon
§ailure of which an Event of Defialt shall be deemed to have occurred hersunder
without fusther notice or demand of any kind being required If such faihure
cannot reasohably be cured within such thitty (30) day perfod, as determined by
Lessor in its reasonable discretion, and Tessee is diligently pursuing a cure of
such failure, then Lessee shall huve a ressonable period to cute such failure
bevond such thirty (30) day pericd, which shall in no event exceed ninety (50)
days after revetving notice of such failure from Lessor, unless othatwise mutually
agreed upom in wiiting, If Lessee shall fail fo correct or cure such failure within
such ninefy (90} day period and said period is not extended by the parties, an
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Event of Default ghall be deemed to have occumed hercunder without further
noties ar demand of any kind being required; '

{vil) If a final, nonappealable judgment {s rendered by a cowt against
Lessea which has a Materie] Adverse Effect and is not discharged or provision
made for such discharge within nizety (90) days from the date of entry thereof;

(vitiy if Lessec shall be liguidated ot dissolved or shall begin
praceedings fowards its liquidation or dissolution; '

{ix)  if the estafe or interest of Lessee in any of the Properiies shall be
favied upon or attached in any proceeding and such estate or interest is about to be
sold or trapsferred or such process shall not be vacated or discharged within
ninety (90) days after it is made; '

(x) [Hany Dealer Apreement with respect to the Properties terminates or
expires prior to the expiration of the Lease and a substitute agreement for the
terminated or expited agreement is not entered into within thirty (30) days of such
expiration or termination, which substitute agveement shall be in form and substance
reasonably saifsfactory to Lessor; or

(zi) if there is an “Bvent of Default” or other breach or defauli by
Lesses under any of the other Transaction Documents or eny Other A greement,
after the passags of all applicable notice and cute of grace periods.

B Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, with or without notice or

demand, except as otherwise expresaly provided herein or such other notics as may be
requited by statute and cannot be waived by Lessee, Lessor shall be entitled to exercise,
af itz option, concmrently, successively, or in any combination, all remedies available at
law or in equity, inchuding without limitation, any one or more of the following:

4129857420 3
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{iy  To termiaate thiz Lease, whereupon Lessee's right to possession of
the Properties shall cense and this Lease, except as to Lessee’s Hability, shall b
terminated.

. (i}  To the extent not prohibited by applicable law, to reenter and take
possession of the Properties {or any pait thereof), any or all personal property or
fixfures of Lesses upon the Properties and, to the extent pamissible, &l Dealer
Agreements, franchises, licenses, area development agresments, perimits and other
rights or priviteges of Lessee pertaining o the use and opeiation of the Properties,
and to expel Lesses and those claiming under o1 through Lessee, without being
deemed guilly in any manner of trespass or-beooming lisble for any loss or
damage tesulting therefiom, without resort to logal or judicial process, procedure
or acfion. Except as ofherwize provided by applicable law, no notice from Lessor
hereunder of under a foreible entry and detainer statute or similar law shall
constifute ag clection by Lessor to terminate this Lease umless sach notice
specifically so states. IfLesses shall, after default, voluntarily give up possession
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of the Properties to Lessor, deliver to Lessor or its apents the keys to the
Properties, or both, such actions shall be deemed to be in compliance with
Lessor's tights and the aceeptance thereof by Lessor or its agents shall not be
deemed to constifute a termination of the Lease. Lessor reserves the right
following any reentry andfor releiting to exervise its 1ight to terminate this Lease
by giving Liessee wiitten notice thereof, in wiich event this F.ease will terrninate.

(i) To bring an action ageinst Lessee for any damages sustained by
Lessot or any equitable velief available to Lessor and o the extent not prohibited
by applicabls law, to seize all personal property or fiztures upon the Properties
which T.essee. owns or in which it has st interest, in which Lessor shall have a
landlord’s lien andfor sacutity interest, and to dispose thereof in accondance with
the laws prevailing at the time and place of such seizure or fo temove all or any
portion of such property and cause the same to be stored in a public warechouse or
elsewhere et Lessee's sole expense, without becoming lishle for any loss or
dampga resulting therefrom end without resorting to Iegel or judicial process,
procedure or action. ’

(iv)  To telet the Properties or any part thereof for sych teim or terms
(including & term which extends beyond the original Lease Term), at such rentals
and upen such other texms as Lessor, in ifs sole discretion, may determine, with
all proceeds received from such reletting being applied to the Rental and other
Monetary Obligations due fiom Lesses in such onder as Lessor may, in it sole
discretion, defermine, which other Monatery Obligations inclnde, withowt
Limitatios, all commercielly reasonsble repossession cosls, brokerage
commissions, afiorneys® fees and expenses, alteration, remodeling (which
remodeling costs shall not exceed the greater of (i) $25,000.00 per Property on {if)
the amount escrowed pwrsuant to Section 11 hereof for TI and Leasing
Commissions) end repeir costs and expenses of preparing for such reletting,
Except to the extent required by applicable Law, Lessor shell have no obligation
to relet the Properties or any patt thereof and shall in ne event be lisble for refosal
or failure to telet the Properties or any patt thersof, or, in the event of any such
roletting, for refusal or faiture to collect any rent due spon such reletting, and no
such refusal or feilure shall operate to relfove Lessee of any lisbility under this
Lease or otherwise o affect any such liability. Lessor reserves the right following
any veentry and/or reletting to exercise ifs right to terminate this Lease by giving
Lesses written motice thereof in which event this Lease will teyminate as
specified in said notics,

)  To recover from Lessee afl Costs paid or incurred by Lessot a3 a
result of such bieach, regandless of whether or not legal proceedings are acmally
commenced. .

() To immedistely o1 at any time thereafler, and with or without
notice, at Lessor's sole option but withont any obligation to do so, correct such
treach or default and charge Lesses all Costs incumed by Lessor thercin,  Any
sum or sums se paid by Lessor, together with interest at the Default Rate, shall be
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deemed to be Additional Rental hereander and shall be immediately due fiom
Lessea to Legsor. Any such acts by Lessor in correcting Lessee’s breaches or
defaults hereunder shall not be deemed fo cure said breaches o defaults or
constitute any waiver of Lessor’s ripht to exeicise any or all remedies set forth
herein.

(vil) To immediately or et any time thereafter, and with or withowt
notice, except as required hetein, set off any money of Lesses held by Lessor
under this Lease or any other Transaction Document or any Other Aptecment
against any sum owing by Lesses hereunder.

{(viify To seek any equitable relief available to Legser, including, without
limitation, the right of specific performance.

All powers and remedies given by this Section to Lessor, subject o applicable
Law, shatl be eumulative and not exclusive of one another or of any other tight or remedy
or of any other powets and remedies available to Lessor under this Lesse, by judicial
proceedings or otherwise, to enforce the petformance or ebservance of the covenants and
agreements of Lessee contained in this Lense, and no delay or omission of Lessor to
exercise ay right or power accruing upon the oecurrenee of any Event of Defanit shall
impair amy other or subsequent Bvent of Default or impair any rights or reruedies
consaquent thersto, Bvery power and remedy given by this Section o by Law to Legsor
muy be exercised from time to time, and as often as may be decrned expedient, by Lessor,
subject at all Bmes to Lessor’s right in its sole judgment 0 discontinue eny work
commenced by Lessor or change any course of action nndertaken by Lessor.

21, Mortgage, Subordination aud Atformment TLessor's interest in this Lease
and/or the Properties shall not be subordinate fo0 any liens or encumbrances placed upon the
Properties by or resulting fiom any act of Legsee, and nothing herein contained shall be
construsd to require such subordination by Lessor. Lessee shall keep the Properties free from
eny liens for work performed, materials finnished or obligations incutred by Lesses. NOTICE
IS HERERY GIVEN THAT LESSEE I8 NOT AUTHORIZED TO FLACE OR. ALLOW TO BE
PLACED ANY LIEN, MORTGAGE, DEED OF TRUST, SECURITY INTEREST OR
ENCUMBRANCE OF ANY KIND UPON ALL OR ANY PART OF THE PROPERTIES OR
LESSEE'S LEASEHOLD INTEREST THEREIN WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN
CONSENT OF LESSOR, WHICH CONSENT SHALL NOT BE UNREASONABLY
WITHHELD, CONDITIONED OR DELAYED, AND ANY SUCH PURPORTED
TRANSACTION SHALL BE VOID.

This Lease at all times shall antomatically be subordinate to the lien of amy and all ground
leases, martgnges and trust deeds now or hereafier placed upon any of the Properties by Lessor,

provided, that the holder of such interest shall not dishwb Lessee’s use and enjoyment of

Lessee’s rights under this Lease so long as Lessee is not in defam!t herennder  Lessee covenants
and agrees to execute and deliver, npon demend, such fiwther instruments subordinating this
Lease 1o the len of any or all such ground leases, mortgages or trust deeds as shall be desired by
Lessot, or any present or proposed mortgagees under tiust deeds; provided, that the termg and
provislons of any such instrument ars comameretally reasonable.
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If any mortgagee, receiver or other secured party elects to have this Lease and the interest
of Lessee hereunder be superior to any such grovnd lease, mortgage or trust deed and evidences
such election by notice given to Lessee, then this Lease and the interest of Lessee hereunder shafl
be deemed supertior to any such ground lease, mottgage or ttust deed, whether this Lease was
executed before or after such grovnd lease, martgage or ftust deed and in thet event such
mortgages, receiver or other secured party shall have the sane rights with respect to this Lease
es if' it had been executed and delivered prior to the execntion aod delivety of mch ground lease,
mottgage or frust deed and had been assigned to such mortgages, teceiver or other secured party.

In the event any purchaser or assignee of any mortgapes at a foreclogore sale acquires
title to any of the Properties, or in the event that any morgages o1 any assiznee otherwise
succeeds to the rights of Lessor as landlord under this Lease, Legsee shall attorn to mostgagee or
such purcheser or assignee, as the case may be (a “Successor Lessor™), snd recognize the
Successor Lessor as lessor under this Lease, and, provided no Bvent of Default hiss ocoured an is
contiming, the Successor Lessor shall recognize snd not distsb Lessee’s tenancy created
hereby. So long as no Event of Default has ocovrred and io continuing, this 1.ease shall continue
in full force and effect as a direct lease between the Successor Lessor and Lessee, provided that
the Buccesser Lessor shell only be liable for any obligations of Lessor under this Tease which
accrue from and after the dafe that such Successor Lessor acquires title to such Property or
otherwise succeeds to the tights of the Lessor as landlord hereundes. ‘The foregoing provisions
shal! be self~opetative and effective without the execntion of fusther instruments.

Lesses shall give written notice to aay lender or morigages of Lessor of whom Lessee is
notified of in writing of any breach or default by Lessor of any of its obligations mder this Lease
and give such lendes or moatgagee the same rights to which Lessor might be entitled to cure such

dsfault hefore Lessee miay exercise any remedy with respect thereto. Upon request by Lessor, -

Lessee shal] authotize Lessar to selease to any lender or mortgages Lessee's and/or Quarantor’s
financial staterments delivered to Lessor pursuant to this Lease or any Other Agteement.

22, Estoppel Certificate. At any timte, and flom time to Hme, each party shall,
promptly and in no event later than ten (10) days afier a request fiom the other exceue,
acknowledge and deliver to the requesting party, a¢ the case may be, & certificate in the form
supplied by the requeating party, certifying: (A) that this Lease is in full foree and affest and has
not been modified {or if modified, sefting foxth all modifications), o, if this Lease is not in full
force and effect, the certificate skall so specify the reasons therefor; (B) the commencement and
expiration dates of the Lease Term; (C) the date to which the Reatals have been paid under this
Leage and the amount thereof then payable; (D) whethen there are then any existing defanlis by
Lesses o1 Lessorin the performance of its oblgations nnder this Leass, and, if there ave any such
defimits, specifying the mature and extent thereof: (E) that no notice has been received by the
certifying party of auy defavit under this Lease which has not been cwred, except as to defaults
specified in the certificate; (F) the capacity of the person executing such certificate, and that snch
person. is duly avthorized o execute the swme on behalf of Lessse; and; (G} and any other
information reasonably requested by the requesting party.
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23,  Assigunent,

A As a materdal indacement to Lessor’s willingness to complete the
transactions contemplated by this Lease (the “Transaction™) and the other Transaction
Documents, Lesses hereby agrees that Lessor may, from time to time and at sny time and
without the consent of Lessee, engage in all ot any combination of the following, or enter
into agreements in comnection with any of the following or in accordance with
Tequirements that may be imposed by applicable securities, tax or other Laws: (i) the sale,
agsignment, grant, conveyance, trmsfer, financing, re-financing, purchese or re-
acquisition of ail, less than all or any portion of the Propetties, this Lease or any other
Transaction Document, Lessor's tight, title and interest in this Lease or any other
Transaction Document, the sarvicing tights with respect to any of the foregoing, or
participations in any of the foregoing, or (ii) & Secutitization and refated tiansactions.
Without in any way limiting the foregoing, the parties acknowledge and agree that
Lessor, in ifs sole discretion, may sssign this Lease or any interest hetein to another
Person (inciuding without limitation, 2 taxable REIT subsidiary) in order to maintain
Lessor’s or any of ita Affliales’ status as a REIT. In the event of any such sale o1
assignment other than a security assipoment, Lessee shall attorn to such purchaser or
assignee (so long 49 Lessor and such purchaser or assignee notify Lesses in wiiting of
such transfer and such purchaser or assignee expressly assumcs in wiiting the obligations
of Lessor hereunder). At the request of Lessor, Lessee will execute such documents
confitming the sale, assipnment or ofher tremsfer and such other agreements as Lessor
piay reasonobly iequest, provided that the same do not increase the liabilities and
obligetions of Lessee hereunder. Furthermere, upon the sale of any of the Propesties to a
thitd party and to the extentt necessary, Legsee and Lessor shalt execute an amendment to
this Lease omitting the sold Property fiom this Lease and shall execute a new lease
agreement relating to the sold Property fn foum and substancs ideptical to this Lease,
provided that the Base Anpual Rental shafl be limited to the sold Property. Lessor shall
e relieved, from and after the date of such fransfer or conveyanes, of liability for the
performance of any oblipation of Lessor contained herein, except for obligations or
liabilitles accrued prior to such assignment or sale.

B.  Lessee acknowledges that Lessor has telied hoth om the busincss
experience and creditworthiness of Lessee and npon the particular purposes for which
Lesses intends to uge the Propesties in entering into fhis Lease. Without the prier written
conent of Lessor, which consent will not be umeasonably withheld, (i) Lesses shall not
assign, transfer, convey, pledge or morigape this Lease or any interest thereln, whether by
openation of law o1 otherwise, (if) no Change of Control shall gecur, and (iif) no interest
in Lesses o1 any Guarantor shall be pledged, encumbered ot assigned as collaterel. 'With
respect to any requested assignment, Lessor shall consider such matters as the experience
and financial strength of eny assignes, the assumption by any assignee of all of Lessee’s
obligations haewnder by vmdertakings enforceable by Tessor, and the tranafer to or
procurement of all necessary Dealer Agreements, licenses and franchises to an assignee
in order to continme aperating the Properties for the purposes herein provided, At the time
of any assigrment of this Lease which is approved by Lessor, the assignee shall assume
all of the obligations of Lessee under this Lease purmmant to Lessor’s standard form of
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assurnption agreement. Such assignment of the Properties shall relieve Lesses of its
chligations respecting this Lease except for those cbligations erising prior to such
assignment "Any assignment, transfer, conveyance, pledge or mortgage in violation of
this Section 23 shall be voidable at the sole option of Lessor. Any consent to an
assignment given by Lessor hereunder shall not be deemed a consent to any subsequent
assignment.

C. Lassee shall not sublet any or all of the Properties without the prior written
consent of Lessor, which may be withheld by Lessor in its sole discretion and any such
purported subletting shall be void. Notwithstanding the forepoing, Lessee may sublet any
or &ll of the Properties without the consent of Lesser, provided, that (i) the subtenant is 2
nationally or regionally recognized company and will operated 2 Permitted Facility; (ii)
the subtenant will not violate the representation in Section 6.1; (jif) the sublesse expressiy
provides that it is subordinate and subject to this Lease; and {iv) Lessec provides prior
written natice of the sublesse and subtenant to Lessor and Lessor makes a detetrnination
that the sublease and subienant will aot have any adverse tax conseguence or negatively
impact the REIT status of Lessor and its Affiliates, which determination shall be made
withis fifteon (1 5) days ofrecelpt of Lessee’y wiitten notice.

24.  Notices. All notices, demends, designations, certificntes, requests, offers,
consenis, approvels, appointments and other instuments given pursmant to this Lease
(collectively called “Notiees”) shall be in writing and given by any one of the following:
{A) hand delivery, (B) express overnight delivery service, {C) certified ot 1egistered mail, refurn
Teceipt requested or (D) slectronic mail message, provided that a copy of such electronic mail
message is also sent via certified or registered meil, refurn receipt requested, within one Businass
Day of the tansmission of such elechonic mail message, and shall be deemed to have been
delivered upon (i} receipt, if hand delivered, (ii) the next Business Day, if delivered by a
reputable express overnight delivery service, (iif) the third Business Day following the day of
deposit of such notive with the United States Postal Service, if sent by certified or registered
mail, return receipt requested, or (iv) transmission, if delivered by electronic mail pursuant to the
requirements of Section 24(D} above. Notices shall be provided to the parties and addressos (or
electionic majl addresses) specified below:

Ifto Lesses: Suparpumper, Inc.
6451 8. Viiginia Street, Suit 306
Reno, Nevada §9511
Atth: Paul Morabito
Telecopy: (480) 222-1062
E-mail: pnorabitof@bigwheelnevada.com

With a copy to: Hodgson Russ LLP

140 Pearl Street, Buite 100
Buifalo, New York 14202
Attn: Sujata Yalamanchili
Telephone: (716} 848-1657
Telecopy: (716) 849-0349
E-mail: syalaman@hodpsoniuss.com
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It Lessoi: . Spirit SPE Portfolio 2007-3, LLC
14531 N. Scatisdale Road, Suite 200
Scottsdale, Avizona 85254-2711
Affention: Michael T. Bennett

SVP, Qperations

Telephone: (480) G06-6608
Telecopy: (480} 605-0826
B-Msil! mbermeti@spiritfinance. com

Wiih a copy to; Kutak Rock LLP
1801 Californda Steeet, Swite 3100
Denver, Colorado 80202
Agtention: Peggy A. Richter, Esq.
Telsphone; (303) 297-2400

Telacopy: (309} 2927799
E-Mall: pegey.richter@hutalagck.com

or to such other address or such other person as cither party may from time to time hereafter
specify to the other party in a notice defivered in the manner provided above.

25, Heldover . If Lesses remaing in possession of any Property after the expiration of
the term hereof, Lessee, al Lessor’s option and within F.essor’s sole discretion, ey be deemed a
tenent on a month-to-month bagis and shall continue to pay Rentals and other Monetary
Obligations in the amounts herein provided, except that the Bace Monthly Rental shall be
automatically increased to one hvmdred fify percent (150%) of the last Base Monthly Rent
payable under this Lease altocable to the subject Property by Lessor based upon the original
Purchase Price for the Properties end Lessee shall comply with all the terms of this Fease;
provided that nothing herein nor the acceptance of Remtal by Lessor shall be deemed a consent to
such holding over, Lessee shall defend, indemnify, protect and hold the Indemnified Parties
hegmless from and against any and all Tosses resulting from Lessee’s failore to swmwender
possession upon the expiration of the Lease Tenm, including, without limitation, any claims
tnade hy any suceeeding legsee.

26.  Intentiomally Delefed.

27.  Removal of Personalty. At the expiration of the Lease Tetm, and if Lesses is not
then in bteach hersaf, Lesseo may remove from the Propertivs all personal property belonging to
Lessee. Lessee shall repair any damage cansed by such removal and shall leave all of the
Properties bmom clean and in good and woiking condition snd repair inside aod out. Any
property of Lessed left on the Propetties on the tenth day following the expiration of the Lease
Term shall avfomatically and immediately become the propetty of Lessor.

28.  Financial Statements; Coropliance Certificate. Within forty five (45) days

after the end of each fiscal quarter and within ninety (90) days after the end of each Sscal year of

Lesses, Lossce shall deliver to Lessor (A) complete finzncinl stafements of Lessee and
Guarantor, or mers frequently upon request by Lessor including a balatice sheet, profit and loss
4812-9567.4273 3
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statemant, statement of changes in financial condition and all ofber related schadules for the
itscal period then ended; and (B) income statements for the business at the Properties AU such
financial slatements shall be prepared in accordance with GAAP, consistently applied from
pericd to period, be ceartified to bs accurate aud complete by en officer or director of Lesses and
Guarantor, respectively, which certificate shall state that such financial statcrnents fairly present,
in ell material respecks, the financial condition and results of operations of Lessee in accordance
with GAAP and shall provide an EBITDAR Ratio caloulation. Lessee mderstands that Lessor
will rely upon such finencial stafements and Lesses tepresents that such reliance is reasonable.
The annua] financial statements delivered to Lessor shall be audited by a nationally recognized
accounting firm and Lesseo shall deliver to Lessor copies of any other audited financial
staternents of Lessee and Guaranter which may be prepared, as soon as they are available.
Within thirty (30) days 2fler the end of each fiscal year of Lessee, and upon prior written request
by Lessot, Lesses shall deliver such compliance certificate to Lessor as Lessor may reasonably
eequite in order to establish that Lessee is in compliance with a1l of its abligations, duties and
covenants under this Leage, Lesses acknowledges thet Lessor’s lender shall have the right ta
pravide to prospective investors any informatien in Lessor’s possession, incheding, without
limitation, financial stafements relating to Properties and Lesses.

28.  Force Majeure. Any prevention, delay or stoppage due fo stiikes, lockouts, acts
of God, enemy or hostile goveramente! action, civil eommotion, fire or other casvalty beyond the
comtrol of the party obligated to perform {each, a “Foree Majeure Eveat™ shall excuse the
performence by such patty for a period equal to any such prevention, defay or stoppage,
sxpressly excluding, however, the obligations impased wpon Lessee with respact to Rental and
other Monetary Obligations fo be paid hereunder.

30.  No Merger. There shall be no merger of this Lease nor of the leasehold estate
created by this Lease with the fes estate in or ownership of any of the Properties by reason of the
fact that the same person, corporation, firm or other entity may acquite or hold o1 own, direcly
or indirectly, (A) this Lease or the leasehold estate created by this Lease or any interest in this
Lease or in such leasehold estate, and (B) the fes estate or ownership of any of the Properties or
any interest in swch fee estate o ownership. No such merger shall accur unless and until all
persons, cotpotations, firms and other entities having auy interest in (i) this Lease or the
leasehold estate created by this Lease, and (if) the fee'estate in or ownership of the Properties or
any peri theteof sought to be merped shall join In a written instrnment effecting such merger and
shall duly record the same. :

31.  Charaeterization.

A.  Lessor and Lessec acknowledge end wartant to each other that each has
been represented by independent counsel and has executed this Lease after being fully
advised by said counsel as to ity effact and significance. This Lease shall be interpreted
and constreed in a fair and impartial manner without regard to suck factois as the party
which preparcd the instrument, the celative bargaining powers of the patties or the
domicile of any party. Whenever in this Lease any words of obligaticn or duty are vsed,
such words or expressions shall have the same force and effect as though made in the
form of a covenant,
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B The fotlowing expressions of infenk, represemtations, warranties,

coverants, agmeements, stipulations and waivers ate a material indvcement to Lessor
entering into this Tease: '

4812-05574213 3
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(i) It is the intent of the parties hereto, and the parifes acknowledge
and agree thet they have executed and delivered this Lease with the undemtanding
that (1) this Lease constitirtes an unseverable and single lease of all, but not less
than all, of the Propettics, and, if at any time (his Lease covets other real propesty
ity addition to the Propesties, nelther this Lease, nor Lessee’s obligations or rights
hereunder may be alloeated o1 otherwise divided among such propetties by
Lessee; (2) this Lease is a “hue leass,” is not a financing lease, capital lease,
mortgage, equitable mortgage, deed of trst, trust agreement, secuwrity agreement
or other financing ot tnst wrangement, and the economic realities of this Lease
are those of & true lease; and (3) the business relationship created by this Lease
and any related docwments is solely that of a long-tetm commercial [ease between
Lessor and Lessee, the Lease has besn entered into by both parties in reliance

‘mpon the economic and legal bargains contained herein, and nome of fhe

agreemnents contained herein is intended, nor ghell the same be deemed or
construed, to create a parnership between Lessor and Lessee, to make them joint
venturers, to make Lesses an agent, legal represeatative, partner, subsidiary or
employee of Lessor, nor to make Lessor in any way 18sponsible for the debis,
obligations or losses of Lessee. Lessee acknowledges that Lessor (ot any
Affiliste or partner of Lessor) and the parties undes the Dealer Apgreement are not

-~ affiliates, agents, pertners or joint venturers, nor do they have any other legal,

representstive or Bduciary relationship.

{ii)  Each of the parties heteto covenants and agrees 1o the following
{1) each will hreat this Lease {[) as an operating 12ase pursuant to Statement of
Financial Accouating Standards No. 13, as amended; and {II} as 4 true lease for
state law reporting purposes and for federal income tax pmposes. For federal
income fax purposes, each party shall report this Leare as a tiue [ease with Lessor
as the owner of the Propetties and Lesses es the lessee of such Properties
including: (a) treating Leosspr as the owner of the Property eligible to claim
depreciation deduclions vader Section 167 o1 168 of the Code with respect to the
Propetties; (b) Lessee reporting 9 Rental payments ss rent expense under
Section 162 of the Code; and (c) Lagsor repotting the Remtal payments as temtal
income under Sectfon 61 of the Code; (2) each party will not, nor will it permit
any Affiliste to, at any time, ieke any action or fail to lake aty action with respect
to the prepamtion or filing of any stetement or discloswe (0 Goverpmental
Authority, including without limdtation, any income fex rehun (including an
ametided income tax returt), to the extent thaf such action or such failure to take
action would be inconsistent with the imention of the paities expressed in this
Section 31.B; (3)with respect to the Propesties, the Lease Tarm (including any
Bxtension Term} iz loss than eighty peicent (80%) of the estimated remaining
economic life of the Properties; and {4) the Base Annusk Rental is the fair matket
value for the vse of the Properties and was agreed to by Lessor emd Lessee on that
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basis, and the execution and delivery of, and the performance by Lessee of its
obligations under, this Lease do not constitute a transfer of ell or eny part of the
Properties, )

(iii) Lessee waives apy claim or defense based upon the
characterization of this Lease as anything other than a true lease and as a master
lease of all of the Properties Lessee stipulates and agrees (1) not ¢o chellenge the
validity, enforceability or characterization of the lease of the Properties ag a boe
lease and/or as a single, unseverable insinmment pertnining to the leass of all, but
oot less than all, of the Properties, and (2) not to assert or tgke or omit to fake any
getion inconsigtent with the agreements and understandings set forth in this
Section 31 B.

(iv)  The purties agree thet, notwithstanding any provision contained in

.this Lease, any parly (and each employee, representative or other agent of any
party) may disclose to any and ali persons, without limitation of any kind, eny

. mafter roquired under the Securities Act of 1933, as mmended (the “Securitics
Act"), or the Seeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Bxchange Act™.

32.  Essemenfs. During the Lease Texm, Lessor shall have the tight to grant
tasements on, gver, under and above the Properties without the prior consent of Lesses, provided
that such easements will not unreasonably or materially interfere with Lessee’s use of the
Properties.

33.  Banlauptey. As a material inducement to Lessor executing this Lease, Lessee

acknowledges and agrees that Lassor is relying upon (A) the financial condition and specific
opérating experionce of Lessee and Lesses”s obligation to vse the Propaties as a Permited
Facility specifically in accordance with a Dealer Agreement and (B) Lessec’s tmely
performancs of al} of its obligations under this Lease notwithstanding the ety of an order for
welief imder the Bankruptcy Code for Lessee. Accordingly, in consideration of the mutual
covenants contained in this Leass and for other good and velushle considetation, Lessee hareby
agrees that: (fy subjest to applicable law, all obligations that acerue under this Lease (including
the obligation to pay Rentals), ffom and after an Insolvency Event shall be timely performed
exactly as provided in this Lease and eny failurc to so perform shall be harmfal and prejudicial to
Légsor; (id) to the extent permitted by law, any and all Rentals that acctue fiom and- after the
filing for bankruptey and shat ate not paid as required by this Lease shall, in the amount of such
Rentals, constitute administrative expense claims allowsble under (he Bankmupicy Code with
Ppriority of payment at Jeast equel to that of any other actual and nocessary expenses fncuired
after the filing for bankruptey; (3i) any extension of the time period within which Lessee may
assume or reject this Lease without an obligation to cause ail enforceable obligations under this
Lease to be performed as and when requited under this Yease shall be harmfal and prejudicial to
Lesso; (iv) any time peried designated as the period within which Lessee must cure all
enforceable defimlts and compensate Lessor for all pecuniary losses which extends boyond the
date of assumption of iz Lesse shall be harmfid and prejudicial to Lessor; (v) subject o
applicable law, any assignment of this Lease must result in all ternis and conditions of this Lease
beitig assuraed by the assignee withowt alteraion or amendment, and any sssignment which
results in an amendment or aleration of the terms and conditions of this Lease without the
ARI2-955T4273 3
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express written consent of Lessor shall be harmfil and prejudicial to Lessor; (vi) any proposed
assighunent of this Lease shell be harmfil and prejudicial to Lessor if made to an assignee:
(1) that does not possess financial condition adequate to opetate a Permitted Facility upon the
Properties or operating performance and experience characteristics satisfactory to Lessor equal to
or better than the financial condition, operating performance and experience of Lessee as of the
Effective Diate, or (2) that does not provide guarantors of the lease cbligations with financial
condition equal {0 or better than the financial condition of the Guarsntor as of the Bffective Date;
or {3) that will not use the Properties specifically in accordance with a Dealer Agreement; and
(vii} subfect to applicable law, the rejection (o1 deemed rejection) of this Lease for any reason
whatsoever shall constitute cause for immediate relisf from the autometic stay provisions of the
Bankruptcy Code, and Lessee stipulates that such automatic stay shall be lifted immediately and
posscssion of the Proparties will be delivered to Lessor immediately without the necsseity of any
further action by Lessot. No provisiot of this Lease shall be desmed a waiver of Lessor’s tights
or remnedies imder the Bankwptey Code or applicable Law to appose any assumption and/ot
assignment of this Eeass, to require imely performance of Lessee’s obligations under this Lease,
or fo regain possession of the Propertieg as a result of the failure of Lessee to comply with the
terms and conditions of this Lease ot the Bankniptey Code Notwithstanding anything in this
Lease 1o the contrery, subject to applicable Iaw, alf amounts payable by Lessee to or on behalf of
Lessor under this Lease, whethes or not expressly denominated as such, shall constitute “rent”
for the pposes of the Bankeuptey Code, - For purpases of this Section addressing the rights and
ohligations of Lassor and Lesses upon an Insolvency Event, the term “Lessee” shall inchude
Lesses’s successor in bankiptey, whether a trustee, Lessee as debtor in possession or other
responsible person.

34.  Astorneys’ Fees. In the event of any judiciel or other adversarial proceeding
concemning thiz Lease, o the extent permitted by Law, Lessor the prevailiag party will be
entitled to recover all of its reasonable attoieya' fees and other Costs in addition to sny other
refief to which it may be entifled. In addifion, the prevailing paty shall, upon detnand, be
entitled to all attomeys’ fees and all other Costs incaned in the preparation and sezvice of any
notlee or demand hereunder, whether or not a legal action is subsequently commenced.

35.  Memorandum of Leaso. Concuzently with the sxecntion of this Lease, Lessor
&hd Yesses are cxecuting Lessor's standaid forn memorandim of lease in recordeble form,
indicating the names and addresses of Lessor and Lessee, a dosctiption of the Properties, the
Lease Tetm, bul omithing Rentals and such other termns of this Lease as Leszor may not desire to
disclose to the public Further, upon Lessor's request, Lesses apress to execute and
acknowledge a termination of lease andfot uit claim deed in recordable form to be held by
Lessor uniil the expiration or sooner terrnination of the Lease Term.

36.  No Brokerage. Lessor and Lessee represent and wartant to cacl other that they
have had no conversalien or negotistions with any broker concemning the leasing of the
Properties. Each of Lessor and Lessee agrees to protect, indemmify, save and keep harmless the
other, against snd from all Habilities, claims, losses, Costs, damages and expenses, incloditg
atomeyy’ fees, arising out of, resulting from or in connection with their breach of the foregoing
warranty and representation,
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37,  Walver of Jury Trial and Pumifive, Consequential, Specisl and Indirect
Damages. To the maxinaum extent permitted by law, Lessor and Lessee hereby Imowingly,
voluntarily and itentlonally waive the right either may have o a frial by jury with respect
to any and all issues presented in any action, proceeding, claim or comnterclalm brought by
eithier of the pariies hereto againgt the other or its suceessors with respect to any matter
arising out of or in copnection with this Lease, the relationship of Lessor and Lcssee,
Lessea’s use or occupancy of the Properties, and/or any claim for injury or damage, or any
emergency or statutory remedy, This walver by the parties hereto of any right either may
bave to a hial by Jury has been negotiated and is an essentlal aspect of their bargain.
Furtheymore, fo the maximum extent permitted by law, Lessee hereby kmowingly,
volunfarily and intentionally wabves the right it may have to seek punitive, consequendal,
special snd Indirect damages from Lessor and any of the Afflliates, officers, direetors,
members, managers or employees of Lessor or any of their suceesxors with respect to any
and all lssues presented In any action, proceeding, clpim or eounterciaim bronght with

_1espect to any matier arising out of or in connection with this Lease or any document
coptemplated herein or velated herets, The waiver by Lessee of any right it may have to
seck punitive, consequentlal, special and fudirect damages has heen negotlated by the
parties Bereto and is an essentfal aspact of their bargain,

38, Secmritizations and Other Transactions. As a material inducement to Lessor’s
willingness o complete the Transactions contemplated by this Lease and the other Transaction
Documents, Lessee hereby acknowledges and agrees that Lessor may, from time to time and at
any time (A) upon teceipt of Lessee's consent, which consent shal? not be unreasonably withheld
or delayed, advertise, issue press reloascs, send direct mail or otherwise disclose information
regarding tha Trangaction for marketing purposes; and (B) (i) act or permit another Person to act
a3 sponsor, seitler, transferor or depositor of; o1 a holder of interssts in, one or moge Persons or
other arrangements formed puwsuant to 2 trust apresment, indenture, pooling agresment,
participation agreement, sale and servicing opreement, limited lisbility company agteetnent,
pastnership agreement, articles of incorporation or similer ageement or document; and
{ii) permit one or more of snch Persons or anangements to offer and sell stock, certificates,
bonds, notes, other svidences of indebtedniess or secwities that are divectly or indirectly secured,
rollateralized or otherwise backed by or represent a direct or indirsct interest in whole or in part
in any of the assety, rights or properiies descitbed n Section 23.A of this Lease, in one or mote
Persons or artangements bolding such assets, tights or propertiss, or any of them (collectively,
the “Becurities™), whether any such Securilies are privately or publicly offered and sold, or mated
ot unrated (any combination of which actions and transactions deseribed in both clanses (j) and
(i) in this paragraph, whether proposed or completed, are refered to in this Lease as a
“Sgcuritization™). Lessee shall cooperate fully with Lessor and any Affected Patty with respect
to &ll reasonahle requests and due diligence procedures and to use rasonable efforts to facilitate
such Securitization, including without limitation, providing for inclusion in any prospectus ot
other Secuities offering .material such documents, financinl and other dats, and other

inforimation and materisls which would customasily be required with respect to Lessce by a,

purchaser, tansforee, assignce, servicer, parficipani, investor or rating agency involved with
tespect to such Secutitization, and Lessee shall indemnify =nd hold barmless Lessor for any and
all linbilifies, losses and expenses arising under the Sequities Act, or the Exchange Aet, in
connection with any material misstefement {or alleged misstatemnent) contained in such
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information provided in writing (including, without limitation, electronically) by Lessee o1 its
officers, matagers, members, employees, o1 agenis, or any omission {or alleged omission} of &
material fact by Lessea or its officers, managers, mermhers, employess, or agents, the inclusion of
whick was necessary to make such written information not misleading, unless such matetial
misstatement or alleged migstaternent or omission or alleged omission is caused by Lessor or ite
directors, officers, ranagzrs, rembers, sharcholders, erployees, or agents. Lessee shall deliver
to Lessor, any Affected Party and to any Person designated by Lessor, such statements and audit
letters of teputable, iedependent certified pubfic accountants pertaining to the written
information provided by Lessee pursuant to this Section a3 shall be reguested by Lessor ot such
Affected Parly, as the cass may be. Lesses also shall deliver to Lessor, any Affected Party and
to any Person desigmated by Lessor or any Affected Party, such opinions of counsel {including
without limitation, local counsge) opinjons), appraisals, environmental reports and zoning letters,
or updates of any of the foregoing, as are customarily delivered in conneetion with
Securitizetions or as may be required by any 1ating agency in connection with any Securitization,

39.  Intemifomally Deleted,

40.  Performance at Lessee’s Expense. Lessee ackmowledges and confirms that
Lessor, upon notice o Lesses, may impose certain reasonable, administretive, processing or
servicing fees, and coflect its attorneys® fees, costs and expenses in conaection with (a)any
extension, rencwal, modification, amendment and tetmination of this Lease, (i) the procurement
of eezfain consents, waivers and approvals with respect to the Properties or any matter related to
this Lease, () the review of any assignment or subleass or proposed assignment or sublease or
the preparation or xeview of mny subordination, non-dishwbance agreement, (d) the collection,
maintenance andfor disbursement of reserves created nnder this Lease or ths other Transaction
Documents, and (6} inspections required to meke certain determinations woder this Lease o1 the
other Transaction Documents. Lessee hereby acknowledges and agrees to pay, immediately
upon demand, all such feeg (as the same roay be increased or decressed from tiroe to tie}, and
eny additionel fees of a similar type or nafure which may reasonably be imposed or incwrred by
Lessor from time o time.

4],  Miscellaneons.

A, TimeIs of the Essence. Time iz of the essence with respect to each and
every provision of this Lease.

B. Waiver and Amendment. No provision of this Lease shall be deemed
waived or amended except by a wiitten {nsttament wnambiguously setting forth the
matter waived or amended and signed by the party against which enforcemsent of such
walver or amendment is sought. "Waiver of any matter shall not be desmed a wajver of
the same or any other matter on any future occasion. No acceptance by Lessor of an
amount less than the Rental and other Monetary Obligations stipulated to be due under
this Lease shall bs deamed to be other than a payment on account of the earliest such
Rental or other Monetary Obligations then due or in amears nor shall any ¢ndorseraent or
statement on any check or letter accompanying any such payment be deemed & waiver of
Lessor’s tight to collect any unpaid arounts or an accord and satisfaction.
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C.  Successors Bownd. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the
tertns, cavenants and conditions contained in this Fease ghall bind and inure to the benefit
of the respective heirs, suceessors, cxecutors, administrators and asgigns of each of the
parties heveto,

D, Captions. Captions are wsed throughout this Lease fbr convenfence of
referance only and shall not be vonsidered in any meanper in the comstuction or
interpretation hereof.

E. Saverability. The provigions of this Lease shaill be desmed severable. If
any patt of this Lease shall be held unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction,
the remainder shall remain in fall force and effisct, and such unenforseable provision shall
be reformed by such comt so as to give maximm Jegal effect to the intention of the
parties as sxpressed therein.

E. QOther Docronents, Bach of the patties agrees to sign such other and
further docmments es may be necesascy o approptiate to cany out the intentions
expressed in this Lease; provided such documents are reasonsbly acceptable to each
parties’ counsel,

Q.  Enfire Agreemen? This Lease and any other instruments or agreements
referred to herain, constifute the entire agreement hetween the pasties with respect to the
subject matter bereof, and there are no other representations, wamantics or agreements
except ag hereln provided.

H. Forum Selection, Jurisdiction, Venue; Choice of Law. For purposes of
any action or proceeding srising out of this Lease, the parties hereto expressly submit to
the jurisdiction of all fedetal and state cowts located in the State of Nevada, Lesses
consents that it may be served with any process orpaper by 1egistered mail or by petsonl
service within or without the State of Asizona in accordance with applicable law.
Furthermore, Lessee waives and agrees not to assert in any such action, suit or
proceeding that it is not personaily subject to the jurisdiction of such courts, that the
action, suit or procesding ia brought It an inconvenient forum or that verme of the action,
smit or procesding is improper. Nofhing contained in this Section shall imit or testrict
the right of Lessor fo commence any proceeding in the federal or state cowts located in
the state where each Properiy is located to the extent Lessor deems such proceeding
necessary or advisshle to exetcise remediey available under this Lease. This Lease shall
be govemed by the laws of the sfate in which the Propertics are located. :

L Counterparts. This Lease may be executed in one or more counterparts,
each of which shall be desmed an origual, H

42, Guaranty. ©On or before the execution of this Lease, Lessee shall cause
Guarantor fo execate and deliver to Lessor the Guaraaty,

Harmirt 1t v e
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IN WITNESS WHERECF, Lessor and Lessee have entered info this Lease as of the date

first above writfen.

4812-953742733
SpirilSuperpumper
6 propertics in Bhosnix, AZ
6311/02-1000

LESSOR:

SPIRIT SPE PORTFOLIO 20073, LLC, a

Delawan: limited liability cotpany

Byl UJ\E_Z
Printed Name: pag Choed T. Besnrred-t
TifleQemtor Yice, :i‘m.sm&uﬂf

Tax Identification No _2¢, ~0Dz 779 71
LESSEE:

SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona corporation

—

PrmtedNams‘ \ | vBoor pru,a‘
Title: See v tany
Tax [dentification No. v

37
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STATE OF ' 2004 )
- )ss
COUNTY OF mgﬂ'mﬁ )

The foregoing instrument was ackpowledged before me on 29, 2007 by
L T as in ‘o y of SPIRIT SPE
PORTFOLIO 2007-3, L1.C, a Delaware limvited Hability cotpaniy, o £ of the company.

My Commission Bxpires; MM}O_L[

STATE OF
Jeg
COUNTY OF
/ foragoipg 1 et pvas ackmowledged before me on 2007 by
as of SUPERPUMPER, INC.,, anfArizoffa corporation, on

behalf of the cotporation.

7 g
My Comunission Expires

SUSAN HILL
Hotary Public - State of Nevada
Agpointmant Fecoctititn Washog Gounly
Mo B2-0404-2 - Explres March 2, 2608
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EXHIBIT A

DEFINED TERMS

The following tenms shall have the following meanings for all purposes of this Lease;
¥ADA" has the meaning set forth in Section 12.C.
“Additiona! Renlal” has the meaning sct forth in Section 4.C

“Adjustment Date” means Tuly 1, 2008, and every anpiversary thereafter during the Lease
Tem (including eny Extension Term).

“Affectzd Party” means each direct or indirect participant o1 investor in a proposed or
completed Securitization, including, withowt limitation, any prospective owner, any iating
agency ot any patty to any agresrnent executed in connection with the Securitization

“Affiliare” means any Person which ditectly or indirectly controls, is wnder common
confrol with or is controlled by any ofher Petson.  For purposes of this definitlon, “controls”,
“under common control with”, and “controlled by means the possession, directly or indirectly,
of the powet to direct or canse the direction of the management and policies of such Person,
whether through the ownership of voting securities or otherwise,

“Banlpuptey Code” means the United States Bankruptey Code, 11 U8.C. Sec. 101
¢t 5843, a5 amended

“Rase Annua! Rental” means $2,794,391.91,

“Base Monihly Renial" means an amount equal to 1/12 of the applicable Base Annual
Rental. :

“Business Day" means a day on which banks located in Scottsdale, Arizona are not
required or authorized to remain closed.

“Casunlyy” means any loss of or damage to any property included within or selated to any
Propety 01 avising from an adjoining propetty vaused by five, flood or other casualty,

“Change of Conirol” shall be deemed to have taken place upon the eccwrrence of any of
the follewing events: (i} any person, entity or affiliated group acquirng 56% or more of the then
onistanding voting shares of Lessee, Guarantor or PAMCO, respeciively; (ii) the consnmmation
of any merger or consolidation of Lessee, Guarantor or PAMCO into another company, such that
the holders of the voting shares of Lessee, Guaratitor or PAMCO, respectively, immediately
prior to such merger or consolidation own: less than 50% of the combined voting power of the
seiurities of the surviving company or the parent of such surviving company; (iii) the complete
liguidation of Lesses, Guarantor ox PAMCO or the gale or dispesition of all or substantially all of
the assets of Lessoe, Guatentor ot PAMCO, respectively, such that after the transaction, the

Al '
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holders of the voting shares of Lessee, Guatantor or PAMCO, tespestively, immediately priot to
the trensaction own, less than 50% of the voling securities of the acquirer or the parent of the
acquiter; or {ivy a majority of the members of the Board of Lessee, Guarantor or PAMCO votes
in favor of any event described in items [i), (i) or (iii) above.

“Cods” means the Intomal Revenue Code of 1986, as the same may be amended from
tite to time. '

“Condemnation” means a Takdng and/or a Requisition.

“Costs” means all reagonsble costs and expenses incurred by a Person, including witheut
Iimitation, reagonable attorneys® fees and expenses, court casts, expert witness fees, costs of testa
and analyses, havel and accommodation expenses, deposition and hial transcripts, copies and
other similar costs and fees, broketage fees, escrow fees, title insurance premiumas, appraissl
fees, stamp taxes, recording fees and transfer taxes or fees, as the citcumstances reguice.

“Dealer Agreement” means eny wiittent agreement or other derument granting Lesses
the rights necessary fot the opembion of & Permitted Facility, including the WMA Dealer

Agieement any and all other agreements relating to the ssle and distibution of pelrolenm

products.

“Defenelt Rate” menns 18% per apnum or the highest rate permitied by law, whichever is
less.

“Boaply Termination Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 18.CG){1).

“EBITDAR™ means, for any twelve {12) month trailing petiod, an amount equal to
(without duplication): () the consolidated met incoms for such petiod, plus (i) depreciation,
amortization and pther non-cash charges (including, but not limited to, imputed interest, deferred
compensation and charges assoolated with impairment of goodwill purmant tc FASB 142) for
such poried (o the exient deducted in the computation of consolidated net inceme of such
Person), all in accordance with GAAP, plas {fi) intetest expense for such period {to the extent
dedurted in the computation of consolidated net income), plos (iv) the provision for taxes for
such petied (to the extent deducted in the computation of consolidated net income), plus (v)
EBITDAR Rent (o the extent such HBITDAR Rent was deducted in the computation of
consolidated net incoms of such Pesson), plus (vi) aon-recooing items and wmisnal items,
ingluding mansgement fees and dividends to shaceholders, less (vii) all non-recuning income
items.

“EBITIIMR Eveni” means sither (i) any time that Lessee frils to meintain {(y) en
EBITDAR Ratio of 1.45 to 1 or higher (tested quasterly on a twelve (12) month trailing hasls)
and {(z) a book value of stockholders® equity of' at least Six Million ($6,000,000.00); or (i} any
{ime that 1Lesses fails to maintain an BBITDAR Ratio of 1 20 fo 1 or higher (fested guartesly on a
twelve (12} month tailing basis).

"EBITDAR Ratfo* means thetatio of Lesses’s EBITDAR divided by EBITDAR Rent.
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“ER{TDAR Rent" means, collectively, any tental amounts {excluding reimbursables for
expenses such as Taxes, [nsurance and maintenance) payable by such Person under any leases
then in cffect to which such Person is a pasty, utilizing the rental amounts in effect &t the Hme of
the EBITDAR calowlation.

“Effective Date” has the meaning get fotth in the h&oductoxy paragraph of this Lease.

“Bnvironmental Insurer” reens such environmenta] insurance company as Lessor shall
seleet in its sole discretion.

“Emvirenmental Laws" toeans federsl, state and local laws, ordinances, common law
requirements and regulations and standards, rules, policies and other governments] requirements,
administrative rutiegs and court jadgments and decrees having the effect of law in effect now or
in the fahmue and including all amendments, that relate to Hazardous Materials, Regulated
Substances, USTy, and/or the protection of human health or the environment, or 1elating to
liahility for or Costs of Remediation or prevention of Releages, and apply fo Lesses and/or the

Properties.
“Envirommental Liens” has the meaning set forth in Section 12.0(i)(2).

“Emvironmental Policy” means, collectively, a (i) pollution legal lisbility insurance pelicy
or policies issued hy Environmental surer to Lessor and Lessor's lender with respect to the
Properties, which Environmental Policy shall be in form and substance satisfactory to Lessor in
its sole discretion and shall be in amounts of not less than $2,000,000.00 per occmrence and
$6,000,000.00 annnal apggrepato for losses cansed by knowm and wnknown pollution conditions
that arise from the operations of the tenant, their contractots, or theit' sub-contractors, with
coverage to include: (a) bodily injury, sickness, disease, mental anguish or shock sustained by
any person, or death, (b} property damage, including physical injury to or destruction or tangible
propesty, including the zesulting loss of use thereof, (¢) clean up costs and the logs of use of
tangible property that has not been physically damaged or desiroyed, and (d) defense, inclnding
costs, charges and ezpenses incwred in the investipation, adjustment or defense of claims for
damages; and (if) undergronnd storage tank insurance policy or policies issved by Eovironmental
Insurer to Lessor and Lessor’s lender in form and substance and in such amounts as are
safigfactory fo Lessor in its sole discretion, Additionally, such Environmental Insurance shall
comply with Lessor’s lepder’s guidelines sef forth in Bxhibit C attached hersto.

“Environmental Reports™ means, collectively, (i} that cértain Phase I Envirommental
Assesyment dated June 21, 2007 prepared by Nova Consuliing Group, Inc. (Project No. BO7-
2012) with respect to the Property located at 13240 N. Scoftsdale Road, Scottzdale, Atizona
85254; (i) that cetain Phase T Environnental Assessment dated Juns 22, 2007 prepared by Nova
Consulting Group, Inc. (Project No. B07-2014) with 1espect to the Property located at 6324 Bast
CGreonway Patkway, Scottsdale, Atirona 85254; (ii) that osilein Phass I Environmental
-Assessment dated Tupe 22, 2007 prepared by Nova Consulting Group, Ine. (Project No. BO7-
2016) with respect to the Property Jocated at 21015 Nouth Céve Creek Road, Scotisdule, Arizona
85050; (iv) that certain Phase | Bavironmental Assessment dated Juns 22, 2007 prepared by
Nova Consulting Grotp, Tuc. (Projest No. BOT-2018) with respect to the Pioperty located at
15550 North Thompson Pesk Pakway, Seotfzdale, Arizona 85260; (v} that cerfain Phase I
4812955742133
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Environmental Assessment dated June 22, 2007 prepered by Nove Consulting Group, Ine.
(Project No. B07-2020) with respest to she Properly loceted at 4740 Fast Dynamite Blvd,
Phoenix, Arizona 85331; and {vi) that certain Phase I Environmental Assessment dated June 232,
2007 prepared by Nova Consulting Group, Inc. (Project Na. B07-2021) with tespect to the
Property located at 8646 East Frank Lloyd Wright Blvd , Scottadale, Atizona 85260,

“Event of Defewif” has the meaning set forth in Section 2004,
“Exchange Act™ has the meaning set forth in Section 31.B(iv)
“Expiration Date™ has the meaning sot forth in Section 3.
“Extension Qption” hag the meaning sct fosth in Section 3.
“Extension Ters” hag the meaning set fotth in Section 3.
“Force Mgjeure Event” hes the meaning set forth in Section. 28.

“GAAF” means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of Amerlea
as of the date of the applicable financial report.

“Goverpmental Authority’ means any povernmental authorify, agency, department,
commission, bursau, board, instrumentality, coutt or quasi-governmental anthozity of the United
States, any state o any political subhdivision thereof with authority to adopt, modify, amend,

- interpret, glve effect b or enforce any federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules or
regulations, including common 1aw, or fo issue goutt oxders.

“Guaranior” means, collectively, P.A. MORABITO ARIZONA & CO, LIMITED, a
Nevada corporation, and Paul A. Morabito, an individual, or any other additional or replacement
guarantor approved by Lessor in its sole and absolute discretion

“Guaraniy” means that certein Unconditional Guaranty of Payment and Petformance
dated a3 of the date heteof between Guarantor and Lessor; provided, however, the Guarsnty
provided by Faul A. Moerabito shall be limited to the obligations of Lessee under Section 11
herenf.

“Hazardous Materigh” includes: (a) oil, pctroleum products, flammable substances,
explosives, radioactive materials, hazardous wasfes or substances, toxic wastes or substances or
any other materials, contaminants or pollutants which pose a hazard to any of the Properties or to
Petsons on or aboul any of the Properties, canse my of the Properties fo be in violation of any
local, state or federal law or regulation, (including withont limitation, any Envirermental Law),
or arc defined as or tncluded in the definition of “hazardous swbstances”, “hazardous wastes”,
“hazardons materials™, “toxic substances”, “contaminants”, *pollutants”, or words of similar
import under any appliczble local, state or federal law or under the regulations adopted, orders
issued, or publications promulgated pursuant thereto, including, but not limited to: (i) the
Cotnprehensive Environimental Response, Compesnsation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended],
42U 8.C. §9601, et seq ; (i) the Hazardous Materials Transporiation Act, as amended, 49 U 8.C.
$1801, et geq ; {ii1) the Resource Conscrvation aad Recovery Act, u3 amended, 42 1.8.C. §6901,
4612-955742713 2
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et seq; and (iv) regulations adopted and publications promulgated pmsusnt to the aforesatd laws;
{b) asbestos in any form which is or could become friable, urea formaldelyde foam insulation,
transformers ot other ogquipment which contaln diclectic fluid containing lovels of
polychlotinated biphenyls in excess of fifty {50) patts per million; (¢) underground storage tanks;
and (d) any other chemical, material or substante, exposure fo which is prohibited, Lirmited or
regulated by any governmental avthoiity ot which may or could pose a hazird to the healih and
safety of the ocenpants of any of the Properties or the owners and/or occupants of any adjoining

peoperty.

“Pdemnified Parties” means Lessor, Environmental Inswter, and their members,
matage:s, officers, directors, sharcholders, pattmers, employess, agents, servants,
representatives, conttactors, subcontractors, affiliates, subsidiaries, participants, successors and
assigns, including, bt not limited to, any successors by merger, consolidation or acquisition of
all or o substantia! portior. of the assets and business of Lessor or Environnental Tnsorer, as
applicable.

“Tnifial Term" has tho mcaning set forth in Section 3.

“Insolvenicy Everf” means (3) Lessee's () fallme 1o generally pay its debts ag guch debts
become doe; (if) admitting in writing its inability to pay its debts genernlly; or (iti) meking a
general assignment for the benefit of cieditors; (b) eny proceeding heing instituted by or against
Lessee (i) seeking to adjudicate it a banlrupt or insolvent; (ii) seeking liquidation, winding up,
reorganization, arangement, adjustment, protection, relief, or campositton of it or its debts under
any Law relating to bankzupicy, insolvency, or teorganization o1 relief of debtors; or (jif) seeking
the entry of an order for relief or the appointment of a receives, trustee, or other similar official
for it or for any substantial part of its property, and in the case of any such proceeding instituted
againgt Lesses, either suoh proceeding shall remain undismissed for a period of one hundred
twenty (120)days or any of the rctions sought in such proceeding shall ocour; or (5) Lesses
taking any corporate action to authorize any of the actions set forth above in this definition.

“Law{s)" means any constitufion, statute, mle of law, code, ordinance, order, judgment,
deciee, injunction, rule, regulation, policy, requirement or administrative or judicial
determination, even if imforeseen o1 extraordinary, of every duly constiteted Governmental
Authority, court or agency, now or heteafter enacled or in effect.

“Lease Term” shall have the meaning described in Section 3.

“Legal Requirements” means the tequirements of all present end fatwe Laws (including
without limitation, Bnvirommentat Laws and Laws telating to accessibility to, usability by, and
discrimioation apainst, disabled individuals), all judicial aod administrative interpretations
thereef, including any judiciat order, consent, decres or judgment, and all covenants, reshictions
and conditions now or hereafter of record which may be applicable to Lesses or to any of the
Propecties, or to the use, menner of use, oceupancy, possession, operstion, maintenance,

alteration, repair or testoration of any of the Properties, even i compliance tharewith neecssitates
stiuctural changes or improvements or resvits in interference with the use or enjoyment of any of

the Properties,
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© “Lessee Entities” means, collectively, Lessee and all Affiliates of Lesses.
“Lessor Bntities” racany, collectively, Lessor and all Affiliates of Lessor

“Lessor's Total Itvestmenf™ means, with respect to any Property, the sum of (a) the gross
purchase price paid for such Property by Lassor (or Lessor's predevessor-in-interest) (including,
without limitation, any morigage debt Incutred or assumed in connection therewlth), plus (b) the
closing costs and expenses incurred by Lessor (or Lessor’s predecesyorin-interest) with respect
to the purchase of such Propetty.

“Loss Value” hay the meaping set forth in Section 18.C({iH)(3)

“Losses” means any aud all claims, suits, liabilities (incheding, without Hmnitation, strict
liahilities), actions, proceedings, obligations, debts, demages, losses, Costs, diminntions in value,
fines, penalties, interest, charges, fees, judgments, awaids, amounts paid in seitlement and
damages of whatever kind or nature, inclusive of bodily infury and property damage to third
paaties (inchuding, without limitation, attorneys’ fees and other Casts of defense),

“Material Adverse Effect" meane a material adverse effect on (i) any of the Properties,
including, withput limitation, the operation of any of the Propeties as a Penmitted Racility and/or
the value of any of the Properties, {ii) Lessee’s ability to perfoim its obligations under this Lease,
or (jii} Lessot’s interests in eny of the Properties, this Lease or the other TrensacHon Documents.

“Monetory Obligarions” means all Rente] and all other sums payable ot reimbursable by
Lessee under this Lease to Lessor, to any thitd party on behelf of Lessor, or to any Idemnified
Peaty.

“Wet Award” means (a) the entive award payable with respect to a Property by reason of a
Condemnation whether pursuant fo a judgment or by agreement or otherwise, o7 (b} the eatire
proceeds of any insurance required under Section 10 payable with respect to & Property, as the
case may be, and in cither cass, less any Costs incumed by Lessor in collecting such award o1
proceeds.

“Noficas™ has the meaning sei forik in Section 24.

“OF4C List* maeans the list of specislly designated nationals and blocked pesons subject
to finencial sanctions ihat is maintained by the U.S, Treasury Department, OGffice of Foreign
Assets Control end any other similsr Jist maintained by the U8, Treasury Depasytment, Office of
Foreign Asscts Control pussuant to any Lepal Requirements, inclading, without imitation, trade
embargo, cconomic sanotions, or other prohibitions imposed by Executive Order of the President
of the Upited States. The OFAC List currently ja accessible through the internet website

www.treas povlofeo/] 1sdn.pdf.
"PAMCO” means Paul A, Morabito & Co., Limited, a Nevada cotporation.

“Partial Casuelty” has the meating set forth in Section 18.B.

“Pariial Condemnation” has the meaning set forth in Section 18.1H.

481295514219 3
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“Permitted Amounis” shall mean, with tespect o any given level of Hazardous Materials
ar Regulated Substances, that leve! or quantity of Hazardous Materials or Regulated Substances
in any form or combination of forms which does not consfitute a violation of any Envitonmental
Laws and is customarily employed in, or assocfated with, similar businesses located in the states
whets the Properties are located.

“Parmifted Encumbrances” shall mean those covensnts, restricHons, reservations, Liens,
conditions, encroachments, easements and other mattsis of title that affect the Properties as of
the date of Lessot’s acquisition thereof and those ibers which hereafter affect title as pormitted
under this [ease,

“Permitted Facility" 1neans & gesoline service cenfer and comvenfence store and uses
incidental thereto.

“Persor” means any individual, pactnership, corporation, limited fiability company, tust,
unincorporated organization, Governmental Avthority or any other form of entity,

“Personaity” has the meaninyg set forth in Sectior 26.
“Price Index” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.8,

“Properties” means, $ose parcels of rest estate lepally described on Exhibit B attached
hereto, all 1ights, privileges, and appuitenances associated therewiih, all buildings, fixtures and
other improvernents now or hereafter located on such real estate (whether or not affixed to such
1p4] estate).

“Regulated Substances” means “petroleum” and “petroleum-based substances™ ar any
similar terms described or defined in any of the Environmental Lews and any applicable federal,
state, county or local laws applicable to or regulating ¥8Ts.

“REIT" means a 1edl estate investment trust as defined under Section 856 of'the Code.
“Rejectable Qffer” has the meaning set forth in Section 18.C(iH)(3).

“Relzare” means my presence, release, deposit, dischatge, emission, leaking, spilling,
seeping, migrating, injecling, pumping, pouting, emptying, escaping, duraping, disposing or
other movement of Hazardous Materials, Regulated Substances or USTs.

“Remediation®” means any response, remedial, removal, or cotreclive action, any activity
“to cleanup, detoxify, decontaminate, contsin or otherwise remediate any Hazardous Materialg,
Regulated Substances or USTs, any actions to prevent, curs or mitigate uny Release, any action
to comply with apy Bnvitonmental Laws or with any petmits issued purswsnt thereto, any
inspection, investigation, study, monitoring, assessmont, audif, sanpling and testing, laboratory
or other anelysis, or any evaluation relating to any Hazardous Maserials, Regulated Substances or
USTs

“Rertal” maans, collectively, the Base Annwal Rental and the Additional Rental,

4E12-9557-4273 3
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“Rent Adjustment” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.B.

“Reguisition” means sny temporary requisition or confiscation of the use ot accupancy of
any of the Properties by any Governmental Authouity, olvil or militery, whether pursuant to an
agreement with such Governmental Awthority in settlement of or under threat of any such
requisition ar confiseation, or otherwise.

“Reserve Event” means the occurence of (i) an Event of Default or (il} an BBITDAR
Event.

“Reserve Reversal Event” shall mean the sbsence of @ Reserve Bveat for a period of four
{4) congecutive financial quariers.

“Securities” hes the meaning st forth in Section 38.
“Seourities Acl” has the meaning set forth in Section 31 B(iv},
“Securifization” has the meaning set forth in Section 3B.A.
“Successor Lessor* hes the meaning set forth in Section 21,

“Taking” means (s} any taking or damaging of all or a portion of the Propezties {j} in or
by condemnation or other eminent domain proceedings pursuant to any Law, peneral or special,
or (i) by reason of any agreement with Eny condemuor in seiflement of or under threat of eny
such condemnation or other eminent domain proceeding, ot (jii) by any other means, or (b) any
de facto condertnation. The Taking shaHl be considered o have taken place a3 of the later of the
date actual physical possession is taken by the condemnor, or the date on which the right to
compensation and Jamages accrues under the law applicable to the Properties,

“Termination Notice” has the meaning set forth jn Section 18.C{i).

“Ihreaiened Release” means a sabstantial Jikelihood of a Release which reqaires action
to prevent or mitigate datnage to the soil, surface waters, groundwaters, land, siteam sediments,
surface or subsurface strate, ambient 2ir or any other envirbnmental medium comprising or
surrounding any Property which may result from such Release.

“I{ and Leasing Commisstons” means third party tepant itnprovement costs and expenses
end leasing commissions paid 16 an independent leasing agent.

“Total Casuaty® hes the meaning set forth in Section 18 C.
“Total Condemption” has the meaning set forth in Section 18.C.
"Iransaction’ ks the meaning set forth in Section 23 A.

*Transaction Documents” memns ihis Lease, the Guaranty and all docwnents related
thereto.
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“USTs" means any cne or combination of tanks and associsted product piping systems nsed
in connection with stotage, dispensing and general use of Regulated Substances.

“WM4 Dealer Agreement’ means that certain Wholesale Marketer Agreament dated Tone
11, 2007 between Lessee and Shell Ofl Products US.

481208574273 3
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EXHIBITB

LEGAL DESCREPTION OF PROFERTY

THAT PORTION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 4,
TOWNSHIP 3 NORIH, RANGE 4 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND
MERIDIAN, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, DESCRIBED A5 FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF IHE SOUTHEAST QUARTER
SECTION 4;

THENCE NORTH ALONG THE BASTERLY LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER, A
DISTANCE OF 67.00 FEET;

THENCE SCUTH %9 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 75.00
FEET TO THE TRUE FOINT OF BEGRNNING;

THENCE CONTINUING SOUIH 8¢ DEGREES 49 MINUTRES 39 SECONDS WEST,
PARALLEL WITH AND 67.00 FEET NCRTH OF THE SOTJ’IH LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST
QUARTER, A ISTANCE OF 59.00 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 21 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 542
FEET;

THEENCE SOUTH 83 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 39 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 34 61
FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 21 SECONDS EAST, A DIEYANCE OF 542
FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 3% SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF
105:39 FEET;

THENCE NORTHERLY A DISTANCE OF 220 00 FEET;

- THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 3% SECONDS BAST, A DISTANCE OF
22427 FEET;

THENCE S0UTH {5 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 07 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 42 60
EEET;

THENCE SOUTHERLY, PARALIEL WITH AND 54.00 FEET WEST OF THE EAST LINE
OF SAIT SOUTHEART QUARIER, A DISTANCE OF 156.63 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 44 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 49 8ECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 29 74
FEBT TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING

B-1
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located et 8 runk Llcyd Wirigh peard, Seottsdale Avizong (Iax Parcel Na.
215-51-001.0%

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHBASI QUARTER OF
SECLION |, TOWNSHIP 3 NORTH, RANGE 4 BAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER
BASE AND MERIDIAN, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, MORE FARTICULARLY
- DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SATD NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 1;

THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 59 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE WESI
LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 420.30 FEET TQ A POINT ON
TIE SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE GRANITE REEF AQUEDUCT RIGHI-OF-WAY, A3
RECORDED IN DOCKET 11594, PAGE 159 THROUGH 162, RECORDS OF MARICOPA.
COUNTY, ARTZONA, SAID POINT BEING THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE SOUTH 76 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 37 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SATD
SOUTHERLY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 331 20 KRR,

THENCE SOUTH 13 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 23 SBCONDS WEST, FERFENDICULAR. TC
SAID SOUTHERLY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 140.15 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 34 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 37 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCRE OF 4583
FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY LINE GF FRANK LLOYD WRIGHT
BOULEVARD (C AP PARKWAY), AS RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NOS 85-016485 AND
83016489, RECORIIS OF MARTCOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA;

TEENCE NORTH 35 DEGREES 37 MINUIES 23 BECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID
NORIHERLY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 27375 FEEE 10O THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE,
CONCAVENORTHERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 3065.00 FEET;

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHERLY LINE AND THE ARC OF SAID
CURVE, THROUGH A CENIRAL ANGLE OF 00 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 02 SECCNDS, A
DISTANCE OF 45.51 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESI LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST
QUARTER;

THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 5¢ SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 71 63
FEET 10 THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;

TOGETHER W1TH THE EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS SET FORIH IN THAT CERTAIN
RECIPROCAL BASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED IN THE OFPFICIAL RECORDS OF
MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA AS 38304199, MODIFIED BY MODIFICATION
RECORDED IN THE OFFICIAL RECORDS AS 92-323732,

Yarcel located SN. C reek Road, Pho Arizona # No. 213-10-004

'THAT PORTION OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER. OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIF 4
NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND MERIDIAN,
MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, MORE PARTICULARTY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
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BEGINNING AT THE WEST QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 23;

THENCE NORIH 00 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE WESI
LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 290,01 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 43 MINUTES 09 SECONDS EAST, PARALLEL WETH
AND 250,00 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUIR LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER, A
DISTANCE CF 31545 FEET;

THEWCE SOUTH 90 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 50 SECONDS EAST, PARALLEL WITH AND
415,44 FBET BAST OF THE WEST LINB, A DISTANCE OF 250.01 EBET IO A POINT ON
THE SOUTH LINE OF SATD NORTHWEST QUARTER;

THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 43 MINUTES 0% SECONDS WEST, ALONG SATD SOUTH
LINE, A DISTANCE OF 315 45 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

EXCEPT THAT PORTION QUIT CLAIMED 1O THE CITY OF FHOENLX, A MUNICIPAL
. CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA, BY INSTRUMENT RECCRDED IN
DOCUMENT Wi 1999-05674312, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

THE WEST 65 FEET AND THE SOUTH 40 FEET OF THE SOUTH 290.00 FEET OF THE
WEST 31544 FEET OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 4
NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND MERIDIAN,
MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA;

TOGETHER WITH THAT PARI OF THE SAID NORTHWEST QUARIER, MORE
PARFICULARLY DESCRIBED} A% FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE EAST LINE OF THE SAID WEST 65 FERT
AND THENGRTH LINE OF THE SAID 40 FEET;

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST LIME A DISTANCE OF 15 FEET;

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY TC A POINT ON THE SAID NORTH LINE, WHICH IS 15
FEET EAST OF THE FOINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

TOGETHER WITH THE EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS SEI FORTH IN THAT CERYAIN
CROSS ACCESS BASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED IN THE OFFICIAL RECORDS
OF MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA AS 990333899, AND RE-RECORDED TO ADD
EXHIBII C THERETO, AS 20060520728,

Farce] loea; 324 Scottedale Road, Pho Arizona (Tax 1 NO, 17505

1O ONE ([}, "SUPERPUMPER NO, 5%, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF RECORD IN THE
CFFICE OF THE COUNIY RECORDER OF MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA,
RECORDED IN BOOKX 511 OF MAPS, PAGE 14;

TOGETHER WIIH THE RIGHTS AND BASEMENIS SET FORTH IN THAT CERTAIN
PECLARATION OF RESTRICIIONS AND GRANT OF EASEMENTS RECORDED AS 61-

4812955742733
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039067 GF OFFICIAL RECORDS AS MODIFIED BY INSTRUMENT RECORDED AS 99-
0908527,

el No, 217-14-

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 3 NORTH,
RANGE 5 EAST, OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND MERIDIAN, MARICOPA
COUNTIY, ARIZONA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

FTHE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THB BEARINGS USED IN THIS DESCRIPIION ARE
FROM THE NORIH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 3
NORTH, RANGE § EASI, OF IHE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND MERIDIAN,
HAVING A BEARING OF NORTH 3% DEGREES 59 MINUTES 05 SECONDS WEST;

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARIER
(SOUTH QUARTER CORNER SECTION 5);

THENCE MEASURE ALONG THE WESI LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER
NORTH 0 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 33 SECONDS WEST, 629 22 FEET,

THENCE NORTH 45 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, 482 49 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING:

THENCE NORTH 45 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, 120,36 FEET;
ITEEMCE NORTH 26 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 31 SECONDS EAST, 37 00 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 45 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAS T, 78.00 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 00 SECONDS BAST 29 70 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 44 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, 253.73 FEET;
THENCE SOUTB 44 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, 180 59 FEET;
THENCE 30UTH 1 213.32 FEET;

TEENCE S0UTH 44 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 00 SECONDS BAST, 118 23 FEET;
THENCE EAST 28 09 FEET;

"THENCE S0UTH 44 DEGREES 3¢ MINUTES 00 SECDNDS EABT, 51.32 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING;

EXCEPT ALL MINERALS IN THE LAND, AS SET FORTH I THE PATENT THEREOF;
AND

EXCEPT ALL URANIUM, THORIUM, AND OTHER MATERIALS WHICH [$ OR MAY BE
DETERMINED TOQ BE PECULIARLY ESSENTIAL, 7O THE FPRODUCTION OF
FISSIONABLE MATERIALS, WHETHER OR NOI OF COMMERCIAT, VALUE,
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-PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT OF AUGUST 01, 1940 {60 STAT. 755), A8
3ETI FORTH IN THE PATENT OF SAID LAND; AND

TQGETHER WITH THE RIGHI3 AND BASEMENTS SEI' FORTH IN THAT CERTAIN
DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS, ASSESSMENTS,
CHARCES, SERVITUDES, LIENS, RESERVATIONS AND EBASEMENIS FOR
MCDOWELL MOUNTAIN RANCH RECORDED IN THE OFFICIAL. RBCORDS OF
MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA AS 940730728, A5 AMENDED BY FIRST
AMBNDMENT THHRETO RECORDED AS 94-0703818 AND IN THAT CERTAIN
RECIPROCAL EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS 2002-0640384

Parcel located at 4740 E. Dvnamite Bonle Phaeni izgmg {1 ef Noa. 211-40-00
211-40-005E} '

PARCEL NO. 1t

THAT PARY OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER. OF SECTION 30, TOWNSHIF 5 NORTH,
RAMNGE 4 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND MERIDIAN, MARICOPA
- COUNTY, ARIZONA, DESCRIBED A8 FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 30;

THENCE NORTH §9° 5% 14 WRST, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 30, A
DISTANCE OF 360.00 FEET;

THENCE RORTH 00° 00 46" BAST, DEPARTING SAID SQOUTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF
71.00 FEET TQ THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE NORTH 06° 00° 46" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 16.69 FEET TO THE BEGINNING
OF A TANGENT CURVE OF 53 44 POQT RADIUS, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY;

THENCE NCRTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF
31° 26° 21", A DISTANCH OF 29.37 FEET TO A POINT ON A 112.51 FOOT RADIUS
CURVE, WHOSE CENTER BEARS NORTH 62° 40° 34” WEST,

THENCE WORTHERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 55°
4% 517, A DISTANCE OF 109 60 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 28° 29 45" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 4 32 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 57° 30 00" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 178 93 FEET:

THENCE NORTH 32° 30° 00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 2996 FERT;

THENCR ﬁORTH §7°30° 00" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 29.00 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 89° 40" 45" RAST, A DISTANCE OF 138 .00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE
WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF TATUM BOULEVARD, AS SHOWN ON THE

TATUM RANCH MAP OF DEDICATION RECORDED IN BOCK 319 OF MAPS, PAGE 45,
RECORDS. OF MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, SAID LINE BEING PARALLRT, WITH
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AND 60.00 FEET WESTERLY, AS MBASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE EASI
LINE OF SAID SECTION 30;

THENCE SOUTH 60° 19° 15" WEST, ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, A DISTANCE OF
280.00 FEET:

THENCE SOUTH 45° {0” 00" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 297§ FEET TO A POINT ON THE
NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF DYNAMITE BOULBVARD, AS SHOWN ON
SAID TATUM RANCH MAP OF DEDICATION, SAID LINE BEING PARALLEL WITH,
AND 60.00 FEET NORTHERLY AS MEASURED AT RIGIHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH
LINE OF SAID SECTION 30;

THENCE NORTH 80° 56' 46"WEST, A DISTANCE OF 70.00 LEET;

THENCE NORTH 89° 59" 10" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 210.19 FEET TG THE POINT OF
BEGINNING

NOTE: THE PREVIOUS TWO PARAGRAPHS HAVE BEEN ADDED SINCE THE
TIME THE PREVIOUS DEED HAD BEEN RECORDED

PARCEL NO. 2:

NON-EXCLUSIVE BASEMENT FOR THE USE AND ENJOYMENI OF THE COMMON
AREAS AS CREATED AND SET FORIH IN SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED
DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR TATUM
RANCH RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 1982625068 AND TRACT DECLARATION
RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NC. 1996-467171 » MARICOPA COUNTY RECORDS,

PARCEL NO. 3:

NON-BXCLUSIVE EASEMENTS FOR THE INGRES% AND EGRESS AND ACCESS AS
CREATED AND SET FORTH IN EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED IN DOCUMENT
NO. 1998-403619, MARICOPA COUNTY RECORDS.

4812-9557-4273 3 H
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EXHIRBIT C

ENVIRONMENTAL INSTURANCE GUIDELINES

Following is a list of criteria we use to assess the acceptability of an environmental lnsurance

policy. The ctitera is divided between the two most conmonly used types of policies —a

lender’s policy and an owner’s or bortower's policy.

Lender’s Policies Critoriat

1.

L ba

©

10.
1L

12,
13,

15

16.

17.

4R)2-05574273 3
Spidt/Supepumper

& propartics in Phoenix, AZ
B3 1 Lf02-1000

Meet rating agency critetia to the extent pessible, and understand where
the shortfall is between yoor policy and the rating agenoy criteria.

Enswe that the ingurer is rated AA or Aad.

Ensure {ender and any successor in interest s listed as additienal insured.

Ensute policy tertn of 5 yeats beyond maturify date of loan; or recommend
loan documents require additionel covernge on rolling basis.

Determine policy form best snited for issue (loan balance, lesser-of, clean-
up cost), and coverage lmits (loan balance $125% of OFB, lesser-of or
clean-up cost: an arbitrary amount typieslly higher than any anticipated
issues could cost to resolve — based on market acceptability).

Deductibles or selfinsured refentions should be zewo (0), or an escrow
fund established with the botrawer to make up the difference.

Paoliciss should not contain any retrosctive dates for coverage.

No exclusions for ktiown oz pre-existing conditions,

Obfain a “disclosed document” endorsement stipulating which reports
were delivered to the insutance company pricy to binding the policy.
Etisure that any 1ISTs are schednled onto the policy for coverage.

Ensurc that all conditions of coverage listed on a quote are removed prior
to binding policy {except for payment of premium).

Limit opportunity of insurer to cancel policy due to fiavdulent acfs of
insured in application.

Ensurs no fernination of coverzge in the event loan ownership changes.
Eusure guaranteed assignability of policy to lendet’s succsssor in intereat.
Most insurers have endorsements specific to the CMBS markets, ensure
they are offeted for your policy.

Ensure loan does not contain hyper-amortization featurs.

All other terma and conditions nwst be aceepiable to lender,

B-1
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OWNER’S { BORROWER’S POLICIES CRITERIA

I Ensure that the insurer is tated AA or Ap2

2. Ensure insured is record title holder {o property

3. Ensure lender and any successor iz interest in the mortgage loan is listed
as additiona? ihsured/ loss payee.

4. Ensure pelicy fosm of 5 years beyond matuzity date of Joan, or provide for
rolling tenowal of minimum 10 year palicy.

5. Ensure appropriste coverage depsndant upon circumstances affecting
property, i.0, pre-exigting and suhsequently occusting contamination of
both known and wokoown conditipns, affecting either on-site or offsite
properties end providing for bodily injury coverage.

4. Coverage limits: depends wpon the tisk helng covered.

7. Deductibles or selfinsured tetentions should be zero {0), or an escrow
fund established with the bomrower to make up the difference.

8. Policies should not eontain any rettosctive dates for coverage.

g, No exclusions for kmewn ar pre-existing conditions.

10.  Obtein a “disclosed document” endorsement stipulating which reports
were disclosed and/or delivered to the insurance company prior to binding
the policy.

1. Ifpolicy excludes USTs fiom covetage wutless scheduted by endorscment,
engure thet any USTs are scheduled onto the palicy for coverage.

12. | Ensure that all condiiions of covetags listed on a quote are removed prior
to binding palicy (except for payment of preminm).

13.  The peolicy should specify that misreprasentation, concealment, breach of
condition or viplation of any duty under the policy by any insted shall
not affeck the rights and interests of any other inswed under the policy.

14 Limit opportunity of insurer fo cancel poliey due to fraudvlent acts of
insured in application.

15.  Ensute no tenmination of covetage in the ovent propeity ownership

: changes.

16.  Enswepotice to all insareds under policy,

17.  Ensure guarentesd assignsbility of lender’s coverage of policy to lender’s
siccessor {a interest,

18.  Enswe loaa does not confain hyper-amortization featus.

19, All other terms end conditions nmust be aceeptable to lender.

4BI2-0557 42713
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SUPERPUMPER, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 3, 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dacembar 31, 2008:
Balance Sheet
Statement of Opatations
Statement of Stockholder's Equity
Etatement of Cash Flows

Notes tg Financial Statements-
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‘Independent Auditors” Report

Board of Directors
Superpumper Ing.
Scolisdale, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying halance shast of Superpumpar, lac. (the
“Company”) as of Decembor.31, 2008 and the related staternents of operations,
stockhoiders equity and cash flows for lhe year (hen ended. These financial
statements are the responslbility of the Company's management, Our rasponsibility
is to express an opinion on these financlal statements based un our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with audiling standards generally accepled in
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and petformihe
audit o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit inciudes examining, on a test basis, evidance
supporting the amounts and disclosures In the financlal statements. An audit also
Includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates mada by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financia! stalement presentation. We
beliove that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In cur opipion, the financial statemants referred to above pragent faidy, n all material
raspects, the financial posilion of Superpumper, Inc. as of December 31, 2008, and
the resulls of s operations and its cash flows for the flscal year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of

MI Selmeidowr LLP

February 23, 2009
Los Angales, California

Gursey | Schineider w-
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SUPERPUMPER INC.
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2008

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash-and cash equivalenls
Accounts recsivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net

OTHER ASSETS
Dua from affiliates
Trademarks
Renl deposits

TOTAL ASSETS

LIAEILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Line of credit

Total Currant Liabltities

STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Common stock, no par value;
Authorized shares - 1,000,000
Issued and outslanding shares - 1,000
Additional paid-in capilal
Retained earnings

Total Stockbolder's Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

3.

$ 506,632

234,400

1,289,197
... 90830

2,121,059
1,727,508

5718135
1,482,063
117,128

. ¢

$ 14,165,893

$ ©Dage72
901,120

3.384,792

10,000
4,284,605

3,485,496
7,781,101




SUPERPUNPER INC.
Statement of Operations
Yaar Ended December 3%, 2008

REVENUES
Fuel
QGrocery and merchandise
Car wash, propane and other income, net
Lottery, net

Total Revenies

COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of fuel
Cosl of grocery and merchandise sold
General and administrative
Depreciation and amodization

Tatat Cost and Exponses
NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE
Interast income
Interest expense
Total Qther Income, net
NET INCOME
RETAINED EARNINGS - Beginring of Year
Distributions 1o stockhalder

RETAINED: EARNINGS - End of Year

See Accompanying Noles to Financial Statements

$77,122,928
15,318,568
1,128,787

121,259

03,691,542

69,829,296
10,418,440
11,655,718
330,705

92,234 159
1,457,383

235,474
{66,937}

168,537

1,626,820

3,210,576

A 1A50,000)

$ 3,486,496
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SUPERFPUMPER INC.
Statement of Cash Fiows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN} OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income {o net cash
provided by (used in) aperating activities:
Depreciation and amaortization
Change in current assets and liabilities:
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in inventories
Increase in prepaid axpanses
Decreasa in accounts payabie
Incraase in accrued liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment

CASH FLOWS USED IN FINAKCING ACTIVITIES:
froceeds from fine of credit, net
Advances lo affiliates
Distributions ta stockholder

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET DECREASE IN CASH
CASH - December 31, 2007

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - December 31, 2008

$ 1625920

330,705

154,219

528,487

{13,770}
{1.1688,122)

— 22202

(181,049}

1,090,912
{1,75G,203)

(1.450,000)

(2.109,291)

{632,9809)

i S T e

S 606092

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid for:
Inietest

See Accompanying Noles to Financial Statements

§ 66,837
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SUPERPUMPER INC.
Noles to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF AGCOUNTING POLICIES AND PRAGTICES

Dascription of Business - Superpumnper inc. {an Afizena corporation) (the "Comipany™) is
engaged in the retail sale of petroleum products. The Company operates sleven
convenience stores / gas stations, which market petroleum products, grogery and general
merchandise ilems o {he general public. Four locations also provide car wash servica. All
of the stores are located in the Phaenix / Scoltsdale, Arizona melropolitan area. The
stations are all branded under the “Superpumper” brand and dispanse fusl purchased
primarily frorm Shell Ol Products LS.

Basis of Prosentation — On April 24, 2006, P A. Morabito Arizona & Co., Limited, A
Nevada Corporation, {"PAMAZ", which is controfied by FPaul Morahito, purchased he
gommoan stock and real eslate of Superpumer Inc. (the "Predecessor Company™}. The reaf
estate occupied by Superpumper was owned by an.enlity under comman ownarship of the
owners of the Predecessor Company and leased to Ihe Predecessor Company under long-
term land leases. Immediataly after the purchase, PAMAZ aold the real aslale assets lo a
finance company. The Company then entered into a new land lease with fha jinance
company o leasa back the tand from the finance campany. After these lransactions, all real
estalg and (easehold rights previously cwned by affiliates of the Predecessor Company are
now held by third parties.

In accordance with EFTF 8816, Basis in Levaraged Biuyout Transactions, duato the change
in control of vating interest, a change in accounting basis is.appropriate, and as aresull, the
purchase method of accounting was used, Under the purchase meathod of accounting, $4.3
million purchage price was allocated to Superpumper Inc.’s net langible and intangible
assets based upon thair estimated fair values as of the acquisition date.

PAMAZ aubsequently changed its name o Consolidated Western Corporation {(a Nevada
corporalian) (*CWC™),

Revenue Recognition - The Company recognizes revenue al (he point-of-sale for retail
salas. The Company also sams prometional rebates and allowances. Vendors pay the
Company to promote and seli their producl end thus these rebates and allowances are
usually computed as a percentage of products sold. Promationst and rebate alowances are
recarded as a reduclion of cosl of goods sold when invoiced or expocled colleclion critéra
have been met.

Recaivables — Tratle accounts receivable consist primarily. of promotienal alfowanceas and
rebates. The Company considers lhese receivables to be fully collectible; accordingly, no
ajlowance for doubltfui accounts are required. Il amounts becomea unco[iectl ble thay will be
charged to operaltions when thal determinalion is made.

Inventorlas — Pelroleum producls, grocary and general merchandise inventories are slated
at the-lower of cost or market, Cost is detenmined for petroleum praducts using the average
cost method. Dwe 1o the retatively high turnover of fuel, average cost approximaltes net
realizable vaiue, Grocery and general merchandise invenlory s valued using the firsl-in,
first-out (FIFO} methed, using relail and cost method,
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SUPERPUNPER INC.
Moles to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PRACTICES — (CONTINUED)}

Proparty, Plant and Equipmant — Praperly, plant and equipmen are stale at cost. Costs
of improvements are capitalized, Costs of normal repairs and mainlenance are charged to
expense as incurred. Upon the sate or retirament of property and equipment, the cost and
slated accumulated depreciation are ramoved from the respeclive. accounts, and the

rosulting gain or loss, if any, is included income,

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method.aver the astimatad useful lives of the
assels. The eslimaled uselul lives of building and improvements are 17 1/2 years, while
computars, vehicles and other aguipment are dapreciated ovar 5 - 7 years. Planl and
equipment heid under capital leases andleasehold improvements are amortized siraight line
over ha shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life of the assel. Tolal depreciation

expense for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $330,705,

Goodwill and Intangibie Assets — Goodwill represents the excass of cosls over fair value
of agsets of businesses acquired. The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 142,
Goodwill and Other Infangible Assals, asof Janary 1, 2002, Goodwill and intangible assets
acquired in a purchase. business cambination and determined to have an indefinite usefut
life are not arnartized, butinstead tested for impairmeant at least annuaily in accordance with
the provisions of SFAS No. 142, SFAS No. 142 also requires that intangible assets with
estimable usaful hves be amolized over their respecdtive aslimdted usefid fiveg ta their
estimated residual values, and reviewad for impairment in accordance wilh SFAS No. 144,

Accounting for tmpairment or Disposeal of Long-Lived Asssls.

intangible assets at December 31, 2008 arise from the change in accounting basis

discussed above, and congist solely of trademarks with an indefinite life.

Advertlsing — Advertising costs are expensed as ingurred, Advertising costs amounted to

$919 in 2008.

income Taxes -- Superpuinper Inc. s treated as a Qualified Subchapler S subsidiary of
CWC for tax purposes, Income laxes on net earnings of Superpumper Inc. are payablo
personally by the stackholder of CWC pursuant 1o the eleclion under Subchapter 5 of the
Internal Revenue. Code not to have the Company taxed as a corporation. Accordingly, no

provision for income taxes is included in these financlal statements.

Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs - Shipping and handling fees, consisting
primarily of in-baund fuel delivery costs, ars expensed and included as part of cost of goods

sofd.

Fair Value of Financlal Instruments — The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, accounls raceivable, due from related parties, inventories, accounts payable
and accrued liabifities approximate fair value because of the short-term malurity of these
instruments. Notes and leasses payable appraximate fair value besause the interest rates

are tied to current market conditions.
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SUPERPUMPER INC.
Notes to Financial Slalements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1 -— SUMNMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PRACTICES - (CONTINUED)

Concentrations of Risk

Business Concenlrations -- The Company's operations are dependent upon having a supply
of fugl to purchase from vendors. The Company cuirently has a mulli-yaar contrast with
Shell Oit Products U.5. to purchase a set quantity of fuel ranging from minimum to maximum
quanlilies each month. This agreemant expires-on April 30, 2011, Without such conlracls,
{he Company would have to purchase its fuel supplies at the market spol price, which are
subject to price and supply volatilily. In exchange, the Company is given the rights to use

Shell logo branding and participation in a dealer rebale incentive. program,

The Company also has supply agreements with other consumer products companies for the

purchase of fountain drinks, grocery and ganeral marchandisa.

Credil Congentrations ~ The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accaunts which, al
times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Comparny has not experienced any losses in
such accounts, The Company believes it is nol exposed to any significant credi risk on

cash.

Impairmont of Long-Lived Assets — In sccordance wilth SFAS No. 144, long lived assets,
such as property, plant; and equipment, and purchased intangibles subject to amortization,
are reviewed for impairmant whenever evenis or changes in circumatances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Racoverability of assets to be held
and used is measured by a comparison of the canying amount of an asset to eslimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected to be genaraied by the asset. I the carying
amounl of an assel exceeds its estimated fulure cash flows, an impeirment charge is
recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value
of the asset. Assels 1o be disposed of would ba separately presented i tha balance sheel
and reparted at live lower of ihe carrying amount or fair value less costs to seli, and are no
longer dapreciated. ‘The assets and liebilitles of a dispesed group classified as hefd for sale
would be preserded separately in the appropriate asseland liability sections of tha batance

sheel.

Goodwill and intangible assels not subject lo amorlization are tested annually for
impairmenl, and are lesled for impairment more frequentiy ¥ events and cireumstances
indicate that the agset might be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized to the extent

that the camying amount excaeds the assel's fair value.

Commitments and Cantingencies — Liabilities for loss contingencles arising from claims,
assessments, litigation, fines, and penallies and other sources are recorded when it is
prehable that a liabliity bas been incurred and the amount of the assessment andfor

remexdiation can be roasonably estimaled

Statement of Cash Flows - The Company considers cash and cash equivalents to ba all
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less. Amotints in-transit
from banks far customer credit card, debit card and electronic benefit transfer ransaclions

that process in less than saven days are classified as cash and cash equivalents.
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SUPERPUMPER INC.
Nuoies to Financial Stalements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1 ~- SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING -POLIlClES AND PRACTICES ~ (CONTINUED)

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements requires management of the
Company lo make a number of estimales and assumptions relating 1o the reported amount
of assels and liabilitiss and the disciosuie of conlingent assets and liabifities at the dale of
the consolidated financial statements and the reparted amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period, Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the
carrying amaunt of property, pfant and equipmeant; vatuation allowances for receivables, and
confingent labitties. Actual resulis could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 — INVENTQRIES

inventories at December 31, 2008 consist of the following;

Fuel 3 508,607
Grogery and general merchandise 780,590
$ 1,289,197

NOTE 3 — PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and-equipment ara staled at cost and consisi of the following at
December 31, 2008;

Equipmeni $ 1,579,071
Building and leasehold improvements 508,483
Compulers 300,515
Vehicles _ 35411

2,423 480
Less: Accumulated depreciation 695,972

5 1727508

-1
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SUPERPUMPER INC,
Motes to Financial Statements
Dacember 31, 2008

NOTE 4 -— LEASES

The Company is obligated under several noncancelable operaling luases, primarily for use of
lahd and convenience store structure, that expire over the next twanty years, These laases
generally conlain renewal oplions for periods ranging from up to.an additional forly yaars and
require the Company to pay all executory costs such as maintenance, property taxes and
insurance. Cerlain leases also contain escaiations tied to various indices. Renlal expense
during 2008 was $4,648,613:

Fulure minimum fease payments under noncanceiable operating leases {with initizl or
remairing lease terms in excess of one year) as of December 31, 2008 are:

Year ending December 31

2009 $ 4,372,080
2010 4,414 525
2019 4,347,181
2012 4,263,370
2013 4,320,678
Laler years, through 2027 53,621,268
Total minimum lease paymens § 76,339,102

NOTE § — LINE OF CREDIT

The Company maintains a Ravolving Line of Credit that allows bomowings up to $2,000,000.
Horrowings bear interesi at the LIBOR plus 2.00% {which amounied o 5.85% at December
31, 2008). The line of credit malures on December 31, 2009 and is guarapleed by the

Company's sharaholder.

The debt agreement contains cerlain affiimative and negalive covenants Including
maintenance of certain financiat ratfos as defined in the agreement. The Company believes it
is in compliance with its Jebt covenants al December 31, 2008,

-11-
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SUPERPUMPER INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
Decambar 31, 2008

NOTE 6 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due from Affiliates — Relaled parties represent advances made Lo the following
individuals or companies as of December 31, 2008

Note receivable - shareholder, 5.0%, due December 31, 2009 $ 523,021
Advances to shareticlder, 5.4%, due on demand 4,521,085
Advances to affiliate, unsecured, due on demand 339,341

b 5.483!447

These amounts have been classified as non currenl in the accompanying balance sheet
because repayment is not anticipated during the next year.

NOTE 7 — CONTINGENCIES

The Company is subject 1o loss contingencies pursuant to envirenmental faws and
regulations that in futire wilt require the Company to lake action to correct the eftects enthe
environment of prior dispossl of release of petroleum substances by the Company or other
panlies. Such conlingencies may exist for various sites including, land development areas,
whether operating, closed or sold. The amount of such filure cost is iflerminable due to
such facters as the unknown magnitude of possible contamination, tha unknown timing and
axtent of corrective actions that may be required, the determination of the Company’s fiabilily
in propartion to other responsible parties and the extent to which such costs are recoverable
from third parfies. While the Company provides for known environmental abligations that
ara probabla,

There ara no known of reperied claims or environmentat.issues as of Dacember 31, 2008.
Accordingly, na provision for environmanlal contingencies has been provided in the
accompanying financial stalemenis,

The Gompany is involved in various other claims and lagal aclions arising in the ordinary
course of business. In the oplinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these mallers
will not have .a matorial adverse gfiect on the Company's consolidated fnancial position,
rasults of operalions, or liquidity.

NOTE 8 — PROFIT SHARING PLAN
The Company has a Profil Sharing Plan and Trust which includes a 401 (k) arrangement,
The plan and trust is intended to qualify as a profil sharing plan with-a safary reduclion

arrangement. Profil sharing contributions are voluntary and at the discretion of the Board of
Directors. There were no ptan contributions made for the periad ended December 31, 2008.
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Rebe:::a Post

From: Paul Morabito <pmorabito@cowestco.com»

Sent: Monday, Novemnber 9, 2009 4:30 PM

To: Danie! Fleicher; Jim Benbrook; Don Whitehead, Sam Morabito; janfriede@aol.com;
stan@bernstein-cpabiz.com; SYalaman@hodgsonruss.com

Subject: Consultant

Jan Friederich/GD4 has enlered imta n consulting agreement wilh Superpumper Inc. 1o supervise and direet ihe operations of the

campany. Effective immedialely all operatinns manageiment and staff other than finance wilk report directly o Jan. Sam and i should

be capied on all directives and compnnicatiens,

Piel Moarabiwe

Chairmn

Cowesto Ivestment LLC
US; (775) (E2-31910

CHON; (416) 915-41 60
LIK: 0-777-0 IR5IRS

fax: (480} 222-) 067
piorabitoTeowesior.com

Sent wirclessly from my BluckBerry deviee on the Verizon network,
Lnveyé sans [il par moan werminal mobile BlackBemry sur e réscau de Verizon,
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BBVA Compa SS 2880 East Camelback Road! Suite 140

Phoenix, AZ BSD1E

September 30, 2010

VIA E-MAIL AND OVERNIGHT DELIVERY

Superpumper Inc.
14631 North Scottsdale Road, #125
Scottsdale, Arizona 85254

Mr. Paul A. Morabito
59 Damonte Ranch Parkway, Suite B335
Reno, Nevada 89521

Consolidated Western Corporation
/o Superpumper Ine.

14631 North Scottsdale Road, #1235
Scottsdale, Arizona 85254

RE:  Business Loan Agreement dated November 5, 2009 (as amended, the “Revalving
Loan Agreement”) by and between Superpumper, Inc. (“Superpumper”) and
Compass Bank (“"BBVA Compass™), as amended by that certain Modification to
Loan Agreement dated as of August 13, 2010 (the “Modification™); Loan
Agreement dated August 13, 2010 by and between Superpumper and BBVA
Compass (" Term Loan Agreement™)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is made to the Revolving Loan Agreement and the Term Loan
Agreement described above. Capitalized terms used herein without definition have the meaning
ascribed to them in the Revolving Loan Agreement and the Term Loan Agreement, as
applicable.

Under the terms and conditions of the Revolving Loan Agreement, BBVA
Compass made a revolving credit facility available to Superpumper in the origina principal
amount of $3,000,000,00 (the “Revelving Loan™), as evidenced by that certain Promi ssory Note
dated November 5, 2009 executed by Superpumper in favor of BBYA Compass {as amended, the
“Revolving Note”, and together with the Revolving Loan Agreement and all other agreements,
documents, and instruments evidencing, securing or otherwise relating to the Revolving Loan
Agreement, as amended, the “Revolving Loan Documents”). Under the terms of the

Modification, the face amount of the Revolving Note was reduced to $2,500,000.00. Payment

OBVLI0SRS.0006911 12950192, 3
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Superpumper, Ing.

Mr. Paul A, Morahito
Consolidated Western Corporation
September 30, 2010

Page2

and performance of Superpumper’s obligations under the Revolving Loan Documents is
guaranteed by Paul A. Morabito (“Mr. Morabito™) pursuant 1o that certain Guaranty dated as of
November 5, 2009,

Under the terms and conditions of the Term Loan Agreement, BBVA Compass
made a term loan to Superpumper in the original principal amount of $3,000,000.00 (the “Term
Loan”, and together with the Revolving Loan, the “Loans™), as evidenced by that certain
Promissory Note dated as of August 13, 2010 executed by Superpumper in favor of BBVA
Compass (the “Term Note”, and together with the Term Loan Agreement and all other
agreements, documents, and instruments evidencing, securing or otherwise relating to the Term
Loan Agreement, as amended, the “Term Loan Documents™). Payment and performance of
Superpumper’s obligations under the Term Loan Documents is guaranteed by Mr. Morabito and
by Consolidated Western Corporation, a Nevada corporation (“CWC", and together with Mr.
Morabito, the “Guarantors™), pursuant to that certain Unconditional Guaranty dated August 13,
2010.

We are in receipt of Mr. Morabito’s e-mail dated September 24, 2010 (the “9/24/10
Notice™). In the 9/24/10 Notice, Mr. Morabito acknowledges that Superpumper is in default of
several of the provisions contained in the Revolving Loan Documents and the Term Loan
Documents (the “Acknowledged Bvents of Default”). In addition, Mr. Morabito has advised
BBV A Compass that the Acknowledged Everts of Default have been triggered by the entry of an
approximately $75,000,000.00 judgment against Mr. Morabite and other defendants.

As a result of the Acknowledged Events of Default; (i) BBVA Compass is entitled
to exercise its rights and remedies under the Revolving Loan Documents, the Term Loan
Documents, at law and in equity, against Superpumper, Guarantors, and the collateral securing
the amounts owed by Superpumper to BBVA Compass, and (i) BBVA Compass is not obligated
to make any advances available to Superpumper, and any advances made by BBV A Compass, on
or after the date of this letter are made as an accommodation only, and the same do not constitute
nor may be deemed to constitute a waiver by BBYA Compass of any of its rights or remedies
under the Revolving Loan Documents, the Term Loan Documents, at law or in equity. BBVA
Compass hereby reserves all rights and remedies under the Revolving Loan Documents, the
Term Loan Documents, at law and in equity with regard to the foregoing Acknowledged Fvents
of Default.

Superpumper and Guarantors have requested that BBVA Compass enter into
discussions regarding a potential workout of the Loans. Although not obligated to do so, BBVA
Compass is willing to enter into workout discussions regarding the Loans but only with the
understanding that such discussions are non-binding in nature and that, notwithstanding the
existence or content of any communication, including, but not limited to, any verbal

QBL130585,000654 13950892.3
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Superpumper, Inc.

Mr, Paul A, Morabito
Consolidated Western Corporation
September 30, 2010

Pape 3

conversations, by or between Superpumper, Guarantors, and BBVA Compass, or any of their
representatives, regarding the Acknowledged Events of Default or any other default or Event of
Default, no waiver, forbearance, loan modification, or other similar action by BBVA Compass
with regard to such default or Event of Default will be effective unless the same has been
reduced to writing and executed by an authorized representative of BBVA Compass,
Superpumper, and every other entity deemed necessary or appropriate by BBVA Compass.

Superpumper and Guarantors have also requested that BBVA Compass agree to an
increase in the face amount of the Revolving Note to $3,000,000.00. In light of Superpumper’s
current circumstances, including the existence of the Acknowledged Events of Defauli, BBVA
Compass is unwilling to agree to this request. In accordance with the Revolving Loan
Documents, Superpumper is required to reduce the amount outstanding under the Revolving
Loan to $2,500,00.00, Superpumper’s failure to do so will result in further events of default
under the Revolving Loan Documents and the Term Loan Documents. Please contact me as
soon as possible to confirm the reduction of the outstanding amounts due under the Revolving
Loan.

Additional events may have occurred which would constitute defaults or, if
uncured within 2ny applicable cure periods, would constitute Events of Default. BBVA
Compass hereby reserves the right to declare any such events as defaults or Events of Default, as
applicable, at any time in the future and hereby reserves all of BBYA Compass’s rights and
remedies under the Revolving Loan Documents, the Term Loan Documents, at law and in
equity, with regard thereto. Any failure to specify such events in this letter will not constitute a
waiver of any default or Event of Default resulting from such events.

Any failure or delay by BBVA Compass in exercising any right, power, or remedy
under the Revolving Loan Documents, the Term: Loan Documents, at law or in equity, or any
acceptance of partial performance or partial payment: (i} will not operate as a waiver of such
right, pawer, or remedy, nor will any single or partial exercise of any such right, power, or
remedy preclude any other or further exercise of such right, power, or remedy or the exercise of
any other right, power, or remedy; and (ii) will not be sufficient, by itself or together with any
ather actien or inaction by BBVA Compass, to establish a course of dealing or course of conduct
by BBVA Compass upon which Superpumper or Guarantors are entitled to rely.

Nothing contained in this letter is a waiver or modification of any right, power, or
remedy of BBVA Compass under the Revolving Loan Documents, the Term Loan Documents,
nor a waiver or modification of any provision thereof; and nothing in this [etter will be or will be
constried as any such waiver, modification, or agreement.

Please contact the undersigned if you would like 10 discuss this matter further.

QB 10585.000604 13950823
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Superpumper, 1no.

‘M. Paul A: Morabito.
Consolidated Westemn Corporation
Septembér 30, 2010

Page 4

Sincerely,

Shawn R.Hollenbach
Vige Progident
'BBVA Compass Bank

‘ORA0SE5 0006395092,

Superpumper 000443

5001




One Renatssancs Square Atiorneys at Law in:
M Bfﬂd}]m Two North Central Avaniie Fhavnix and Tucsan, Arizong

Fhioenls, Arkzona §5004-2391 Naples, Florida

Tel €02.229.5200 Chicapn, Hiinots

fax 602.229.5690 Misoauhes and Madison, IFisconsin
WRwqLares com

CONFIDENTIAL SETTLEMENT COMMUNICATION SUBJECT TO
ARIZONA AND FEDERAL RULES OF EVIDENCE, RULE 408

October 15, 2010

ViA E-MAIL AND OVERNIGHT DELIVERY

Dennis C, Vacco, Esa.

Lippes Mathias Wexier Friedman LLP
665 Main Street, Suite 300

Buffale, New York 14203

Re:  Defaults under Business Loan Agreement dated Nevember 5, 2009 (us
amended, the “Revolving Lean Agreement”) by and between Superpumper, Inc.
(“Borrower”) and Compass Bank, an Alabama banking corporation
(“Compass"), under the terms and conditions of which Compass made a
revolving loan available to Borrower In the original princlpal amount of
53,000,000.00 (the "Revolving Loan") as evidenced by that cerfuin Promissory
Note dated November 5, 2009 executed by Borrower in favor 6f Compass (the
“Revoiving Note”, and together with all related loan documents, the “Revglving
Loan Docaments™}

Defaulis under Loan Agreement dated August 13, 2010 (as omended, the “Term
Loan Agreement'} by and between Borrower and Compass, under the terms
and candifions of which Compass made a term Ioan fo Borrower in the original
principal amount of $3,000,000.00 (the “Term Loan™) as evidenced by that
certain Promissory Note dated August 13, 2010 executed by Borrower in favor
of Compass (the “Term Note”, and together with all related loan documents,

the “Term Loan Documents”)
Mr. Yacco:

Our Firm represents Compass with respect to the Revolving Loan, the Term Loan,
and other related matiers. Reference is made to the Revolving Loan Docoments and Term Loan
Documents described above. The Revolving Loan Documents and the Term Loan Docurnents
are collectively referred to in this letter as the “Loan Doeuments”. Capitalized terms used herein
without definition will have the meanings assigned thereto in the Loan Documents, as applicable.

QB\ 1500297.4
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Bennis C. Vacco, Esq.
Octaber 15, 2010

Page 2

By letter dated October 15, 2010, Compass through its counsel notified Borrower
of the gcourrence of certain events of default under the Revolving Loan Agreement and the Temm
Loan Agreement {collectively, the “Acknowledged Events of Defauit™). Bomower confirms that
it previously acknowledged the existence of the Acknowledped Events of Default.
Notwithstanding the existence of the Acknowledged Events of Default, however, Bommower has
requested that Compass proceed in discussions and negotiations with Borrower to address issues
related to the Acknowledged Events of Defsult (the “Discussions™). Cotmpass is willing to enter
into Discussions with Borrower regarding Borrower's proposal. To encourage free and open
discussions while ensuring and confirming that Compass is not amending, modifying, or
otherwise limiting in any way Compass’s rights under the Loan Documents or pursuant to
applicable law, unless and until a final written agreement acceptable in all respects to Compass
has been executed, Compass and Borrower have prepared and signed this letter.

As 8 result of the Acknowledged Events of Default, Compass is entitled to
exercise its rights and remedies under the Revolving Loan Agreement, the Term Loan
Apgreement, and the other Loan Documents, at law and in equity, against Borrower and the
collateral. Borrower should understand thiat by entering into these Discussions at Borrower's
request, Compass is making no assurances that it will forbear in any way from exercising its
rights and remedies to protect its interests. Accordingly, with respect to the Discussions,
Borrower agrees as follows:

s« Compass has no obligation to enter any further agreement with Borrower.

= The Loan Documents will cmly be modified by the execution of a separate final
written agreement. -

» Compass does not waive, and hereby reserves, all of its rights and remedies
under the Loan Documents, at law or in equity.

s The Discussions are in the nature of settlement negotiations subject to Rule 408,
Federal Rules of Evidence (and any similar provision of any applicable state
statutes, evidentiary rules, or rules of procedure) and, accordingly, the content
of the Discussions shall mot be admissible in, and shall not be aged in, any
proceeding (judicial or otherwise), arbitration, administrative proceeding, or
other binding dispute resolufion proceeding of amy kind for any purpose,
including, hut not limited to, nse ay evidence.

+ Borrower should not pass np or ignore other opportunities that might arise to
resolve, through cther means, any issues with Compass, the Revolving Loan, or
the Term Loan,

+ Borrower should net take any acfion, or fail to take action, in reliance upon
Compass’s willlngness to enter Discussions,

QBAI1500297.4
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Dennis C. Vacco, Esq.
Qctober 15, 2010
Page 3

* The Discossions with Compasy will not relieve Borrower of its obligation to fully
and timely perform under the terms and conditions of the Loan Documents,

* The parties acknowledge that the Discussions are entered Into for the sole benefit
of Borrower and Compass, and no other person or entity shall haye any rights
by reason of the Discussions or this letier agreement.

» Compass has no obligation to make any loans to Borrower, and any loans made
by Compass on or after the date of this letter are made as an accommodation
only, and do mot comstitute, nor shall be deemed to constitute, a waiver by
Compass of any rights or remedies nnder the Loan Documents, at law or in
equity.

» The acceptance by Compass of any partial payment or performance from
Borrower shall not constitute a commitment by Compass to modify the Loan
Documents, reinstate any loans or cure any default or event of default, constifute
an agreement by Compass to forbear from exercising its rights and remedies, or
act to waive any of Compass’s rights and remedies under the Loan Documents,
at law or in equity.

+ For purposes of the Discussions to be undertaken pursmant to this letter, each
signatory will designate in writing, within 3 business days of its execution of this
letter, its authorized representative(s) for conducting the Discussions, including
the contact phone nmumbers and e-mail addresses of such representatives.
Borrower acknowledges that any and all requests to change, modify, or amend
the Revolving Loan, the Term Loan, or the Loan Documents in any way will be
communicated through Compass’s representative (as identified pursuant to this
paragraph) and in the manner determined by Compass in ils sole and absolute
discretion, As an initlal matter, Compass designates ifs representatives as
follows:

Chris Webster

Executive Vice President

BBV A Compass

2850 E. Camelback Road, Suite 140
Phoeniz, AZ: 85016

United States of America

(602) 522-7520 (Tel)

(602) 778-0778 (Fax)

QB 500297 4

Superpumper 000446

5004




Dennis C. Vacco, Esq.
October 15, 2010
Page 4

Ken Ehrhardt

Senior Vice President
Commercial Banking Manager
BBVYA Compass

2850 E. Camelback Rd., Suite 140
Phoenix, AZ 85016

(602) 522-6888 (Tel)

{205) 524-0187 (Fax)

Any failure or delay by Compass in exercising any right, power, or remedy under
the Revolving Loan Agreement, the Term Loan Agreement, or the other Loan Documents, at law
or in equity, or any acceptance of partial performance or partial payment (i) shall not operate as a
waiver of such right, power, or remedy, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right,
power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise of such right, power, or remedy or the
exercise of any other right, power, or remedy, and (ii) shall not be sufficient, by itse!f or together
with any other action or inaction by Compass, to establish a course of dealing or course of
conduct by Compass upon which Borrower shall be entitled to rely.

Notwithstanding the existence or content of any communication by or hetween
Borrower and Compass, or any of their respective representatives, regarding any defuult or event
of default, no waiver, forbearance, or other similar action by Compass with regard to such
default or event of default shatl be effective unless the same has been reduced to writing and
executed by an authorized representative of Compass, Borrower, and every other entity deemed
necessary and desirable by Compass,

Nothing contained in this letter is a waiver or modification of any right, power, or
remedy of Compass under the Revolving Loan Agreement, the Term Loan Agreement, or the
other Loan Documents, nor a waiver or modification of any provision thereof, nor an agreement
to make any loans after the date of this letter, and nothing in this letter will be or will be
constred as any such waiver, modification, or agreement.

Please discuss this matter with Borrower, and if it is in agreement, please have
Borrower sign below where indicated and return a copy of this letter to our attention.

oo Ken Ehrhardt
Chris Webster

QB\I1560297.4
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Dennis C. Vacco, Esqg.
October 15, 2010
Page 5

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO this dayof ,2010.

“RORROWER":
SUPERPUMPER, INC., an Arizona corporation
By:

Name:
Title: Authorized Signatory

QBL115G0297.4
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Your branch addess:

3 FIRST CANADIAN PLAGE BMO Account Tracker™ |
TORONTO, ON i
MEX1A3 :

Your il'lvestmel'lt an d bal'l ki I‘Ig repo rt Your BMO Account Tracker

reference pumber
3213-3021-506

October 1 to October 31, 2010

Your branch
BMO HARRIS PRIVATE BANKING
Transit number: 3213

BMALTCIDO0 1752022 004 € b 5213 D1158
MR PAUL A. MORABITC

74 BRECKINRIDGE AVENUE

5T CATHERINES oN LZW 1C4

. www.bma.com

Summary of your portfolio

Change in the value of your accounts

Opening Looking for more delailed
Canadian § acounts walye inlorrogtion on investment
. products and services
Everyday Banking accounts offered by BMO? Visit
Chequing bmne.com/investments o
wecess all the investmment

Total information you are lnoking [ur,
plus find many tools and
U5 § accounts calculators wo help you

determine what investments

Everyday Hanklng accounts best snit your needs,

Chequing 4851
Savings r 614,084,931
$197,199.83 $614,133.46

1553 IER (D4 X0

Sl e

MORABITO (341).005357
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summary of your portfolio (continued)

Here'sa breakdown of your accounts

Yalue on Datalls
{anadan § atcounds October 31, 2010 start on
Everyday Banklng accounts
Primmary Chequing Accounl # 3213
3021-506 57817 Page 3
Total $5TR.17

1K S acounts

Everyday Banking accounts

8% Primary Chequing Account

#3213 4513-3R2 48.53
US4 Premiumn Rate Savings # 3213
4513-982 614,084.93
Total $614,133.45

g
Everyday Banking accounts %
Summary of your accounts 3 g

% doim
i balance on

Opening  Tota) angg
3 Oct 31, 2010

Account balance

Primary Chequing Account

#3213 2021-506 557817 $0.00 $578.97
Us$ primary {fequing Account

#3213 4513-392 £0.00 {U5)$48.53

USS Premium Rate Savings
#3213 4513982 4

BMO Account Tracker®™

THANK YOL!

We apprecidle your business.

L5S31E K (04/2008)

FRY1E: x Fronene aliirnnng

MORABITO (341).005358
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BMO Account Tracker™

Your investment and banking report
MR PAUL A MORABITO - Octaber 110 Drtober 31, 2018

Here's what happened in your accounts

Amounts Aot
deducted from added o your
Date Desgipting your account (3 account {$) Balance (§)

frJmary Chaquing Account # 3213 3021-506

Mlan type: Platinum Banking
Owrer:
R PAUL A MORARITO

QOpening balance

Ot dosing lotaks
Number of cheques or refated items enclosed with your staternent

us$ Primary chequing Account # 3213 4513-:&;%.
Man type: Aatinum Banking
owner:
MR PALIL A MORARITO

4853
$0.00 (1s)58.53

Opening balance
Oct31 Closing totaks

155316.R {04/ 2008)

BAIY ™ s Do

MORABITO (341).005359
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BMACTAI000_1 T52022_004 - 001611 OT1245

BMO Account Tracker™

Here's what happened in your accounts (¢continued)
FP ¥

Amounts Arnounts
deducted from added to your
ol Desoiption your accourt () account {§) Solance (§)
m Us$ Premium Rale Savings # 3213 4513-982
Man type: Malinun Banking
(ramier;
R PAUL A MORABITO
Opening balance 197,151.30
Oct 01 Oulgoing Wire Paymnent, WIRE PYAT 3213 321335654 157,15130
001 {xgoing Wre Handing Fee _ 157,071.30
001 Oulgoing Wire Commn Fee e 130
OOl Dutgaing Whie Payment, WARE PYMT 3213 321338663 12506130
ot 0 Outgoing Wire Handling Fee 1253,005.30
Ot 01 Outgoing Wire Comm Fee 128,995.30
Ot 01 Incoring Wire Payme, US, 15210958 1,035,068 10 1,164,043.40
(XXO1 Wiz Pagment Fee, HANDIING CHG (35963000 1164089.40
o0l Oulgoing Wire Payment, WIRE PYNT 3213 321338706 4 AL 1,017,902.40
Ot 01 Oytgoing Wire Handing Fee 1500 101777740
oAbl Ougeing Wre Corrm Fee 1000 1,012,767.40
Ot 01 Outgoing Wire Payrrestl, WIRE PYMEFT> Y 146,147.00 8M,620.40
% 7 12500 sn,a;;ﬁ
10.00 BA,485.40
17,000.00 £54,485.40
3400 854,451.40
000 54,4410
01570 F14,557.10
0107 Wre Paymant FggiNDLING CHG 047863000 1400 914,543.10
0004 Incorring Wire Payment, U, 15210958 500 914568.1(5
004 Wire Paymenl Fee, HAMOUNG CHG 036309000 1400 91455440
OA06  Outgoing Wire Payment, WIRE PYMT 3213 321333174 005,00 8745000
Oxt06  Outgaing Wire Handiing Fee 8001 B74,469.07
Ot 06 Oulgaing Wire Comm Fee 1000 87445909
Oct 05 Quigeing Wire Papmend, WRE PYMT 3213 221339178 15,00.00 §59,455.00
006 Cutgoing Wire Handling Fee 3000 859,43!?‘.29_
Oads  Outgoing Wre Comm Fee 1000 &99,419,09
{continued on next page)
1S53ER (4 2008)

TR I8 IS T RTINS

MORABITO (341).005360
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BMO Account Tracker*™”

Your investment and banking report
MR PALIL A MORABINO - October 1 to October 31, 2010

Here's what happened in your accounts (continued)

[ ] Amounts Aot
=— daducted from added to your
— Date Description your accourd ($) accourtt ($) Balwwe ($)
———
I . .
F—— us$ Premium Rale Savings # 3213 4513-982
—— ot07  Cepash 28,0000 B57,41909
i Oct 08 Outgoing Wire Payment, WIRE PYMT 3213 321339352 208,600.00
= Ock U8 Quigoing Wire Handling Fee 12500
= 0008 Ouigoing Wire Comrn Fee
_— Dt 15 Deposit
==
—— Ot 15 Oulgoing Wre Payrment, WARE PYMT 3213 321339947
o013 Owigning Yére Handling Fes
Ot 15 Outgoing Wire Comm Fee
Ot 15 Quigaing Wire Payrvent, WIRE PYMI 3213 32133992 654,633.4
ot 15 Duigoing Wire Handing Fee £54 57805
Ot 15  Ouigaing Wre Comm Fee £54,568.05
015 Outgoing Wire Payiment, YARE PYMT 3213 3 606,110.76
Cd 15 Oulgoing Wire Handing Fee 60501385
Ot 15 Outgoing Wie Coimm Fee 506,003.85
440000 01,600.85
1500 01,58385
1000 0,578.55
" 70,5970 17755
A
g 1400 672,16355
é 7,732.00 699,895.55
g 774700 £72,14855
* Ot19  Oulgoing Wre Handing Foe 5549 672,093.06
: 015 Ouigoing Wire Comm Fee 1000 672,08106
z Ot26  Oulgoing Wire Payiment, WIRE PYMT 3213 321340974 10,000:00 62,083.06
2 Ocl26  Outgoing Wire Handing Fee 060 F62,063.06
g 0d 26 Oulgoing Wire Comm Fee 1000 662,053.06
g Ot29  Outgoing Wire Payerent, WARE PYMT 3213 321349363 28,500 61403806
g 029 Oulgaing Wire Handling Fee 56,03 41394248
B

{conlinued on next page)
145918 R (04/2008]

By M e e Lo

MORABITO (341).005361
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BMO Account Tracker™™

Here's what happened in your acoounts {continued}

AmoLTs ATounts
deducted from added to your
Dale Desaiption yyour account (5} account {§) Balance ($)
Us$ Premium Rale Savings # 3213 4513-982
0129 OulgoingWire Comm Fee 10.00 §13,93203
% ntevest Eamed 15250 1408493
0131 Clsingtotals otz $LI9.267.78  {US)5614,08093

Exclusive Toronto Maple Leafs and Raptors perks far BMO® customers.
Hey Sports Fan!

Wilh the Toronwo Maple Leafs and Reptors seasar in high gear, there's n
enioy the rest of the season than with perks and beneflits exclusive only

customers, )
Check out mapleleafs.com/bmg or raptors.corm/bmo and start enjovi
BMO Power of Blue today!

“Toronte Maple Leals’, "Leals" and nssoriated word merks and logos are t
Entersinmeant Lot and are weed under licence, "Teronto Rapors” and assigated ward o i

wrademarks, designs and o1her forms of niellectuat property of NBA Propeclies. Inc. ond ‘oronto Raplnes and are
used ander licanse. © 2010 NBA Properties, Inc. Al Hghis merved{‘% i, P

Keep more of your money with a Bl
cash savings’ .

Toinvestin a BMO sit your local branch or call 1-877-CALL-BMOC

* "The interesl |s earned oncash savings which are held in e Savings Accoune optianaf {the BMO TFSA. Interest is
lculated snd paid monthly on the last business day of the month, This offes may be changrd ac withdreywn owany
lime withoul netce, Additinnal torms and tonditiona apply; Dleast see hma.com A Csa for details,

EMACTAI000_[753022_00M - 0016171 011248

155318 {04/2008)
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MORABITO (341).005362
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BMO Account Tracker™

Your investment and banking report
MR PAUL A MORARITG - October 1 ta Octaber 31, 2010

o Important information about your accounts

How to reach us
For more informalion regarding one of your sccounts, pleass conlact
1OE DOUCET, or call or visit us at:

« BMOTerm Invesimenls 1-B77-225-5266  www.bmo.com/gic

+ BMO Mutual Funds 1-800-665-7700  www,brno.com/mutualiunds

+ Everyday Banking www.bmo.com/banking

Lega) information

Please review this statemeni for any errors, omissions or unauthor
us may affect any legal claim you may have, [Fihere are any errors, 03
transactions, please notify us immediately by calliog Lthe B%\msl

e

Member of BMO Financial Group
¢ /04« Trade-marks of AIR MILES Internetional Trad§
Management Group Canade Inc, snd Bank of Montrea
™ Trade-mark of Bank of Montreal

® Registerad lrade-mark of Bank of Monires
Everyday Banking regisiration numberg
* "BMOY s a registered trade-mark off

o11249

BMACTA 1000 _1752022_ 004 - OHE15 HRT - - 04~ 01 - 07~ -

15531E-R [0 2008

MORABITO (341).005363
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SUPERPUMPER, INC.

VALUATION.OF 100 PERCENT OF THE COMMON EQUITY IN
SUPERPUMPER, INC, ON A CONTROLLING, MARKETABLE BASIS
As of August 31, 2010

Prepared for:

Superpumper, Inc,

c/o Dennis Vacco, Esquire

Lippes Malhias Wexler Friedman, LLP
665 Main Street, Suite 300

Buffalo, NY 14203

Prepared bhy:

Spencer P. Cavalier, CFA, ASA

. Sean P, Dooley

Malrix Capital Markets Group, inc.
100 8. Charles Street, Suite 1350
Baltimore, MD 21201

The information contained hersin is of a confidential nature and is intended o1 the
axclusive use of the parsons or firm for whom it was prepared. Reproduction,
publication or dissemination of all or portions hereof may not be made without prior
approval from Matrix Capital Markets Group, Inc.

5014



A

X

ATRIX

L EIfag b Gl

: ..'ll'k‘l.\‘i‘u;.l'!fl}_\' Whe Badpe OF Privade Wagjness .

140 Borwa 16t DR IULES SUTMEEZ, S0UTY D330, BAmunr, A0 21001 1 pheees DF0T52.080 ] w1337 1A0G5

Oclober 13, 2010
PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL

Superpumper, Inc.

¢fo Dennis Vacco, Esquire

Lippes Mathias Wexler Friedman, LLP
G665 Malin Strest, Suite 300

Buffaln, NY 14203

RE: Superpumper, Inc,
Dear Mr. Vacco:

At your request, we have performed a valuation engagement to determine the fair
market value of 100 percent of the common equity (Subject Interest) in Superpumper,
nc. (Superpumper or the Company), on a controlling, marketalde basis, as of
August 31, 2010 (the Valuation Date).

Fair market value is based In {arge part upon the expectation of future benefits to be
teceived by the prospoctive purchaser and to be given up by the prospective seller,
which are directly-attributahle to the asset being transfarred.

I-air market value is defined in Section 26,2512-1 of the U.S. Treasury regulations as:
“The price at which such properly would change hands between a willing
buyer and a willing seller, neither being under any compuision to buy or to
sell, and both having reasonable knowledge of ralevant facts.”
The-objective of a valuation is to express an unambigtious oplnion as to the value of the
business, business ownership interest, or securily, which s supported by all procedures
that the valuator deems to be relevant to the valuation,
A valuation has the foliowing qualities:

1. Hts conclusion of value is expressed as either a single dollar amount or
arange.

Poowwwannrixeapirabmarkesgrom
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2. W considers all relevant information as of the valuation date available to
the valuator at the time of the performance of the valuation.

3. The valuator conducts appropriate procedures to collect and analyze all
information expected to be relevant to the valuation.

4. The valuation is based upon consideration of all conceptual approaches
deemed to be relevant by the valuator,

For our valuation, we used standard valuation approaches and methodologies. The
financial information in this valuation, inciuding the accompanying exhibits, is presented
solely to assist in the development of our conclusion of value, and it should not be used
for any other purpose. Because of the limited purpose of this information, it may contain
departures from genetally accepled accounting principles. The conciusion of vaiue
gdiven is based on information provided in parl by the management of Suparpumper.

This report is a restricted-use report and is an abridged version of the infermation that
would be provided in a detailed valuation report and therefore does not contain the
same leval of detail as a detailed report. This restricted-use report is resiricted for use
by the shareholders of Superpumper for corporate planning purposes only. No other
third parties should rely on the information contained in this report without seeking
professional advice. We have no obligation to update this report or our conclusion of
valde for information that comes to our attention after the date of this repon.

Based on our analysis as described in this valuation repo, it is our estimale that the fair
market value of 100 percent of the common equity in Superpumper, loc., on a
controlling, marketable basis, as of August 31, 2010 is $6,484,514.

This conclusion or opinion of value is subject to the Statement of Valuation Assumptions
and Limiting Conditions inciuded in the report on pages 5 through 7. Neither Mattix
Capital Markels Group, Inc. nor the individuals involved in preparing this valuation has
any present or contemplated future interest in Superpumper, Inc. or any other inferesls
that might tend to prevent making a fair and unbiased valuation. The details of the
valuation and the basis for conclusions are summarized in this report and the delails of
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our conclusions are included in our workpaper files. This restricted-use report is to be
used solely by you for corporate planning purposes and should not be used for any
other purpose. If you have any questions, please contact Spencer P. Cavalier or
Sean P. Dooley, the report preparers.

Milinir Copidal Mudsds Guoap AM_, Coeh

MATREX CAPITAL MARKETS GROUP Spencer P. Cavalier, CFA, ASA
Report Preparer
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Sean P. Dooley
Report Preparer
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INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

A,

Purpose of the Valuafion

Matrix Capilal Markets Group, Inc. (Matrix} was retained to determine the fair
market value of 100 percent of the commmon egquity in Superpumper, [hc.
{Superpumper or the Company), on a controlling, marketable basis as of
August 31, 2010 (the Valuation Date). Mt is our understanding that this restricted-
use valuation report wilt be utilized by the Company and Hs shareholders for
corporate planning purpeses.

Standard of Value and Premise_of Value

Fair market vaiue is based in large part upon the expectation of fulure benefits to
he received by the prospective purchaser and to be given up by the prospective
selter, which are directly attributable to the asset being fransferred.

Fair market value is definad in Section 25.2512-1 of the U.8. Treasury regulalions
as:

"The price at which such property would change hands between a
willing buyer and a willing seller, neither being under any compuision o
buy or 1o sell, and both having reasonable knowladge of relevan!
facts."

Our valuation analysis was conducted under the premise of value in continued use,
as a golng concern enletprise. It is our opinion that this value represents the
appropriate premise of value of the Subject interest.

Description of Information Considered

In formulating our opinion of value, we have relied upon numerous sources of
information including, but not limited to, the following:

s« US. economy sources include: Business WValualion Resources:
*Economic Outlook, 2" Quarter 2010."

« [nierest Rates from http:/iwww . federalreserve. govireleases/h15/data. htm

« [photson Associates "Stocks, Bonds, Bills, and Inflation 2010 Yearbook”

+ Other Company information, as provided by the Company, including, but
not limited o store and corporate level financials for the years ending
December 31, 2007, 2008, and 2009, as well as for the trailing twelve
month period ended August 31, 2010.

This information is believed to be rellable, but we make no representation as to the
accuracy or complefeness of the information made publicly available or as
furnished to us by the management of Superpumper.
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THE APPRAISAL PROCESS

A,

Revenue Ruling 58-60

Qur valuation anaiysis takes into consideration Revenue Ruling 55-60. Revenue
Ruling 59-60 outlines and reviews the general factors to be considered in the
valuation of capital stock of closely held companies and thinly fraded public
corporations, as follows:

» The nature of the business and the history of the entefprise from its
inception.

» The economic cutlogk in general and the conditions and outlook of the

specific industry in particular.

The book value of the stock and financial condition of the business.

The earnings capacity of the Company.

The dividend paying capacity.

Whether or not the Company has goodwill or othar intangible value.

Sales of the stock and the size of the block of stock to be valued.

The market prices of stocks of corporations engaged in the same o a

similar line of business having their stock actively traded in a free and

open market, either on an exchange or overtha-counter.

# % 4 & » @

Approaches and Methods Considerad

Three approaches and several methods are available for valuing closely held
corporate interests in- accordance with generally accepted valuation principles.
The thres genarally accepted approaches are: (1) the Income Approach, (2) the
Market Approach, and (3) the Cost (or Asset-Based) Approach. That is, the value
of an entity or its securities is based upon elther: (1) the present vajue of an
income stream generated by or attributable to the property being valued, (2) anms-
length transactions of generally similar enltities or securities, or (3) the aggregate
value of the underlying assets, These three approaches are defined by the
American Society of Appraisers as follows:

Income Approach - A general way of determining a value indication of a business,
business ownership interest, or security using one or more methods wherein a
value is determined by converting anticipated benefits. This approach is based on
the fundamental vaivation principle that the vaiue of a business Is equal to the
presant worth of the future benefits of ownership.

Market Approach - A general way of determining a value indication of a business,
business ownership interest, or securily using one or more methods that compare
the subject fo similar businesses, business awnership interests, or securities that
have been sold.
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Cost Approach - A general way of determining a value indication of a business’
assets and/or equity interest using one or more methods based directly on the
vatue of the assets of the business less liabilities.

The approaches and methods used depend upon the purpose of the engagement,
type of business being valued, and the nature of the business being valued. In
some cases, all hree approaches may be called for; in others, only one may be
appropriate,

APPRAISAL PROCEDURES AND VALUATION METHODS USED

A,

Methods Used of Not Used on a Specific Basls

For our valualion, we considered the use of the following five valuation methods:

income Approach — Discounted Cash Flow Method — This method is baged on
the premise that the value of a business, business ownership interest, or security
interest is estimailed by the present vaiue of the future benelits of ownership.

Income Approach ~ Capitalization of Net Cash Flow Method - This method is
based on the premise that the value of a business, business ownership interest, or
security interest is estimated by dividing the expected business economic benefit,
such as the seller's discretionary cash flow, by the capitalization rate,

Market Approach - Guidsline Publicly Traded Company Method - This
method is based on the premise that the value of the business, business
ownership interest, or security interest is estimated based upon what astute and
rational capital market investors would pay to own such an interest.

Market Approach ~ Guideline Merged and Acquired Company Method — This
method is based on the premise that the value of the business, business
ownership interest, or security interest is estimated by comparing the subject
company to guideline companies that have been merged or acquired during a time
pertod near the valuation date,

Cost {or Asset-Based) Approach — Adjusted Balance Sheet Method — The
current values of all the subject company's assels is discretely estimated and
accumulated. In addition, the current values of ajl of the subject company's
liabilities are estimated. The value of tha equity of the business enterprise is the
current value of all of the assets of the subject company less the current value of
all of the subject company's iiabilities.

In our valuation, we used (1) the capitalization of net cash flow method — both
adjusted historicat cash flow and normalized single period {(income Approach}, (2)
the guideline publicly traded company method (Market Approach), and (3} the
adjusied balance sheel {Cost Approach).
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SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

A

Summary of Value Indications and Conclusion of Value

Exhibit 4 presents the indicated value of a 100 percent common equity ownership
interest in-Superpumper on a contrelling, marketable basis using the Capitalization
of Normalized Single Pericd Cash Flow Methed, Capitatization of Adjusted
Historical Cash Flow Methiod, Guideline Publicly Traded Company Method, and the
Adjusted Balance Sheet Method,

This resulted in a concluded fair market vaiue of 100 percent of the commeon equity
in Superpumper, Inc., on a controlling, marketable basis, as of August 31, 2010 of
$6,484,314.

This valuation engagement was conducted in accordance with the Uniform
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Foundation. This
valuation engagement is subject to the Statement of Valuation Assumptions and
Limiting Conditions included in the repert on pages 5 through 7.

Neither Matrix Capital Markets Group, lnc. nor the individuals involved in preparing
this valuation have any present or contemplated future interest in Superpumpsr,

Inc, or any other inlerests that might tend to prevent making a fair and unbiased

valuafion. The details of the vaiuation and the basfs for conclusions aie
sumimarized in this restricled-use report and the details of our conclusions are
included in our workpaper files. This vafualion engagement was performed solely
for the purpose described in this restricted-use report and the resulling estimate of
value should not be used for any other purpose. The éstimate of value resulting
from a valuation engagement is expressed as a conclusion of value. We have no
obligation to update the report or the conclusion of value for information that comes
1o our attention afler. the date of the report. If you have any guestions, please
conlact please contact Spencer P, Cavalier or Sean P. Dooley, the preparers of
{his report.
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STATEMENT OF VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS

This valuation report has been prepared pursuant to the following general assumptions

and limiling conditions;

1.

Full compliance with all applicable Federal, state, and local
regulations and laws is assumed. The valuation has been prepared in
conformity with, and is subject 1o, the requirements of the code of
professional ethics and standards of professional conduct of the
American Society of Appraisers as well as Standard 10 of he Uniform
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal
Foundation (USPAP).

No part of the contents of this report, especially any conclusions of
vafue, the identity of the valuators, or the firm wilh which the valuaters
are associated or any reference to any of their professional
designations, shall be disseminated to the public through advertising,
public relations, reproduction, news, sales, or other media without our
prior written consent and approval. Should you reproduce, disclose,
or distribute this report and its conclusions in violation of this
agreement, you agree to defend and indemnify us for defense costs
and any resulting liability that may be incusred due to such
unatthorized release.

The opinion of value presented in this report applies to this valuation
only and may not be used out of the context presented harein. This
valuation is valid only for the valuation date or dates, and transfer dats
or dates specified herein and only for the appraisal purpose or
purposes specified herein. Qur value opinicn is based on tha
purchasing power of the United States dollar as of the appraisal date,

Neither Matrix Capitai Markets Group, Inc. nor any individual signing
or associated with this report have any present or future contemplated
interest in the assets valued.

Neither our employment nor our compensation in connection with this
report is in any way contingent upon the conclusions reached or
values estimated. The concluded value determined by Matrix Capital
Markets Group, [nc. was not based on a minimum valuation, a specific
valuation, or the approval of a loan.

Information furnished by others, upon which all or pottions of this
report are based, is helieved to be relisble but has not been verified in
all cases. No warranty is given-as to the accuracy of such information
and we assume no responsibility for such information

5024



10.

12.

13.

14,

15.

This valuation report cannot be includad, or referred to, in any
Securities and Exchange Commission filings or other public
documents,

Neither Matrix Capital Markets Group, Inc. nor any individuals signing
or associated with this report shall be required by reason of this report
to give testimony or appear in court or other legal proceedings, unless
specific arrangements therefore have been made.

The concluded value is predicated on the financial structure prevailing
as of the effective date of this report.

No responsibility is taken for changes in market conditions, and no
obligation is assumed to revise this report to reflect events or
conditions which occur subsequent to the dale hereof. We have no
obligation to update the report or the conclusion of value for
information that comes to our attention after the date of the report.

it is assumed that all required licenses, cerdificates of occupancy,
consents, intangible assets, infellectual property, trademarks, trade
names, franchise rights, or other legislative or administrative authority
from any local, state, or naticnal government or private entity or
organization have been or can be obtained or renewed for any use on
which the value estimate contained in this report is based,

An independent appraisal of the fixed assets of Superpumper, Inc.
was not obtained. Had an indepandent appraisal been cbitalned, the
resulting opinion of value may have been different, which would cause
our opinion of value to be different,

We have relied, in part, on management's forecasts for Superpumper,
Inc. We do not provide assurance on the achievability of lhe results
forecasted by management because events and circumstances
frequently do not oceur as expectad; differences between actual and
expactad results may be material; and achievement of the forecasted
results is dependent on aclions, plans, and assumptions of
management. Accordingly, if management’'s assumptions were fo
change, our valuation conclusions may change.

The conciusion of value arrived at herein is based in the assumption
that the current level of management expertise and effectiveness
would continue to be maintained, and that the characler and integrily
of the enterprise through any sale, reorganization, exchange, or
diminution of the owners® participation would not be materially or
significantty changed.
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16.

17.

18,

19.

20,

21.

22,

This report and the conclusion. of value arrived at herein are for the
exciusive use of our client for the sole and specific purposes as noted
herein, They may not be used for any other purpose or by any other
party for any purpose. Furthermore, the report and conclusion of value
are not intended by the author and should not be construed by the
reader to be investment advice in any manner whatsoever. The
conclusion of value represents the considered opinion of Matrix
Capital Markets Group, Inc., based on information furnished to them
by Superpumper, Inc. and other sources.

No change of any item in this appraisal report shall be made by
anyona other than Matrix Capita! Markets Group, Inc., and we shali
have no responsibility for any such: unauthorized chiange.

Unless otherwisc stated, no effort has been made o determine the
possible effest, if any, on the subject business due to future Federal,
state, or local legislation, inciuding any environmentatl or ecological
matters or interpretations thereof.

We have conducted interviews with the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and other personnel of Superpumper corcerning
past, present, and prospective operating results of the Company.

Except as noted, we have relied on the representations of the
Company and other third parties concerning the value and useful
condition of all equipment, real estate, investments used in the
business, and any other assets or fiabilities except as specifically
stated to the contrary in this report. We have not attempted to confirm
whether or not all assets of the business are free and clear of liens
and encumbrances or that the entity has good title 1o all assets.

Matrix Capital Markets Group, Inc. ‘has not made a specific
compliance survey or analysis. of the subject property or store
locations to determine whether it is subject to, or in compliance with,
the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, and this valuation does
nat consider the effect, if any, of noncompliance.

The parties for which the inforination and use of the valuation report is
restricted are identified; the valuation report is not infended to be and
should not be used by anyane other than such paities.
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We hareby certify, to the best of owr knowledge and belief, the following stalements

VALUATORS' REPRESENTATION AND CERTIFICATION

regarding this valuation engagement:

1.

The statements of facts contained in this report, upon which the analyses,
opinions, and conclusions expressed herein are based, are assumed to he
true and correct,

The repored analyses, opinions, and conclusions of value Included in the
valuation report are subject to the specified assumptions and limiting
conditions and thay are the personal analyses, opinions, and conclusion of
value of the valuation analyst.

We have no present or prospective future interest in Superpumper, Inc.

We have no personal interest or bias with respect to the subject matter of this
report or the partics involved.

Our compensation is fee-based and is not contingent on any action or event
resulting from the analyses, opinions, or conclusions in, or the use of, this
repost.

The valuation has been prepared in conformity with, and is subjecl to, the
requirements of the code of professionat ethics and standards of professionat
conduct of the American Society of Appraisers as well as Standard 10 of the
Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisai
Foundation (USPAP).

The economic and industry data included in the valuation report have been
obtained from varlous printed or electronic reference sources that the
valuation analyst believes to be reliable. The vaiuation analyst has not
performed any corroborating. procedures to subslantiate that data.

The valualion analyst has no obligation to update the report.or the opinion of
valug for information that comes to his or her attention after the date of the
report.

A Al S ng?;

Spencer P. Cavalier, CFA, ASA Sean P. Docley
Report Preparar Report Preparer
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Spencer P. Cavalier, CFA, ASA

Spencer is a member of the Energy & Multi-Site Relail Team, He is responsible for
client development and co-managing all aspecls of transactions including preparing
seling memoranda and providing valuation and corporate finance expertise, Prior to
joining Matrix, Mr. Cavalier was a senior business valtuation consuitant wih Elin &
Tucker, Charlered, a nationally recognized business vajuation, consulting and
accounting firm and a commercial lender with NationsBank (now Bank of America).

As a holder of the Chartered Financial Analyst designation, he is a member of the CFA
institute and is also recognized as an Accredited Senior Appraiser by the American
. Society of Appraisers. Spencer holds a B.S. degree (with honors) from West Virginia
University and an M.B.A. from Baylor University, He is actively involved with The
Bennett Instilute’'s Physically Challenged Sports Program at Kennedy Krieger and
previcusly served on the Board of Visitors for University of Maryland's Hospital for
Chitdren and the Board of Directors for The CollegeBound Foundation. He is qualifled
as a Series 7, Series 63 and Serigs 79 FINRA General Secutities Representative,
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Sean P. Dooley

Seanis a member of the Energy & Mulli-Site Retail Team and is responsible for
conducting financial, industry, and buyer research, creating valuation and financing
madels, and preparing selling and private placement memoranda. Prior to joining Matrix
in 2010, Sean was an associate in the Forensic and Valuation Servicas Group for the
public accounting firm of Ellin & Tucker, Chartered in Baltimore, Maryland, where his
exparience included a variety of valuation engagements.

Sean also held an analyst position in the Federal Systems Group of Unisys
Corporation.. Sean received a B.S.B.A. with a concenlration in Finance from East
Carolina University. He is a candidate member of the American Society of Appraisers.
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SUPERPUMPER, INC,

VALUATION ANALYSIS

AS OF
August 31, 2010

Mutrix Capltak Masket s Group, Ine.
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SUPERPUMPER, INC.
Adfusted Balance Sheet

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cosh and eash equivalents
Acoounts recelvable
Ivéntories
Prepaic expensed
Total Currem Asseis

Fined Assats
Buildings & improvements
Huwigment
Yihicles
Fonul Figedl Assels
Depreviation
Met Fisked Assets

OFHER ASSETS
Retatl Assels Matkedao- MY
Ihie Fromm all#Eutes
Trademacks
Ruent deposits
Total Ollier Assels

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABULITIES & BEQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts paysble
Acened Jiabiifivs
[ine of crocdic
Toral Current Liabilitics

BONG-TRRM DERT
D to starelwhber
Total Long-Term Lishilitics

Total Linbilities
STOCKGOLIUR'S BQUITY
Comman stock
Adlditionnt paid-in capital
Retgined camings
Total Stockholders Houity

Totat Linkititles & Stockholler's Equity

Totul interest bearing debt

Mntrig Capital Mackets Groop, Inc. Adjusied Bal Sheat

Superpusmpe s FINAL_ Vatuntion 2010, 1020, xisx

Adjusied
As of Brlunce
85110 Ad Justments Sheet
$862,055 - 562,055
560,151 - 561,131
£,253.257 . 1,253,257
126,233 - 126,213
2,301,696 - 180 606
542,100 (542,190} -
5,942,704 (1L42,774) -
35,4l : 35411
2,530,374 2,484,964) 154101
L 3T 1,310,787 -
1,524, {6 {173,765 350,950
- DygR.OL O.888,083
8925708 {8,925, 708) -
1 /h8 2,803 {1482,003) .
157,128 - 117,128
10,524,899 1519,7395 1,005,140
814,850,701 (1,692,935 13,157,766
$2,168,7%4 - $2,163,784
1,076,855 < 1,076,855
1Y558,215 - 25215
6,200,854 6, 200.85:4
178 - L5
§75 - 1T
6,203,029 6,200,034
(0,000 - ED.H00
4,284,605 - 4. 281,605
4,355,008 { 1,692,035} 2,662,132
8.649,672 {1,602 935) 6,056,737
14,830,701 (1502,005)  13,157.760
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SUPERPUMPER, INC.
Adjusted Balance Sheet

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash cquivalents
Accoutts receivable
[nventories
Prepaid expenses
Towal Current Assels

Fixed Assets
Buildings & improvements
Equipment
Velicles
Toual FFixed Assets
Depreciation
et Fixed Assets

OTHER ASSETS
Retail Assets Marked-to-FMY
Due rom affiliates
Tradenarks
Rent deposits
Towml Other Asscis

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EGUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued linbilities
Line of credit
Totat Current Libilities

LOKG-TERM DEBT
Due 10 sharcholder
Total Long-Tern Lizbilities

Total Liabiligies
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Comunen stuck
Additional paid-in capital
tetgined camings

Total Stnckholdet's Equity

Totul Liabilities & Stockholder®s Equicy

Total interest bearing delbit

Matrix Capital Markets Group, tne, Adjusted Bal Shee

Supcepumper_FINAL_Valvation_2010.10.20.x1sx

Adjusted
Asof Balance
8/11/10 Adjustments Shect
$862,055 - $862,055
560,15) - 360,151
1,253,257 - 1.253,257
126,233 - 126,233

2,801,606 - 2.501,696

542,190 (542.190)
1,942,774 (1,042,774) .
35410 - 35411
2,320,374 (2,484,964} 3541
(L311,787) 1,311,787 .
1,529,106 (1173.170) 350,930
. 9585012 9HREO12
1.925.708 (8.925,708) .
1.952.063 {1.4%2.063) .
117,128 . 117.128
10,524,899 (319759 10.005, 140
$14,850,70 (1,692,935) 13,157,766
$2.168.784 . §2,168.784
1076855 . 1,076.855
29355215 . 2.955.215
6,200,854 6,200,854
175 ; 175
173 - 17
5,201,020 - £.201,.029
10,000 . 16,000
4,284,605 ; 4,284 605
4,335,068 (1.692.933) 2,662,132
8,649,672 (1.692.933) 6.956,737
14,830,701 (1,6929335) 13,157,766

Exhibit 7 ol 14
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Frank Glimore

T

From: Sarm Morabito <smorabilo@supe rpumpey.com>
Sont: Wednasday, June 18, 2014 4:19 PM

To: Michzal Vanak @wellsfargo.com

Subfect: FW: SPI Analysiy

Aftachments: Image(i0l.png

Michaed, here s an anelysls of the Superpumper transaction In 2010, from our eltotney, As dicussed Edward and | { thraugh
$nowshoe § also assirmad 2 large obfigation on the LOC at Compass { some 2.5 milllon dollars ). Note Hust we afready owned
20% of the comgpany, hence tie B0 acquisition value,

Sam
Anatysls of Superpumaer Aceidsitlon

Mistrix Appralsed Value: 46,484,515

Compass Term Loar: 51,682,000

Net Value: $4,802,514

Risk Discount {(35%) 41,660,880

Dicounted Net Valua: $3,121,634

BO% Acquisition Yolue™: $2,497,307

Less Cash Pald: $1,035,094

Balance Due; §1,462,213

Christian M. Loveleee
Fariner

@%W%mm

BES Main Streey, St 300
Gtfely, How York 14203-1425
Tel: (716 853-5100

Fax: {716) B53-5199

E-Mall; fovelaceflipoes.con
Veeb: hiip: Mveee ooes com

Ehreular 230 Dickodtne. Any tederadtar pddes ocfu ded In thls commundoation (nchadyg iy allachments} was nol lalended or weitten Lo e wsed, and cannot bne
vied, for she purpose of (i) vcdding 125, lederat L. related prnaliicl or (B) promollsg of recommanding la BaoLhur party Bny 1 ac-retated maller addvesied beteln
This email may oot lnmatrdalibet it coaNdeniial, g kitaged andfer aliornoy wark praduct for the 149g ucg of the fatended weelplent. Anyaevlew, relame of
dhitrituiion hy otkers ag forwarding without express permhlon T stekctle pohitted. 1l yow ace nol the Inlaaded redglent, pleate conlacy the kender and delote 3
opias.
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H consolidated Westamn Cotporation (CWE] ownied B0% of SPI, Bayuk and Sam Morabito owned 10X each of SPL.
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SUPERPUMPER MARCH 2040 YTD INCOME STATEMENY

Company + Company

akw 3@“’5_ ]

MERCHANDISE SALES,
HEC
FinfCaffee
Az Fidse
B
Pyl e
Grocury
- Fo0l Servie
aTe

Yot Satos MOSE

COSY OF SALES-M0LE:
Cont of Saw MESE
fnvimtey +

Eotat 05 + #OSE"

FUEL GALES:
Galoling Seies
Trsod Sules

“Yatal Fueh Sebe

COBT O SALES-PUELS
"Gt o Sales-Gasling
o of Sales-Dioset,

“Yatal COI5 - Ful

Gros g ridk
rbgs Doend Profit

{irons Fual Profi

Yol Saes
i Cos Sl

EXPLNGES: -
Sank Fess
Laih Dot/ St
G Whik Expera ;
Cimiriutions.
Croeir Gard Discoset
Dseounts Glesn
Dépiacidan Expeasd
Emplayee Rolmlons,
Faipment Lease & Hontal
Haslth Inguraiet
enaral Linbillly sucats
intarést Expese:
Trtintiky Services
tagal Fids
Dy & Subscrictions:
Lheases and Fes’
ftich Sutiplhes

| 28497
1,219,756

L7352

#7.020

451076

531,104

82721

428

16,395

F14505

3353,538 .

2,248,169
Nad

1320308

30332

15035611
1,149,036

. S —————

58,214,097

13,401,608
1310427

et e A T 1

1A%

L4081, 206
M8

AL R AL 1k de v nd e

1,052,008

19,571,585
1,733,341

2,995,244

11.b38 -

LIk
AL
18,705 .

106
s
My

16, 746~
0, b
3,304
6,528
ALY
43559
20,967

5,500

44

Superpumper 000990
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SUPERPUMPER MARGH 2010 YTD INCOME STATEMENY

Lompany - Company

Pertage Expanse
Frofessianal Faas

Rent Capenss

fecruiting & Yraining
HBM - Buliding

RAHM - L3ndseaping
REM - At
Prrpelt - fice.

Payroft - Stonew

FaproH Dvarhuad
Supiphies Buxeiss

Tax: Expense « lticeres
Tax Experia - Piojry. .
T Enprense ~ Personsd Prog
frivistey

ity Expense

i B
OTHER INCORE | EXPERSE:

Cai Wash Incoma’

“Foual Other Tacoma / Expansts
i FHOET
Garoling in Gallang
tieset in Ballons

"ok Gasoling Laflons: Sokd
13&9.01.?:“&‘_ oG

Diesoeh CP15:

[ Vour ko bute |

22,481

EEL L PR ] ]

5,224,077

Superpumper 000921
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SUPERPUMPER JUNE 2016 YT INGOWE STATEMENT

“Compony - Lompuny

o NG ¥

HERCHANGISE SALES:
HBE )
Liggareltey.
HinfCofee
Gin Melea
‘BRenfwe
Pekgd v,

Nl
oTe
Tastal Safies, PUE

COST OF SALES-MONE:
Chstof Sales MDSE
Ineeptory 4

ross Prof MOSE -

FUBL BAIES:
Gpsolite Sales
Bieged Solds

ot Eud) Siles

COSY OF SRESFUEL,
Cant o Sales-Gaswtne:
“East of Sples-Diesdt

“Fitol QS - Fue
Ciiss G rifi
Gy Thesd Proft

otoss Fuct freft

“Youwises
Tt Lot o oo,

GROVSS INCOME

BARENSES:
Advertisinn
Gank Feps
Cash v/ Shott

Gzt o, LinbTity Seseirance
“erestExprosk

Legel Fnds

naw B Subseitptions
Untinats it Fos:

Mist, Expendt. -

. 55,208
2490080
164,294
180:5%5
H51.530
LA12, 040
1,015,316
91,840
R
43,536

1490,527

AT
43633

© 437660

2,453967

29,0000
2305, 784

33788869

36,001,536
LA

e 44+ R

R SE5A00

T38)060
342300

1633763

ELRE L)
BAE

587 TH

0
Al
5282
145,298
4,75
Cod

451
I
TS

180000
Cagn
10,330
R 82
Brin

43053

AW
GBI
2,705
25,5
B 'm.
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SUPERPUMPER JUNE 2010 YT INGOME STATEMENT

Cornpany - Comgany

il rierhitad

LITHER TREOME F EXPERSC:
Lothory - Agent et
Prigiate Intoemi
AT Revetoty
Payjphoha fevand
i Haies Revoiiae
T Wesh Indoree”
Ervermst Incatec- T vt

Total Gllwer Thairise | Expansas
HET PROFIY
GASOLME GALLONG-SOLE:
Gosolne i Galipns
igsel i Galions
o i Gt i
Gasitloe O

Dol CFS

_

1Y
T
136,473
2,184,098
148,705
1103

- 55247
115,268
16,950
vk
264,280
e rliky
Jo.
115418
R
53,4993
Y5k S
"15E78H
3199
45046
B

876«
L3449
sl PR i

“risn

CGHME
{64,208

23,547
LTED
8,576
55,608
BT
i

T06;084
Be5,20r

e e T W R

BTRL %o
e

© Fremitiea a2 4 m T rane

WAL
3

A51%

Superpumper 000993
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SUPERPUMPER AUGUST 2010.YTD INCOME STATENENT

Company ~Company

S INCOMER F ¥

mmnmm
WA

Caghrettes
FinCoftes
{360 Mdse
BeoifwWin
Pyl Bav.
Foud il
[

kR

Totdl- Sl FLSE.

cosT x:aF SALTGMDSE:
Lot - of Salr.-sm
wdatary +°
ToeAl 56 - HOSE
Gross Frafit MDEE
Gascling Spley
Digsnl Sals -
’Tdtal F\Hf&_&laﬁ
CLET OF S&E&-ﬂ}&
it o SullesCustiine
" Cosg af SatesDissel
Tors o8 ~ Fatd
Gross Fuel Prot

Tonl Sady
Cﬁﬁ. ef S;ﬂm

MCISS HHEOME

EXPEARES:
Advertising
“Baok Foes.
. GMIi OMETISHET
Car wash Eunmm
:ﬁum_iutw Expingn
Conrbisions.
‘Customen Relfians
et Carg Disgaznt
{¥istonimg GoR

W Espinige.
Employai: Rettions
fanspment Laase & Rantsl
- Heisight Siabante -
 eeneral Liabiity Psuranin
feverest ]b:pcnm .
. Lrrverriory Sarvioes
Legal eos
Toties & Subscrintions
Lfurrises g Feds

0,633
-&2@0 £70
a93,345
IR
‘67928
1820973
LNz,
110,618 -
HOIR
5?_4.31'2

4,359,263
628N 140.

- B2
FRTUEC
19997

S50
2,968,220

AR L AU L 4l T i bt

RLER oY

1513280
2 598,116&

4377 637
A6 159

e
51,5895
43,994,813

7,863,576

WG,
14,554
148,543
lﬂli,'ﬂ@

Ay
361,563

398,370

25000
BALE
12650
96,204
102892

12,000
gk

FEaKS
30
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SUPERPUMPER AUGUST 2010 YT0 INCOME STATEMENT

Company - Company

:Misc; Exprine
"0k Supphes

: Pristage Expehie
Professioanl ey

" Propétiy teise
Reciting & Tradning
RBM + Bl
Pt Erusipitiant.

Supphoy TAperae

Y Bxgionge - ncorne-
i ESfense - Proposy
Fior Bpetge - Porsondl Prop
“Felepntne Bt

Trwvel Expencn

LinHarios.

Litihides Expensa

OFHER INCOME 7 EXPENSE:
CATH Revenst

" PO Rveiis -
Alrfiiate: Rz

L Car Wash fcoms

Lnterest Intime-Tax Exanigl:

Total Dty licome / Bxpenses

GASCLINE GALLONS-50L0:
Gacoling in Galkus
et iy Galbors.

Total Gasaline Gidns. Soid

(o OV

e
o Aduet T
T

pi1

L

A8ET2

2,525,848

273217,

14,841

e

2DLD58

144,755

25480

35018

358,236

1,267 066

¢

158,363
87,458
7E0

335
(202,10
4201
53
]

| Fi2

07

1 EA7

#1311
219,189
35,505
1,619
11616
58380
96,506

1300

2 A Ak

13,463,731

14,364,871
32&]@-‘

A

Superpumper 000995
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' SUPERPUMPER SEPTEMBER 2010 INCOME STATEMENT

‘Company - Company

Toua St DSk
ChsT oF SALES MosE:
Cosaf SaitaMOGE

Invintiny £4-
Yora Q08 - ABSE -
FUEL SRLES.
Gasoiue Sake
Diotol Sated
T Fued Sdes
EOST OF SALLSHUBL!
Cost oF Suies-Gasifing
Cout of Sales-Dhesel
“Toreh €05 - ful,

s Gk Frofil
- Gties Dlesed ot

Fotad Cont of Betes

Vearto Data
N
adgtum

38,856
25
557.09%
265,395
AT
26218
3,503.038
134,309
§1.720
649,125

L LA R i - s

40,505,313

43,258 318
332511

29,526,457

A 3&436&7
283085

42.133.323
AFE0532
A%7500°

563,170
ATV

dgns

F3,08
1520
Erat L
113,442
30,300

o ast
1,844,547 -
446,688
0500
Grm
39S
3,07
139,724
£ 566,
21060
13,953
{250 -
37,102
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SUPERPUMPER SEPTEMBER 2014 INCOME STATEMENT.

Company  Compary

“Artterast Tnegme-Fie Exomgt
Tl Cither toome / Eapperiss:
NET PROBLT -
Ganoling in Gallpns

Diesw  Gallons

Tokat Sesaline Liahatrs 5ol -
‘Gasaline LG

Diesi] €P5;

Vew o bate |

ol

il
118
JEtI5TY
3,281,536
WA
35304
237
106,882
158,478,
L5310
26,615
30,893
1,486,608
B
17831
. §8,398
'7$33
20K~
279,457
B
G027
©

.
3850

© Bgossns

95,367
241,490
39,690
1458
11516
s%a10
€87 853
sshA

A R b bbb

AT

kLN T e A

15.080,34

Aoy

BN
287

4554
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* SUPERPUMPER DECEMBER ‘2010 INCOME STATEMENT

1 -‘rear.ha.flhg“.

{

. A INTOVE = 4 ¥

MERCHANDISE SALES:

Total Salos MOSE

- COSY OF SALESHDSE:

-Gost of Sales-MUg £
Irwverdory. 48

Tkl TOS - MLSE

FUEL SALES;
Gasoline Sales

Yot Fool Siles

COSTOF SALES FUEL:.
Lost of Sles-Gasnling
o of Sales-Dicsal

Votat (06 ~ Fuel.

Groms Gas Praft
(ross Dl Prifit

Gross Fueh Proft

“Total Bakgs
“Fotal Gest of Sates
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SUPERPUMPER UNAUDITED MARCH 2010 BALANGE SHEET
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SUPERPUMPER UNAUDITED JUNE 2010 BALANCE SHEE‘!‘
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‘SUPERPUMPER UNAUDIYED SEPTEMBER 2010 EﬁLANCE SHEET
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SUPERPUMPER DECEMBER 2010 BALANCE SHEET
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ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT

‘Ihiznmww (ihe Au!:;nf)ammnro{ﬂnl"dnypﬁ
A, Monbito, an individual (“Agsisnor™} nd Soowilve Petvoleum, Inc, & Mew York
Pmmw\ﬁﬁmmﬂlﬂlﬂ Scottadale Road, Suits 125, Scotesdals Arizona 85254

WITNESSEIR:

WHEREAS, the partivs hereto ate phities to & certain term note datod September 1, 2010
in the principsl amount of $939,000.00 in which the Assignor is the Maker and the Assignee iy
the successor corporation following s merger with the odiginal Holder, Consolidated Western
Corpomtion, the merger having been consummated September 29, 2010 {the “PM Nos™); and

WHEREAS, the Assignor is 1 Holder under a cettain promissory note dsted November 1,
m"i;:mmcipﬂmmem.m,zlsm.hmmn the Maker (the “SnowPet
s and

WHEREAS, the Assignor wizhes to assign and the Assigoes desires to aasure paymenls
in the principal amount of $939,000 from SaowPet (the “Asgiged Pavinents™; sad

WHEREAS, upon the assignment hevein, Assignes shall forgive all wmounts due to
Asunwbw\uimmﬂm'lhsmm

NOW, THEREFORE, in considersiion of the foregoing, and for other good and valusbls

consideration, the receipt and sufficlency of which are heyeby scknowledged, tho parties hereto
agres as follows;

1. Recitals. The above recitals are haroly incorporated berein and made a part of this
Agreemeny

2. Assignment. As of the date heveof, the Assignor assigns, transfers, conveys and
delivess over to the Assignes, aud the Assignoe acospes delivery of, the Assigned Paymants,

3 Assumption. The Assignes fully and compistcly succeeds 10, mssumes the
Assipned Paywwmts from SuowPet under a Successor Note (as bevesBer defined) and further
agroes 1o dischargs and forgive all obligations of Assignor under the FM Note,

4, Succeaaer Notss. On iho date hereof, succeasor notes to the SnowPet Note shall
be delivered to Assignee end Assignor by SnowPel in the priocips] amounts of $939,000 and
mmv:ommﬂmwmmmmmNoundumw

the assigament hereln), respooctively, along substantially the samo terms and
omﬂﬁmdhﬁmeuNuh(mn‘mmﬁ.
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1

Eupnher Assxances.  Bach puty sgmos 00 perfbom soch forther acts and daltiver
mmm-muwmwmmmmmmwm

§.  Bencfitx Binding Effoct. This Agreomatt shall imre ty the beosfit of, and shall
be binding upon, the partice hareto and their respoctive succemsors and mssigne, Nothing
w“hplhd this Agreamens ia intendad, or shell be constroed, to coufer upon or give
any other pecson other tsn the parties hereto and thalr respactive saocomont and sasigns, any
Hghts of recyedies undes of by ressn of this Agresmient.
7

A Governing Law. This Agroameat shell be govemed by, end shall be constrosd
md intespreied In accordance with, the lawe of the Sixte of Mew Yok, without regard to
conflicts of laws provisions thereof,

8
each of

: Couterparts.  This Agresenent may be exocnlad in sy noober of counkpata,
which shalt be an ociginal, sud all of which taken together shall copstitute & single

[Remainder of pape intentlonaily biawk: Signatrs poge foliows]
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{Signaturs page to Assignment Agreement]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hersto bawe execotsd and delivered this

Agreement e of the date first writlen shove,

ASBSIGNOR:

SNOWPET:
SNOWSHOE O] INC

By: ) AA/L/V

Napne: Fwiard Dayell
Title: President
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THIRD AMENDMENT
T0
FORBEARANCE AGREEMENT

This THIRD AMENDMENT TO TFORBEARANCE AGREEMENT (this
“Amendment™) s made and entered into as of July _ , 2011, SUPERPUMPER, INC., an
Arizone corporation (“Borrower™) and COMPASS BANK (“Lender™).

RECITALS

A, Borrower and Lender are parties to that certain Business Loan Agreement dated
November 5, 2009, as amended by that certain Modification to Loan Agreement
dated as of August 13, 2010 and as amended by the Forbearance Apreement
defined below (as amended, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to
time, the “Revolving Loan Agreement”). The Revolving Loan Agreement,
together with that certzin Promissory Nofe (the “Revolving Note™) dated
November 5, 2009 in the original principal amount of $3,000,000.00 (the
“Revolving Loan”), and all other docurments, agreements, instruments, and
certificates evidencing or relating to the obligations of Borrower owing to Lender
under the Revolving Loan Agresment, including but not limited to, all notes,
security agreements, and guaranties, shall herein be referred to collectively as the
“Revolving Loan Documents”. This Amendment constitutes one of the
Revolving Loan Documents,

B. Barrower and Lender are parties to that certain Loan Agreement dated as of
August 13, 2010 (as amended, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to
time, the “Term Loan Agreement”, and together with the Revolving Loan
Agreement, the “Lgan Agreements”™). The Term Loan Agreement, together with
1hat certain Promissory Note (the “Term Note”, and together with the Revolving
Note, the “Notes”) dated August 13, 2010, in the original principal amount of
$3,000,000.00 (the “Term_Losn”), and all other documents, agreements,
instruments, and certificates evidencing or relating to the obligations of Borrower
owing to Lender under the Term Loan Agreement, including but not limited to, all
notes, security agreements, and guaranties, shall herein be referred to collectively
as the *Term Loan Documents”. This Amendment constitites one of the Term
Toan Documenis. The Revolving Loan Documents and the Term Loan
Documents are collectively referted to herein as the “Loan Documents.”

C. Borrower and Lender also are parties to that certain Forbearance Agreement dated
as of December 23, 2010, as amended by that certain First Amendment to
Forbearance Agreement dated as of December 24, 2010 and by that certain
Second Amendment to Forbearance Agrecment dated as of June 2, 2011 (as
amended, the “Forbearance Agreement’'), addressing, among other things, the
Existing Defaylis as that term is defined therein,

Page 1
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D. Notwithstanding that the Existing Defaults are confinuing, Borrower has
requested that Lender amend the Forbearance Agreement as provided herein.’
Although not obligated to do so, Lender is willing to accommodate Borrower's
request but only purssant te the terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valusble consideration, the receipt and adequacy of
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows;

1. Recitals. Borrower hereby acknowledges that all of the Recitals stated above are true
and acourate and by this reference are incorporated inte and made a part of the body of
this Amendment,

2. Definitions. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this Amendment shall
have the meanings given to them in the Loan Agreements and the Forbearance
Agreement, ag applicable.

3. Effectiveness. This Amendment shall be, and shall be deemed to be, effective upon, and
only upon, the delivery to Lender of the following, all in form, content and detail
satisfactory to Lender:

31  This Amendment. This Amendment duly executed by each of Borrower and
Lender.

32  Guarantor's Conseat, A Guarantor's Consent duly executed by Guarantor as
required by Section 8 below.

33  Secrefsry’s Certificates. If required by Lender, Secretary’s certificate of
Bomower certifying and attaching copies of the resolutions of Borrower, which
resolutions, among other things, authorize Borrower's execution, delivery, and
performance of this Amendment and the incurrence of the obligations hercunder,
as well as the names and signatures of the officers of Bomower authorized to
execute this Amendment on its behalf, all as certified as of the date of this
Amendment.

4, Limited Forbearance. Scction 4 of the Forbearance Agreement is hereby modified,
restated, and replaced by the following provisions:

4, Limited Forbearauee. Subject to ail the provisions of this Agreement, Lender
shall ferbear from exercising its rights and remedies under the Loan Agreements,
the other Loan Documents and otherwise on account of the Existing Defaults,
until the earliest to occur of: (i) any failure by Botrower to perform under this
Agreement, (ii) the occurrence of any default or Event of Default, other than the
Existing Defaults, by Borrower under either of the Loan Agreements or any of the
other Loan Docurnents, or (iii) September 1, 2011 (the “Forbearance Period”) if,
and only if, each and all of the following are satisfied timely and continue to be
satisfied;

Page 2
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Revolving Loan Amount. On or before Janwary 4, 2011,
Superpumper shall make payment to Lender in the amount
necessary to reduce the principal amount ontstanding under the
Revolving Loan Agreement to an amount not to exceed
$1,500,000.00. From and after January 4, 2011, the aggregate
outstanding principal balance under the Revolving Loan
Apreement shall not exceed $1,500,000.00.

Deposits of Collections. For the duration of the Forbearance
Period, Superpumper shall cause all collections of accounts
receivable, all proceeds received by Superpumper from the sale of
any of its assets, and any other income received by Superpumpet
(collectively, “Superpumper’s Income™ to be deposited imto

Superpumper’s depository Account #2519846880 maintained at

Lender, and in the name of Lender (the “Superpumper Collection
Account™, within one (1) Business Day of receipt thereof by
Superpumper, and  Superpumper acknowledges and agrees that on
each Business Day the full amount of the opening available
balance in the Superpumper Collection Account, at the beginning
of such Business Day, will be transferred by Lender and applied to
the obligations of Superpumper owing to Lender under the
Revolving Loan Agreement.

Term Losn Principal Reduction Payments. Superpumper shail
pay to Lender, in readily available funds, two (2) principal
reduction payments to be applied toward the unpaid principal
palance of the Term Loan, each in the amount of $200,000.00
(collectively, the “Principal Reduction Pavments™).
Superpumper shall pay the first Principal Reduction Payment on or
before July 1, 2011, and shall pay the second Principal Reduction
Payment on or before August 1, 2011. Lender’s acceptance and
application of the Principal Reduction Payments is not, and shall
not be deemed to be, a waiver, release, or estoppel of Lender's
right to demand, receive, and coliect the balance of the Obligations
and Indebtedness, as applicable, or any other sums due under the
Loan Documents. Lender’s aceeptance of the Principal Reduction
Payments shall not reinstate the Revolving Loan or the Term Loar,
or operate to waive or cure the Existing Defaults or any other
default which may now exist or later cccur under the Loan
Documents,  Notwithstanding any provision of the Loan
Documents, Superpumper’s failure - to pay esither Principal
Reduction Payment on the date on which it is due shall constitute
an immediate Event of Defanlt under each of the Loan
Agreements,
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44 No Default. No default or Event of Default, other than the
Existing Defaults, occurs under either of the Loan Agreements or
any of the other Loan Docurnents,

Upon any failure by Superpumper to perform and satisfy fully and to continue to
perform and satisfy fully the conditions set forth in Sections 4.1 throngh 4.4
above, Superpumper acknowledges that Lender, may, in Lender’s sole discretion,
terminate the Forbearance Period upon written notice of the reason for
termination. Upon termination or expiration of the Forbearance Period, Lender
may exercise any and all rights available to Lender under the Loan Documents or
any of them, at law, and in equity. Superpumper acknowledges and agrees that
Lender shall have no obligation to extend the Forbearance Period beyond
September 1, 2011.

5. Exiension Fee. As a one-time accommodation fo Borrower, Lender will not charge an
extension fee in connection with this Agreement. Lender reserves its right to charge an
extension or forbearance fee in the future, including without limitation, in connection
with any further amendment of the Forbearance Agreement or in cornection with any
extension of the Forbearance Period.

6, Amendment to Loan Documents,

6.1  Msaturity Date. The maturity date set forth in the Loan Agreements and the other
Loan Documents is hereby extended to September 1, 2011.

7. Acknowledgements. Borrower hereby acknowledges, confirms, and agrees that:

71  Asof July I, 2011: (i) the total principal amount owing by Borrower under the
Revolving Loan Apreement was Eight Hundred Fifty Four Thousand Thirty
Seven and 39/100 Dollars ($854,037.39), (ii) all amounts outstanding under the
Revolving Loan Documents are immediately due and payable to Lender, (iii) all
amounts {inciuding, but not limited to, principal, interest and default interest
accrued and acerwing thereon, and fees, costs, expense and other charges) asserted
1o be due now or hereafter by Lender under the Revolving Loan Documents are
justly and unconditionally due and owing to Lender without any defense of any
kind, nature or description whatsoever of Borrower or any right of Borrower to set
off, recoup, or counterclaim, and (iv) interest and default interest, fees, costs,
expenses and other charges continue to accrue under the Revolving Loan
Agreement and the other Revolving Loan Documents until all of the Indebtedness
defined therein is indefeasibly paid to Lender in full by Borrower.

72 Asof July 1, 2011: (i) the fotal principal amount owing by Botrower under the
Term Loan Agreement was Two Million Five Hundred Fighty Seven Thousand
Eight Hundred Ninety Six and 59/100 Dollars ($2,587,896.59), {ii) all amounts
outstanding under the Term Loan Documents are immediately due and payable to
Lender, (iii) all amounts (including, but not limited to, principal, interest and
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7.4

1.5

7.6

1.7

7.8

default interest accrued and nccruing thereon, and fees, costs, expense and other
charges) asserted to be due now or hereafter by Lender under the Term Loan
Documents are justly and unconditionally due and owing to Lender without any
defense of any kind, nature or description whatsocver of Borrower or any right of
Borrower to set off, recoup, or caunterclaim, and (iv) interest and default interest,
fees, costs, expenses and other charges continue to accrue under the Term Loan
Agreement and the other Term Loan Documents until all of the Obligations
defined therein are indefeasibly paid in full to Lender by Borrower

All amounts (including, but not limited to, principal, interest accrued and accruing
thereon, and fees, costs, expense and other charges) asseried to be due now or
hereafter by Lender under the Loan Documents (including, but not limited to, the
Forbearance Agreement) are justly and unconditionally due and owing to Lender,
without any defense of any kind, nature or description whatsoever of Borrower or
any right of Borrower to set off, recoup, or counterclaim.

The Loan Documients are valid and enforceable in accordance with their
respective terms, end are not subject to avoidance under applicable state law or
federal law.

The liens and security interests granted to Lender in the Loan Documents are
valid, enforceable, and properly perfected, and are not subject to avoidance under
applicable state law or federal law. Borrower hereby confirms its existing grant to
Lender of liens and security interests in the Collateral. Borrower hereby confinns
that all liens and security interests at any time granted by Bommower 1o Lender
continue in full force and effect and secure and shall continue to secure the
lisbilities and Obligations and Indebtedness, as applicable, 5o long as any such
labilities or Obligations and Indebtedness remain outstanding, and that all
property subject thereto remain free and clear of any liens or encurnbrances other
than (i) those in favor of Lender, (i) those, if any, expressly permitted under the
Forbearance Agreement, and (iii) liens, if any, expressly permitted in the Loan
Agreements, and exhibits thereto. Nothing herein contained is intended to impair
or limit in any way the validity, priority, and extent of Lender’s existing seourity
interest in and liens upon the Collateral,

There are no defaults by Borrower under the Loan Documents other than the
Existing Defaulis.

Borrower has full authority and power to enter into, execute, deliver and perform
this Amendment.

Borrower has had the opporiunity to review this Amendment and to consult with
counsel of its choosing with respect to this Amendment,

Guarantor Consent. Upon exceution of this Amendment, Borrower will deliver to
Yender the Consent And Agreement Of Guarantor form attached to this Agreement (the
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“Guarantor’s Consent™ duly executed by Guarantor. Lender will accept Guarantor’s
signatures in pdf or facsimile upon execution of this Agreement, provided, however, that
the original signature of Guarantor is delivered to Lender within five (5) Business Days
of the date of this Amendment

Yalid Liens, Borrower hereby reaffirms and confirms the grant of the security interests
and liens which it previously granted to Lender in the Loan Agreements and the other
Loan Documents. Further, Borrower acknowledges and agrees that the liens, security
interests, pledges, and assignments created by the Loan Documents are valid, effective,
properly perfected and enforceable continuing first priority liems, secunty interests,
pledges and assignments.

Costs and Expenges. Lender shall be entitled to charge and add to the amount owing by
Borrower under the Loan Documents, all of Lender’s costs and expenses (including, but
not limited to, reasonsble attorneys’ fees) incurred in relation to the Existing Defilts, the
Loan Documents, the Forbearance Agteement, and this Amendment, and any of the
requirements stated herein. Lender has incurred, and will continue to incus, legal fees
and costs with respect to the Forbearance Agreement (as amended by this Amendment)
and the ather Loan Documents, and Borrower is responsible under each of the Loan
Agreements to pay such legal fees and costs.

Release,

11.1  For the good and valuable consideration provided herein, Barrower hereby fully,
finally, absolutely, and forever releases and discharges Lender and its present and
former directors, sharcholders, officers, employees, agents, representatives,
attomeys, consultants, fiduciaries, predecessors, successors, assigns, and
affilintes, related. corporate divisions, and their separate amd respective heirs,
personal representatives, aftorneys, successors, assigns, and affiliates
{collectively, “Released Parties”) from any and all actions, causes of actiom,
claims, debts, damages, demands, liabilities, obligations, suits, judgments,
executions, and expenses and any and all other claims, counterclaims, defenses,
rights of set-off, demands and liabilities whatsoever (individually, a “Claim” and
callectively, “Claimg”) of any and every character, now known or unknown,
direet or indirect, contingent or matured, of whatever kind or nature, for ar
because of any matter or things done, omitted or permitted to be done by any of
the Released Parties, at law ot in equity: (i) in respect of each and all of the Loan
Agreements, the Forbearance Agreement, this Amendment and the other Loan
Documents: and the actions or omissions of Lender in respect of each and all of
the Loan Agreements, the Forbearance Agreement, this Amendment and the other
Loan Documents, and (i) arising from events occurring prior to and including the
date of execution hereof,

11.2 Borrower understands, acknowledges and agrees that the release set forth above
may be pleaded as a full and complete defense and may be used as a basis for an
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13,

14.

15.

injunction against any action, suit or other proceeding which may be instituted,
prosecuted or attempied in breach of the provisions of such release.

(13 Borrower agrees that no fact, event, cireumstance, evidence, or transaction which
could now be asserted or which may hereafter be discoversd shall affect in any
manner the final, absolute, and unconditional nature of the release set forth above.

Waiver of Claims. Borrower waives and affirmatively agrees not to allege or otherwise
pursue any or all defenses, affirmative defenses, counterclaims, claims, causes of action,
set-offs, recoupments, or other rights that it may have to contest (i) any provision of the
Loan Agresments or other Loan Documents, or (ii) Lender’s liens and security interests
in the Collateral under the Loan Documents,

Covenant Not To Sue. Bomower, on behalf of jtself and its successors, assigns, and other
legal representatives, hereby absolutely, unconditionally and irrevocably, covenants and
agrees with and in favor of each Released Party that it will not sue (at law, in equity, in any
regulatory proceeding or otherwise) any Released Party on the basis of any Claim released,
remised and discharged by Borrower pursuant to Section 11 above. 1f Bortower or any of
its successors, assigns or other legal representations violates the foregoing covenant,
Borrower, for itself and its successors, assigns and legal representatives, agrees to pay, in
addition to such other damages as any Released Party may sustain as a result of such
viglation, all attorneys’ fees and costs incurced by any Released Party as e result of such
violation,

Continuing Effect, Except as expressly modified in this Amendment, all of the
provisions of the Loan Agreements, the Forbearance Agreement, and other Loan
Documents shall remain in full force and effect, and nothing in this Amendment shall be,
or shall be construed to he, a modification of any provision in the Loan Agreements, the
Forbearance Agreement, or other Loan Doguments. Further, nothing in this Amendment
shall be, or be construed to be, a waiver or a modification of any right, power, or remedy
of Lender under the Loan Agreements, the Forbearance Agreement, or other Loan
Documents, and Lender hereby reserves all of its and Lender’s rights and remedies under
the Loan Agreements, the Forbearance Agreement, the other Loan Documents, and
applicable law.

General Provigions,

15.1 Furiher Assurances. Bomower shall execute and deliver such further documents
and do such things as in the judgment of Lender are necessary or desirable to
effect the intent of this Amendment and to secure to Lender the benefits of all
rights and remedies conferred upon them by the terms of this Amendment.

152 Entire Apreement. The Forbearance Agreement, as modified by this

Amendment, constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the parties
with respect to the subject matter thereof and supersedes all prior written or oral
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understandings and agreements between the parties in connection with its subject
matier,

Counterparts and Telecopy Execution. This Amendment may be executed in
counterpart, and any number of counterparts of this Amendment which have been
executed by Lender and Borrower shall constitute a single original. Lender’s
attorney may integrate into one or more documents signature pages from
documents executed in counterpart. Unless otherwise required by Lender, the
telecopied or pdf signature of a person shall be deemed the original signature of
that person and shall be binding for all purpases.

Ratification. Borrower and Lender hereby ratify and confirm the Forbearance
Agreement, as amended by this Amendment, in all respects; and, except as
expressly modified by this Amendment, the Forbearance Agreement shall remain
in full force and effect,

Governing Law. This Amendment shail in afl respects be govemed by, and
construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Arizona,
except for its rules relating to conflicts of laws.

[Signatures appear on following page.]
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BMO @ Bapk of Montreal Roquistion for Wfra‘l‘mnsi‘er/‘g IRAPRIZOTT

Sesiml Number 3212358857 FPostng Dme 18/AFA/Z0711 Amount LISD 200,000.00
ORPERING CUSTOMER
Name MR SALVATORE ROBERY MORARITD

-

Source of Funds  AGCOLNT 2313 4515931
QUOTED RATE & EXCHANGE
NiA

BENEFICIARY
Mame SUPERPUMRER ING

Address 14637 NORTH SCOTTSNALE RD, SUTELZS
City SCOTTSRALE .
State ARZONA,

. TP Goda 85254 !
Country  UNITED STATES ‘
BENEFICIARY BARK
Bank Name BEVA COMPASE BANE
Addrase ZRS0 E CANE BACK ROAD, SUITE 140
Gty PHOENIN
State AREIONA #IF Coda 8EQ16
Country  UNIED STAYES : Bank iD " FEDWIRE 122105744
CORFESFONDENT BANK
Bank Name WELLS FARGD BANK N.A. Code 1000106

DETAILE OF PAYMENT
Motify by Phens  NO
Credit Aceauni  YES Accourt 2514846380

Ragular  Number

Pay on Appfication % [dentilication  po
Reminancs Information BARE CONTACT SHAWN HOLLENBACH (602]522-5
B840,
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BEMO @ Ba::i.];:.nfMun_treal Raguisiticn for Wire Transfer FBIMLIZOTT

Serlaf Numbar 321369948 Posting Date 20/7052011 Amount USD 100,000.G0

CABERING CUSTOMER
Mame K 841 VATORE ROBERT MORABITG

Sourte of Funds  ACCOLNT 3213 4513931
QUOTED AAYE & EXCHANGE
bera, "

BENEFICIARY
Wame SUPERPURMPER NG

Address 14631 NORTH SCOTTSDALE RD, SUITE12S
City SCOYYSDALE
State ARIZORA ZIF Code BE2E4

Counry  UNITED STATES

BENEFICIARY BANK
Benk Mama pBVA COMPASS BANK

Address  2BE0 E CAMELBACK ROAD, SUTE 140
City PHOENIC
Srate ARFZONA 2IP Code 88016

Country  YMITED STAYES Bank D FENWIRE 122105764

CORRESPONDENT BANYK
Bsnk Name WELLS FARES BANK N.4. ' Code 1006106

DETAL S OF PAYMERT

Notity by Phorne MO Regular  Mumber
Credit Asoount  YES  Accbunt 2519846220

Remittange. Information BANK CONTACT SHAVWN KOLLENBAGH (50215226
890

Pay on Application & Iderification NG

WIRE TRANSFER AGREENENT
I Eonsiderstion of iha Bank of Mercbeal ithe “Bok*] provesying pod Tecuiving wiie Tnsans {"Transtue ) from Gme 98 B fo aur wccolnt, we dume 9 -ollowe:
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damage, panalier, eosiz n!inunnmiancnmmhg Lés 13 ur arvy obfar person oeaing Yowm any celimy or fnfivg olperiamencs dus ta mureg by ool thar eontrel of ths Bpnk,
Including, without Smdtaiien, tho aets o i I or1he b Bank; ol athw e i o Systarma Falloes reapeceing the pracesaing g Lol

or of r fian = receql
“Ternafers Tha Bank 5 not bnbie-o us of Amy.cther perean Tor WeneeL of FTDIOfA SabTAAT 1n o Ko ik AT dryi parssn arlalng ciet ot 1he procossing of any Transfer, Uit couted
Eoiely by tha fegliganse of willsl mlzoendaed of tha Bank,

Wi gtnaviedne tue the Bk may dewy the 3ending of m Transher fn thy seent thil 0ty rertrictons noplicablecto the Sank b iy clegring ayiteen s 1o etoct tha Teanstm,
Ineluting, »HOU nkadan, insutfitiam cralt or difer LA dalny tha Bank from mending the Tranctar. Wa acknawcedan 1hat the Fatk and gihar gl irstintions imafved

in prorassfing Teanafars ray ey Bolly on ony aesgont o Tienulffeatfon ruambes i) #nd will et €amt b tanfirm whethay the neodr s} spacifat Eowiesprnd with the nemn of
Ahe: payn af the Pveo’s Hensial iminion provided in the gayment ader sad ata it ciiged b any other way 1 viuly the Tnfarmatian contsined ™ the ptyment srfer. The payes
may ba-eeiired 1o provide iderl ta the zm: of vhe- paying financial bexttibm.
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U.S. TRUST 2

Your Bank of America
Prima Account -

1M4 PP )
H23 Statement — :
Statement Period; i
December 1 through December 30, 2011
Account Number: SRMERERR: - ;
"ikltl_lill“ull|Il"lllall"I"llll“ullllll|Il|ll]l;ll|)“ N ——— -
SALV gy AL four Service ;
AR Lp. ?ﬁmmoggﬁsr[% © Call; 1.800.878.7874 - Custornor Service )
10645 N Ta ELVD # 200-828 ) .
PHOENIX Lazumsso'za-naa N Palfn Desart Private Rank
73-525 E} Paseo ———

Falm Desert, CA, 922604341

Customer since 2002
Bank of America appreciates your
business and wa enjoy serving you,

Our Online Banking s2rvice allows you to check bafances, track Account ackvily and more, With Onfine Banking you can alege
view up ko 18 inonihs of this statement onling and even tirn off delivery of your paper statement, Enrcil ot
wervebankofamerica.com.

Premium Tiered Interesy Checking

0 Summary of Your Prima Interest Checking Account

Beginming Balance on 12/01/11 $14,718.09 | | Annual Parcentage Yield earned this period 0.0R%
Total Deposits + 10511169 | | Imerest paid year-to-date $178.94
Tolal Checks, Withdrewals, Mumber of ATM withdrawals and transfers 3
Transfers, Accourt Feos - 81,9110 -
: Number of purchase transactions 1E
Interesy, Palg 3.e8
= e Number of 24 Hour Customer Service Galls
Ending Salance §58,722,57 Saff-Service 0
Aaing # Aszisted a
0 Checks Paid * Gap in sequential check numbers,
Date Paid Nistrber Amgunt Eiate Paid Humber AL
12722 1115 § 84.00 12f0] 1157 120,00
12/ * 1156 T20.00 | | Total of 2 Chacks Paid £324.00
[J Account Activity
Crale
Postad Masctiplian Rakerenge Minher Ao

Deposits and Credits

a’gent- Assisted transfer froin Chi M0T Confirmations 3886265360 $156,31
ire: T ge:Wwe In Date: 111202 Time:326 EF Trn:20111 202001895270

Seq:] 11 202024192000a/328245 Crig:Nr Salvatore Robert Morah

ID:321345129%1 Snd Bh:Wealls Farga NY Tnt) ID:0509 Pt Det:0p3z13s

3205 fRec/Yr 73525 E[ Pasen Palm Desert CA, LIS 9228

a0z
12foz

¢ 19,380.00
1213 AT deposic gn 12113, DDE748 1,132.50
iiw:W. 0021 {Card #218524750)
T2 1ens s ' 15, _ 07988 3.842.68
| Bank of Amarica ATM #IAZDO0ST {Card #110524 7904
A712020 Wire TypeMire In Date: 111220 Timz:0937 Et Trn:207 11 220001 33381
- S :11‘%22‘008025?]1400!00021& Org:Superpumper (nc 1D:412510846850
JURTES Snd Bk:Campas S Bank 10122105744 Ame Det:Dec—L—'_—’/ 20,000.0)
Continued on next page
Catifervila Page 1 af 3
i
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£ Jo | #bey BILLIOY R
#hed 3au wo panunuon
1 [ . I I poponine [l nRien 1 ]
Suatement Period: Septerber 1 through September 30, 2017
Ascount Number; HEIGERae
0 Account Aclivity
Date
; Przsted Deseriplon Relerunce Numbes Amaokint
L’\J e Deposits and Credits
0302 | Wire Tyne'Wire In Date; 110902 Time:5447 Et Trm201108020021641
ur\‘ Seqr] 10902275 ARS000a/2 16279 Origddr Salvatare Fohart Mo .
: 32 R TIE 4 BRWels Fargo MY In ]
/’ H7T4 [AceiVT 13825 E) Fasen Suit 2604 $49,980.00 :
0B/08 A7 ATK digposit on 09408, 007240 1.106.080
Bank of Amarica ATM FINYNOOTT {Card #318524790) 1
2 Wire TypesWire In Date: 110822 Time:0907 Et Trmi201 1092200108759 E
s 593:1' 092208050 400/000012 Orig;SuPperpumpar Inc |Th412519845880 -
Snd Bk:Compas 5 Bank 1D:122105744 Pl DetSepTi 50,000.00
;i ; £101,085.00
Withdrawals,, Transfers gnd Accoumt Fees ;
ity SR shz2.87 1~ [
Superpumper 001377
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SALVATORE MORABITO

AKA BAM MORABITO

10645 N TATUM BLVD #200-636
PAOENIX &2 85028 -30ER

U.S. TRUST &~

Your Bank of America
Prima Account
Statement

Statement Peried:
June T through June 36, 2611

Ascount Number: €8

At Your Seryice
Call: 1.800.878.7878 - Customer Service

Paim Desest Private Bank
73-525 Ef Faseo
Palm Cesert, CA 922801341

Customer since 2002
Bark of America ‘appreciates your

P

1

business and we arjoy serving you, —
Our Gnline Banxing service allaws you ta check balances, arack accognt activity and more. With Online Banking you can alsg
view up 19 18 months of this statement onfine and even ium off delivery of your paper statement, Enroil at
wivwr bankalamerica.com.
Premium Tiered Interest Checking .
O Summary of Your Prima tnterest Checking Accaunt
Beginning Balarca on 06/01/H1 $116,146.91 Annual Percenlage Yield earned this period 0:259%
Total Deposits - 10000000 Interest paid year-to-date 1108.39
Total Checks, Witharawals, Number of ATM withdrawals ana transfers 2
Transfers, Account Fegs - 49,892,12 N
Number of purshase transactions ]
I w5t Paid 20077
ferest per r Number of 24 Hour Customer Service Calfs
Lhading Balance $166,275.50 Self:Servi ce a
Aszisted a
G Checks Paid * Gap in saquentlal check numbers,
Bata Palg Humber Amotint Dawr Paiu Humper Amaury
0621 1110 $120.71 06721 T242 157.00
D815 “ 1233 120.00 . 0Bf27 T 1244 434.00
D621 " 1z47 165.00 | | Total of § Checks Paid 996,71
O Account Activity
Dae S T
Past ::f_lfj.cﬂ:—_-pﬂcnm“x H‘“"N——-___H, Referenca Numbor Arount
Deposits and Cregits . \
06130 Wire T‘\;pe:Wire In Gate: 110830 Time: 1643 E¢ Troepi 106300030965556 \.\
Seq:1 1063015450 3h400/003858 Or[;q:Superpumper e 1004125196 46480
Snd BkeCompas B Bank (D:122105 14 $100.000.00
Wit Is, Transfers and Account Feas.
06/ Brwiinsncis i TRAR RN, ‘Salvatore
Modl01227824 Co |D:122255697 7 PPD Rel:01T 181213555735 Sa54.12
0sf Chasg | DES:Loans”  1D:10930813884600 INDN:Morabitg
S201108297080 Co ID;9507251007 PPD Ref.011151010460635 ’ 1,'04.50
06102 Bank OF America DE3Line I;%mt 10:068240127970099 [N DN-Morabita S
OMZC040863 Co 1D: 337687665 PRD Ref:0T1352006780684 800.00
Conlinued an néxt page
California / é_ b Page 1 of 3
Yoo o — B ¢ & G‘&L : { {L
N =\ & s
&Maﬁg alke 4+ oA C{//g/“wtnﬂ_
Superpumper 001378
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One Renaissance Square Atterneys ot Law {ns
megg Mﬂ? Two North Gentrdl Arenc Fhoesix and Ticion, drizond

AL iy AL Mt

Ehwenby, Artrona B5004-2391 Naplas, Horida
Tel 6022295200 Chiczgo, HMinois
October 15, 2010

VIA E-MAIL AND OVERNIGHT DELIVERY

Superpumper Properties, LLC
14631 North Scottsdale Road, #125
Scottsdale, Arizona 85254

Mr. Paul A. Morabito _
59 Damonte Ranch Parkway, Suite B335
Reno, Nevada 89521

RE: Loan Agreement dated as of March 9, 2010 (the “Loan Agrecment™ by and
between Superpumper Properties, LLC (“Superpumper™) and Compass Bank
(“BBVA Compass™

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is made to the Loan Agreement described above, Capitalized terms used
herein without definition have. the meaning ascribed to them in the Loan Agreement, as
applicable,

Under the terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement, BBVA Compass made a
term loan to Superpumper in the original principal amount of $1,050,560.00 (the “Loan™), as
evidenced by that certain Promissory Note dated March 9, 2010 executed by Superpumper in
favor of BBYA Compass (the “Noie”, and together with the Loan Agreement and atl other
agreements, documents, and instruments evidencing, securing or otherwise relating to the Loan
Agreement, the “Loan Documents™). Payment and performance of Superpumper’s obligations
under the Loan Documents is guaranteed by Paul A. Morabito (“Guarantor”) pursuant to that
certain Unconditional Guaranty dated March 9, 2010,

‘We are in receipt of Guarantor’s e-mail dated Septermber 24, 2010 (the “9/24/10
Notice™). In the 9/24/10 Notice, Guarantor acknowledges that Superpumper is in default of
several of the provisions contzined in the Lean Documents (the “Ackmowledged Events of
Default™). In addition, Guarantor has advised BBVA Compass that the Acknowledged Events of

Default have been triggered by the entry of an approximately $75,000,000.00 judgment against
Guarantor and other defendants.

As 5 result of the Acknowledged Events of Default: (i) BBVA Compass is entitled

QBLL30585,000654 1401653.2 i

MORABITO (341).007014 /
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Superpumper Properties, LLC
Mr, Paul A. Morabito
October 15, 2010

Page 2

10 exercise its rights and remedies under the Loan Documents, at law and in equity, against
Superpumper, Guarantor, and the collateral securing the amounts owed by Bomrowers to BBVA
Compass, and (ii) BBVA Compasy is not obligated to make any advances available to
Superpumyper, and any advances made by BBV A Compass, on or afier the date of this letter are
made as an accommodation only, and the same do not constitute nor may be deemed to
constitute a waiver by BBVA Compass of any of its rights or remedies under the Loan
Documerts, at law or in equity. BBV A Compass hereby reserves all rights and remedies under

the Loan Documents, at law and in equity with regard to the foregoing Acknowledged Fvents of
Default,

Superpumper and Guarantor have requested that BBVA Compass enter into
discussions regarding a potential workout of the Loan. Although not oblipated to do so, BBVA
Compass is willing to entet into workout discussions regarding the Loan but only with the
understanding that such discussions are non-binding in natore and that, notwithstanding the
existence or content of any commiunication, including, but not limited to, any wverbal
conversations, by or between Superpumper, Guarantor, and BBVA, Compass, or any of their
representatives, regaxding the Acknowledged Events of Default or any other default or Event of
Default, no waiver, forbearance, loan modification, or other similar action by BBV A Compass
with regard two such default or Event of Default will be effective unless the same has been
reduced to writing and executed by an authorized representative of BBVA Compass,
Superpumper, and every other entity deemed necessary or appropriate by BBVA Compass. To
document this understanding, contemporaneously with this letier, BBVA Compass is sending a
prenegotiation leiter agreement to Superpurnper for its review and signature.

Additional events may have ocowred which would constitute defanlts or, if
uncured within any applicable cure periods, would constitute Events of Default. BBVA
Compass hereby reserves the right 1o declare any such events as defaults or Events of Default, as
applicable, at any time in the future and hereby reserves all of BBVA Compass’s rights and
remedies under the Loan Documents, at law and in equity, with regard thereto. Any failure to
specify such events in this letter will not constitute a waiver of any default or Event of Default
resulting from such events.

Any failure or delay by BBVA Compass in ¢xercising any right, power, or remedy
under the Loan Documents, at law or in equify, or any acceptance of partial performance or
partial payment: (i) will not operate as a waiver of such right, power, or remedy, nor will any
single or partial exercise of any such rght, power, or remedy preclude any other or further
exercise of such right, power, ot remedy or the exetcise of any other right, power, or remedy;
and (i) will not be sufficient, by itself or together with any other action or inaction by BBVA
Compass, to establish a course of dealing or course of conduct by BBVA Compass upon which
Superpumiper or Guarantor are entitled to rely, '

QB 3058500065 1401693.2
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Superpumper Properties, LLC
Mr. Paul A. Morabito
October 15, 2010

Page 3

Nothing contained it this letter is a waiver or meodification of any right, power, or
remedy of BBVA Compass under the Loan Documenis, nor a waiver or modification of any
provision thereof; and nothing in this letter will be or will be construed as any such waiver,
modification, or agreement.

Please ask your counse! to contact the undersigned if you would like to discuss this
matter further.

¢c Dennis C. Vacco, Esq.

QBUI0535.0006941 1401693 2

MORABITO (341).007016

5099

R e S Py



T

it

Bankof America H

"@ PAGE 10 1
! BANS OF AMERICH W

RIRE TRAMSTER A ICE
1 FLEET RAY PAG~-580-04=05
SCRANTOR. PA 185067

‘1['4‘1“1‘““"““!'1 hﬂ'h‘itl"“hslilt'*llllli

wx 0G0 413544 w0l
SM.‘HTBRE Rﬂkﬁ!ff
AKA SAR MORABITD

398% 5 MCCARRAM PLND & 104

89502—‘7510

PBATE: 107007

-~ DIRECT mnum:es 10
£00.729.9675 DPTION 2
ACCRUNT =

TRARSACTION REF:
SENDER'S REF:

QRIGINATOR
BKIGIHQTQR‘S BANK v
SENDING BANK
BENEFICIARY

PAYMENT DETAIL:

USD AMOUNT $146.127.00
2u1nwolon347us SERVICE REF: 011740
‘10%B0151040117% ; ¥~ RELATED REF: QF3ZL333723
zulunnusa?nazcuuﬁn Ffb

nn: 32;3&515932

EANK OF HDRTREAL
WACHDYIA HY INTL 18: 026005093
SALVATORE MORARITO D¢ 1314560091

NTACT YOLAMDA SHITH OR KAREN FALEN (7601656~7508 FREC/YR 73 525 £I P
bSEI] SUITE 2504 PALM DESERT. LA

TR#NSACTI&!! REF ¢
RELAT

INSTRUCTIRG " BANK:
RENEFIGIARY :
BENEFTCIARY'S BANK:

PAYHENY DEVALL:

55 DED : Y USD AMDUNT 25,00
anmzunaoos%sm Fe. SERVICE REF: 017068
2820101.001045140 gd vice_ I9AD: 2010100136BTHUIR0ITO6D
TRUSTHED 1D: TRND

TR TACHATHIAS WEXLER FRIEDHAN LLP 13 152 8958

HANUFI\C‘TUREES AND TRADERS BMIK @::? I 0
CLIENT TRUST ACCOURT 15210958 /A LENT THUST ACCOUNT 15218958

-

::) L-‘L--PR T (UL-E M Pf |
N l( ‘
roperTie >

iy fungpet 1

Superpumper 000948 (/

5100



Heller; SUPERPUMPER PR RTIES, LLC
Property: 920 Mountain City Highway, Elko, NV

i

00

1,670,000

PRORATIONS/ADNUSTMENTS;

August Rent-Cedar @ 4.303.16 per | month(s) $/26/2011 to 9/61/2011 a1y .

Augost Rent-Industrial Parkway (@ 4,300.16 per | month(s) 8/26/2011 to 9012011 N7 2 57y
August Rent 19th & 15th Street @ 4.303.16 per 1 month(s} 5/26/201 1 16 9/01/2011 717.19

TITLE CHARGES

Sub-Escrow Fee: First American Tite Company 125.00

Clark County Transfer Tax $3.90 per $1000.00: First Amerjcan Title Company 3.823.5§

Wire Fee/Overnight Delivery (Payoff): First American Title Company 50.00

Owner's Premium-fior Cedar Property: First American Title Company 1,701.04

Owner's Premium-15th Strest. First Amevican Title Company __1,358.7(

Orwner’s Premiium-14th Swreet First American Title Company B98.6(

Owners Preminm for Industrist Pricwy: First American Title Cotmpany £,761.00

Record Recanveyence Post Closing: First American Title Company 7500

ESCROW CHARGES TO: Citywide Escrow Services, Ine,

Eserow Fes 3,061,50
Administration Fes 25,043

Messenger Fee-Fed Ex Fres 50.0

LOAN PAYOYF: BEVA Compass

Principal Balance ©74,868.29

Intercst Per Diem From 3/11/2011 To 8/29/2011, 18 Days, @ 108.3200 1,M9.76

Ourrent Interest Due 216.64 _

Total Loag Payoff 977.035.69

ADDITIONAL DISBURSEMENTS:

Document Transfer Tax: Pershing County Recorder-Anditor 1.911.0

BALANCE DUE YOU 476,031.99

TOTALS 1,476,080.00__ 1,470.060.00

=%
38}\\.!\3 &b{uﬁk“’t W MO
_ b3
= i
Yer Posis ms THES Hrvzae””
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v faor Toe .
e
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| HERESY CRATIFY THATTHS 15 ATRUE AND
CORRECT GPY OF THE ORIGINAL THEREQR.

CﬁWﬂD?ROW SERVICES, INC.

Y y,nd?-(,&_'/

THIS IS A FINAL CLOSING STATEMENT
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Rnaifles Lasirance Limited
Member Summary
September 30, 2010

130159
Berry-Hinckiey Industries

UNDERWRITING
Grosg Prefdum
Cash Fiow Deterral

A Fund

Net Premium
Losses Paid
Loss Recerves

Assessments

Trmsfer from B Fund
Peficit Reallocation
Tronster to B Fund
Final A Fund Balgnes

B Fund

Net Premiem
Losses Paid
Less Reserves

“Transfer fom A Fund
 Fund Deficit Reallocated
Deficit Realiocation
‘lransier to A Fuad

Final B Fund Balonre

C Fund

Het Pramium

Lossts Paid

Las3 Rosorved
Profit or {Loss)

Transfer Bafivit to B Fund.
Final C Fuod Bnlance

Totnl A, B, & 2 Funds
Contribution ta Operatiog Costs
Achuol Operalizp Costs
Investmient teome

Tail Fund

NET EQUITY BALANCE

Capital

Cash Security

Tvesiment ineome on Capital & Security
Uripiiid Asscssments

Cush Flow Délerral

Letters of Credit

Divideieds Payable:

TOTAL EQUITY

20062007 J00Z2008  JONBA009  Z009/Z0N0 2010011 Totaf
167029 240,951 0 ] 0 1511,344
i 0 ] 0 0 ]
1,670,393 240,951 t [ 0 E911,344
JOE.236 121,513 [ 1] i Y29,752
(254,826 (190,772) ] 0 i {145,59%)
N 0. ] o i 0
553,410 (69,257} ] 0 [ 484,154
1} 70,444 o i 0 W A44
0 0 bl 0 0 o
(B,732) (1187) 0 0 0 {1919
i} [ 0 0 0 o
546,678 oy [ 0 0 546,678
203,586 24,149 0 0 0 127,755
(L,381) (142,50 0 0 o (144,153)
__ b g 0 0 0 0
02,025 (115,4d4) 0 0 [ 3,501
0 0 o 0 g 0
0 0 0 ] 0 0
{89.659)  liR434 0 0 0 28,785
.0 0 i 0 ] ]
112,366 [i [ 0 [i 112,366
125,279 18,071 0 0 0 143,351
{68,008) (4,0393 [ b 0 {72,947}
23,223) {3.83n 0 0 0 (32,060}
28,148 10,196 0 1] [} 38,344
0 (1] g i 0
24,148 10,195 0 1] [ 38,344
(87,193 10,196 ¢ 0 b 697,329
531,201 7216 0 0 0 610,507
{351,778) {80,054) 0 o 0 (631873
M,375 {17,645) o 0 0 33,706
1,723 563 0 0 0 2,690
741 806 9387) 1] 0 i} TI2 419
31,000
]
{15,321)
(1,793}
\
1,134,685
303,187

$
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